Napa Valley Transportation Authority

625 Burnell Street
Napa, CA 94559

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

Agenda - Final

Wednesday, April 17, 2019
1:30 PM

NVTA Conference Room
NVTA Board of Directors

All materials relating to an agenda item for an open session of a regular meeting of the NVTA Board of
Directors are posted on the NVTA website at https://nctpa.legistar.com/Calendar.aspx at least 72 hours
prior to the meeting and will be available for public inspection, on and after at the time of such
distribution, in the office of the Secretary of the NVTA Board of Directors, 625 Burnell Street, Napa,
California 94559, Monday through Friday, between the hours of 8:00a.m. and 4:30 p.m., except for
NVTA Holidays. Materials distributed to the present members of the Board at the meeting will be
available for public inspection at the public meeting if prepared by the members of the NVTA Board or
staff and after the public meeting if prepared by some other person. Availability of materials related to
agenda items for public inspection does not include materials which are exempt from public disclosure
under Government Code sections 6253.5, 6254, 6254.3, 6254.7, 6254.15, 6254.16, or 6254.22.

Members of the public may speak to the Board on any item at the time the Board is considering the
item. Please complete a Speaker’s Slip, which is located on the table near the entryway, and then
present the slip to the Board Secretary. Also, members of the public are invited to address the Board
on any issue not on today’s agenda under Public Comment. Speakers are limited to three minutes.

This Agenda shall be made available upon request in alternate formats to persons with a disability .
Persons requesting a disability-related modification or accommodation should contact Karrie Sanderlin,
NVTA Board Secretary, at (707) 259-8633 during regular business hours, at least 48 hours prior to the
time of the meeting.

This Agenda may also be viewed online by visiting the NVTA website https://legistar.com/Calendar.aspx

Note: Where times are indicated for agenda items, they are approximate and intended as estimates
only, and may be shorter or longer as needed.




NVTA Board of Directors Agenda - Final April 17, 2019

-_—

. Call to Order

N

. Pledge of Allegiance

w

. Roll Call

F-S

. Adoption of the Agenda
5. Public Comment

6. Chairperson’s, Board Members’, Metropolitan Transportation Commissioner's,
and Association of Bay Area Governments Update

7. Director's Update
8. Caltrans' Update

9. PRESENTATIONS

9.1 County of Napa Investment Strategy

The Board will receive a presentation by Jim Hudak, Napa County
Treasurer-Tax Collector, on the County's new investment strategy.

10. QUARTERLY PROJECT UPDATES

10.1 Soscol Junction Project

10.2 Imola Avenue Complete Streets Corridor Improvement Project
10.3 Imola Avenue Park and Ride Improvement Project

10.4 Vine Transit Bus Maintenance Facility

10.5 Napa Valley Vine Trail - Calistoga to St. Helena Segment

10.6 Autonomous Vehicle (AV) Demonstration Project

10.7 Travel Demand Management Programs

Napa Valley Transportation Authority Page 2 Printed on 4/10/2019



NVTA Board of Directors Agenda - Final April 17, 2019

Note: Where times are indicated for the agenda item, they are approximate and intended as estimates
only and may be shorter or longer as needed.

11. CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS (11.1 - 11.3)

11.1 Meeting Minutes of March 20, 2019 (Karrie Sanderlin) (Pages 8-14)

Recommendation: Board action will approve the meeting minutes of March 20, 2019.

Estimated Time: 2:15 p.m.

Attachments: Draft Minutes

11.2 Citizens Advisory Committee (CAC) Member Appointment
(Matthew Wilcox) (Pages 15-16)

Recommendation: Board action will approve the re-appointment of members to the CAC.

Estimated Time: 2:15 p.m.

Attachments: Staff Report

11.3 Resolution No. 19-07 for the Fiscal Year (FY) 2018-19 Low Carbon
Transit Operations Program (LCTOP) (Justin Paniagua) (Pages
17-21)

Recommendation: Board action with approve Resolution No. 19-07 approving the FY
2018-19 LCTOP project.

Estimated Time: ~ 2:15 p.m.

Attachments: Staff Report

12. REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS

Napa Valley Transportation Authority Page 3 Printed on 4/10/2019


http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=845fde93-a96f-4471-b9d4-5fa8a0faa38d.pdf
http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=448343f3-88d5-4b1f-a13f-d385ec2fa29a.pdf
http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=1d34bc41-f896-4bc5-92f9-d44310b5e468.pdf

NVTA Board of Directors

Agenda - Final April 17, 2019

121
Recommendation:
Estimated Time:
Attachments:
12.2
Recommendation:
Estimated Time:
Attachments:
12.3

Recommendation:

Estimated Time:

Attachments:

Other Post Employment Benefits (OPEB) and Resolution No.
19-08 Fixing the Employer Contribution at an Equal Amount for
Employees and Annuitants Under the Public Employees' Medical
and Hospital Care Act (Antonio Onorato) (Pages 22-55)

Board action will approve Resolution No. 19-08 adopting an OPEB
Retiree Healthcare Plan contribution at an equal amount for employees
and annuitants under the Public Employees’ Medical and Hospital Care
Act.

2:15 p.m.

Staff Report

Project Work Order E-11 to NVTA Agreement No. 18-21 with GHD
for Work Associated with the State Route 29 Comprehensive
Multimodal Corridor Plan and Project Initiation Document for
State Route 29 (Rebecca Schenck) (Pages 56-166)

Board action will authorize the Executive Director, or designee, to
execute and make minor modifications to Work Order No. E-11to
NVTA Agreement No. 18-21with GHD for State Route 29
Comprehensive Multimodal Corridor Plan and Project Initiation
Document for State Route 29 through American Canyon in an amount
not to exceed $650,000.

2:30 p.m.

Staff Report

Plan Bay Area 2050: Request for Regionally-Significant Projects
(Alberto Esqueda) (Pages 167-191)

Board action will release a call for regionally-significant projects to be
considered for inclusion in the Metropolitan Transportation
Commission’s Plan Bay Area 2050.

2:45 p.m.

Staff Report

Napa Valley Transportation Authority Page 4 Printed on 4/10/2019


http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=07066408-f29d-472b-a3f5-dd15733e3d21.pdf
http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=c3ee9ac3-46c2-462f-9dcb-50fab9db71b3.pdf
http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=ef2ce989-83a4-4432-b70b-c9a97fad70d2.pdf

NVTA Board of Directors Agenda - Final April 17, 2019

12.4 State and Federal Legislative Update and State Bill Matrix (Kate
Miller) (Pages 192-208)

Recommendation: The Board will receive the State Legislative update prepared by
Platinum Advisors and approve board position recommendations for
bills on the State Bill Matrix.

Estimated Time: 3:00 p.m.

Attachments: Staff Report

13. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

14. CLOSED SESSION

14.1 PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION (Government
Code Section 54957(B)(1))

Title: Executive Director

Estimated Time: 3:15 p.m.

15. ADJOURNMENT

15.1 Approval of Next Regular Meeting of Wednesdy, May 15, 2019 and
Adjournment.

Estimated Time:  4:00 p.m.

| hereby certify that the agenda for the above stated meeting was posted at a location freely accessible
to members of the public at the NVTA Offices, 625 Burnell Street, Napa, CA by 5:00 p.m. on Friday,
April 12, 2019.

Karalyn E. Sanderlin, NVTA Board Secretary

Napa Valley Transportation Authority Page 5 Printed on 4/10/2019


http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=3e60dc59-de7c-4ccb-b1cb-9af403403946.pdf

AB 32
ABAG
ADA
ATAC
ATP
BAAQMD
BART
BATA
BRT
BUILD

CAC
CAP
Caltrans
CEQA
CIP
CMA
CMAQ

CMP
CalSTA
CTP
cocC
CTC
DAA
DBB
DBF
DBFOM
DED
EIR

EJ

FAS
FAST
FHWA
FTA

FY
GHG
GGRF

Glossary of Acronyms

Global Warming Solutions Act
Association of Bay Area Governments

American with Disabilities Act

Active Transportation Advisory Committee

Active Transportation Program

Bay Area Air Quality Management District

Bay Area Rapid Transit District
Bay Area Toll Authority
Bus Rapid Transit

Better Utilizing Investments to Leverage
Development

Citizen Advisory Committee

Climate Action Plan

California Department of Transportation
California Environmental Quality Act
Capital Investment Program
Congestion Management Agency

Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality
Improvement Program

Congestion Management Program
California State Transportation Agency
Countywide Transportation Plan
Communities of Concern

California Transportation Commission
Design Alternative Analyst
Design-Bid-Build

Design-Build-Finance
Design-Build-Finance-Operate-Maintain
Draft Environmental Document
Environmental Impact Report
Environmental Justice

Federal Aid Secondary

Fixing America’s Surface Transportation Act

Federal Highway Administration
Federal Transit Administration
Fiscal Year

Greenhouse Gas

Greenhouse Gas Reduction Fund

Latest Revision: 11/18

GTFS
HBP
HBRR

HIP
HOT
HOV
HR3
HSIP
HTF
HUTA
IFB
ITIP

ITOC
ISIMND
JARC
LIFT
LOS
LS&R
MaaS
MAP 21

MPO
MTC
MTS
ND
NEPA
NOAH
NOC
NOD
NOP
NVTA
NVTA-TA

OBAG
PA&ED
P3 or PPP
PCC

General Transit Feed Specification
Highway Bridge Program

Highway Bridge Replacement and
Rehabilitation Program

Housing Incentive Program

High Occupancy Toll

High Occupancy Vehicle

High Risk Rural Roads

Highway Safety Improvement Program
Highway Trust Fund

Highway Users Tax Account

Invitation for Bid

State Interregional Transportation
Improvement Program

Independent Taxpayer Oversight Committee
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration
Job Access and Reverse Commute
Low-Income Flexible Transportation

Level of Service

Local Streets & Roads

Mobility as a Service

Moving Ahead for Progress in the 21t Century
Act

Metropolitan Planning Organization
Metropolitan Transportation Commission
Metropolitan Transportation System
Negative Declaration

National Environmental Policy Act
Natural Occurring Affordable Housing
Notice of Completion

Notice of Determination

Notice of Preparation

Napa Valley Transportation Authority

Napa Valley Transportation Authority-Tax
Agency

One Bay Area Grant
Project Approval Environmental Document
Public-Private Partnership

Paratransit Coordination Council



PCI

PCA
PDA
PID
PMS
Prop. 42

PSE
PSR
PTA
RACC
RFP
RFQ
RHNA
RM2
RM3
RMRP

ROW
RTEP
RTIP

RTP
SAFE

Glossary of Acronyms

Pavement Condition Index
Priority Conservation Area
Priority Development Areas
Project Initiation Document
Pavement Management System

Statewide Initiative that requires a portion of
gasoline sales tax revenues be designated to
transportation purposes

Plans, Specifications and Estimates
Project Study Report

Public Transportation Account

Regional Agency Coordinating Committee
Request for Proposal

Request for Qualifications

Regional Housing Needs Allocation
Regional Measure 2 (Bridge Toll)
Regional Measure 3

Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation
Program

Right of Way
Regional Transit Expansion Program

Regional Transportation Improvement
Program

Regional Transportation Plan

Service Authority for Freeways and
Expressways

SAFETEA-LU Safe, Accountable, Flexible, and Efficient

SB 375

SB1

scs
SHA
SHOPP

SNCI
SNTDM
SR
SRTS
SOV

Transportation Equity Act-A Legacy for Users

Sustainable Communities and Climate
Protection Act 2008

The Road Repair and Accountability Act of
2017

Sustainable Community Strategy
State Highway Account

State Highway Operation and Protection
Program

Solano Napa Commuter Information
Solano Napa Travel Demand Model
State Route

Safe Routes to School

Single-Occupant Vehicle

Latest Revision: 11/18

STA
STIC
STIP
STP
TAC
TCM
TCRP
TDA
TDM

TE
TEA
TEA 21
TFCA
TIGER

TIP
TLC
TLU
TMP
™S
TNC
TOAH
TOD
TOS
TPA
TPI
TPP
VHD
VMT

State Transit Assistance

Small Transit Intensive Cities

State Transportation Improvement Program
Surface Transportation Program

Technical Advisory Committee
Transportation Control Measure

Traffic Congestion Relief Program
Transportation Development Act

Transportation Demand Management
Transportation Demand Model

Transportation Enhancement

Transportation Enhancement Activities
Transportation Equity Act for the 215t Century
Transportation Fund for Clean Air

Transportation Investments Generation
Economic Recovery

Transportation Improvement Program
Transportation for Livable Communities
Transportation and Land Use

Traffic Management Plan
Transportation Management System
Transportation Network Companies
Transit Oriented Affordable Housing
Transit-Oriented Development
Transportation Operations Systems
Transit Priority Area

Transit Performance Initiative

Transit Priority Project Areas

Vehicle Hours of Delay

Vehicle Miles Traveled



Napa Valley Transportation

Authority
Meeting Minutes - Draft

NVTA Board of Directors

625 Burnell Street
Napa, CA 94559

Wednesday, March 20, 2019 1:30 PM

NVTA Conference Room

1. Call to Order

Vice Chair Pedroza called the meeting to order at 1:32 p.m.

2. Pledge of Allegiance

Vice Chair Pedroza led the Pledge of Allegiance.

3. Roll Call

Leon Garcia

Jill Techel
Alfredo Pedroza
Paul Dohring
Mark Joseph
John F. Dunbar
Ryan Gregory
Geoff Ellsworth
Liz Alessio
Gary Kraus
Beth Kahiga
Chris Canning
Kerri Dorman

4. Adoption of the Agenda

Motion MOVED by GARCIA, SECONDED by TECHEL to APPROVE adoption of the agenda. Motion

carried by the following vote:

Aye: 22 - Garcia, Techel, Pedroza, Dohring, Joseph, Dunbar, Gregory, Ellsworth, Alessio, and Kraus

Absent: 2- Canning, and Dorman
5. Public Comment

None

6. Chairperson’s, Board Members’, Metropolitan Transportation Commissioner's,

and Association of Bay Area Governments Update

MTC Commissioner's Update
Alfredo Pedroza reported on recent MTC activities.

Napa Valley Transportation Authority Page 1

Printed on 4/8/2019



NVTA Board of Directors Meeting Minutes - Draft March 20, 2019

7. Director's Update

Kate Miller, Executive Director
* Reported that State Route (SR) 37 will be closed for road repair on [Saturday] March 23rd at
7:00 p.m. until [Sunday] March 24th at 10:00 a.m.

8. Caltrans' Update

Kelly Hirschberg, Caltrans, provided a presentation on the Caltrans Strom Responses to the State
Route 37 floodings that occurred in February and March and an update on the status of various
projects located in the county.

9. CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS (9.1 -9.5)

Motion MOVED by JOSEPH, SECONDED by GARCIA to APPROVE Consent Items 9.1 - 9.5. Motion
carried by the following vote:

Aye: 22 - Garcia, Techel, Pedroza, Dohring, Joseph, Dunbar, Gregory, Ellsworth, Alessio, and Kraus

Absent: 2- Canning, and Dorman

9.1 Meeting Minutes of February 20, 2019 (Karrie Sanderlin) (Pages 10-18)

Attachments: Draft Minutes

Board action approved the meeting minutes of February 20, 2019.

9.2 Resolution No. 19-04 Amending the Bylaws of the Active Transportation
Advisory Committee (ATAC) (Diana Meehan) (Pages 19-30)

Attachments: Staff Report

Board action approved Resolution No. 19-04 amending the ATAC Bylaws.

9.3 Revised Resolution No. 19-03 Transportation Fund for Clean Air (TFCA)
Program Manager Expenditure Plan for Fiscal Year End (FYE) 2020 (Diana
Meehan) (Pages 31-50)

Attachments: Staff Report

Board action approve the revised Resolution No. 19-03 Fiscal Year Ending (FYE) 2020 TFCA
Program Manager Expenditure Plan to reflect the updated amount available for projects from
$248,966 to $239,883.

Napa Valley Transportation Authority Page 2 Printed on 4/8/2019


http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=6187f649-7fda-463e-9c85-4e7c9cfb2338.pdf
http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=d98a67c4-ee22-4a0d-9893-0d29d0cb7757.pdf
http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=9c84b949-fd0b-4538-9a3c-cb329cda812a.pdf

NVTA Board of Directors Meeting Minutes - Draft March 20, 2019

9.4 Resolution No. 19-05 Approving the Lifeline Transportation Program Cycle 5
Project Funds for Fiscal Year (FY) 2016-17 and 2017-18 for the Imola Avenue
Park and Ride Improvement Project (Danielle Schmitz) (Pages 51-57)

Attachments: Staff Report

MTC recently provided revised and final fund amounts for the Lifeline program. The STA funds in
FY 2017-18 increased by $20,911. Staff recommended that the additional funding be allocated to
the Imola Avenue Park and Ride poject. Board action approved Resolution No. 19-05 approving
the Lifeline Transportation Program Cycle 5 Project Funds for FY 2016-17 and FY 2017-18 for the
Imola Avenue Park and Ride Improvement Project.

9.5 Resolution No. 19-06 Authorization to Convey Fee Simple Interest in Real
Property Identified as Assessor Parcel Number 007-120-011 and Portions of
Solano Avenue and Trower Avenue by Quitclaim Deed to the City of Napa
(Rebecca Schenck) (Pages 58-70)

Attachments: Staff Report

Board action approve Resolution No. 19-06 Authorization to Convey Fee Simple Interest in Real
Property Identified as Assessor Parcel Number 007-120-011 and Portions of Solano Avenue and
Trower Avenue by Quitclaim Deed to the City of Napa and authorize the Executive Director to
execute and take all actions necessary to quitclaim deed portions of APN 007-120-011 and
portions of Solano Ave and Trower Ave to the City of Napa.

10. PUBLIC HEARING (TIME CERTAIN 1:40 P.M.)

10.1 Public Hearing and Approval of Phase | Implementing Revisions to the Vine
Regional and Express Service (Matthew Wilcox) (Pages 71-102)

Attachments: Staff Report

Vice Chair Pedroza opened the Public Hearing at 1:53 p.m.

Staff reviewed Phase | implementing revisions to the Vine Regional and Express bus service.
Being no public Vice Chair Pedroza closed the Public Hearing at 2:33 p.m.

Motion MOVED by GARCIA, SECONDED by JOSEPH to APPROVE, with DUNBAR OPPOSING the

revisions to the Yountville service only, Phase | implementing revisions to the Vine Regional and
Express Services effective April 28, 2019. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: 21- Garcia, Techel, Pedroza, Dohring, Joseph, Gregory, Ellsworth, Alessio, and Kraus
Nay: 1- Dunbar

Absent: 2- Canning, and Dorman

Napa Valley Transportation Authority Page 3 Printed on 4/8/2019

10


http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=364cbf90-f946-432f-b9f9-dc23060aa105.pdf
http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=e26e8716-7991-49ee-9480-221db52cc6b0.pdf
http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=094133e9-36d5-46d3-912f-5a697748ece4.pdf

NVTA Board of Directors Meeting Minutes - Draft March 20, 2019

11. REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS

11.1 Financing Options and Funding Alternatives for the Vine Transit Maintenance
Facility (Kate Miller) (Pages 103-107)

Attachments: Staff Report

Staff reviewed additional funding packages for the Vine Transit Maintenance Facility project.

Public comment was provided by Jason Holley, City Manager, City of American Canyon. Mr.
Holley stated that the City of American Canyon opposes using highway funds to support the
project. Further, Mr. Holley encouraged consulting the [NVTA] Technical Advisory Committee
(TAC) for their recommendations/information on the cost, design, and value engineering of the
project.

Motion MOVED by JOSEPH, SECONDED by TECHEL to APPROVE (1) directing staff to proceed
with the funding package process while pursuing and securing other funding sources, (2)
establishing a sub-committee comprised of Board members and NVTA staff to continue the
[funding source] discussion and to review the funding package, project design and value
engineering, and (3) that the funding package for the Vine Transit Maintenance Facility project
be brought back in September for final Board consideration of financing the project. Motion
carried by the following vote:

Aye: 22 - Garcia, Techel, Pedroza, Dohring, Joseph, Dunbar, Gregory, Ellsworth, Alessio, and Kraus

Absent: 2- Canning, and Dorman

11.2 Project Work Order E-10 to NVTA Agreement No. 18-20 with Kimley-Horn for
Work Associated with the Imola Avenue Park and Ride and State Route (SR)
29 Express Bus Improvements (Alberto Esqueda) (Pages 108-233)

Attachments: Staff Report

Board action approved an agreement with Kimley-Horn and Associates for the Imola Avenue
Park and Ride Environmental Design.

Motion MOVED by DOHRING, SECONDED by GARCIA to APPROVE authorizing the Executive
Director, or designee, to execute and make minor modifications to Work Authorization No. E-10
to NVTA Agreement No. 18-20 with Kimley-Horn and Associates for the Imola Avenue Park and
Ride Environmental Design in an amount not to exceed $441,100. Motion carried by the
following vote:

Aye: 22 - Garcia, Techel, Pedroza, Dohring, Joseph, Dunbar, Gregory, Ellsworth, Alessio, and Kraus

Absent: 2- Canning, and Dorman

Napa Valley Transportation Authority Page 4 Printed on 4/8/2019

11


http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=56cc7b85-ead8-4ec3-a995-7c344257f135.pdf
http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=18fa502b-a0ab-4efd-8e2f-f647637cc41d.pdf

NVTA Board of Directors Meeting Minutes - Draft March 20, 2019

11.3  Authorization to (1) Execute a Cooperative Agreement with Caltrans for the
State Route 29 American Canyon Corridor Improvements and (2) to Execute
the State Route 29 Comprehensive Multimodal Corridor and Project Initiation
Document Funding Agreement with City of American Canyon (Rebecca
Schenck) (Pages 234-275)

Attachments: Staff Report

Board action approved the cooperative agreement with Caltrans and the American Canyon
funding agreement associated with the State Route 29 Comprehensive Multimodal Corridor Plan.

Public Comment was provided by Jason Holley, City Manager, City of American Canyon. Mr.
Holley stated that the City of American Canyon supports the project.

Motion MOVED by GARCIA, SECONDED by JOSEPH to APPROVE authorizing the Executive
Director, or designee, to execute and make minor modifications to a Cooperative Agreement
with Caltrans for the State Route (SR) 29 American Canyon Corridor Improvements as well as the
SR 29 Comprehensive Multimodal Corridor and Project Initiation Document (PID) Funding
Agreement with American Canyon. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: 22 - Garcia, Techel, Pedroza, Dohring, Joseph, Dunbar, Gregory, Ellsworth, Alessio, and Kraus

Absent: 2- Canning, and Dorman

11.4  Vine Transit Update (Matthew Wilcox) (Pages 276-282)

Attachments: Staff Report

Information Only / No Action Taken
The Board received the Vine Transit Services Fiscal Year 2018-19 second quarter operational
performance.

Napa Valley Transportation Authority Page 5 Printed on 4/8/2019

12


http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=11d602a3-f133-449c-acf2-4a238ebddb2f.pdf
http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=d960570d-f931-47c7-bc2c-2e32afbf6796.pdf

NVTA Board of Directors Meeting Minutes - Draft March 20, 2019

11.5  Approval of (1) Purchase Order No. 19-1004 with Swiftly for a Real-Time
Passenger Information and Transit Analytics Platform, and (2) Resolution No.
19-07 Amending the Biennial Fiscal Year (FY) 2018-19 and Fiscal Year (FY)
2019-20 Budget (Matthew Wilcox) (Pages 283-350)

Attachments: Staff Report

NVTA staff has limited scheduling tools to ensure bus running times are consistent with Vine
schedules and to reflect real time data in a way that is customer-friendly and accurate. Swiftly
provides a platform that allows passengers to view accurate real-time data that would give NVTA
planning staff multilevel analytics to refine issues with the Vine schedules. Staff estimates that
the cost of the software will be offset by roughly $50,000-75,000 in cost savings annually in
efficiencies associated with schedule slack.

Motion MOVED by GREGORY, SECONDED by ALESSIO to (1) authorize the Executive Director, or
designee, to execute and make minor modifications to Purchase Order No. 19-1004 with Swiftly
to provide real-time information portal for passengers and analytical platform to improve the
Vine’s on-time performance. The contract term will be for one (1) year with an optional two (2)
one (1) year renewal based on NVTA'’s satisfaction with the product. The total contract cost will
be $48,864 for the first year and $47,664 for each of two additional year options; and (2) approve
Resolution No. 19-07 amending the biennial FY 2018-19 and FY 2019-20 budget to increase
appropriations by $114,410. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: 22 - Garcia, Techel, Pedroza, Dohring, Joseph, Dunbar, Gregory, Ellsworth, Alessio, and Kraus

Absent: 2- Canning, and Dorman

11.6  State Legislative Update and State Bill Matrix (Kate Miller) (Pages 351-360)

Attachments: Staff Report

Kate Miller, NVTA Executive Director, reported that that MTC [Metropolitan Transportation
Commission] elected Scott Haggerty, representing Alameda County, as chair and appointed
Director Pedroza as vice chair of the commission.

The Board received the State Legislative update and tool the following action on bills included
in the State Bill Matrix.

Motion MOVED by DUNBAR, SECONDED by GREGORY to APPROVE (1) a Watch Position on AB
314 (Bonta D) and AB 659 (Mullin D), and (2) a Support Position on SB 336 (Dodd D). Motion
carried by the following vote:

Aye: 22 - Garcia, Techel, Pedroza, Dohring, Joseph, Dunbar, Gregory, Ellsworth, Alessio, and Kraus

Absent: 2- Canning, and Dorman

12. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

None

Napa Valley Transportation Authority Page 6 Printed on 4/8/2019

13


http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=9e7ae460-caee-4017-abea-f3e380e4422b.pdf
http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=67026fc0-2df4-4fa3-99d3-24c808ba2971.pdf

NVTA Board of Directors Meeting Minutes - Draft March 20, 2019

13. ADJOURNMENT

13.1 Approval of Next Regular Meeting of April 17, 2019 and Adjournment.

The next regular meeting will be held on Wednesday, April 17, 2019 at 1:30 p.m.

Vice Chair Pedroza adjourned the meeting at 4:12 p.m.

Karalyn E. Sanderlin, NVTA Board Secretary

Napa Valley Transportation Authority Page 7 Printed on 4/8/2019

14



April 17, 2019

NVTA Agenda Item 11.3
Continued From: New

Action Requested: APPROVE

TA

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
Board Agenda Letter

TO: NVTA Board of Directors

FROM: Kate Miller, Executive Director

REPORT BY: Matthew Wilcox, Director — Programs, Projects and Planning
(707) 259-8635 / Email: mwilcox@nvta.ca.gov

SUBJECT: Citizen Advisory Committee (CAC) Member Appointments

RECOMMENDATION

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board approve the re-appointment
of members Jean-Vincent Deale, Christina Benz, Catherine Heywood, Doug Weir, and
Matthew Schmitz to the Citizens Advisory Committee (CAC).

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION

None

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

On December 15, 2015 the NVTA Board approved the formation of the Citizen Advisory
Committee (CAC). The reappointment of Jean-Vincent Deale, Christina Benz, Catherine
Heywood, Doug Weir, and Matthew Schmitz will maintain the current member count at
twelve. The interest each re-appointed member represents on the CAC is included in
Table 1 below.

Table 1: Committee Member Roles

Member City of Residence Interest Represented
Jean Vincent-Deale Napa Seniors
Christina Benz Napa Environment
Catherine Heywood Angwin Chamber of Commerce
Doug Weir Napa Paratransit Coordinating Council
Matthew Schmitz Napa Non-Profit/Education

There are existing vacancies on the committee and NVTA staff is actively recruiting to fill
positions. These include members representing the City of St. Helena, the City of
Calistoga, a Chamber of Commerce/Business member, an Agriculture member, a
Member at-large, and an Active Transportation member.

15


mailto:mwilcox@nvta.ca.gov

NVTA Agenda Letter Wednesday, April 17, 2019
Agenda Item 11.2
Page 2 of 2

PROCEDURAL REQUIREMENTS

1. Staff Report
2. Public Comments
3. Motion, Second, Discussion and Vote

FISCAL IMPACT

Is there a Fiscal Impact? No

CEQA REQUIREMENTS

ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION: The proposed action is not a project as defined
by 14 California Code of Regulations 15378 (California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA)
Guidelines) and therefore CEQA is not applicable.

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION

The CAC was formed by NVTA to replace a number of standing and ad hoc committees
that were convened to advise the NVTA Board and NVTA staff on specific modes,
projects, and programs. The CAC was formed to ensure representation from all aspects
of the communities in Napa Valley and to retain the expertise and institutional knowledge
that was lost when committees convened for specific projects or purposes were
disbanded.

The CAC by-laws approved by the NVTA Board state that the committee structure and
representation should strive to represent a diverse cross-section of the community
including members of underrepresented groups in Napa Valley.

City/Town/County members will be appointed by their respective Councils or Board of
Supervisors whichever is applicable before being approved by the NVTA Board. If
representation of a certain faction or jurisdiction cannot be filled after solicitation for that
position the vacancy may be filled with a member at-large.

Ideally, members will serve two years. Terms are staggered to ensure continuity.

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS

None

16



April 17, 2019
NVTA Agenda ltem 11.3

I _ Continued From: New
Action Requested: APPROVE

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
Board Agenda Letter

TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Kate Miller, Executive Director

REPORT BY: Justin Paniagua, Senior Finance/Policy Analyst
(707) 259-8781 / Email: jpaniagua@nctpa.net

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 19-07 Authorization for the Execution of the
Certifications and Assurances and Authorized Agent Forms for the Low
Carbon Transit Operations Program (LCTOP) for the Following
Project(s): Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Zero Emission
Bus Procurement Project

RECOMMENDATION

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board approve Resolution No. 19-
07 (Attachment 1) approving the Fiscal Year (FY) 2018-19 Low Carbon Transit Operations
Program (LCTOP) project.

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION

None

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) is eligible to receive funds totaling $299,971
in FY 2018-2019 for the Low Carbon Transit Operations Program (LCTOP). These funds
are disbursed on a formula basis by the California Department of Transportation (Caltrans)
and the Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC), and are generated from
Assembly Bill 32 Cap & Trade proceeds. The application requests two-years of combined
LCTOP funds to acquire one Battery Electric Bus (BEB) for the Vine’s regional and express
routes. Caltrans requires that recipients provide a board approved resolution annually to
receive the funds.

17


mailto:jpaniagua@nctpa.net

NVTA Agenda Letter Wednesday, April 17, 2019
Agenda ltem 11.3
Page 2 of 3

PROCEDURAL REQUIREMENTS

1. Staff Report
2. Public Comment
3. Motion, Second, Discussion and Vote

FINANCIAL IMPACT

Is there a fiscal impact? Yes. NVTA will receive $299,971 in capital funds by approving
the annual Resolution.

Is it currently budgeted? No
Where is it budgeted? The bus purchase will be in the next biennial budget cycle.

Future fiscal impact: Recognition of funding will not occur until the bus has been delivered.
As such, the funds will be placed in Unearned Revenue on the Balance Sheet.

Consequences if not approved: Foregoing receiving the funds would severely hamper the
NVTA'’s efforts to electrify the Vine fleet.

CEQA REQUIREMENTS

ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION: The proposed action is not a project as defined
by 14 California Code of Regulations 15378 (California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA)
Guidelines) and therefore CEQA is not applicable.

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION

The Air Resources Board (ARB) approved a new regulation that requires public transit
providers, like NVTA, with fewer than 100 buses to transition to zero emission buses
beginning in 2023. Early acquisition of zero emission buses allows NVTA to receive certain
fund sources, such as Hybrid Voucher Incentive Program (HVIP) funds, which may not be
available after the 2023 transition date, reducing the overall cost impact to green the fleet.
The cost of electric buses cost roughly 40% more than standard diesel buses, therefore,
competitive fund sources and creative financing will be an essential element in
accomplishing this unfunded mandate. Combining the FY 2018-19 and FY 2019-20
revenues reduces the amount of local Transportation Development Act (TDA) funds that
NVTA would need to commit to the project. Table 1 provides a summary of the funding
plan and Table 2 shows the expenditure plan.

18



NVTA Agenda Letter

Wednesday, April 17, 2019
Agenda ltem 11.3
Page 3 of 3

Table 1: Funding Plan

Fund Source Amount
LCTOP FY19 $299,971
LCTOP FY20 (estimated) 310,000
ARB Hybrid Voucher Incentive Program 150,000
TDA 340,029
Total Funding $1,100,000
Table 2: Expenditure Plan
Capital Project Amount
40’ Battery Electric Bus $1,000,000
EV Charging Equipment 100,000
Total Expenses $1,100,000

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS

Attachment: (1) Resolution No. 19-07

19



ATTACHMENT 1
NVTA Board Agenda Item 11.3
April 17, 2019

RESOLUTION No. 19-07

AUTHORIZATION FOR THE EXECUTION OF THE
CERTIFICATIONS AND ASSURANCES AND AUTHORIZED AGENT FORMS
FOR THE LOW CARBON TRANSIT OPERATIONS PROGRAM (LCTOP)
FOR THE FOLLOWING PROJECT(S):

NVTA ZERO EMISSION BUS PROCUREMENT PROJECT; $299,971

WHEREAS, the Napa Valley Transportation Authority is an eligible project sponsor
and may receive state funding from the Low Carbon Transit Operations Program (LCTOP) for
transit projects; and

WHEREAS, the statutes related to state-funded transit projects require a local or
regional implementing agency to abide by various regulations; and

WHEREAS, Senate Bill 862 (2014) named the Department of Transportation
(Department) as the administrative agency for the LCTOP; and

WHEREAS, the Department has developed guidelines for the purpose of administering
and distributing LCTOP funds to eligible project sponsors (local agencies); and

WHEREAS, the Napa Valley Transportation Authority wishes to delegate
authorization to execute these documents and any amendments thereto to Kate Miller,
Executive Director; and

WHEREAS, the Napa Valley Transportation Authority wishes to implement the LCTOP
project(s) listed above,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Napa Valley
Transportation Authority that the fund recipient agrees to comply with all conditions and
requirements set forth in the Certification and Assurances and the Authorized Agent
documents and applicable statutes, regulations and guidelines for all LCTOP funded transit
projects.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that Kate Miller, Executive Director
be authorized to execute all required documents of the LCTOP program and any
Amendments thereto with the California Department of Transportation.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Napa Valley
Transportation Authority that it hereby authorizes the submittal of the following project
nomination(s) and allocation request(s) to the Department in FY 2018-19 LCTOP funds:

20



Resolution No. 19-07
Page 2 of 2

Project Name: NVTA Zero Emission Bus Procurement Project

Amount of LCTOP funds requested: $299,971

Short description of project: NVTA will purchase one (1) new forty-foot zero-emission battery
electric transit bus and procure and install related charging infrastructure.

Benefit to a Priority Population: AB 1550 Census Tracts — 6055202000, 6055201601,
6055201200, 6055200704, 6055200501, 6055200505, 6055200503 & 6055200301
Contributing Sponsors: Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC)

Passed and adopted the 17t day of April, 2019.

Chris Canning, NVTA Chair Ayes:
Nays:
Absent:
ATTEST:

Karalyn E. Sanderlin, NVTA Board Secretary

APPROVED:

DeeAnne Gillick, NVTA Legal Counsel

21



April 17, 2019
NVTA Agenda Item 12.1
Continued From: New

rA Action Requested: APPROVE

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
Board Agenda Letter

TO: Board of Directors

FROM: Kate Miller, Executive Director

REPORT BY: Antonio Onorato, Director of Administration, Finance and Policy
(707) 259-8779 / Email: aonorato@nvta.ca.gov

SUBJECT: Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) Retiree Healthcare Plan

and Approval of Resolution No. 19-08 Fixing the Employer
Contribution at an Equal Amount for Employees and Annuitants under
the Public Employees’ Medical and Hospital Care Act

RECOMMENDATION

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board approve Resolution 19-08
(Attachment 1) adopting a new Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) Retiree
Healthcare Plan contribution at an equal amount for employees and annuitants under the
Public Employees’ Medical and Hospital Care Act.

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION

None

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

At the May 2018 Board of Directors meeting, staff presented three (3) new OPEB
proposals after discovering the 2010 restructure never took effect. After deliberations,
the Board decided that Benefit Proposal #3 would provide the optimum benefit to current
and future employees. The proposal would ensure costs for the plan would be nominal
given the agency’s prefunding efforts and predictable because the proposal bases the
benefit on employee years of service and proposes no future adjustments to the cap. The
actuarial valuation has been completed and is summarized in Table 1 below.

PROCEDURAL REQUIREMENTS

1. Staff Report
2. Public Comments
3. Motion, Second, Discussion and Vote

22


mailto:aonorato@nvta.ca.gov

NVTA Agenda Letter Wednesday, April 17, 2019
Agenda Item 12.1
Page 2 of 3

FISCAL IMPACT

Is there a Fiscal Impact? Yes, the agency will prefund the OPEB trust fund an
additional $8,000 for a total contribution of $38,000 for Fiscal Year (FY) 19 and $39,000
in FY20.

Consequences if not approved: The 2008 Resolution will remain in effect providing full
Public Employees’ Medical & Hospital Care Act (PEMCHA) benefits to annuitants.

CEQA REQUIREMENTS

ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION: The proposed action is not a project as defined
by 14 California Code of Regulations 16378 (California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA)
Guidelines) and therefore CEQA is not applicable.

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION

The California Public Employees Retirement System (CalPERS) requires the employer
pay a portion of both the active employees and retiree/annuitants health premiums which
offers two options to facilitate this requirement- the “equal” method and “unequal” method.
The equal method requires the employers provide the PEMHCA minimum each month
for both active employees and retirees. The unequal method allows the employer to
initially contribute a lesser amount toward health coverage for retirees than active
employees.

Eligibility requirements for Proposal Benefit #3 uses the equal method which is capped at
$500 per month for the individual employee and $750 for the employee and dependents
with no further increases. To earn the benefit, employees must be vested for at least ten
(10) years and retire from the agency. The benefit starts at 50% after ten years of service
increasing 5% per year thereafter. An employee would receive 100% of the benefit after
twenty-years of service. Table 1 compares the current plan, with the proposed benefit
and the 2018 actuarial valuation results. Table 2 presents the funding history of the
California Employer’s Retiree Benefit Trust (CERBT) fund since NVTA’s entrance into the
program.

23



NVTA Agenda Letter

Wednesday, April 17, 2019

Agenda Item 12.1
Page 3 of 3

Table 1: Retiree Healthcare Plan Comparisons (annual payments in thousands of $s)

Actuarially Current Proposal 2018 Inc/(Dec)
Determined Plan Benefit #3 Actuarial

Contribution (ADC) Valuation

Normal Cost $34 $54 $43 ($11)
UAAL Amortization ($11) ($4) ($11) $7
Admin Expenses 0 0 0 -
Total ADC $23 $50 $38 ($12)
Projected Payroll $1,398 $1,398 $1,646 $248
ADC % of Payroll

Normal Cost 2.4% 3.8% 2.6% (1.2%)
UAAL Amortization (.07%) (.03%) (.03%) -
Admin Expenses 0% 0% 0% -
Total ADC 1.7% 3.5% 2.3% (1.2%)

Table 2 below shows a history of the agency’s prefunding contributions associated with

prior OPEB valuations.

Table 2: CERBT funding history (annual payments in thousands of $s)

FiYS::rI FY08 | FY09 | FY10 | FY11 | FY12 | FY13 | FY14 | FY15 | FY16 | FY17 | FY18 | FY19
ADC - -1 $69 0 0] $22| $39 $40 $30 $31 $38 | $39

Proposal Benefit #3 used the actuarial assumptions based on the last valuation which
was dated June 30, 2017. Since then, a few factors have changed. An employee retired
before being fully invested and the Accounting Technician position was converted to full-
time equivalent. With these changes plus a “true-up” of current payroll, cost came in
lower than expected and actual results were more favorable than was estimated in benefit
#3. The Actuarial Determined Contribution was originally estimated at $54,000, but has
been revised to $38,000 for FY 2018-19 and $39,000 for FY 2019-20. Although the ADC
will be lower than expected, the earned benefits will not be affected.

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS

Attachments: (1) Resolution No. 19-08
(2) Draft June 30, 2018 Funding Actuarial Calculation Retiree Healthcare

Plan Preliminary Results

24




WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

RESOLVED,

RESOLVED,

RESOLVED,

RESOLVED,

ATTACHMENT 1
NVTA Agenda Item 12.1
April 17, 2019

RESOLUTION NO. 19-08

FIXING THE EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTION AT AN EQUAL AMOUNT FOR EMPLOYEES
AND ANNUITANTS UNDER THE PUBLIC EMPLOYEES’ MEDICAL AND HOSPITAL CARE ACT

(1)

(2)

(3)

(a)

(d)

Napa Valley Transportation Authority is a contracting agency under Government Code
Section 22920 and subject to the Public Employees’ Medical and Hospital Care Act (the
“Act”); and

Government Code Section 22892(a) provides that a contracting agency subject to Act
shall fix the amount of the employer contribution by resolution; and

Government Code Section 22892(b) provides that the employer contribution shall be an
equal amount for both employees and annuitants, but may not be less than the amount
prescribed by Section 22892(b) of the Act; and

That the employer contribution for each employee or annuitant shall be the amount
necessary to pay the full cost of his/her enrollment, including the enrollment of family
members, in a health benefits plan up to a maximum of the PEMHCA Minimum per
month, plus administrative fees and Contingency Reserve Fund assessments; and be it
further

Napa Valley Transportation Authority has fully complied with any and all applicable
provisions of Government Code Section 7507 in electing the benefits set forth above; and
be it further

That the participation of the employees and annuitants of Napa Valley Transportation
Authority shall be subject to determination of its status as an “agency or instrumentality
of the state or political subdivision of a State” that is eligible to participate in a
governmental plan within the meaning of Section 414(d) of the Internal Revenue Code,
upon publication of final Regulations pursuant to such Section. If it is determined that
Napa Valley Transportation Authority would not qualify as an agency or instrumentality
of the state or political subdivision of a State under such final Regulations, CalPERS may
be obligated, and reserves the right to terminate the health coverage of all participants
of the employer.

That the executive body appoint and direct, and it does hereby appoint and direct, NVTA
Executive Director, to file with the Board a verified copy of this resolution, and to perform
on behalf of Napa Valley Transportation Authority all functions required of it under the
Act.

Adopted at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the Napa Valley Transportation
Authority at 625 Burnell Street, Napa, CA 94559 on this 17% day of April, 2019.

Signed:

Chris Canning, NVTA Chair

Attest:
Karalyn E. Sanderlin, NVTA Board Secretary

CHANGE - ALL, EQUAL, 1 FIXED (REV. 1/2018)

25



ATTACHMENT 2
NVTA Agenda Item 12.1

DRAFT rA April 17, 2019

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

RETIREE HEALTHCARE PLAN

June 30, 2018 Funding Actuarial Valuation —
Contributions for 2018/19 & 2019/20
Preliminary Results

Presented by Deanna Van Valer, Assistant Vice President
Nathan Hinojosa, Actuarial Analyst
Daniel Park, Actuarial Analyst
Bartel Associates, LLC

February 18, 2019

CONTENTS

Topic Page
Benefit Summary 1
Data Summary 5
Actuarial Assumption Highlights 7
Actuarial Methods 9
Assets 11
Results 15
Bartel Associates OPEB Database 28
CalPERS Issues 31
Actuarial Certification 36
Exhibits

Premiums E- 1

Participant Statistics E- 4

Actuarial Assumptions E-10

Definitions E-17

[\)

‘I O:\Clients\NVTA (was NCTPA)\Projects\OPEB\6-30-2018 Val\Report\BA NVTA 19-02-18 ()126 8-06-30 Preliminary Results.docx NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY




BENEFIT SUMMARY

]

m Eligibility

Service (50! & 5 years CalPERS service) or disability
retirement
Retire directly from the Authority under CalPERS

B Current Medical
Benefit
(Effective
7/1/2018)

Authority pays % of $500 cap ($750 for dual coverage) based
on Authority years of service. No future increases.

Service % Service %
10 50% 16 80%
11 55% 17 85%
12 60% 18 90%
13 65% 19 95%
14 70% 20 100%
15 75%

PEMHCA minimum ($133 in 2018) for individuals with less
than 10 years of Authority service at retirement

Grandfathered retiree will receive no less than his current
benefit

' Age 52 for PEPRA New Hires (hired > 1/1/13).

)
lj‘l February 18,2019

BENEFIT SUMMARY

B Prior Medical
Benefit

m 1.3 times PEMHCA minimum dollar amounts. Monthly

B Based upon Authority’s 2010 Board-approved PEMHCA

PEMHCA minimum and Authority Contribution amounts were:
Year PEMHCA Minimum Authority Contribution
2017 128.00 166.40
2018 133.00 172.90

Resolution.

B QGrandfathered
Medical Benefit

B One grandfathered retiree receives amount under old PEMHCA

B Unequal method applied to $470.67 for single coverage (or

resolution

$906.04 for dual coverage). In 2018, the amount paid by the
Authority is 50% of these amounts, or $235.34 for single
coverage (or $407.72 for dual coverage).

B Surviving Spouse
Benefit

B 100% of retiree benefit continues to surviving spouse if retiree

elects CalPERS survivor allowance

B Other OPEB

B None

S
@ February 18, 2019

ZZ aaaaaaa LLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY




BENEFIT SUMMARY

B Pay-As-You-Go Fiscal Year Cash

Costs 2017/18 $ 2,683

2016/17 2,400

2015/16 2,118

2014/15 2,118

2013/14 3,106

2012/13 2,353
’ TA
@ February 18,2019 3 NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

BENEFIT SUMMARY

5
@ February 18,2019

This page intentionally left blank.

28

MAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY




DATA SUMMARY

]

Participant Statistics

6/30/11 | 6/30/13 | 6/30/15 | 6/30/17 | 6/30/18
B Actives
e Active Count 12 12 12 14 15
e Average Age 45.8 47.4 44.6 45.3 44.9
e Average Authority Service 5.0 4.9 4.1 5.0 53
e Average CalPERS Service 8.3 6.6 7.0 7.9 7.4
e PERSable Pay
> Average $82,800 [$86,000 $92,400 $97,000 $95,800
> Total (000s) 993 1,031 1,109 1,357 1,437?
B Retirees
e Covered Count n/a 2 1 1 1
e Waived Count n/a - 2 2 3
e Average Age’ n/a 60.9 63.3 65.3 65.6
e Average Retirement Age’ n/a 60.0 61.1 61.1 61.7

2 Actual pay paid.

3 Average age and average retirement age include waived retirees. The covered retiree is approximately age 70 as of the June
30, 2018 valuation date and retired at age 64.

)
lj‘l February 18,2019

MAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

DATA SUMMARY

Participant Reconciliation

Actives Covered Waived
Retirees Retirees
M June 30, 2017 14 1 2
e Terminations - - -
e New Retirees (1) - 1
e New Hires 2 - -
e Data Corrections - - -
B June 30, 2018 15 1 3

)
@ February 18, 2019

29

MAPA VALLEY TRA

NSPORTATION AUTHORITY




ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS HIGHLIGHTS

]

June 30, 2017 Valuation June 30, 2018 Valuation
B Valuation ® June 30, 2017 ® June 30, 2018
Date B 2017/18 & 2018/19 Fiscal B 2018/19 & 2019/20 Fiscal
Years (end of year payment) Years (end of year payment)
B GASBS 75 accounting
information provided in
separate report
B Funding ® Authority pays full ADC B Same
Policy
B Discount | 5.50% B Same
Rate Pre-funded through CalPERS
CERBT, asset allocation #3
m General m 2.75% B Same
Inflation
B Aggregate m 3.00% B Same
Payroll
Increases

)
@ February 18,2019

MAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS HIGHLIGHTS

June 30, 2017 Valuation June 30, 2018 Valuation
B Increase to B N/A B None
Dollar Caps
®m PEMHCA W 4.25% per year increase after W 4.25% per year increase after
Minimum 2018 2019
Increases
B Retirement, |® CalPERS 1997-2011 m CalPERS 1997-2015
Mortality, Experience Study Experience Study
Withdrawal, ' m Mortality projected fully B Mortality projected fully
Disability generational with Society of generational with Society of
Actuaries Scale MP-16 Actuaries Scale MP-17
W Participation | M Currently covered: 60% B Currently covered: 80%
at Retirement | m Currently waived: 50% B Currently waived: 70%
®m Healthcare B Non-Medicare/Medicare - B Non-Medicare/Medicare -
Trend 7.5%/6.5% for 2019, both 7.5%/6.5% for 2020, both
decreasing to an ultimate rate of |  decreasing to an ultimate rate of
4.0% in 2076 and later years 4.0% in 2076 and later years

)
@ February 18, 2019

38

MAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY




ACTUARIAL METHODS

]

June 30, 2017 Valuation June 30, 2018 Valuation

B Cost Method |m Entry Age Normal B Same
B Amortization | B Level percentage of payroll B Same

Method
B Funding m Full pre-funding in CalPERS B Same

Policy OPEB Trust (CERBT), using

asset allocation strategy #3

B Actuarial B Valuation assets based on actual | ® Same

Value of assets provided by CERBT

Assets B Investment gains/losses spread

over a 5-year rolling period

Not less than 80% nor more
than 120% of market value

)
@ February 18,2019

MAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

ACTUARIAL METHODS
June 30, 2017 Valuation June 30, 2018 Valuation
B Amortization | M 13-year Fresh Start amortization | ® 15-year Fresh Start amortization
Periods of 6/30/15 UAAL (11 years of 6/30/18 UAAL

remaining)

S-year fixed (closed) periods for
grandfathered benefit plan
change

15-year fixed (closed) periods
for method and assumption
changes, and experience and
contribution gains and losses

B Maximum 30-year combined
period
B Implied B Included
Subsidy

B Future New |H
Entrants

Closed group — no new participants

)
@ February 18, 2019

3P

MAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY




ASSETS

Market Value of Plan Assets — CERBT
(000’s Omitted)
Audited | Audited
2015/16* | 2016/17 | 2017/18
B MVA (Beginning of Year) $ 203 $ 242 $ 283
e Employer Contribution to Trust 30 31 23
e Employer Contribution outside Trust 3 3
¢ Benefit Payment/Admin Fees Reimbursed from } } )
Trust
e Benefit Payments outside Trust (3) (3)
e Administrative Expenses - - (1)
¢ Investment Return (net of investment expense) 9 10 13
B MVA (Year End) 242 283 319
B Approximate Annual Return 4.5% 4.2% 4.5%
4 Unaudited.
February 18, 2019 11 MAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
ASSETS
Actuarial Value of Plan Assets
(000’s Omitted)
2015/16 | 2016/17 | 2017/18
BAVA (Beginning of Year) $ 206 $ 247 $ 292
e Employer Contribution 30 31 23
e Benefit Payment - - -
e Expected Inv. Return 13 15 16
MExpected AVA (End of Year) 249 294 331
B Preliminary AVA 247 292 328
e Min AVA (80% of MVA) 194 226 255
e Max AVA (120% of MVA) 290 340 383
BAVA (End of Year) 247 292 328
B Approximate AVA return 5.6% 5.4% 4.7%

)
@ February 18, 2019

TA

MAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY




ASSETS

$450

$400

$350

$300

$250

$200

$150

$100

$50

Historical Assets
(Amounts in 000’s)

63010 630/11 630/12 630113 630/14 63015 6/30/16

5
@ February 18, 2019

=4=MVA =®-AVA 80% MVA 120% MVA

13

63017 6/30/18

TA

MAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

ASSETS

30%
25%
20%
15%
10%
5%
0%
(5%)

(10%)

(15%)

Historical Annualized Asset Returns

10/11

11712 | 12/13 | 13/14 | 14/15 | 15/16

16/17

17/18

——MVA

24.8%

-1.5% | 45% | 12.7% | -04% | 4.5%

4.2%

4.5%

Expected Return| 7.8%

6.3% 6.3% 6.3% 6.3% 6.3%

6.3%

5.5%

-E- AVA

11.1%

7.1% 6.5% 7.7% 5.7% 5.6%

5.4%

4.7%

5
@ February 18,2019

TA

MAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY




RESULTS

Actuarial Obligations
(000’s Omitted)
6/30/2011| 6/30/2013| 6/30/2015| 6/30/2017| 6/30/2018
E Discount Rate 6.25% 6.25% 6.25% 5.50% 5.50%
B Present Value of Benefits
e Actives $207 $ 331 $ 367 $379 $ 645
e Retirees - 97 56 49 47
e Total 207 428 423 428 692
B Actuarial Accrued
e Actives 78 121 105 121 217
e Retirees _ - 97 _56 49 _47
e Total 78 218 161 170 264
B Actuarial Value of Assets 77 109 206 292 328
m UAAL 1 109 (45) (122) (64)
B Funded Ratio 98.7% 50.0% 128.0% 171.8% | 124.2%
H Normal Cost 21 30 34 34 43
B Pay-As-You-Go Cost - 7 2 3 3
@ TA
February 18, 2019 15 NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
RESULTS
Funded Status
(000’s Omitted)
$350
$300
$250
$200
$150
$100
$50
$0 <
6/30/09 6/30/11 6/30/13 6/30/15 6/30/17 6/30/18

CJRetiree pay-go —JRetiree AAL less pay-go CT—JActive AAL =-#= AVA —+—MVA

5
@ February 18, 2019

MAPA VALLEY TRANSPOR

rrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrr




RESULTS

I ]

Actuarial Gain/Loss Analysis
(000’s Omitted)

AAL (Assets) | UAALS

B Actual @ 6/30/17 $170 $(292) $ (122)
B Expected @ 6/30/18 211 (329) (118)
B (Gains)/Losses

¢ PEMHCA minimum & premiums < expected %) - )]

¢ Contribution gain - 2) 2)

e [nvestment loss - 3 3

e Other (retirements & coverage elections not as expected) (13) - (13)
B Assumption Changes

e CalPERS 1997-2015 Experience Study )] - 9

e Mortality improvement (MP-17) 6 - 6

e Participation at Retirement 54 - 54
B Plan Change 20 - 20
B Total Changes 53 1 54
B Actual @ 6/30/18 264 (328) (64)

SUAAL = AAL - Assets

(B2) TA
)
[ Febmary 18, 2019 17 MAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

RESULTS

This page intentionally left blank.

’ AN
(B :
[ Febmary 18, 2019 36 MAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY




RESULTS

Actuarially Determined Contribution (ADC)

(000’s Omitted)
6/30/2017
Valuation 6/30/2018 Valuation
2017/18 2018/19 2019/20
m ADC-$
e Normal Cost $ 34 $43 $ 44
e UAAL Amortization (11) (%) (%)
e Admin Expenses ) 0 0
e ADC 23 38 39
B Projected Payroll 1,398 1,646° 1,695
m ADC-%
e Normal Cost 2.4% 2.6% 2.6%
o UAAL Amortization (0.7%) (0.3%) (0.3%)
e Admin Expenses 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
e ADC 1.7% 2.3% 2.3%
¢ Estimated 2018/19 pay provided by Authority
B ITA
71/ February 18,2019 19  napavausvTeaw AR AT AT SR
RESULTS

Historical Actuarially Determined Contributions

(000’s Omitted)
$45
$40
$35 A
$30 A
$25 A
$20
$15 1
$10 1]
$5 ]
$0 +
09101011 [ 11/12[12/13[13/14[14/15[15/16|16/17|17/18[18/19|19/20
O Normal Cost| 22 23 21 22 30 31 34 35 34 43 44
@ Amortization| 3 (1) 1 - 9 10 @ | @ [ 3 | 5
ADC 25 22 22 22 39 41 30 31 23 38 39
3@ aaaaaaaaaaaaaa SPORTATION AUTHORITY

)
@ February 18, 2019




RESULTS

Amortization Bases
(000’s Omitted)

6/30/2017
Valuation 6/30/2018 Valuation
6/30/2018 6/30/2019 | 6/30/2020
B Qutstanding Balance
e 6/30/15 UAAL (Fresh
Start) $ (42) n/a n/a
e 6/30/17 Gains, Losses &
Assumption Changes (84) n/a n/a
e 2017 Plan Change 4 n/a n/a
e 2018 Fresh Start n/a (64) (63)
e Total (122) (64) (63)

B2) TA
ljﬂl Febmary 18, 2019 21 MAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

RESULTS

Amortization Payments
(000’s Omitted)

6/30/2017
Valuation 6/30/2018 Valuation
2017/18 2018/19 2019/20
B Amort. Payment - $
e 6/30/15 UAAL (Fresh Start)’ $(5) n/a n/a
e 6/30/17 Gains, Losses &
Assumption Changes® (7) n/a n/a
e 2017 Plan Change’ 1 n/a n/a
e 2018 Fresh Start'” n/a (5) (5)
o Total (11) (5) (5
B Average Amortization Years 14.1 15.0 14.0

7 Amortized over 13 years beginning 6/30/15.
8 Amortized over 15 years beginning 6/30/17.
® Amortized over 5 years beginning 6/30/17.
10 Amortized over 15 years beginning 6/30/18.

5
lj‘l February 18, 2019 32

LEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY




RESULTS

Actuarial Obligations — Cash & Implied Subsidy
June 30, 2018
(000’s Omitted)
Cash Subsidy| Implied Subsidy Total

HPresent Value of Benefits

e Actives $ 408 $ 237 $ 645

e Retirees 50 3) 47

e Total 458 234 692
B Actuarial Accrued Liability

e Actives 152 65 217

e Retirees 50 3 47

e Total 202 62 264
W Actuarial Value of Assets!! 251 77 328
B Unfunded Liability (49) (15) (64)
m2018/19 Normal Cost 27 16 43
m2018/19 Pay-As-You-Go Cost 3 - 3

I Allocated on the basis of AAL.
R TA
February 18, 2019 23 LEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
RESULTS

]

Cash & Implied Subsidy — 2018/19 Actuarially Determined Contribution

(000’s Omitted)

Cash Subsidy | Implied Subsidy| Total
m2018/19 ADC - $
e Normal Cost $27 $16 $43
e UAAL Amortization'? 4) (1) (5)
e Admin Expenses 0 ) 0
e Total ADC 23 15 38
ETotal Authority Payroll 1,646 1,646 1,646
m2018/19 ADC - % of Total
Authority Payroll
e Normal Cost 1.6% 1.0% 2.6%
e UAAL Amortization (0.2%) (0.1%) (0.3%)
e Admin Expenses 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
e Total ADC 1.4% 0.9% 2.3%
12 Allocated on the basis of AAL.
B TA
February 18, 2019 3B LEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY




RESULTS

10-Year Contribution Projection

(000’s Omitted)

Contribution

Ben Ben Ben Contr.
Fiscal Pmts Pmts Pmts Pre- Total % of

Year | Cash IS Total | Fund'® | Contr. | Payroll | Pay
2018/19 $3 $ - $3 $35 $38 | $1,646, 2.3%
2019/20 5 2 7 32 39 1,695 2.3%
2020/21 6 5 11 30 41 1,746 2.3%
2021/22 7 6 13 29 42 1,799 2.3%
2022/23 8 6 14 29 43 1,853 2.3%
2023/24 10 9 19 25 44 1,908 2.3%
2024/25 12 6 18 28 46 1,965 2.3%
2025/26 14 6 20 27 47 2,024 2.3%
2026/27 17 9 26 23 49 2,085 2.4%
2027/28 19 4 23 27 50 2,148 2.3%

13 If the Authority does not take reimbursement from the trust for benefit payments, this is the amount to be contributed.

)
bﬂl February 18,2019

25

PORTATION AUTHORITY

RESULTS

Discount Rate Sensitivity

June 30, 2018
(000’s Omitted)

Valuation
-1% Rate +1%
H Discount Rate 4.5% 5.5% 6.5%
B Present Value of Benefits $ 885 $ 692 $ 551
B Funded Status 6/30/17
e Actuarial Accrued Liability 310 264 228
e Actuarial Value of Assets 328 328 328
e Unfunded AAL (18) (64) (100)
B Funded Ratio 105.8% 124.2% 143.9%
m ADC 2018/19
e Normal Cost $ 52 $ 43 $ 36
e Administrator Fee 0 0 0
e UAAL Amortization' () (5 (8)
e Total 51 38 28
e ADC % of Payroll 3.1% 2.3% 1.7%

14

UAAL projected using the same 1/1/16 projected assets for all scenarios. UAAL amortized over 20 years (equivalent
amortization period of all the amortization bases for the valuation results) for all scenarios.

)
bﬂl February 18, 2019

3B

PORTATION AUTHORITY




RESULTS

Healthcare Trend Sensitivity

June 30, 2018
(000’s Omitted)
Valuation

B Healthcare Trend Rate -1% Trend | Trend Rate | +1% Trend
B Present Value of Benefits $ 601 $ 692 $ 836
B Funded Status 6/30/17

e Actuarial Accrued Liability 239 264 303

e Actuarial Value of Assets 328 328 328

e Unfunded AAL (89) (64) (25)
B Funded Ratio 137.2% 124.2% 108.3%
m ADC 2018/19

e Normal Cost $ 38 $ 43 $ 53

e Administrator Fee 0 0 0

e UAAL Amortization!? (N (5 (2

e Total 31 38 51

e ADC % of Payroll 1.9% 2.3% 3.1%

15" UAAL projected using the same 1/1/16 projected assets for all scenarios. UAAL amortized over 20 years (equivalent

amortization period of all the amortization bases for the valuation results) for all scenarios.

3
ljﬂl February 18, 2019 27 MAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

BARTEL ASSOCIATES OPEB DATABASE

Bartel Associates OPEB Database
Sample Percentile Graph

55%

50%

45%

40% A

25% 1

20% 1

15% 1

10% -

5%

<+ 95th Percentile

<+ 75th Percentile

= 3% 50% of 90% of
% results results
£ 30% | - 50th Percentile are ane
by within within
2 this this

g: range range

<+ 25th Percentile

<« 5th Percentile

)
@ February 18, 2019

TA

MAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY




BARTEL ASSOCIATES OPEB DATABASE

Bartel Associates OPEB Database
Normal Cost & Actuarially Determined Contribution

45%
40%
35%
30%
; 20%
&
15%
10%
5%
—
0%
Miscellaneous
NC ADC
95th Percentile 14.1% 39.7%
75th Percentile 7.9% 16.8%
50th Percentile 3.6% 8.7%
25th Percentile 1.8% 3.7%
5th Percentile 0.8% 1.2%
Percent of Pay 2.6% 2.3%
Percentile 39% 16%

Discount Rate = 5.50%, Average Amortization Period = 15.0 Years

» TA
@ February 18’ 2019 29 NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

BARTEL ASSOCIATES OPEB DATABASE

Bartel Associates OPEB Database
Actuarial Accrued Liability

400%

350%

300%

250%

:; 200%
5

150%
100%
50%

|
0%

Miscellaneous

95th Percentile 362%

75th Percentile 201%

50th Percentile 88%

25th Percentile 39%

Sth Percentile 10%

Percent of Pay 16%

Percentile 10%

Discount Rate = 5.50%

@ Febmary 18’ 2019 431) NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY




CALPERS ISSUES

B Contribution policy changes:

® No asset smoothing

® S-year ramp up

® Included in 6/30/13 valuation (first impact 15/16 rates; full impact 19/20)
B Assumption changes:

® Anticipate future mortality improvement
® Other, less significant, changes
® Included in 6/30/14 valuation (first impact 16/17 rates; full impact 20/21)

B Board adopted Funding Risk Mitigation Policy in November 2015

® Reduce risk only when investment return is good
Reduce discount rate 0.05% if investment return 4% above assumed
Impacts valuation same year and employer contribution rates two years after
Discount rate anticipated to be 6.0% in about 20 years

Risk mitigation suspended until 6/30/18 valuation
(part of December 2016 discount rate decision)

R0 TA
lj‘l February 18, 2019 MAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

31

CALPERS ISSUES

B December 2016 Board adopted lower discount rates based on lower expected returns:
Valuation | Discount Fiscal Year of
Date Rate Initial Impact Full Impact
6/30/16 7.375% 18/19 22/23
6/30/17 7.25% 19/20 23/24
6/30/18 7.00% 20/21 24/25

B CalPERS Board just reviewed their Capital Market Assumptions, resulting in no
further discount rate changes for now
B [rrevocable Supplemental (§115) Pension Trust funding alternative
® Pay down UAAL more quickly, and/or mitigate expected contribution volatility
® PARS, PFM, Keenan; CalPERS coming
® Investments significantly less restricted than City funds
> Designed for long term returns
> Likely much higher (5% - 7%) investment return
® Assets could not be used by Council for other purposes. Can only be used to:
> Reimburse City for CalPERS contributions
> Make payments directly to CalPERS

) TA
lj‘l Febmary 18, 2019 MAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY




CALPERS ISSUES

B Amortization Policy Changes
® Approved by CalPERS Board on 2/14/18
> Effective with 6/30/19 valuations for 2021/22 contributions
> Applies only to newly established amortization bases
20-year closed amortization periods for all changes
Level dollar payments rather than payments increasing with payroll'®
Phase in/out
» S-year phase in (not out) for investment gains and losses
> No phase in/out for other changes
® Agency may be able to implement early 6/30/18 valuation (for 2020/21
contributions).
> Applies only to newly established amortization bases
> Must include all new bases including decrease in discount rate

16" Avoids “negative amortization” where amortization payments do not cover interest payments. Negative amortization can
occur with long amortization periods, direct rate smoothing, and payments that increase with the payroll increase

assumption.
B TA
February 18, 2019 33 PORTATION AUTHORITY
CALPERS ISSUES
PEMHCA Regions
m History

o Before 2005 — one set of basic (non-Medicare) premiums
e 2005 to 2009 — adopted regional pricing - 4 regions for agencies and schools
e 2010 to 2019 — added separate region for Sacramento Area
e 2020 and later
> CalPERS reviewed various alternative region models during 2018
> Board adopted 3-region model at 12/2018 meeting effective for 2020 premiums
> CalPERS will review every 5 years
m  CalPERS Objectives
o Marketability — better align premiums with local costs
e Member Impact — minimize number of members with significant premium
increases
o Nomenclature — numerical rather than geographical region names
m Regions for 2020:
e Region 1: combines Bay Area, Other Northern CA, and Sacramento Area regions
e Region 2: Other Southern CA region, except Riverside County, plus Ventura County
e Region 3: Counties of Los Angeles, Riverside County and San Bernardino

) TA
lj‘l Febmary 18, 2019 MAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY




CALPERS ISSUES

PEMHCA Regions

B Member Impact Estimated Based on 2019 Premiums
e Actual impact for 2020 unknown
o Estimated average premium increase is $41.00 per member per month
e Percentage of covered lives with estimated premium increases within range

Current Region New | Total | 30, 500 | 50704 | 79%-10% | >10% |Total > 3%
Region Lives
Bay Area 183,734 3% 3%
Other Northern CA 1 34,986 3% 3%
Sacramento Area 38,873 9% 74% 83%
Other SoCal except Riverside Co 5 49,983 4% 44% 2% 50%
LA Area/Ventura County only 12,481 14% 57% 22% 93%
LA Area except Ventura Co 3 128,223 3% 3%
Other SoCal Area/Riverside Co 19,742 0%
Total 468,022 2% 6% 8% 1% 17%
Estimated Premium Impact 468,000 Total Covered Lives | % of Total Covered Lives
Increase more than 3% 79,000 17%
Decrease more than 3% 173,000 37%
Change within 3% 216,000 46%

e “Marketability” — 38% paying within 97% of the average cost of care in their region.

(B4) TA
ljﬂl February 18, 2019 35 MAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

ACTUARIAL CERTIFICATION

This report presents the Napa Valley Transportation Authority Retiree Healthcare Plan (“Plan”) June 30, 2017 actuarial
valuation. The purpose of this valuation is to:

m Determine the Plan’s June 30, 2018 Funded Status, and

m  Calculate the 2018/19 and 2019/20 Actuarially Determined Contributions.

Information provided in this report may be useful to the Authority for the Plan’s financial management. Future valuations
may differ significantly if the Plan’s experience differs from our assumptions or if there are changes in Plan design, actuarial
methods, or actuarial assumptions. The project scope did not include an analysis of this potential variation.

Information under Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 75 (GASBS 75) will be provided under
separate report.

This valuation is based on Plan provisions, participant data, and asset information provided by the Authority as summarized
in this report, which we relied on and did not audit. We reviewed the participant data for reasonableness.

To the best of my knowledge, this report is complete and accurate and has been conducted using generally accepted actuarial
principles and practices. As a member of the American Academy of Actuaries meeting the Academy Qualification
Standards, I certify the actuarial results and opinions herein.

Respectfully submitted,

DRAFT

Deanna Van Valer, ASA, EA, MAAA
Assistant Vice President

Bartel Associates, LLC

February 18, 2019

(B4) TA
ljﬂl Febmary 18, 2019 M MAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY




EXHIBITS

Topic Page
Premiums E- 1
Participant Statistics E- 4
Actuarial Assumptions E-10
Definitions E-17
™) TA
February 18,2019 37 ey oo B o
PREMIUMS
2018 PEMHCA Monthly Medical Premiums
Bay Area Region
Non-Medicare Eligible Medicare Eligible
Medical Plan Single | 2-Party | Family | Single | 2-Party | Family
Anthem Select $856.41| $1,712.82/$2,226.67 n/a n/a n/a
Anthem Traditional 925.47| 1,850.94| 2,406.22| $370.34| $740.68 | $1,111.02
Blue Shield Access+ 889.02| 1,778.04| 2,311.45 n/a n/a n/a
Health Net SmartCare 863.48| 1,726.96| 2,245.05 n/a n/a n/a
Kaiser 779.86| 1,559.72| 2,027.64| 316.34| 632.68 949.02
UnitedHealthcare 1,371.84| 2,743.68| 3,566.78| 330.76| 661.52 992.28
Western Health Advantage| 792.56| 1,585.12| 2,060.66 n/a n/a n/a
PERS Choice 800.27| 1,600.54| 2,080.70| 345.97| 691.94| 1,037.91
PERS Select 717.50| 1,435.00| 1,865.50| 34597, 691.94| 1,037.91
PERSCare 882.45| 1,764.90| 2,294.37| 382.30| 764.60| 1,146.90
PORAC 734.00| 1,540.00| 1,970.00| 487.00, 970.00| 1,551.00

. /l I Febmary 18, 2019 %l MAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION Al UTHORITY




PREMIUMS

2019 PEMHCA Monthly Medical Premiums
Bay Area Region
Non-Medicare Eligible Medicare Eligible
Medical Plan Single | 2-Party | Family | Single | 2-Party | Family
Anthem Select $831.44| $1,662.88$2,161.74 n/a n/a n/a
Anthem Traditional 1,111.13] 2,222.26| 2,888.94| $357.44| $714.88 | $1,072.32
Blue Shield Access+ 970.90| 1,941.80| 2,524.34 n/a n/a n/a
Health Net SmartCare 901.55| 1,803.10| 2,344.03 n/a n/a n/a
Kaiser 768.25| 1,536.50| 1,997.45| 323.74| 647.48 971.22
UnitedHealthcare n/a n/a n/a| 299.37| 598.74| 898.11
Western Health Advantage| 767.01| 1,534.02 1,994.23 n/a n/a n/a
PERS Choice 866.27| 1,732.54| 2,252.30| 360.41| 720.82| 1,081.23
PERS Select 543.19| 1,086.38| 1,412.29| 360.41| 720.82| 1,081.23
PERSCare 1,131.68| 2,263.36| 2,942.37| 394.83| 789.66| 1,184.49
PORAC 774.00| 1,623.00, 2,076.00, 513.00| 1,022.00| 1,635.00
' B/l February 18, 2019 E-2 ; rA
PREMIUMS
PEMHCA Monthly Premium Increases
Bay Area Region — 2018 to 2019
Actual Increases Assumed Increases
Medical Plan Non-Medicare | Medicare | Non-Medicare | Medicare
Anthem Select (2.9%) n/a 7.5% n/a
Anthem Traditional 20.1% (3.5%) 7.5% 6.5%
Blue Shield Access+ 9.29%, n/a 7.5% n/a
Health Net SmartCare 4.4%, n/a 7.5% n/a
Kaiser (1.5%) 2.39% 7.5% 6.5%
UnitedHealthcare n/a (9.5%) 7.5% 6.5%
Western Health Advantage (3.2%) n/a 7.5% n/a
PERS Choice 8.2% 4.2% 7.5% 6.5%
PERS Select (24.3%) 4.2% 7.5% 6.5%
PERSCare 28.2% 3.3% 7.5% 6.5%
PORAC 5.4% 5.3% 7.5% 6.5%
' /l February 18, 2019 fitod N rA




PARTICIPANT STATISTICS

I ]
Active Medical Plan Coverage
Medical Plan Region Single | 2-Party | Family | Waived | Total
Anthem
Traditional Bay Area - 1 1 - 2
Kaiser Bay Area 6 3 3 - 12
Waived - - - 1 1
Total 6 4 4 1 15
Retiree Medical Plan Coverage
Medical Plan Region Single | 2-Party | Family | Waived | Total
PERS Choice |Out of State 1 - - - 1
Waived - - - 3
Total 1 - - 4
' /l February 18, 2019 E-4 NAPA VALLEY TRANSPOR Eﬂ
PARTICIPANT STATISTICS
Actives by Age and Authority Service
Authority Service
Age <1 1-4 5-9 10-14 | 15-19 | 20-24 > 25 Total
<25 - - - - - - - -
25-29 - 1 - - - - - 1
30-34 - 2 1 1 - - - 4
35-39 1 1 - - - - - 2
40-44 - - 1 - - - - 1
45-49 1 - - - - - - 1
50-54 - 1 - - - - - 1
55-59 - 1 3 - - - - 4
60-64 - - - - 1 - - 1
> 65 - - - - - - - -
Total 2 6 5 1 1 - - 15
' /l February 18,2019 575 NAPA VALLEY TRANSPOR rA




PARTICIPANT STATISTICS

Active Age Distribution
06/30/17 Valuation
5 W 6/30/18 Valuation
4
E 3
g
=
Z 2
1
0 :

<25 25-29 30-34 35-39 40-44 45-49 50-54 55-59 60-65 >65
Age

@ February 18, 2019 TA

E-6 MAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

PARTICIPANT STATISTICS

Active Service Distribution
7 06/30/17 Valuation
6 36/30/18 Valuation
5
8 4
O
g
Z. 3
2 ——
Nl [H
O 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
<1 1-4 5-9 10-14 15-19 20-24 >25
Service

' /l . Febmafy 18, 2019 487 MAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY




PARTICIPANT STATISTICS

Retiree Medical Coverage by Age Group

Age

EE

EE+1

Family

Waived

Under 50

50-54

55-59

60-64

65-69

70-74

75-79

80-84

85 & Over

Total

' /l February 18, 2019

E-8

MAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

PARTICIPANT STATISTICS

Number

Retiree Age Distribution

06/30/17 Valuation
B 6/30/18 Valuation

<50 50-54 55-59 60-64 65-69 70-74 75-79 80-84 =85

Age

' /l February 18,2019

MAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY




ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS

]

June 30, 2017 Valuation June 30, 2018 Valuation

B Valuation ® June 30, 2017 ® June 30, 2017

Date B 2017/18 & 2018/19 Fiscal B 2018/19 & 2019/20 Fiscal

Years (end of year payment) Years (end of year payment)

B Funding Bm Authority pays full ADC B Same

Policy
B Discount 5.50% B Same

Rate Pre-funded through CalPERS

CERBT, asset allocation #3

m General m 2.75% B Same

Inflation
B Aggregate m 3.00% B Same

Payroll

Increases
B Salary Merit |® CalPERS 1997-2011 m CalPERS 1997-2015

Increases Experience Study Experience Study

' /l February 18, 2019

E-10

MAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS

June 30, 2017 Valuation June 30, 2018 Valuation
B Increase to B N/A B None
Dollar Caps
®m PEMHCA W 4.25% per year increase after W 4.25% per year increase after
Minimum 2018 2019
Increases
B Mortality, m CalPERS 1997-2011 m CalPERS 1997-2015
Withdrawal, Experience Study Experience Study
Disability B Mortality projected fully B Mortality projected fully

generational with Society of
Actuaries Scale MP-16

generational with Society of
Actuaries Scale MP-17

W Participation | M Currently covered: 60% B Currently covered: 80%
at Retirement | m Currently waived: 50% B Currently waived: 70%
B Medical Plan |® Currently covered: same as B Same

at Retirement

current election

m Currently waived: weighted

average based on current retiree
election

' /l February 18,2019

501

MAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY




ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS

]

June 30, 2017 Valuation

June 30, 2018 Valuation

m Waived
Retiree
Re-election

B None Assumed

Hm Same

B Retirement

m CalPERS 1997-2011
Experience Study

B Miscellaneous employees:

m CalPERS 1997-2015
Experience Study

B Miscellaneous employees:

PERS PERS
DOH Benefit HA ERA DOH Benefit HA ERA
<6/21/11 2.5%@5S5 37.5 612 <6/21/11 2.5%@S55 37.5 60.2
>6/21/11 >6/21/11
Classic 2%@60 454 644 Classic 2%@60 455 623
> 1/1/13 >1/1/13
New Hire  2%@62 32.6 61.8]| NewHire 2%@62 353 61.7
B Spouse m 100% if covered as an active B Same
Coverage at | m 80% if member is waived while
Retirement active
B Spouse Age | M Males 3 years older than B Same

females

/l February 18, 2019

E-12

TA

MAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS

]

June 30, 2017 Valuation

B Medical
Trend

Increase from Prior Year

Non-Medicare Medicare
Year HMO & PPO HMO & PPO
2017-2018 Actual Premiums/Claims
2019 7.50% 6.50%
2020 7.50% 6.50%
2021 7.25% 6.30%
2022 7.00% 6.10%
2023 6.75% 5.90%
2024 6.50% 5.70%
2025 6.25% 5.50%
2026 6.00% 5.30%
2027 5.80% 5.15%
2028 5.60% 5.00%
2029 5.40% 4.85%
2030 5.20% 4.70%
2031-2035 5.05% 4.60%
2036-2045 4.90% 4.50%
2046-2055 4.75% 4.45%
2056-2065 4.60% 4.40%
2066-2075 4.30% 4.20%
2076+ 4.00% 4.00%

June 30, 2018 Valuation
Increase from Prior Year
Non-Medicare Medicare

Year HMO & PPO HMO & PPO
2018 Actual Premiums/Claims
2019 Actual Premiums/Claims
2020 7.50% 6.50%
2021 7.25% 6.30%
2022 7.00% 6.10%
2023 6.75% 5.90%
2024 6.50% 5.70%
2025 6.25% 5.50%
2026 6.00% 5.30%
2027 5.80% 5.15%
2028 5.60% 5.00%
2029 5.40% 4.85%
2030 5.20% 4.70%
2031-2035 5.05% 4.60%
2036-2045 4.90% 4.50%
2046-2055 4.75% 4.45%
2056-2065 4.60% 4.40%
2066-2075 4.30% 4.20%
2076+ 4.00% 4.00%

' /l February 18,2019

513

TA

MAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY




ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS

June 30, 2017 Valuation \ June 30, 2018 Valuation
B Medical B Sample estimated monthly claims costs:
Claims Costs Bay Area Region - Non-Medicare Eligible
2018 Kaiser Health Net SmartCare
Age M F M F
25 $257 $ 505 $254 $ 499
35 336 617 332 610
45 536 648 529 640
55 895 905 884 894
60 1,142 1,068 1,128 1,055
64 1,387 1,253 1,370 1,238
Bay Area Region - Medicare Eligible
Kaiser Health Net SmartCare
Age M F M F
65 $304 $282 $326 $302
70 286 273 306 293
75 357 320 383 343
80 383 340 411 365
/l February 18, 2019 E-14 NAPA VALLEY rnnﬁsncaxﬁomrr

ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS

June 30, 2017 Valuation June 30, 2018 Valuation
B Admin. B Not included in liabilities; B Same
Expenses included in ADC:
> PEMHCA: 0.33% of
premium
B CERBT: 0.05% if assets
B Medicare | 100% B Same
Eligible Rate | m Everyone eligible for Medicare

will elect Part B coverage

B ACA Excise
Tax

B Estimated by 2% load on cash | ® Same
benefits only

TA

/l I Febmal"y 18, 2019 5-25 MAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY




ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS

L ]

June 30, 2017 Valuation \ June 30, 2018 Valuation
B Basis for B No experience study performed for this Plan
Assumptions | m CalPERS December 2017 experience study covering 1997 to 2015
experience

B Mortality improvement based on Society of Actuaries table

B Inflation based on the Plan’s very long time horizon

® Short-term healthcare trend was developed in consultation with
Axene Health Partners’ healthcare actuaries.

B Long-term healthcare trend developed using Society of Actuaries’
Getzen Model of Long-Run Medical Cost Trends

B Medical claims costs were developed by Axene Health Partners
based on demographic data for the CalPERS health plans provided
by CalPERS and Axene’s proprietary AHP Cost Model

B Medical coverage and participation based in part on Plan experience

TA

. /l I Februal’y 18, 2019 E-16 MAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

DEFINITIONS

Present Value of Benefits

Present Value of Benefits Present Value of Benefits
(Without Plan Assets) (With Plan Assets)
’/ i _\hﬂ_“‘“-a__\_ // =T _“-“'“'“x__‘_x
i Future \“\\ P Future =N
5 I <. ™
s Normal o Normal ™
/ \“\\ Costs \ / ' \\ Costs \
—~ \ | ey \.
% i
Unfunded Actuarial Unfunded

Actuarial Accrued Assets

Accrued Liability

B PVPB - Present Value of all Projected Benefits
e Discounted value, at measurement date (valuation date) of all future expected benefit
payments
e Expected benefit payments based on various actuarial assumptions

B/l February 18, 2019

5_37 MAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY




DEFINITIONS

B AAL - Actuarial Accrued Liability / Actuarial Obligation
e Discounted value at measurement date (valuation date) of benefits “earned” through
measurement date based on actuarial cost method
e Portion of PVPB “earned” at measurement
B NC - Normal Cost
e Value of benefits “earned” during current year
e Portion of PVPB allocated to current year
B Actuarial Cost Method
¢ Determines how benefits are “earned” or allocated to each year of service
e Has no effect on PVPB
o Has significant effect on Actuarial Obligations and Normal Cost
B Pay-As-You-Go Cost (PayGo)
e Cash Subsidy: Actual cash benefit payments to retirees
e Implied Subsidy: Difference between cost of retiree benefits and retiree premiums
e PayGo is the expected retiree benefit payments for the year while Normal Cost is the
expense for benefits accrued by active employees during the year

' B/l February 18, 2019

E-18 NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

DEFINITIONS

m Actuarially |® Contribution for the current period including:

Determined e Normal Cost
Contribution | e Administrative expenses
(ADC) e Amortization of:

> Initial Unfunded AAL

> AAL for plan, assumption, and method changes

> Experience gains/losses (difference between exp. and actual)

> Contribution gains/losses (difference between ADC and actual)

B/l February 18, 2019

549 NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY




DEFINITIONS
Implied Subsidy

B For PEMHCA, employer cost for allowing retirees to participate at active rates.
e General trend:

$800

$700

$600

$500

$400

$300

25 30 35 40 45 50 55 60 64
‘-‘-B]ended Premium| 600 600 600 600 600 600 600 600 600
‘-I-Cost by Age 400 420 460 500 550 600 640 700 800

e Sample active age 40, retire age 60:

Premiums PEMHCA Cosio
Benefits
$600 Active |~--___ ___——~| $500 Active
T3 s1200 <2 ,
$600 Retiree |-~~~ ~~~»| $700 Retiree
. B/l I Febmary 18, 2019 E-2O MAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
DEFINITIONS

Implied Subsidy

B GASB defers to actuarial standards of practice.

B Prior Actuarial Standards of Practice No. 6! (ASOP 6) allowed community rated
plans to value liability using premiums, resulting in no implied subsidy.

B [n May 2014, Actuarial Standards Board released revised ASOP 6:
e Requires implied subsidy valued for community rated plans such as PEMHCA.

e Timing: effective with all valuations on or after March 31, 2015 with earlier
implementation encouraged

B Implied subsidy has been included in valuations beginning with the June 30, 2013,
valuation.

17 Measuring Retiree Group Benefits Obligations and Determining Retiree Group Benefits Plan Costs or Contributions.

B/l February 18, 2019

551 MAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY




April 17, 2019
NVTA Agenda ltem 12.2

Continued From: New
I A Action Requested: APPROVE

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
Board Agenda Letter

TO: NVTA Board of Directors
FROM: Kate Miller, Executive Director

REPORT BY: Rebecca Schenck, Senior Transportation Program Planner
(707) 259-8636 / Email: rschenck@nvta.ca.gov

SUBJECT: Project Work Order No. E-11 to NVTA Agreement No. 18-21 with GHD
Company for Work Associated with State Route 29 Comprehensive
Multimodal Corridor Plan and Project Initiation Document for State
Route 29 through American Canyon

RECOMMENDATION

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board authorize the Executive
Director, or designee, to execute and make minor modifications to Work Order No. E-11
(Attachment 1) to NVTA Agreement No. 18-21 with GHD Company for State Route 29
Comprehensive Multimodal Corridor Plan and Project Initiation Document for State Route
29 through American Canyon in an amount not to exceed $645,000.

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION

None

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

NVTA issued Task Order No. E-09 on February 5, 2019 to fifteen (15) qualified firms
under the terms of Request for Qualifications (RFQ) 2015-03 On-Call Planning Services
and RFQ 2017-07 On-Call Engineer/Architect and Project Delivery Services for the State
Route 29 Comprehensive Multimodal Corridor Plan and Project Initiation Document (PID)
for State Route 29 through American Canyon. Two proposals were received. The review
team comprised of NVTA and City of American Canyon staff members is recommending
that GHD be awarded the contract in an amount not to exceed $$645,000. The not to
exceed amount includes a contingency of $25,180 over the $619,820 contract amount to
cover any additional work that may be necessary to deliver the comprehensive corridor
plan and/or PID. A portion of the PID document will be funded by the City of American
Canyon’s $250,000 contribution.

56


mailto:rschenck@nvta.ca.gov

NVTA Agenda Letter Wednesday, April 17, 2019
Agenda ltem 12.2
Page 2 of 3

PROCEDURAL REQUIREMENTS

1. Staff Report
2. Public Comments
3. Motion, Second, Discussion and Vote

FISCAL IMPACT

Is there a Fiscal Impact? Yes $645,000
Is it currently budgeted? Yes

Where is it budgeted? CMA Planning Funds, $170,000
TDA 8 Funds, $225,000
City of American Canyon Funding Agreement $250,000

Future fiscal impact? No

Consequences if not approved? The State Route 29 Comprehensive Multimodal
Corridor Plan and the Project Initiation Document for State Route 29 through American
Canyon will not be completed. Also, NVTA will not be eligible to compete for Senate Bill
1 Solutions for Congested Corridor Program funding for projects on the State Route 29
Corridor in the spring of 2020.

CEQA REQUIREMENTS

ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION: The proposed action is not a project as defined
by 14 California Code of Regulations 15378 (State CEQA Guidelines) and therefore
CEQA is not applicable.

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION

In October 2014 NVTA, the then Napa County Transportation and Planning Agency,
completed the State Route (SR) 29 Gateway Corridor Improvement Plan. Meanwhile,
the passage of Senate Bill (SB) 1 on April 28, 2017 created the Solutions for Congested
Corridors Program (SCCP) that changed the funding parameters for corridor projects.
The SCCP requires project sponsors to have completed a Comprehensive Multimodal
Corridor Plan (CMCP) to be eligible for funding under the program. Funding will be
prioritized to projects that make specific performance improvements and are part of a
multimodal comprehensive corridor plan designed to reduce congestion in highly traveled
corridors by providing more transportation choices while preserving the character of the
local community. Therefore, NVTA must update the SR 29 Gateway Corridor
Improvement Plan to comply with the guidelines of the Comprehensive Multimodal
Corridor Plan (CMCP) funding requirements outlined in SB 1 and detailed specifically in

57



NVTA Agenda Letter Wednesday, April 17, 2019
Agenda ltem 12.2
Page 3 of 3

the California Transportation Commission’s new Comprehensive Multimodal Corridor
Plan Guidelines adopted December 2018.

The first objective of this task order is to augment portions of the Gateway Study and
complete necessary elements of the State Route 29 Comprehensive Multimodal Corridor
Plan in order to apply for SCCP funds. NVTA intends to apply for funding in the next
SCCP funding cycle scheduled in the winter of 2020. The entire plan will be completed
approximately 12 months from award. The plan will update the 2014 plan by:

Analyzing intersection improvements in greater detail

Evaluating the impacts of parallel local road improvements for all modes
Evaluating technologies and traveler information

Modeling improvements through a micro-simulation model in accordance with
Caltrans Corridor Planning Guidance and the principles of the federal Congestion
Management Process

e Provide Air Quality and Greenhouse Gas emissions reductions analysis

e Provide Economic Impact Analysis

The project limits for this study are Devlin Road to the west, Newell Drive and North/South
Kelly Roads to the east, the intersection of SR 29/121 (Imola intersection) to the north,
and SR 37/29 interchange to the south.

The second objective of this task order is to complete the Project Initiation Document
(PID) for State Route 29 through American Canyon between Napa Junction Road and
American Canyon Road. The PID preparation will adhere to Caltrans’ latest Project
Development Procedures Manual and outline the scope, cost and schedule for this
project. Once a PID document is completed and executed by Caltrans, NVTA can seek
Regional Measure 3 and other funding sources for these improvements.

Staff will provide the board with periodic updates on the plan throughout the process as
well as hold a number of public meetings to seek input from stakeholders and members
of the public.

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS

Attachment: (1) Project Work Order No. E-11

58



ATTACHMENT 1

| DRAFT | NVTA Agenda Item 12.2

April 17, 2019

PROJECT WORK ORDER NO. E-11
ON-CALL A/E & PROJECT DELIVERY SERVICES

PROJECT NAME: State Route 29 Comprehensive Multimodal Corridor Plan and
Project Initiation Document for State Route 29 through American Canyon

PROJECT MANAGER: Rebecca Schenck, Senior Transportation Program Planner and Policy Analyst
rschenck@nvta.ca.gov or T 707.259.8636

CONSULTANT DESIGNATED TEAM MEMBERS:

¢ GHD COMPANY, Staff — see Exhibit A, pages 75 - 88
e Subconsultants: Elite Transportation Group (ETG) - see Exhibit A, pages 89 - 90

Regional Government Services (RGS) - see Exhibit A, page 91

SCOPE OF SERVICE: See Scope of Services/Proposal for Services dated March 4, 2019, with
revision dated April 1, 2019, under EXHIBIT A. Fee Schedule (revised April 1, 2019) attached as
EXHIBIT B.

START DATE: APRIL 77,2019 COMPLETION DATE: JUNE 30, 2021
NOT-TO-EXCEED AMOUNT FOR THIS PROJECT: $619,821
CHARGE NUMBER FOR PAYMENT: CMA/TDA 8301001 52310 CMA_PLAN_PRGMS SR29_AMCAN

TERMS AND CONDITIONS: This Project Work Order is issued and entered into as of the last date
written below in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth in the Master Agreement with
CONTRACTOR dated MARCH 21, 2018, which terms are hereby incorporated and made part of
this Project Work Order.

NVTA

By: Date:
KATE MILLER, Executive Director

Contractor

By: Date:

KAMESH VEDULA, PE, TE
Prinicpal in Charge

Approved asto Form

By:

N%T A General Counsel

Drate:

TAX ID: 98-0425935

18-21 GHD COMPANY/E11/040419_ryk Page 1 of 108
59


mailto:aequeda@nvtca.ca.gov

EXHIBIT A

GHD

April 1, 2019

Rebecca Schenck Original Sent Via Email
Transportation Program Planner and Policy Analyst

Napa Valley Transportation Authority

625 Burnell Street

Napa, CA 94559

Re: State Route (SR) 29 Comprehensive Multimodal Corridor Plan and PID for SR 29 through
American Canyon Scope & Fee Negotiations

Dear Rebecca:

We are excited to have been selected as the top ranked firm to provide the Planning and Project Initiation
Document (PID) Services for SR 29 through American Canyon. As requested, we have reviewed our
scope and fee and have made adjustments to reduce our overall fee. The following is a summary of the
reductions made and attached are our revised scope and fee for both Objectives 1 and 2.

Summary of Scope and Fee Modifications

Objective 1: Corridor Plan

Based on input received from NVTA, the following scope reductions were made which reduced the overall
cost of Objective 1 from $350,000 to $280,022. The reductions for Objective 1 were split amongst the
GHD team as such: 1) GHD reduction of $46,818; 2) ETG reduction of $16,580; and, 3) RGS reduction of
$6,490. The following are specific reductions in scope that were made.

Task 2 Ongoing Stakeholder and Community Outreach and Project

Scope modifications were made primarily to Task 2. For Task 2.3 Committee meetings — GHD’s time was
reduced to physically attend 3 meetings and teleconference the other 3 meetings. For Task 2.4 Public
meeting, GHD will participate in 2 public meetings. RGS will continue to provide support for this task.
GHD'’s time was also slightly reduced for Task 2.2 Stakeholder/Jurisdictional Meetings based on the same
premise. The following hours were reduced based on these scope revisions:

e GHD: Decrease hours from 260 to 140.
e RGS: Decreased hours from 316 to 278
e ETG:N/A

Task 3 Develop Plan Components

Based on our subsequent review of the models and analysis tools developed as part of the Broadway
District Specific Plan and Watson Ranch EIR, GHD believes that additional efficiencies can be realized if

943 Reserve Drive Roseville California 95678 United States
T18t211GHB2COBPANY/E1H0404408oykV www.ghd.com Pageé(())f 108



these tools are made available for this study. Based on this assumption, the following hour were reduced
without compromising our submitted scope:

e GHD: Decrease hours from 992 to 854
e ETG: Decrease hours from 302 to 222
¢ RGS: N/A

GHD’s direct expenses were also lowered from $8,450 to $6,955 commensurate with the scope
modifications described above.

Objective 2: PID

The following scope reductions were made, which reduced the overall cost of Objective 2 from $408,555
to $339,798.

During the proposal process, we assumed the most conservative route, which assumed Objective 2 work
would not begin until Objective 1 was completed. However, as discussed in the interview, it is our
understanding this is not the intent and Objective 2 would begin when the planning efforts of Objective 1
have made enough progress to be able to identify potential alternatives. Therefore, Mr. Jim Damkowitch’s
time has been reduced for Objective 2 as both of the objectives will be completed concurrently and extra
time is not anticipated to be needed.

The following are specific reductions in scope that were made:

Task 1: Project Management, Coordination and Quality Control

The scope of subtask 1.4, Project Presentations was revised to have GHD attend only one (1) meeting
and the other two are to be completed by NVTA/American Canyon staff with GHD materials.

Task 2: Preliminary Research/Data Collection and Base Mapping

Given the amount of information available for the existing environmental constraints, time was reduced in
this task.

Task 4: Traffic Study: Intersection Control Evaluation (ICE) Step 1

The scope and fee were reduced based on the assumptions that NVTA will provide GHD with a model
and that no additional modeling work for forecasting efforts will be needed by GHD.

Task 5: Project Study Report/Project Development Support (PSR-PDS)

GHD reviewed the hours in the various subtasks made various reductions where feasible to reduce the
costs.

Task 6: Project Study Report/Project Development Support (PSR-PDS)

The third review was eliminated from this task and it is assumed that only two reviews will be needed
before the final PSR-PDS is submitted to Caltrans for signatures. GHD also reviewed the hours in the
remaining tasks and made various reductions where feasible to reduce the costs.

18-2 BHEICOMPRNY/E11/040419_ryk Page 3 of 108 2
61



It should be noted it is assumed that three (3) build alternatives will be analyzed as part of this process.
There could be further cost savings if the number of alternatives analyzed are reduced.

We appreciate the opportunity to negotiate our scope and fee with you and look forward to delivering both
the corridor plan and the completed PID Document for this exciting project.

Sincerely,
GHD
/ /I‘\ / V Ry /
et Jom ok s e
Kamesh Vedula, PE, TE Jim Damkowitch Lindsey Van Parys, PE, QSD/P
Principal In Charge Objective 1 Project Manager  Objective 1 Project Manager
Enclosures:

e Objective 1 Revised Scope (see separate WORD doc)
o Objective 1 Revised Fee (attached)
e Objective 2 Revised Scope (see separate WORD doc)
e Objective 2 Revised Fee (attached)

LVP/P8353LTR0O01

18-2 BHEICOMPRNY/E11/040419_ryk Page 4 of 108 3
62



The GHD team’s (Consultant) detailed scope of work is
provided below.

Task 1 - Project Startup

1.1 - Project Management and Coordination
Consultant will perform project setup tasks for account-
ing and coordinate budget and scheduling factors.

Consultant will prepare monthly invoices and progress
reports to Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA).
Consultant will provide an invoice format that is to ac-
ceptable to NVTA two weeks prior to the first invoice
submittal.

Deliverables:
e Project Setup
e  Submittal of up to 10 invoices and progress re-
ports

1.2 - Project Kick-off Meeting

Key members of the Consultant team will attend the
kickoff meeting (Location TBD by NVTA). The Consult-
ant will coordinate with NVTA to develop an agenda for
the meeting and provide a summary of Action Items of
the meeting.

Deliverables:
e Kickoff meeting agenda
e Attendance at kickoff meeting by up to five Con-
sultant team staff. No overnight stays or out of
state travel are assumed
e Kickoff meeting short-term actions

1.3 - Bi-weekly Conference Calls

The Consultant and various Consultant team members
will participate in up to 18 bi-weekly coordination calls
with the SR 29 Staff Working Group (SWG) throughout
the duration of the project (assumed March 2019 to De-
cember 31, 2019). Meetings are anticipated to last less
than or equal to 1 hour The Consultant will set up and
lead/facilitate the meetings. The Consultant shall de-
velop and maintain a Short-Term Action list to track: Ac-
tion ltems; Anticipated Delivery Date; Actual Delivery
Date; Responsible Agency; and, Comments throughout
the duration of the study. The Short-Term Action list will
serve as both the agenda (in advance of the calls), and

18-21 GHD COMPANY/E11/040419_ryk
NVTA objective 1

minutes (prior week's check-in outcome). Only members
of the Consultant-team with relevant discussion items
will participate.

Deliverables: Up to 18 bi-weekly conference calls and to
18 Short-Term Action lists.

1.4 - Data Retrieval/Processing/Review

The Consultant will retrieve the most recent available
transportation data items of relevance to the SR 29
Comprehensive Multimodal Corridor Plan (CMCP). This
includes available highway and roadway segment
counts, intersection turn movement counts; pedes-
trian/bicycle counts, transit ridership data from appropri-
ate locallregional/state agency sources and the five
most recent years of SWITRS/TIMS collision data. The
Consultant will provide an inventory listing of data re-
trieved for application in Task 3 for review by the SWG.

The following “Big” data sources will also be utilized.

Streetlite Data
The following data items will be retrieved using Streetlite
cell and GPS data:

e 2018-19 observed OD patterns by mode (vehi-
cle and ped/bike), period of the day, and day of
the week;, including weekends

e Speed data on non-NHS designated local paral-
lel capacity roadways

o Estimated traffic volumes on relevant study cor-
ridor roadway segments by hour of the day, day
of the week and season

Base year Streetlite network assignment (big-data OD
pairs by trip purpose) will be performed for the study
corridor. These OD based volume estimates will be
compared to model volumes and traffic counts to gauge
baseline travel demand model performance.

PeMS Data

The Consultant will retrieve available PeMS data for SR
29 from the PeMS website. Given the desire to reflect
annual average conditions, spring months are preferred
followed by fall months. Hourly PeMS traffic volume and
speed data will be retrieved for both general purpose
and managed lanes as applicable.

Page 5 of 108
63



National Performance Monitoring Research Data Set
The primary objective for using NPMRDS data is to es-
tablish the requisite baseline speed profiles and base-
line and future volume sets for validating and informing
the freeway and arterial operational analysis tools.

The Consultant will retrieve the most recent 12 months
of NPMRDS speed data for both passenger vehicles
and heavy trucks on all study corridor roadways on the
National Highway System (NHS) through the FHWA
NPMRDS data website.

Consultant will coordinate with NVTA to confirm appro-
priate NPMRDS speed data timelines, data protocols
and, data processing conventions to standardize the
process of computing the performance metrics. Based
on this input, Consultant will immediately structure and
process the passenger car and truck speed data perfor-
mance data for the following purposes:

e Passenger Vehicle and Truck Travel Time Re-
liability metrics

e Passenger Vehicle and Truck Congestion met-
rics

e Operational tool baseline and validation

Given the desire to reflect annual average conditions,
spring months are preferred followed by fall months.
NPMRDS speed data will be retrieved.

The Consultant team will determine the accuracy, repre-
sentativeness, and utility of the retrieved data sets and
establish “Truth in Data” checks in all its data processing
functions under this task.

Solano Napa Activity Based Model (SNABM) Review
The Consultant will conduct a detailed review of the
2015/2040 SNABM within the SR 29 corridor study area.
The model highway network and land use data assump-
tions in Napa County will be checked using existing ref-
erences, such as, community circulation plans, , Vision
2040 (NVTA’s Countywide Transportation Plan), plus
any other references by the SWG. Both the highway
traffic and transit ridership along the SR 29 corridor will
be validated to the existing conditions.

18-21 GHD COMPANY/E11/040419_ryk
NVTA objective 1

The Consultant will compare model volumes to counts
identified in the City of American Canyon, City of Napa
and County of Napa circulation studies and other recent
studies in the project area and propose adjustments
where appropriate for review and acceptance by the
SWG. Conflicts will be identified and documented. Exist-
ing conditions and projected future year conditions
(2040) for weekday peak hour traffic and weekend visi-
tor peak hour multimodal demand will be summarized.
Where weekend peak volumes are not available, the
Consultant team will develop a methodology to factor
from weekday data based on published peak hour data
by Caltrans, Streetlite and NPMRDS data.

The model will be reviewed and accepted by the SWG.
The validated 2015 and 2040 SNABM will be used to
develop the travel demand growth projections for the SR
29 corridor.

Deliverables:

¢ Inventory listing of traffic count, ridership count
and collision data inventory

o Streetlite Origin-Destination patterns by mode
(vehicle and ped/bike), period of the day, and
day of the week, including weekends

e Most recent 12 months of continuous NPMRDS
speed data for corridor study roadways desig-
nated as part of the NHS

e Base year Streetlite network assignment for
non-NHS roadways on interest

e Travel Demand Forecast Model Validation and
Forecast Technical Memorandum

Task 2 - Ongoing Stakeholder and Community Out-
reach and Project Oversight

2.1 - Prepare a Draft and Final Public Outreach Plan
Consultant will develop a comprehensive Public Out-
reach Plan that allows for effective outreach with all
planning partners and community stakeholders in devel-
oping the CMCP. This will include abroad range of
stakeholders including those in the private, public, and
non-profit sectors, the business community, environ-
mental interest groups, public health advocates, technol-
ogy and broadband stakeholders, as well as environ-
mental justice and social-equity organizations.

Page 6 of 108
64



The Outreach Plan will ensure the agency is meeting all
Title VI and Environmental Justice requirements and en-
gage communities impacted by the corridor, including
strategies to engage disadvantaged communities.

Consultant will submit a draft CMCP Public Outreach
Plan and, based on one set of consolidated comments
from the SWG, submit the final Public Qutreach Plan.

2.2 - Stakeholder/Jurisdictional Meetings

Consultant will coordinate with NVTA, County of Napa,
Cities of Napa and American Canyon, and Caltrans D-4
to develop and finalize a complete listing of stakehold-
ers.

The Consultant to participate in up to four (4) stake-
holder meetings. The Consultant will coordinate with the
SWG to develop an agenda for these meetings and pro-
vide a summary of key discussion and action items of
the meeting.

2.3 - Committee Meetings

The Consultant will provide updates and/or materials for
staff updates to NVTA’s Citizen Advisory Committee
(CAC) and Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) ap-
proximately four (4) times during the course of the pro-
ject. These committees will review project progress and
submit comments to the Staff Working Group (SWG)
and the NVTA Board.

2.4 - Public Meetings

2.4.1 Consultant shall promote, advertise, and conduct
up to two (2) public charrettes at different loca-
tions/times through a multi-media campaign (including,
but not limited to, use of newspaper and radio broad-
cast) through the Citizen Advisory Committee and other
stakeholders to gain public involvement and refine plan
concepts. One (1) of the public charrettes will be held in
the beginning of the process to gain initial input and
feedback and one (1) charrette should be held later in
the process to review the draft Corridor Plan and recom-
mended improvement concepts.

Consultant will use a combination of group exercises,
live polling, small breakout sessions, individual stations
for discussion on specific topics, and/or visual prefer-
ence activities. Meetings will be participant-driven and

18-21 GHD COMPANY/E11/040419_ryk
NVTA objective 1

engaging.

During live polling, the consultant will utilize small easy-
to-use handheld keypads enabling audience members
to immediately and anonymously respond to multiple-
choice questions posed on-screen during staff presenta-
tions. Since social pressure is removed when audience
responses are anonymous, we will have a more accu-
rate idea of what issues are truly important.

2.4.2 Prepare presentation materiel for City Council and
County Board of Supervisor meetings. Most presenta-
tions will be conducted by NVTA staff and/or
City/County staff.

2.4.3 Prepare presentation materials and present at two
(2) Napa Valley Transportation Authority Board (NVTA
Board) meetings which will act as the steering commit-
tee for the CMCP.

2.4.4 Consultant shall meet with SWG approximately six
(6) times over the course of the study (made up of
NVTA staff, Caltrans staff, and members from the City of
American Canyon, City of Napa, and County of Napa).
Consultant will physically attend three (3) of these meet-
ings and participate in the other three (3) by teleconfer-
ence. Prior to publication of milestone documents, draft
documents and supporting data will be reviewed by the
SWG. This group is expected to meet approximately six
(6) times at key points in the process: to review and ac-
cept the Vision, to review the existing corridor study’s re-
sults; potential improvement programs, review the draft
Corridor Implementation Plan. Day-to-day work on pro-
ject documents and meetings will be carried out by the
Consultant, with direct staff support from NVTA.

2.5 - Collateral Outreach Materials

2.5.1 Project Logo/Branding

Consultant will coordinate with the SWG to develop a
brand for the study that will be used for all project re-
lated materials and deliverables. Project branding will
give the CMCP process a unique identity and visual
queue to the public. The SWG will be given several op-
tions to choose from and will be have final approval of
the overall theme.

2.5.2 Development of Interactive Web-based Tool

Page 7 of 108
65



Consultant will develop an interactive web-based tool
using on-line interactive map technology, Social Pin-
point. All content of the interactive web-based tool will
be in English and Spanish.

The Social Pinpoint platform encourages engagement
by allowing the community to provide feedback that can
be directly linked to a geographical location, complete
online surveys, and integrate the platform with their own
social media platforms to create digital content that en-
courages them to share and post on the topic. Im-
portantly, Social Pinpoint provides tools to categorize,
collate, and analyze feedback and data in a meaningful
way to allow for reliable and efficient data management.
It also allows for the combining of geographic and other
spatial information such as contour lines, natural hazard
risk areas, and project areas.

The interactive web-based tool will allow the public to
provide geo-referenced input on where issues or im-
provement needs are. This supplemental input will help
inform study recommendations. After being live for 10
weeks, the logged input will be downloaded and sum-
marized. This summary report will be shared with the
SWG.

‘ ,, -

Consultant will develop and disseminate news releases
on a regular basis promoting upcoming opportunities for
engagement, workshops, and key milestones in the pro-
cess. A key component of this effort will be coordination
with public information officials at all member agencies
as well as Caltrans and others.

Consultant will promote meetings, issues, and opportu-
nities for engagement via a variety of social media chan-
nels including Facebook, Twitter, and NextDoor.

Consultant will encourage people to share photos and
video locations relevant to the CMCP. These can be
posted on the project website and shared via social me-
dia.

2.6 - Public Outreach Summary Report

Consultant will develop a comprehensive Public Out-
reach Summary Report that documents all outreach ac-
tivities performed as part of the CMCP and summarizes
the results of each outreach strategy/activity. The report
will distinguish and document outreach activities that
specifically targeted disadvantaged communities. The
degree of disadvantaged community participation will
also be documented.

The Public Outreach Summary Report will be included
as part of the draft and final CMCP document review
process described in Task 4.

e A Deliverables:
: o Participate in four (4) Stakeholder Meetings
~ o Participate in four (4) CAC/TAC Committee
Meetings
e Perform two (2) Public Charrettes.
0 e Assist NVTA and City/County of Napa staff with
: presentation materials on the CMCP
-2 - e Conduct up to six (6) meeting with the SWG
o Develop Project Logo
Once the CMCP improvement package is established, e Interactive bilingual web-based tool
public outreach will be repurposed to informing the pub- e Public input Summaries
lic of the proposed corridor improvement package and ¢ Maintenance of Stakeholder Database
gauging the level of public support for it. All input re- e Maintenance and presence on social media
ceived will be documented for inclusion in the CMCP fi- e Collateral Materials (PPT, Fact Sheet, etc.)
nal report. e Draft and Final CMCP Public Outreach Sum-
mary Report
2.5.3 Media
18-21 GHD COMPANY/E11/040419_ryk Page 8 of 108
NVTA objective 1 66



Task 3 - Develop Plan Components

3.1 - Evaluate Opportunities, Develop Corridor Plan

Framework, and Literature Review
Consistent with the 2018 Comprehensive Multimodal
Corridor Plan Guidelines (CTC, December 2018), the
planning and analysis framework proposed for the
CMCP will be based on the Smart Mobility Framework
(SMF).The performance metrics selected for the CMCP
will inform each of the six SMF objectives to ensure that
the resulting improvement recommendations provide a
balanced, sustainable, and multimodal assessment of
current and forecast corridor conditions.

One of the six SMF objectives is Reliable Mobility. This
SMF objective addresses congestion management as it
relates to multimodal service quality, multimodal travel
reliability, and multimodal travel mobility. A matrix frame-
work will be established consistent with the Federal
Congestion Management Process to serve as an evalu-
ation tool for proposed CMCP roadway capacity and op-
erational improvements including ITS improvements.
Each project will be evaluated relative to NVTA’s CMP
goals as well as RTP goals.

Based on these frameworks, the consultant team will co-
ordinate with the Project Management Team to “refresh”
the Purpose and Need Statement for the SR 29 corridor
— expanding its breadth to include alternative modes
and parallel facilities that serve both regional and local
area traffic within the corridor.

The Consultant will prepare a literature review of like
corridors that have similar characteristics and serve sim-
ilar demand profiles as SR 29. This will include but not
be limited to corridors that have been extensively stud-
ies by GHD including SR 68 (Monterey County), SR 227
(San Luis Obispo County, and SR 49 (Nevada and El
Dorado Counties).

3.2 - Summarize Corridor Existing Studies and Plans
The Consultant will prepare a listing and brief summary
of all planning documents of relevance to the SR 29 cor-
ridor. The Plan documents will include but will not limited
to the SR 29 Gateway Corridor Improvement Plan, the
City of American Canyon Broadway Specific Plan, the
Watson Ranch EIR, County of Napa and American Can-

18-21 GHD COMPANY/E11/040419_ryk
NVTA objective 1

yon Circulation Elements, the County of Napa Airport In-
dustrial Specific Plan, City of Napa General and Specific
Plans, NVTA Countywide Transportation Plan Vision
2040, NVTA Pedestrian and Bicycle Plans, NVTA Ex-
press Bus Study and travel demand model development
documents. The Consultant will prepare a matrix that re-
flects all policies germane to the SR 29 corridor from
these prior planning efforts. This matrix will facilitate a
qualitative determination of the degree of policy con-
sistency of each of candidate improvements considered
as part of the CMCP.

3.3 - Model Future Traffic Projections

3.3.1 Solano Napa Activity Based Model Review
The Consultant team will conduct a detailed review of
the 2015 baseline and 2040 out-year forecast volume
sets from Solano Napa Activity Based Model (SNABM)
within the SR 29 corridor study area. The model high-
way network and land use data assumptions in Napa
County will be checked using existing references, such
as, community circulation plans, Vision 2040 (NVTA’s
Countywide Transportation Plan), plus any other refer-
ences by the SWG. Travel demand models and fore-
casts developed as part of the Broadway District Spe-
cific Plan and Watson Ranch EIR will also be provided
and reviewed for repurposing as part of this study.

Both the highway traffic and transit ridership along the
SR 29 corridor will be validated to the existing condi-
tions. The Consultant team will compare model volumes
to counts identified in the City of American Canyon, City
of Napa and County of Napa circulation studies and
other recent studies in the project area. Consultant will
propose adjustments where appropriate for review and
acceptance by the SWG. The validation check process
will follow the latest industry standards, such as Model
Validation and Reasonableness Check Manual, 2nd Edi-
tion (FHWA, September 2010).If there are conflicts with
established State/Federal criteria, the Consultant team
will identify and document them for review by the SWG.

Once “cleared” for application, all traffic demand fore-
casts will be prepared in accordance with the methodol-
ogies described in the NCHRP Report 765 - Analytical
Travel Forecasting Approaches for Project-Level Plan-

Page 9 of 108
67



ning and Design, NCHRP 716 - Travel Demand Fore-
casting Parameters and Techniques and California
Transportation Commission (CTC) - California Regional
Transportation Plan Guidelines.

The Consultant team will develop a report, which sum-
marizes existing conditions and projected future year
conditions (2040) for weekday peak hour traffic and
weekend visitor peak hour multimodal demand within
the SR 29 corridor. Where weekend peak volumes are
not available, the project team will develop a methodol-
ogy to factor from weekday data.

3.3.2 Baseline and Future Baseline Volume Sets
Based on the review of model performance, Consultant
will consider the need to apply Dynamic Traffic Assign-
ment (DTA) covering the study corridor, to produce real-
istic hourly volume sets that models queue spillbacks
and peak spreading explicitly. If DTA is considered es-
sential for developing accurate baseline and future vol-
umes sets — Consultant will coordinate this option with
the SWG. The coverage of the DTA model will be larger
than the study corridor to capture the impacts of inbound
queue spillbacks beyond the study corridor gateways.

Based on this process, a 2015 baseline and 2040 future
volume sets will be finalized. These volumes sets will
serve as inputs to the corridor-wide VISSIM micro-simu-
lation model.

3.3.3 VISSIM Micro-simulation Model

The VISSIM models developed as part of the 2014 SR
29 Gateway Corridor Improvement Program and the
Broadway District Specific Plan and Watson Ranch EIR
will be the primary analysis tools for the CMCP. Consult-
ant will review thes models and make all requisite net-
work modifications to accurately reflect SR 29 and appli-
cable parallel facilities. Consultant will be code the VIS-
SIM network for the corridor segments using Google
Earth aerial maps and street views for all the required
geometric attributes.

The VISSIM micro-simulation model capacity assump-
tions by facility type (including reasonable ranges) will
be established prior to the validation process. These will
be shared with the SWG for review and comment.

18-21 GHD COMPANY/E11/040419_ryk
NVTA objective 1

The source of speed data needed for calibration will be
PeMS and NPMRDS as processed in Task 1. Based on
the PeMS and NPMRDS speed data, Consultant will ad-
just the default free-flow speed to reflect the local condi-
tions along this corridor. If needed and justified, adjust-
ments to the default capacity will also be performed but
only within the specified ranges established with the
SWG. Validating the VISSIM model will follow the proce-
dures outlined in Guidelines for Applying Traffic Mi-
crosimulation Software (FHWA, 2004). Consultant will
prepare a VISSIM validation memorandum describing
the steps taken to calibrate/validate the VISSIM model.
Once the VISSIM model is validated, the future year
2040 volume set will be input and the model executed to
generate 2040 future baseline conditions.

3.4 - Program and Project Identification

In coordination with the SWG, Consultant will identify
potential programs and projects to improve the corridor
while considering California Streets and Highways Code
— Sections 2390-2397 and focusing on the Solutions for
Congested Corridors Program (SCCP) strategies to:

1. Reduce traffic congestion and address local ac-
cess focusing primarily on operational improve-
ments rather than capacity or facility expansion

2. Improve corridor safety, accessibility and cross-
ings for all travel modes
3. Improve corridor circulation by evaluating pend-

ing connections/extension improvements of par-
allel roadways, improvements to existing main-
line corridors, intersection improvements, or
other congestion management strategies

4, Improve transit access and transit flow

d. Build upon aesthetic improvements identified in
the SR 29 Gateway Corridor Plan to improve
the appearance and cohesiveness of the corri-
dor while ensuring that each jurisdiction remains
visually distinct

6. Upgrade technologies that will improve corridor
operations and provide travel information

7. Evaluate economic development, job creation
and retention of the proposed projects/programs

8. Reduce greenhouse gas emissions and air pol-

lution impacts with proposed projects/programs,
and stimulate efficient land use.

3.4.1 Program and Project Identification

Page 10 of 108
68



The key analysis tools proposed by the GHD team for
the CMCP are presented in Table 1. The purpose for
application, output or measure/s of effectiveness (MOE)
and whether the MOE is amenable for monetization as a
societal cost (i.e., benefit) is identified for each analysis
tool. Application of these tools is described below.

SNABM Travel Demand Modeling

Unique volume sets that reflect the traffic diversion and
AM/PM peak hour circulation characteristics will be de-
veloped to quantify the diversion of traffic onto parallel
routes created by candidate roadway capacity improve-
ments (i.e., roadway extensions, and improvements to
existing parallel routes) and other operational improve-
ments. These future year volume sets will serve as in-
puts to the VISSIM micro-simulation model.

VISSIM Roadway Operations Performance Summary
The following performance measures will be generated
from VISSIM micro-simulation for existing, future base-
line, and future with project.

e Person throughput

e Person Hours Of Delay (PHD)

o Travel Time Reliability — Travel Time In-
dex/Buffer Time Index

e Vehicle Hours Of Delay (VHD)

e Vehicle Miles Travelled (VMT)

VISSIM, similar to other planning-level analysis tools,
does not model trucks separately. However, NPMRDS
data provides truck speeds. Consultant will use the
NPMRDS (processed in Task 1) to calculate existing
truck delay and build correlation between existing truck
delay and regular vehicle delay. Using the same correla-
tion, Consultant will estimate truck delay under baseline
and future year conditions (with and without project).

Travel Time Reliability Analysis Results Performance
Summary (passenger vehicles and trucks)

Consultant will use NPMRDS speed data for all road-
ways designated as part of the National Highway Sys-
tem (NHS) for baseline travel time reliability and conges-
tion analysis. The retrieval and processing of this data is
described under Task 1. Consultant will compute the fol-
lowing performance metrics for passenger vehicles in
the study corridor:

18-21 GHD COMPANY/E11/040419_ryk
NVTA objective 1

o Buffertime

o Buffer Time Index

e Congestion and Operational Efficiency (Con-
gestion Metric and LOTTR - passenger vehi-
cles)

o Percent of Corridor Congested

e Percent of Corridor Reliable

Federal definitions from the National Performance Man-
agement Measures Rule will be used to define conges-
tion and reliability. Consultant will apply both the na-
tional rule’s definition of reliability (based on the 80th
percentile speed) and the Highway Capacity Manual’s
definition of reliability (based on the 95th percentile
speed).

Given that free flow speed is a key variable for calculat-
ing both Congestion Level and Level of Travel Time Re-
liability (LOTTR) free flow speed will be empirically esti-
mated for each roadway segment using NPMRDS data
between the hours of midnight and 3 AM. In instances
where average free flow speed is lower than average
peak hour speed — free flow speed will be set at peak
hour speed. These and other conventions will be dis-
cussed with the SGW to determine the appropriate data
protocols for analysis. Maps displaying AM/PM peak
hour Congestion and LOTTR results for Passenger Ve-
hicles will be developed.

To estimate the change in reliability (buffer time only) as
a result of the CMCP improvement concepts, the Con-
sultant will holistically project the change of travel time
reliability (i.e., buffer time) for each CMCP alternative
under future year conditions. This will be done by apply-
ing the relative change in the Travel Time Index (TTI)
between baseline and future to adjust the empirically
based NPMRDS baseline estimate of buffer time. This
assumes that the effect of construction, weather, and in-
cidents that is reflected in the most recent 12-months of
NPMRDS data is reasonably reflective of like events in
the future.

Buffer time will be the key Measure of Effectiveness
from this analysis (versus Buffer Time Index) given that
it can be monetized based on the Caltrans 2016 Eco-

Page 11 of 108
69



nomic Parameters using the same societal cost as de-
lay. These estimates will be annualized and expanded
to reflect the 2040 design life horizon.

Interconnected Streets and Integrated Corridor Manage-
ment

Consultant will provide an ITS benefit assessment. This
could include validating the operational impacts of im-
plementing Integrated Corridor Management (ICM)
throughout the study corridor through active freeway
management, active Transportation Demand Manage-
ment strategies, active transit management, active arte-
rial management, and traveler information systems in
the corridor.

Vehicle Collision Reduction Analysis Performance Sum-
mary

Based on the data processed in Task 1 and contributing
factors from the SWITRS/TIMS baseline collision as-
sessment, the GHD team will apply Part C of the High-
way Safety Manual (HSM) to estimate the safety perfor-
mance for the CMCP improvements. Consultant will ap-
ply Crash Modification Factors (CMF) as appropriate.
The estimated reduction in collisions will be distributed
by severity (PDO, Serious Injury, Fatality) based on his-
torical data. This analysis will inform following perfor-
mance metrics:

e Number of vehicle collisions

e Rate of vehicle collisions per number of vehicle
trips

e Consideration of policies that support public
safety and security such as lighting and other
crime prevention and safety measures

Pedestrian/Bicycle Collision Analysis Performance Sum-

mary

Based on the data processed in Task 1, Consultant will
isolate all pedestrian/bicycle related collisions and asso-
ciated reductions. Estimated reduction in collisions will
be distributed by severity (PDO, Serious Injury, Fatality)
based on historical data. This analysis will inform follow-
ing performance metrics:

e Number of bicycle and pedestrian collisions
e Rate of bicycle and pedestrian collisions per
number of bicycle and pedestrian trips

18-21 GHD COMPANY/E11/040419_ryk
NVTA objective 1

e Consideration of policies that support public
safety and security such as lighting and other
crime prevention and safety measures

Consultant will summarize both the vehicular and spe-
cific pedestrian/bicycle related collisions for input into ei-
ther Cal-B/C, the HSIP Analyzer or like off-model excel
Highway Safety Manual (HSM) compatible worksheets
to compute monetized benefits. The basis for any of
these options shall be the Caltrans 2016 Economic Pa-
rameters. Once monetized, this estimate will be ex-
panded to reflect the design life horizon year.

For the Federal Performance Monitoring Rule PM(1)
metrics that reflect rates, Consultant will compute seg-
ment specific VMT (AADT x segment length in miles).
For freeway and local roadways, segment lengths will
be computed within GIS or by post mile. The source of
baseline and future daily traffic volumes with and without
the CMCP improvements will be from SNABM output
The PM (1) metrics will be computed at the corridor
scale of analysis and Targets checked to determine con-
sistency with State/MPO safety targets.

Active Transportation LTS Connectivity Analysis
Consultant will examine the LTS connectivity assess-
ment under future year conditions relative to each corri-
dor alternative’s active transportation improvement
package. Consultant will use Census block scale of
analysis to establish a geodatabase of demographic, in-
come/poverty, language, and employment within the
study corridor from the 2010 Census, American Com-
munity Survey (ACS), and Longitudinal Employment and
Housing Data (LEHD) datasets. This data will be propor-
tionately “grown” to reflect future year conditions based
on the projected future growth resident in the SNABM
land use database.

Based on roadway, bicycle, and pedestrian networks;
transit network data; and Points of Interest (POI) data,
Consultant will perform an LTS pedestrian and bicycle
connectivity assessment of the CMCP active transporta-
tion improvements. The assessments will differentiate
between advantaged and disadvantaged populations to
assess the degree of connectivity of the low-stress net-
work under future (2040) conditions for these demand
markets.

Page 12 of 108
70



Consultant will also examine the LTS accessibility char-
acteristics to specific destination types (POI) across
each CMCP improvements. POls could include, but not
limited to, schools, transit stops/hubs (including rail sta-
tions), hospitals, and commercial centers.

Active Transportation Mode Share Shift Analysis
Consultant will apply the NCHRP 552 Guidelines for
Analysis of Bicycle Infrastructure Investments method to
estimate mode share shifts, vehicle trip and VMT reduc-
tions of the active transportation improvements identified
in each of the CMCP active transportation improve-
ments. The analysis will be applied to three distance
buffers (1/4, 1/2, and 1 mile) as proscribed in NCHRP
552.

This analysis will yield the following outputs for each of
the CMCP pedestrian/bicycle improvement:

e Number of new bicycle riders (mode shift) for
commuting and non-commuter trips

e Low, moderate, and high estimates of vehicle
trip and associated VMT reductions

e Excel workbooks and GIS distance buffer maps.

e Monetized health benefit results

Transit Accessibility Analysis Performance

As described in the accessibility assessment, Consult-
ant will apply the LTS analysis to determine the walking
and biking connectivity to existing/future transit facilities;
accessibility to transit facilities by all modes; and, other
multimodal hub points of interest.

Bus transit mode shifts from autos will be based on
mode split output from SNABM and GIS-based tools to
assess the following:

e Transit station accessibility
e Bus transit mode shifts from autos on SR 29
and adjacent arterial system roadways

Air Quality and Climate Change Greenhouse Gas Emis-
sions

Consultant will quantify the change in health-based cri-
teria pollutants as well as climate change greenhouse
gases (CO2 and CO2 equivalents). Based on the on-

18-21 GHD COMPANY/E11/040419_ryk
NVTA objective 1

road vehicle activity changes quantified, Consultant will
use the SB-1 Emissions Calculator tool developed by
the California Transportation Commission to calculate
the change in these emissions as a result of the CMCP
improvements. The emissions analysis will be inform
based on the VMT and VMT by speed class distribution
characteristics of each the CMCP improvements.

Climate Adaptation Summary

The Consultant will perform a qualitative assessment of
climate preparedness and infrastructure asset protec-
tion/resilience and connectivity benefits of the CMCP im-
provements.

Consultant will evaluate the enhanced risk associated
with not implementing the CMCP improvements for the
study corridor as well as the corridor’s its overall use
and functionality on:

e Multimodal transportation infrastructure Assess-
ment

o Network Connectivity Assessment

e (Goods Movement Assessment

e Emergency Response Assessment

Consultant will use existing on-line mapping tools such
as Caltrans Vulnerability Interactive Mapping Tool (Dis-
trict 1) and CalEnviroScreen 3.0 developed by the Office
of Environmental Health Hazard Assessment, and other
on-line tools to inform this assessment. Consultant will
consider all applicable climate change events but will fo-
cus primarily on flood and wildfire events.

Benefit Burden Analysis Summary

Consultant will quantify the distribution of costs and ben-
efits resulting from the implementation of the CMCP im-
provements on disadvantaged communities (low-income
and minority individuals) within the study corridor. This
analysis will be based on NVTA's definitions of minority
and low income populations for Napa County.

Consultants will perform a select link and zone analysis
for roadway improvements to identify the percent of mo-
torists using the improved facilities who are from traffic
analysis zones defined as disadvantaged.

Page 13 of 108
71



As described under the Active Transportation Accessi-
bility and Mode Shift Analysis, Consultant will perform
LTS connectivity assessments to identify the degree of
access to active transportation and transit improvements
by disadvantaged communities versus non-disadvan-
taged communities.

Disproportionately high and adverse effects resulting
from the implementation of the CMCP improvements on
minority and low-income populations (i.e., EJ communi-
ties) will be examined. Additionally, the CMCP planning
process itself will document the outreach opportunities
provided to all segments of the population to give input
into the CMCP.

Economic Development Assessment
The economic analysis of the mobility improvements
along the study corridor will consist of two parts:

o Benefit-cost analysis comparing the user bene-
fits of the improvement plan with the costs of im-
plementation

e Economic impact analysis showing the regional
impacts of the improvement plan in terms of
gross regional product (GRP), jobs, and per-
sonal income

The benefit-cost analysis will be informed by delivera-
bles previously described.

Consultant will conduct an economic impact analysis of
the CMCP improvements. To inform this analysis of re-
gional economic development, job retention strategies,
and supporting activities, Consultant will review relevant
economic development plans prepared by economic de-
velopment and local planning agencies.

Consultant will conduct an economic impact analysis us-
ing IMPLAN economic multipliers (or other sources if de-
sired). The analysis will consider the short-term con-
struction benefits as well as the long-term transportation
efficiencies generated by the project. Economic impacts
will be reported in terms of Gross Regional Product,
jobs, and personal income.

Consultant will combine this information with the truck
performance information and the B/C analysis results of

18-21 GHD COMPANY/E11/040419_ryk
NVTA objective 1

the CMCP improvements and prepare a technical mem-
orandum describing the assumptions and analyses used
to develop the economic development and return on in-

vestment potential of the CMCP improvements.

Efficient Land Use

Consultant will analyze change in modal choice access
relative to commercial and/or mixed-use POI based on
the LTS pedestrian/bicycle connectivity analysis (See
Active Transportation Connectivity LTS Analysis).

3.4.2 Benefit-Cost Analysis

Per the Smart Mobility Framework (SMF), Consultant
will evaluate each CMCP corridor improvement across
each performance metrics and establish a relationship
with the following six SMF objectives:

Location Efficiency
Reliable Mobility

Health and Safety
Environmental Stewardship
Social Equity

Robust Economy

Ok wh

The Consultant will develop planning level cost esti-
mates for each project or program, including costs to
build facilities or acquire program materials, annual op-
eration and maintenance costs.

The holistic metric will be Benefit-Cost (i.e., return on in-
vestment). The Benefit-Cost Assessment for the CMCP
will include the following analyses:

o Monetized benefits for Benefit-Cost based on
the 2016 Caltrans Parameters of Societal Costs.
All MOEs amendable to benefit monetization will
be incorporated into the Benefit-Cost assess-
ment.

e Non-Monetized benefits for measures that are
expressed as indices or rates that are not
amendable to monetization. These include the
National Performance Management Rule (PM1)
metrics and accessibility indices/scores gener-
ated by the Level of Traffic Stress analyses.

e Non-Monetized benefits of other regional as-
sessments that speak to state/federal transpor-

Page 14 of 108
72



tation planning objectives. These include envi-
ronmental justice; economic development; cli-
mate change vulnerability; and emerging tech-
nologies.

Benefits will be monetized based the societal cost infor-
mation from Caltrans 2016 Economic Parameters. The
latter information informs the Caltrans Cal-B/C analysis
tool as well as other benefit-cost analysis tools including
the HSIP Analyzer and the SB-1 Emissions Calculator.
Monetized benefits will be combined with currently avail-
able planning level improvement cost opinions. Benefit-
cost estimates will be computed for the CMCP improve-
ments. All quantitative benefits will be annualized and
projected to 2040 (reflects a 20-year design life).

Equal attention will be given to documenting the benefi-
cial outcomes of measures not directly reflected in the
Benefit-Cost assessment of the CMCP. These include:
CMCP Consistency (with other existing plans and poli-
cies per products developed in Task 3); CMCP Policy
Consistency (NVTA, Cities of Napa, American Canyon,
County of Napa, and Caltrans); Environmental/Institu-
tional Sensitivity (beyond air quality which will be re-
flected in the B-C); and, Community Acceptance (based
on the community engagement process).

Based on the B-C results and plan/policy consistency
assessments, projects will be selected for implementa-
tion and prioritized based on their ability to achieve a
balanced set of transportation, environmental, and com-
munity access improvements and community input. This
will form the basis of the preferred corridor concept.

The Consultant and SWG will develop, and the Stake-
holders, TAC, and NVTA Board will review, a menu of
proposed physical improvements and programs that can
advance improvements in the corridor. The menu will in-
clude existing projects or programs that have not been
fully implemented as well as near-term, mid-term and
long-term projects.

The Consultant will develop a matrix to determine the
ability of each existing or new project to advance the
framework and to improve the corridor by advancing one
or more of the SMF (6) objectives. The matrix will list
short, mid and long-term projects, develop an optimized

18-21 GHD COMPANY/E11/040419_ryk
NVTA objective 1

order of delivery, and rate projects based on how well
the project accomplishes the above stated goals.

3.5 - Corridor Improvement Implementation Plan
Consultant will develop a Corridor Improvement Imple-
mentation Plan, covering the following topics for recom-
mended programs and projects:

Project Deliverability
Congestion Relief
Air Quality

Safety Improvements
Accessibility

Efficient Land Use

o) OB WN —~
—_— — — — ~— ~—

All these topics will be informed by the analysis and doc-
umentation developed as part of Task 3.4.

Consultant will also develop an assessment of funding
options and strategies for implementation. This will en-
tail identifying a list of potential funding sources that will
match the recommended projects/programs to applica-
ble funding sources. This will include an assessment of
NVTA's financially constrained Regional Transportation
Plan and what, if any, revenue capacity exists or can be
reasonably assumed that could provide funding capacity
for any of the proposed improvements of the preferred
corridor concept.

The Consultant will identify opportunities for multi-juris-
dictional programs or projects. This will include listing
the affected jurisdictions and key agency stakeholders
that should be consulted. Consultant will also identify
implementation mechanisms, public/private partner-
ships, and additional project/program phasing strategies
that should be considered together with the phased
groupings of short-term (1-2 years) mid-term (3-5 years)
and long-term (beyond 5 years) improvements.

Based on the information developed as part of Task 3.4,
Consultant shall develop an Economic Impact Analysis
of the proposed improvements. The economic impact
analysis should include the following:

1) Use of construction cost estimates and pro-
jected gains in worker productivity and reduced
delays/congestion and possible net tourism
gains(such as transient occupancy tax revenue)

Page 15 of 108
73



2) Impacts to goods movement and freight

3) Direct Impacts and estimated employment
changes from budget dollars to be spent

4) Induced and indirect impacts on business reve-
nues and employment

5) State and local tax gains

Consultant and SWG will prepare, and the Stakehold-
ers, TAC, and NVTA Board will review, a draft imple-
mentation plan for corridor improvement projects and
programs to address the study's varied objectives. The
implementation plan will recommend steps for immedi-
ate, short-term (1 -2 years), mid-term (3-5 years) and
long-term (beyond 5 years) implementation. The imple-
mentation plan will provide an estimated project delivery
schedule for key improvements, evaluate project readi-
ness, identify a funding strategy of existing and potential
new funds available to initiate and operate the recom-
mended programs and projects, and will recommend a
governance option for the multijurisdictional projects or
programs.

Deliverables:

e Model Forecast Technical Memorandum

e Baseline, Opening Day and Design Year Vol-
ume Sets

e VISSIM Model Baseline Validation Memoran-
dum

e Electronic files of SNABM and VISSIM Modeling
Runs

e VISSIM Micro-simulation Operations Model Cal-
ibration/Validation Memorandum

e Micro-simulation Results Roadway Performance
Summary

o Travel Time Reliability Analysis Results Perfor-
mance Summary

e Vehicle Collision Reduction Analysis Perfor-
mance Summary

e Pedestrian/Bicycle Collision Analysis Perfor-
mance Summary

e Active Transportation LTS Connectivity Analysis
Summary

o Active Transportation Mode Share Shift Analy-
sis Summary

e Transit Accessibility Analysis Performance
Summary

e Emissions Analysis Performance Summary

18-21 GHD COMPANY/E11/040419_ryk
NVTA objective 1

o Benefit Burden Analysis Summary

Freight Reliability Throughput Analysis Perfor-
mance Summary

Climate Adaptation Summary

Planning Level Cost Estimates

Benefit-Cost Assessment Summary

List of Phased Improvements for Implementa-
tion

e |mplementation

e Economic Analysis Memorandum

e Implementation Plan

Task 4 - Final Plan and Public Meeting
4.1 - Draft and Final Plan

Administrative Draft CMCP

Based on the data collected, public input received and
technical analyses performed, Consultant will prepare
an Administrative Draft of the CMCP for early internal

review. Consultant will prepare the Draft CMCP based
on one consolidated list of comments received on the

Administrative Draft CMCP.

Draft CMCP
Consultant will develop the Draft CMCP for distribution
to agencies, stakeholders and the public.

Final CMCP
Consultant will prepare the Final CMCP based on one

consolidated list of comments received on the Draft
CMCP.

4.2 - Public Meeting

Public Meetin
Consultant will prepare a PPT presentation and present

the Final CMCP to the NVTA Board as a Noticed Public
Meeting.

Deliverables:
e Administrative Draft, Draft and Final CMCP
e Preparation and Presentation of the Final Plan
to the NVTA Board

Page 16 of 108
74



Project Team Budget and Hours Summary

2 - -
(@) |5} 5}
T S < E T s S 5
22 | 5 FEAEIREANNA |
Task Description (Ig (Ig E E 8 :c;’ S.% E E
Task 1 Project Startup
1.1 Project Management and Coordination 20 $ 4,557 - % - - $ -
1.2 Project Kick-Off Meeting 18 $ 4,065 - % - 8 $ 1,200
1.3 Bi-Weekly Conference Calls 12 $ 2,734 - % - 8 $ 1,200
1.4 Data Retrieval / Processing / Review 96 $ 11,531 4 % 620 4 $ 480
Task 2 Ongoing Stakeholder and Community Outreach and Project Oversight
2.1 Prepare a Draft and Final Public Outreach Plan 4 % 911 = | S - 28 $ 3,560
2.2 Stakeholder/Jurisdictional Meetings 24 $ 5,115 = |8 - 36 $ 4,800 m
2.3 Committee Meetings 24 $ 5,468 - $ - 8 $ 1,200
2.4 Public Meetings 28 $ 5492 - % - 86 $ 11,600
2.5 Collateral Outreach Materials 52 $ 6,325 - $ - 68 $ 8,600
2.6 Public Outreach Summary Report 8 $ 1,646 - % - 52 $ 6,280 m
Task 3 Develop Plan Components
3.1 Evaluate Opportunities, Develop Corridor Plan Framework and Literature Review 36 $ 5,410 2 $ 420 - $ -
3.2 Summarize Corridor Existing Studies and Plans 44 $ 5,769 4 % 840 - 3 = m
3.3 Model Future Traffic Projections 104 $ 14,574 112 $ 21,760 - 3 =
3.4 Program and Project identification 528 $ 62,627 104 $ 17,440 - $ -
3.5 Corridor improvement Implementation Plan 142 $ 22,724 - % - - $ -
Task 4 Final Plan and Public Meeting
4.1 Prepare Administrative Draft, Draft, and Final Plan 129 $ 25,147 16 $ 2,480 - 3 =
4.2 Present Final Plan to NVTA Board 16 $ 3,292 s - 8 $ 1,200
Total Hours 1,285 242 306 [ 1833|s - |
Social Pinpoint Direct Cost $ 2,500 $ - N - [s 2,500
Outreach Materials Direct Cost (Project Cards, Project Logo, Materials) $ 1,500 $ = $ 2,000 -
Travel/Lodging Direct Cost $ 1,000 $ = $ - -
Economic Advisory Role by Urban Economics $ 1,955 $ - A (5 1,955
. 3 G g 2
@ & s @

18-21 GHD COMPANY/E11/040419_ryk

Page 17 of 108
75

Objective 1 Budget_Revised.xlsx



Kamesh Vedula

Principal in
Charge

Task Description
Task 1 Project Startup
1.1 Project Management and Coordination
1.2 Project Kick-Off Meeting 6
1.3 Bi-Weekly Conference Calls
1.4 Data Retrieval / Processing / Review
Task 2 Ongoing Stakeholder and Community Outreach and Project Oversight
2.1 Prepare a Draft and Final Public Outreach Plan
2.2 Stakeholder/Jurisdictional Meetings
2.3 Committee Meetings
2.4 Public Meetings
2.5 Collateral Outreach Materials
2.6 Public Outreach Summary Report
Task 3 Develop Plan Components
3.1 Evaluate Opportunities, Develop Corridor Plan Framework and Literature Review
3.2 Summarize Corridor Existing Studies and Plans

3.3 Model Future Traffic Projections 4
3.4 Program and Project identification 4
3.5 Corridor improvement Implementation Plan 4

Task 4 Final Plan and Public Meeting
4.1 Prepare Administrative Draft, Draft, and Final Plan
4.2 Present Final Plan to NVTA Board
Total Hours 18

Social Pinpoint Direct Cost

Outreach Materials Direct Cost (Project Cards, Project Logo, Materials)
Travel/Lodging Direct Cost

Economic Advisory Role by Urban Economics

4,788

$

18-21 GHD COMPANY/E11/040419_ryk

Jim Damkowitch
Lindsey Van

Technical

230 0

$ 52,401

Rich Krumholz
Ross Ainsworth

Technical

4 10
8 12
12 22
To) <
@ <
0 <
< ©
© ©

Page 18 of 108
76

Technical

Jerry Champa

24

24

5,878

$

16

B

NN
NS

24

142

$ 26,083

Senior
Transportation

Anderson

Engineer

Transportation
Engineer

Dan Kehrer

Isenhower

Operations

80
60

140

15,978

$

Transportation

Erin Gibbs

100

100

10,008

$

Southern

22

10
16

100
30

40

218

$ 24,887

Transportation

30

40

100

20

194

18,275

$

Zach Stinger

Transportation
Analyst

24

10
16

100
30

5

185

18,062

$

& B P P

)
—
(%]
o
O
+—
(&S]
]
o=
(@]
—
Q
i
+=
O

2,500
1,500
1,000
1,955

6,955

$

GHD Total Hours

20
18
12
96

24
24
28
52

36
44
104
528
142

129
16

1,285

©* # (AR AR AR AR LA AR A o LR AR A

LR T

GHD Total Cost

4,557
4,065
2,734
11,531

911
5,115
5,468
5,492
6,325
1,646

5,410
5,769
14,574
62,627
22,724

25,147
3,292

2,500
1,500
1,000
1,955

$ 194,342

Objective 1 Budget_Revised.xIsx



£ £ £ £
XS]X"pas1ady 123png [ aa1122[G0)
8 o o S
(3] N [=2] H (3]
3 ] 3 3 S
- $ 1509 10241q Buibpo/jenel |
- $ (sjeusieyy ‘oboT 108loid ‘spied 108loid) 10D 19841 S|eusiel\ yoeannQ
- $ }s09 j0a11Qg Juloduld [e1o0S
99 9 ClLlL  SINOH |ejo]
- $ - pieog V1AN O} Ug[d |eul] jussald ¢’
08v'c $ 9l 8 8 ueld [euld pue ‘Yeiq ‘Yeiq sAjessiulwpy aledald L'y
bunaayy o211qnd pue uejd jeuld p ySel
- $ - ue|d uonejusws|dw| Juswaroidwi JOpLIOD G'E
orv'ZL ¢ w0l (017 (017 144 uoneonuapl Josfoid pue weibold ¢
09tz ¢ 21l 9l 9l 08 suopoafoid olyel] ainind [9pPoW £°¢
or8 $ v ¥ sue|d pue salpns bunsixg JopLI0) dzuewwns g'¢
(YA $ 2 2 MBINSY 8INjelali] pue yiomawelH ue|d Jopuio) dojpaaq ‘saniunuoddQ syenjeas |°¢
sjuauodwio) uejqd dojaraqg ¢ ysel
- $ - uoday Alewwng yoeannQ 2lgqnd 92
- $ - S|elSie|N yoeannQ [elsje|o] G'¢
- $ - sbunes|\ 2lland '
- $ - sbunes|y eaniwwo) ¢
- $ - sbupnes|y [euonoIpsUNr/IdploysNelS Z2°2
- $ - ue|d yoeannQ aliqnd [euld pue yeiq e atedaid |'g
ybisianQ 199loiq pue yseaynQ Ajunwiwio) pue iapjoyayels burobup g ysel
029 $ v 14 4 MaINSY / Buissao0ld / [BASHISY Bleq ')
- $ - s|leQ @oualajuo) Apeapn-ig €1
- $ - Bunesiy HO-Mo1y 108loid 'L
- $ - uoleuiploo) pue Juswabeuely 198loid ||

dnyiejs josfoid | ysel
uonduosaq ysel

}so) |ejol 913
Juapisald

m
-
@
-
o
-
=
I
o
c
@

Bueyz ui|iuspisaid a2iA

oel] aduaimen]

(913) dnoug uoneyodsues) ayg

Page 19 of 108
77

18-21 GHD COMPANY/E11/040419_ryk



XS]X'pasInay ja3png [ aa11221q0)

L - L - L L

B -

N w ~ (3] (=2} ©

- w Y 0 ° ° °

N [=} [= N (= (= (=}

o (<2} o o o o o
- ¢ 1509 10241 Buibpo/janel )

0002 $ 0002 (s|euale|y) 109 10811 S|eudleN yoeanno
- $ 1809 108410 Wloduld |elo0s
ce 99 oY 17 021  SINOH [ejoL
8 8 pJeog VLAN O} ue|d |[eul{ jussald 'y

- ue|d |euld pue ‘Yeiq ‘Yeiq aAnejsiuiwpy asedaid |y
bunoaay 211qnd pue ue|d |euld p YSelL
- ue|d uonejuswsaldw| Juswanoidwi JOpLIo) G'¢
- uoneaiiuapl 108foid pue weibold '€
- suoioslold ouel] aining |SpoN €€
- sue|d pue saipn)g Bunsix3 Jopuio) azuewwns g's
- MBIASY BINnjelali] pue yJomaweld ueld Jopuio) dojeaaq ‘seniunuoddQ ajenieas |°g
sjuauodwo) ue|d dojarag ¢ ysel

0829 4] 0c 14 14 2l 2l Hoday Alewwng yoeasnQ 21qnd 9°¢
009°8 (14 (14 (14 8 S|eusie ydeanQ [elsie|o] G'¢
009°L1 98 0€ 8 8 oy sbunes|\ dlland '
002Z°L 8 8 sbuneay eapIwWo) €7
008y 9¢€ cl e sbunesy\ |euonoIpsLINC/iap|oyaxels g'g
095°¢ 8¢ 8 8 8 14 ue|d yoeannQ 2lland [eul4 pue jeiq e asedald L'z
ybiIsianQ jo9loid pue yoeanpno Ajunwiwo?) pue Japjoysyels buiobup g ysel

08Yy 14 14 MBINDY / Buissadold / |eAsllay eleq 'L
00zZ°L 8 8 s||eD 9ousIau0) ApBap-ig €1

8 8 Buneay JO-o1y 108foid 2|

& h LR P hh PR SR HH P RHR &N R
(oo}
©

002'L
- - uoljeuIpJoo) pue jJuswabeuel 10sfoid ||
dnyiejs jo9foid | ysel
uonduosaq ysel

S80INIBS
uone|suel |

}soQ |ejol SO

A
@
e 3
- > ()
] o S
- 3 5
= 5 o
= S
c
=
(']

JuUlld |[lepud)|sebeuep dse |

19]|IIN dusjor
Appni9o aluuy
S9||BA BIAJIS
uosjanwes o3

(SOY) S991A19S JUBWUIBAOL) euolbay

Page 20 of 108
78

18-21 GHD COMPANY/E11/040419_ryk



- - = SR 29 through American Canyon PID

SCOPE OF WORK: OBJECTIVE 2

The following Scope of work is for Object 2 of Napa Valley Transportation Authority’s (NVTA) State Route
(SR) 29 Comprehensive Multimodal Corridor Plan and Project Initiation Document (PID) for SR 29 through
American Canyon. GHD will begin this phase of work upon written notice to proceed from NVTA. It is as-
sumed this task will partially overlap with the work being performed in Object 1: the update to the SR 29
Gateway Corridor Plan. It is recommended this scope and fee be revisited to ensure it meets the needs of
the findings of Objective 1 prior to that start of work.

Task 1: Project Management, Coordination
and Quality Control

GHD Inc. (GHD) will provide project management, coordination with and between the County and key pro-
ject stakeholders.

1.1 Project Management & Quality Control

GHD will perform the following duties:

« Provide Project Quality Control/Quality Assurance

« Supervise, coordinate and monitor procedures for preparation of the PID, and other supporting
studies consistent with and in conformance to the guidelines published in Caltrans “Project De-
velopment Procedures Manual” (PDPM)

« Coordinate and monitor deliverables, project submittals to and reviews by the Project Develop-
ment Team (PDT)

« On-going correspondence and communication with NVTA’s and Caltran’s project managers.

« General correspondence, monthly progress reports, invoicing, and project schedule updates.

1.2 Project Meetings & Agency Coordination

Initial Project Meeting (Pre-PID Meeting)

GHD will coordinate the Pre-PID meeting with NVTA, City, County, and Caltrans staff in accordance with
the PDPM. Among the purposes of the meeting will be to ensure mutual understanding of the intended pro-
cess, its objectives, milestones, and products, and to refine the work program and project schedule where
necessary. This meeting will also identify necessary members of the PDT, including all necessary stake-
holders.

PDT Meetings
Up to four (4) PDT meetings are assumed through completion of the PID. GHD will lead each of these

meetings and will provide all PDT meeting coordination and oversight, including the preparation of meeting
minutes summarizing actions taken, actions to be taken, responsible party, and resolution date.

Agency Coordination
In addition to the four formal PDT meetings, the scope assumes ten (10) Webex or conference calls with
the NVTA, Caltrans, and stakeholders as appropriate to ensure timely delivering of the PID.

Page 1 of 9 -
18-21 GHD COMPANY/E11/040419_ryk Page 21 of 108
79



- - = SR 29 through American Canyon PID

1.3 - Public Information Open House (1)

GHD will conduct one (1) public information open house. This open house will be held as the project ap-
proaches completion, prior to the preparation of the Draft PID.

The purpose of this meeting is to present the project’s Purpose and Need and the alternatives being con-
sidered. It is assumed NVTA and City/County staff will conduct the presentations; however, GHD will assist
in the preparation of meeting presentation material. GHD will prepare and produce handouts, a meeting no-
tice project fact sheets, agendas, comment sheets, and other print materials. Up to two (2) GHD staff will
also attend the meeting.

GHD will take the input received at the public meeting and summarize it in the Draft PID as public com-
ments.

It is assumed NVTA and/or the City will schedule the public open house and make arrangements for a facil-
ity.

GHD will assist in the preparation of public notifications, but it is assumed NVTA and/or the City/County will
arrange to release the notices to the appropriate media channels and direct mail to the project database.

1.4 - Project Presentations (1)

GHD will available to assist NVTA, Country and/or City make up to one (1) public presentation appropriate.
It is assumed NVTA and City/County staff will conduct presentations; however, GHD will assist in the prep-
aration of meeting presentation material. For budgeting purposes, it is assumed that any other meetings or
presentations given by NVTA, City or County staff will utilize materials and exhibits prepared as part of the
other tasks associated with this the scope and fee and no additional exhibits or materials will be prepared
by GHD.

Task 2: Preliminary Research/Data Collec-
tion and Base Mapping

2.1 Preliminary Research/Data Collection

Under this task, existing data and information for the project and project area will be assembled. The types

of information collected will include (but not be limited to) existing mapping, as built plans, utility maps, rec-

ord improvement drawings and reports, and existing data including County and Caltrans collision data, right
of way information, records maps, title information, utility information, etc. The budget assumes all data will

be provided by NVTA, Caltrans, City of American Canyon, and other stakeholders.

Under this task, GHD will mapping/as-built request letters for all utilities in the area for NVTA to place on
letterhead and send to the utility purveyors.

Page 2 of 9 -
18-21 GHD COMPANY/E11/040419_ryk Page 22 of 108
80



- - = SR 29 through American Canyon PID

2.2 Preliminary Base Mapping

For this preliminary phase of the project, topographic survey is not included in this scope of services. The
base mapping will be comprised of a scaled (non ortho-rectified) aerial color photo mosaic obtained from
readily available sources. The base mapping will be prepared at a scale of 1’=500", with vertical information
developed from available sources including, but not limited available GIS databases and InterMap.

Existing right of way and property information will also be developed from available sources including, but
not limited available GIS databases, right-of-way record maps and as-built plans. Utility information ob-
tained from task 2.1 will be delineated on the base maps.

GHD will also prepare a Survey Mapping Needs for PSR-PDS Questionnaire and submit the questionnaire
to Caltrans for review and comment. This scope assumes that no field surveys or fieldwork will be required.

2.3 Existing Study Area Environmental Constraints

GHD will review all existing documentation, including the Broadway District Specific Plan — Environmental
Impact Analysis Section 03-00, Watson Ranch EIR and Napa Pipe EIR and will perform database reviews
of the project corridor, and gather scoping level information on the following topics:

e Land use (including existing and future land uses; consistency with state, regional, trial, and
local plans; parks and recreation; growth; farmlands; community character and cohesion; relo-
cations; environmental justice issues; and utilities/emergency services/public facilities)
Visual/aesthetics

Historic/cultural resources

Hydrology and floodplains

Water quality and stormwater runoff

Geology and soils

Paleontology

Hazardous waste/materials (a Phase | Initial Site Assessment (ISA) will be prepared by as part
of determining the existing study area environmental constraints; the ISA study will be pre-
pared to identify potential hazardous waste sites and that may have an impact along the study
corridor quality within the project limits)

Air quality, energy and climate change

Noise and vibration

Biological resources, section 4(f) properties

Cumulative impacts

Opportunities for context sensitive solutions

The draft ISA will be submitted to NVTA and Caltrans for review and comment. Comments will be incorpo-
rated into a final ISA that will be submitted to the County and Caltrans.

The environmental constraints and conditions data will be used in a subsequent task to develop the PEAR.

Page 30of 9 -
18-21 GHD COMPANY/E11/040419_ryk Page 23 of 108
81



- - = SR 29 through American Canyon PID

Task 3: Purpose and Need Project Infor-
mation Form

GHD will prepare the Project Initiation Form (PIF) and ensure that all steps outlined in the Caltrans Pre-Pro-
ject Initiation Document (PID) Check List are met. Specifically, GHD will provide the following services.

3.1 Develop Purpose and Need Statement
GHD will prepare a Draft “Purpose and Need” statement for the project. The “Purpose and Need” statement

will be developed based on the study area deficiencies and constraints. A memorandum will be prepared
that states the project’s “Purpose and Need” and provided to the PDT for review, comment, and input.

3.2 Prepare Draft of the PIF
GHD will prepare the Draft PIF, which is to include details on:

Project description

Funding sources

Project schedule

Basic transportation deficiency

Project background

Project purpose and need

Proposed solutions or range of alternatives
Environmental issues/known concerns

Right of way concerns

System planning

Traffic data, accident data, alternative sketches
Preliminary contact list for Project Development Team members

Upon completion of the first draft of the PIF, GHD will submit it to NVTA'’s project manager and attend one
(1) virtual meeting with the NVTA staff to review the draft PIF, to discuss the information provided, and
other information that may be required from any of the stakeholders. Upon resolution of all comments and
questions, we will then make changes to draft PIF and prepare a second draft to be circulated to Caltrans,
County, and City prior to the official Pre-PID meeting.

3.3 - Prepare Final PIF

Following the Pre-PID meeting and upon receiving additional comments from the reviewing agencies, GHD
will prepare the final PIF for final approval.

Task 4: Traffic Study: Intersection Control
Evaluation (ICE) Step 1

Information from the corridor study will be summarized under this task.

Page 4 of 9 -
18-21 GHD COMPANY/E11/040419_ryk Page 24 of 108
82



- - = SR 29 through American Canyon PID

4.1 Step 1 ICE Summary

GHD will summarize the following information from the Objective 1 scope:

e Existing Safety Deficiencies. Current 3-year collision records in the form of collision sum-
mary reports, Statewide Integrated Traffic Records System (SWITRS) reports, Traffic Accident
Surveillance and Analysis System (TASAS) Tables, etc. will be reviewed within the study area
by roadway segment and at primary study area intersection to identify and discuss current
safety deficiencies.

o Existing Traffic Capacity and Level of Service. Traffic counts will be collected and the exist-
ing roadway and intersection LOS will be derived. The existing traffic conditions will be docu-
mented in a technical memorandum for review/comment by the PDT. Based on agency com-
ments, the existing LOS conditions analysis will be prepared for approval by Caltrans. GHD
will collect new intersection turn-movement counts, for the AM and PM peak hour periods, at
all intersections within the project boundary.

e Transit/Pedestrian/Bicycle Facilities. Existing transit providers and pedestrian and bicycle
facilities along the study corridor will be identified.

4.2 Traffic Modeling Forecasts

The regional travel demand model, with adjustments recommended by GHD and the PDT, will be used
to derive construction year and design year forecasts. It is assumed that no additional forecasting will
be required and an official forecast memorandum seeking Caltrans approval will not be needed and
therefore, is not included in this scope.

4.3 Evaluate Construction Year and Design Year Traffic Op-

erations
The “no build” traffic operations conditions will be derived. The alternatives selected for consideration in
the PSR-PDS (in other phases in this scope) will be analyzed to determine the delays, LOS, and
queues. Itis assumed that a model will be provided by NVTA for GHD’s use and will be sufficient for
developing the operations and not further modeling work will be required by GHD.

4.4 Intersection Control Evaluation (ICE) Step 1 and Traffic

Operations Report
GHD will use the traffic safety and operations analysis developed under this phase, along with preliminary
geometric designs and costs estimates developed in other phases in this scope, to complete an ICE Step 1
in accordance with the Caltrans TOPD. The ICE will address:

e Traffic capacity and operational modeling (Traffic Operations Report)

o Safety performance analysis

e Life-cycle economic analysis

e Service-life analysis

Page 50f 9 -
18-21 GHD COMPANY/E11/040419_ryk Page 25 of 108
83



- - = SR 29 through American Canyon PID

e Geometric design
o Costs

Task 5: Alternatives Development & Analysis

GHD will develop and evaluate up to thee (3) “build” alternatives and a no build alternative. The “build” al-
ternatives will be developed by GHD and in accordance with the findings of Object 1, the updated corridor
plan, and will ultimately meet or reduce transportation deficiencies and address the project purpose and
need. GHD will ensure the PDT is involved in the alternative development processes and will be consistent
with the Caltrans ICE policy, TOPD 13-02.

5.1 Develop Project Build Alternatives

GHD will prepare one PID level geometric designs for each of the three “build” alternatives. The geometric
designs will be developed in sufficient detail to evaluate costs, design standards, right of way impacts, utility
impacts, and environmental impacts.

For budgeting purposes is assumed one (1) draft submittal of the each alternative will be provided to NVTA,
comments will be reviewed and addressed. GHD will then prepare revised draft exhibits and submit those
to the PDT for review a comment. Comments will be addressed and one set of final draft exhibits will be
prepared for inclusion in the PID document.

It is assumed that electronic submittals of the geometric designs will be sufficient.

5.2 Preliminary Environmental Analysis Report (PEAR)
The PEAR that will be prepared for this project will include:

1. The Project Description, based on the conceptual alternatives being considered and developed
within Task 5.1

2. An analysis of potential environmental issues associated with each of the identified alternatives.
The analysis will include scope, schedule, and costs associated with the subsequent environmental
compliance process, and document the assumptions and risks used to develop them. This infor-
mation will be presented in a tabular format for easy comparison between the alternatives

3. Adiscussion of the anticipated environmental documentation and anticipated environmental com-
mitments needed for each alternative to comply with CEQA and NEPA requirements

4. An analysis of regulatory and agency permits likely to be needed for each project alternative

The PEAR will also consider the following topics, consistent with guidance set out in Caltrans’s PEAR
Handbook (2009) and the City’s preferred CEQA Checklist (based on Appendix G of the CEQA Guide-
lines):
e Land Use
o Existing and Future Land Use
o Consistency with State, Regional, and Local Plans

Page 6 of 9 -
18-21 GHD COMPANY/E11/040419_ryk Page 26 of 108
84



- - = SR 29 through American Canyon PID

o Parks and Recreation
e Growth
e Farmlands/Timberlands
e  Community Impacts
o Community Character and Cohesion
o Relocations
o Environmental Justice
o Utilities’/Emergency Services/Public Facilities
e Visual and Aesthetic Resources
e Historic and Cultural Resources
e Hydrology and Floodplain
e Water Quality and Stormwater Runoff
e (Geology, Soils, Seismic, and Topography
e Paleontology
e Hazardous Waste/Materials
e Air Quality
¢ Noise and Vibration
e Energy and Climate Change
e Biological Resources
e Section 4(f) and Section 6(f) Properties
e Cumulative Impacts
e Opportunities for Context Sensitive Solutions

The evaluation of these topics will be concise, yet will be discussed in sufficient detail to preliminarily as-
sess the need for further studies, analyses, or permits that may be required. Environmental issues antici-
pated to require more in-depth review include biological resources and community impacts. Other issues
(e.g., parks and recreation, Section 4(f) and 6(f) resources) are not expected to be implicated by the pro-
ject; the PEAR will very briefly document why further environmental analysis of these resources is not nec-
essary. The analysis will be based primarily on a review of existing documentation and databases. One (1)
general field review of the project area will be conducted, documenting existing conditions of the project
study area. This scope of work includes conducting a California Natural Diversity Database (CNDDB)
search of the project area, requesting a special-status species list from the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service
(USFWS), and conducting a cultural resources records search at the California Historical Resources Infor-
mation System’s (CHRIS) Northwest Information Center.

Page 7 of 9 -
18-21 GHD COMPANY/E11/040419_ryk Page 27 of 108
85



~ - = SR 29 through American Canyon PID

The PEAR will include all required attachments, including the PEAR Environmental Studies Checklist, Esti-
mated Resources by WBS Code, Schedule (Gantt Chart), and PEAR Environmental Commitments Cost
Estimate.

5.3 Design Standards

GHD will reference the Caltrans Design Information Bulletin (DIB) 78 Design Checklist based on the level of
detail developed for each build alternative to assist in identifying anticipated non-standard design features
that may deviate for the Highway Design Manual (HDM) design standards. The resulting list of anticipated
non-standard design features will be documented and discussed with the PDT. Caltrans will identify the
likelihood of approval of non-standard features.

5.4 Storm water Data Report (SWDR)

Based on the project build alternatives, GHD will prepare the PID level SWDR'’s. The scope assumes that
SWDR’s will be required for one “build” alternative. Draft SWDR's will be submitted to Caltrans for re-
view/comment. Comments will be incorporated and final SWDR’s will be prepared and submitted.

5.5 Right of Way Estimates

GHD will complete the “Conceptual Cost Estimate — Right of Way Component” for the three “build” alterna-
tives. The estimates will be completed using form 4-EX-8 of the Caltrans’ Right of Way manual. It is as-
sumed NVTA and/or other stakeholders will provide market values.

5.6 Develop Cost Estimates

GHD will develop PID level cost estimate for each “build” alternative per the PDPM. GHD will also develop
the estimated support cost that will be needed to complete PA/ED.

5.7 Develop Schedules

GHD will develop a schedule for delivery of major milestones of the PA/ED phase.

5.8 Project Risks

GHD will prepare a project risk register in accordance with Caltrans requirements. The risk registered will
be reviewed at each PDT meeting and updated as the project progresses. GHD will update and the Risk
Register will be included in the PID.

5.9 Life Cycle Cost Analysis (LCCA)

GHD will prepare a LCCA in accordance with the Caltrans policy. It is assumed that one round of reviews
will be sufficient to obtain approval of the LCCA.

Task 6: Project Study Report/Project Devel-
opment Support (PSR-PDS)

For budgeting purposes, it is assumed the appropriate PID document is a PSR-PDS. This task consists of

Page 8 of 9 -
18-21 GHD COMPANY/E11/040419_ryk Page 28 of 108
86



- - = SR 29 through American Canyon PID

preparing the draft and final PSR-PDS. The report preparation sequence will consist of preparing a draft
PSR-PDS for review by PDT members; then a draft PSR-PDS for district wide distribution within Caltrans;
then a draft final PSR-PDS for final review by the PDT; and then a final PSR-PDS submitted for Caltrans
approval. The scope assumes that FHWA oversight is not required.

6.1 Draft PSR-PDS

GHD will prepare a First Draft PSR-PDS for initial review by the PDT. The First Draft PSR-PDS will, at a
minimum, include all work completed in the previous project tasks. Up to fifteen (15) bound copies of the
Draft Report will be prepared and provided to the PDT for their review and comment.

6.2 Review Comments on the Draft PSR-PDS

Comments received from the PDT will be reviewed and any identified issues or concerns will be addressed.
It is assumed that a comment review meeting, if needed, will be conducted through a web-based meeting.
GHD will prepare a written response to all comments received.

6.3 Final Draft PSR-PDS

The Final Draft PSR-PDS will incorporate any comments received from the PDT. Up to fifteen (15) bound
copies of the Second Draft PSR-PDS will be prepared and provided for review and comment to the PDT
and to Caltrans for district-wide and headquarters circulation.

During the Final Draft PSR-PDS review by Caltrans, the scope assumes Caltrans will conduct a joint Safety
Review and Constructability Review meeting. GHD will attend the meeting to discuss the project with Cal-
trans’ functional employees. Comments from the meeting will be summarized and a response will be pre-
pared by GHD. The meeting response to comments will be distributed to the PDT and Caltrans.

6.4 Review Comments on the Final Draft PSR-PDS

Comments received on the Final Draft PSR-PDS will be reviewed and any identified issues or concerns will
be addressed. It is assumed that a comment review meeting, if needed, will be conducted through a web-
based meeting. GHD will prepare a written response to all comments received.

6.5 Final PSR-PDS

The Final PSR-PDS will be prepared upon resolution of all final comments and issues. One (1) copy of the
Final PSR-PDS will be submitted to Caltrans for final approval and signatures. It is estimated at this time
that GHD will be responsible for the reproduction of up to fifteen (15) bound copies of the approved PSR-
PDS.

Page 9 of 9 -
18-21 GHD COMPANY/E11/040419_ryk Page 29 of 108
87



Task Description
Task 1 Project Management, Coordination and Quality Control
1.1 Project Management & Quality Control
1.2 Project Meetings & Agency Coordination
1.3 Public Information Open House (1)
1.4 Project Presentations (1)
Task 2 Preliminary Research/Data Collection and Base Mapping
2.1 Preliminary Research/Data Collection
2.2 Preliminary Base Mapping
2.3 Existing Study Area Environmental Constraints

Task 3 Purpose and Need Project Information Form
3.1 Develop Purpose and Need Statement
3.2 Prepare Draft of the PIF
3.3 Prepare Final PIF
Task 4 Traffic Study: Intersection Control Evaluation (ICE) Step 1
4.1 Existing Transportation Conditions
4.2 Traffic Modeling Forecasts
4.3 Evaluate Construction Year and Design Year Traffic Operations
4.4 Intersection Control Evaluation (ICE) Step 1 and Traffic Operations Report
Task 5 Alternatives Development & Analysis
5.1 Develop Project Build Alternatives
5.2 Environmental Analysis - Preliminary Environmental Analysis Report (PEAR)
5.3 Design Standards
5.4 Storm Water Data Report (SWDR)
5.5 Right of Way Estimates
5.6 Develop Cost Estimates
5.7 Develop Schedules
5.8 Project Risks
5.9 Life Cycle Cost Analysis (LCCA)
Task 6 Project Study Report/Project Development Support (PSR-PDS)
6.1 First Draft PSR-PDS
6.2 Review Comments on the First Draft PSR-PDS
6.3 Second Draft PDS-PDS
6.4 Review Comments on the Second Draft PSR-PDS
6.5 Final PSR-PDS
Total Hours
Printed/Pulished Material/lmagry Costs
Travel/Lodging Direct Cost

18-21 GHD COMPANY/E11/040419_ryk

Kamesh Vedula

Principal in
Charge

A BhoOODN

(o))

38

Jim Damkowitch

N B

15

Lindsey Van

Technical

80

80

16
8

NN

N OO

NN O

=
(o2}

= =
Ao ~NMNE

W NO DS~ O

319

Page 30 of 108
88

Ross Ainsworth

40

40

Jay Walter

Caltrans

16

16

Anderson

Transportation
Engineer

24
16
6

Trenton Hoffman

Transportation
Engineer

16
16
10

24
12
8

32

24
32

120

12
32
40
52

24

96
40
72
20
16
714

Isenhower
Brian Howard

Engineer
Environmental [Brian Bacciarini

Environmental [Ryan Crawford

%)
&
0
@)
O
=
1}
()
=
(@]
P
Q
=
=
©)

8 8 4
2
4
20 $ 2,500.00
32
32 60
2
72
60
80
72
16
32 48 $ 500.00
1
2
4 2
2 1
2 2
300 52 104 112
$ 3,500
$ 5,000
o
o
L0
[°9)
&

2
S »
o o
I O
[ g
(@] (@]
= [
o o
T T
o o
128 $ 30,199
164 $ 31,657
52 $ 9,009
31 $ 5435
2550 $ 10,462
50 $ 8,750
112 $ 18,650
10 $ 2111
25 $ 4041
8 $ 1271
128 $ 16,874
78 $ 10,828
118 $ 15,056
148 $ 20,894
234 $ 36,886
586 $ 15,073
20 $ 2,99
60 $ 9,159
58 $ 8407
82 $ 12,076
13 $ 2,648
12 $ 2,290
48 $ 7,531
143 $ 20,558
55 $ 7,700
98 $ 13,759
26 $ 3,638
23 $ 3341
$ 3,500
$ 5,000
o o0}
(e} o
o ~
5 o
(%2}
™
&+

Objective 2_Budget Revised.xIsx



EXHIBIT A

P
]

Proposal for

SR 29 Comprehensive
Multimodal Corridor
Plan and Project
Initiation Document
for SR through
American Canyon

JUNLONULS MIN

V3dY Q3ENISIa WLOL -

S3YOV §'L8

By & Prli"()JECT\w;Eii‘
Napa Valley [ LOCATION &
' :
Transportation i AT
Authority

SiveradoTrall/
Lake Berryessa
Gateway

Jim Damkowitch
Project Manager
March 4, 2019

] S T N | ‘e i 0'“ f 5

City Center —-f T r a 4 she

9.‘.".-%"'@\"Page!-3'1'- 108> / <
89

18-21 GHD COMPANY/E11/040419



GHD

March 4, 2019

Ms. Rebecca Schenck
Transportation Planner

Napa Valley Transportation Authority
625 Burnell Street

Napa, CA 94559

RE: Proposal for SR 29 Comprehensive Multimodal Corridor Plan and Project Initiation Document
for State Route 29 through American Canyon

GHD is a full service transportation engineering and planning firm engaged in multimodal planning and
engineering, congestion management, transportation technology, and traffic modeling. GHD is intimately
familiar with state and federal transportation funding programs and have existing working relationships
with Caltrans District 4 and California Transportation Commission (CTC) staff. We have direct experience
developing performance-based corridor analyses consistent with the Smart Mobility Framework and
Senate Bill 1 (SB 1) Solutions for Congested Corridors Program (SCCP) requirements. Our approach to
Objective 1 will yield a plan within 10 months that provides all the quantitative rubrics to holistically
support an SCCP Cycle 2 grant application. It will also be scalable to allow individual improvements or
packages of improvements to be seamlessly parsed out if pursuing other competitive grant programs
(e.g., SB 1 SCP, SB 1 LPP, ATP, HSIP, etc.) is desired. GHD also brings ample experience with the
Caltrans Project Approval Process and the development of a PID to address Objective 2 of this RFP.

GHD has strategically formed a multidisciplinary team comprised of Elite Transportation Group, and
Regional Government Services. GHD has also procured Bob Spencer of Urban Economics for an as-
needed advisory role for the economic analysis. Bob brings over 30 years of experience of macro-
economic experience. This team approach has been used in other like-corridor studies by our Project
Manager Jim Damkowitch with exemplary success. Our team’s key strengths include:

« Local Experience. The GHD team has decades of direct experience working in the Napa region and
is familiar with the participating agencies including Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA),
Caltrans District 4, the City, and County of Napa. GHD is currently developing the Imola Avenue
Complete Street Improvement Plan and through our work with the City of American Canyon and
Caltrans District 4 have completed two integrated corridor ITS improvement projects on other
portions of SR 29 - all applicable studies to this effort. The GHD team will take full advantage of
these and other studies of relevance specifically the collateral deliverables developed as part of the
existing 2014 Gateway Plan to update the Study Corridor “blueprint” for funding the highest-value
improvements.

« Performance-Based Corridor Planning Experience. GHD provides direct experience developing
system and project-level performance metrics for supporting corridor plans. This includes successful
application of the Smart Mobility Framework and all requisite analysis tools and software that inform
competitive funding grants.

943 Reserv&Drive él%e 100 Roseville C? 95678 USA T+1916 782 7688 F +1 916 782 8689 W www.ghd.com
18-21 GHD COMPANY/E11

040419 _ryk Page 32 of 10
90


http://www.ghd.com/

GHD

« Strong Public Outreach. The GHD team specializes in interagency consultation required to
achieve consensus on selecting a transportation improvement program/package for funding and
public outreach that supports the identified package. The GHD team has applied this expertise in
developing priority transportation improvement packages for four Cycle | SCCP grant applications
as well as expenditure plans for sales tax measures throughout the state.

. Congestion Management Program/Process Expertise. Jim Damkowitch, GHD’s Project
Manager, is GHD’s West Coast Congestion Management Process (CMP) Practice Leader. He has
more than 25 years of experience in developing/implementing/administering state and federal
congestion management programs/processes. Prior to becoming a consultant, Jim served for 13
years (1992-2005) as Program/Project Manager for the Santa Barbara County Congestion
Management Program. As a consultant he has managed over 10 state/federal CMP related studies/
updates for CMA's around the state.

« Proven Project Manager. Project Manager Jim Damkowitch (a recent GHD hire) brings over 25
years of experience in multi-modal corridor planning. Jim has managed many high-profile corridor
studies around the state including the US 101 in Santa Barbara and San Luis Obispo Counties, SR
68 in Monterey County and the I-580 in the Bay Area and, has either managed or provided direct
technical support to four Cycle | SCCP grant applications.

GHD recognizes that developing a plan that addresses the key congestion relief and safety objectives
of the SR 29 corridor while simultaneously engendering community support may be challenge.
However, it is nothing compared to the challenge of procuring future funding to implement the plan
once it has been completed. Both federal and state transportation funding is currently driven by
performance based return-on-investment criteria. Our goal is to develop a plan that best positions
NVTA and its member agencies for implementation. We understand that what gets measured gets
funded and what gets funded gets implemented.

Sincerely,

GHD

(dim Damkowitch Kamesh Vedula, PE, TE
Project Manager Principal-in-Charge
jim.damkowitch@ghd.com kamesh.vedula@ghd.com

Mr. Vedula, a firm Principal, has the authority to negotiate on behalf of and to contractually bind GHD
for this proposal may be contacted during the period of proposal evaluation.

GHD is in receipt of the Q&A dated February 19, 2019 and Addendum 1 dated February 14, 2019.

943 Reserv&Drive él%e 100 Roseville C? 95678 USA T+1916 782 7688 F +1 916 782 8689 W www.ghd.com
18-21 GHD COMPANY/E11

040419 _ryk Page 33 of 10
91


http://www.ghd.com/

Table of
Contents

Project Understanding
Understanding
Scope of Work Objective 1
Scope of Work Objective 2
Schedule Objective 1
Schedule Objective 2
Budgets Objective 1 & 2 separate sealed envelope

Experience and Qualifications

Project Experience
Project Team Organization
Organizational Chart

Staff Resumes

P8353pro001.pub

18-21 GHD COMPANY/E11/040419_ryk Page 34 of 108
92




Project Understanding

The State Route 29 Comprehensive Multimodal Corridor
Plan (CMCP) is a complex multimodal performance-based
corridor planning effort, requiring consideration of every
available travel mode currently in use along the State Route
(SR) 29 corridor. The purpose of this effort is to prioritize
currently planned/programmed improvements in the corri-
dor and “infuse” more multimodal improvements, parallel
capacity improvements, and Integrated Corridor Manage-
ment (ICM) strategies to develop a phased multimodal
“‘package” of improvements that can be competitive when
submitted for funding consideration under Solutions for
Congested Corridor Program Cycle 2 grant application. To
be competitive, the CMCP must analyze and document the
benefits of the preferred improvement package and trans-
late these benefits into a quantified return on investment
benefit-cost metric.

SR 29 connects the cities of Napa and American Canyon
between its interchanges of Imola Avenue to the north and
SR 37 to the south. The corridor covers approximately 11.5
miles with portions of parallel capacity provided by local
roads including Delvin Road to the west and Newell Drive
and Kelly Road to the east. This project area will be re-
ferred to the “study corridor” herein.

The Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA), the cities
of Napa, American Canyon and Vallejo, the County of Na-
pa, and Caltrans District 4 are all key stakeholders of the
CMCP. For the GHD team to properly coordinate our
efforts with these agencies, we must understand the roles
and responsibilities of each and how each will influence and
provide guidance for the development and/or implementa-
tion of all or part of the project elements identified.

As the designated Congestion Management Agency (CMA)
and Transportation Management Area (TMA) for Napa
County, NVTA is responsible for addressing the State and
Federal congestion management requirements for Napa
County. NVTA also serves as the regional transportation
planning agency for Napa County and is responsible for all
its’ multimodal transportation planning and programming
requirements. NVTA coordinates with the Metropolitan
Transportation Commission (MTC) to address all Federal
transportation planning/programming requirements includ-
ing compliance with the Federal Congestion Management
Process and Federal Performance Management Rule.

With voter approval of Measure T in 2017, NVTA now ad-

ministers funding generated by a 1/2 cent sales tax for local
streets and roads. The cities of Napa and American Canyon
and Napa County are among the recipients of Measure T
funds. These jurisdictions are served and directly interface
with SR 29 while also owning and maintaining local road-
ways that serve as parallel capacity to SR 29 within the
corridor. MTC, as the designated Metropolitan Planning
Organization for the nine-county Bay Area region that in-
cludes Napa County, is responsible for addressing the Fed-
eral transportation planning and programming requirements
for Napa County. Lastly, Napa County is one of the nine
counties within Caltrans District 4. Hence, Caltrans is re-
sponsible for addressing statewide planning initiatives, op-
erating and maintaining the state highway, and program-
ming state funds as part of the State Highway Operations
and Protection Program and Interregional Improvement
Program within Napa County.

Each of these agencies, represented through the Staff
Working Group (SWG) have distinct roles for multimodal
planning and programming within the SR 29 corridor.
Hence, the full cooperation and involvement of each agen-
cy will be critical to the success of this effort.

Objective 1 of this Request for Proposal (RFP) is to update
the 2014 SR 29 Gateway Plan to be consistent with and
support a Cycle 2 Senate Bill 1 (SB 1) Solutions for Con-
gested Corridor Program (SCCP) grant application. The
application must be consistent with the 2018 Comprehen-
sive Multimodal Corridor Plan Guidelines (California Trans-
portation Commission, December 2018) and the operative
state and regional transportation planning goals objectives
and policies of SWG.

Both federal and state transportation funding is currently
driven by performance based return-on-investment criteria.
It is also greatly influenced by federal/state objectives relat-
ed to air quality/climate change as well as environmental
justice and social equity. To be competitive for procuring
limited discretionary transportation funding - the CMCP
must document how the recommended CMCP capital im-
provements address these objectives/initiatives. Ultimately,
the CMCP should also serve as the formal update to the
SR 29 Transportation Corridor Concept Report (Caltrans
System Planning) as well inform a Project Study Report
(Project Approval Process Document) for future program-
ming of the selected corridor improvements (Objective 2).

Developing a SCCP grant application that addresses the

18-21 GHD COMPANY/E11/040419_ryk

Page 35 of 108

Proposal for SR 29 Comprehensive Mult/modal Corridor Ple%& PID for SR 29 through American Canyon

Page 7



technical needs required by the grant/guidelines while sim-
ultaneously engendering stakeholder and community sup-
port is a typical challenge. However, given that SCCP Cycle
2 grant applications are due in spring of 2020, a more sig-
nificant challenge will be to update
the CMCP in under a 10-month
timeframe. To address these chal-
lenges and specifically the schedule,
GHD has strategically formed a ~_
multi-disciplinary team comprised | g3 '

of Elite Transportation Group and m

Regional Government Services.

GHD has also procured Bob Spencer of Urban Economics
for an as-needed advisory role for the economic analysis.
GHD will leverage the expertise and abilities of this compli-
mentary teaming arrangement to deliver this study on
schedule and within budget.

This “Team” approach has been used successfully by GHD,
including those by GHD Project Manager Jim Damkowitch.
The process utilizes the overlapping expertise of the Team
to allow more meaningful and effective internal QA/QC and
peer review. Each firm on the GHD Team including key task
leaders have history working successfully together in this
context.

The GHD team understanding of the study requirements
and our proposed approach for each phase of work is de-
scribed below. The understanding is described in four pro-
ject phases. For each phase, the GHD team lead and appli-
cable Task number is provided. A detailed scope of work is
provided in a later section of this proposal.

TECHNICAL APPROACH

Project Management (Lead: GHD)

Project Manager Jim Damkowitch draws on
over 25 years of experience quantifying and
monetizing project benefits for infrastructure
improvement projects. Jim was an early
champion of the Smart Mobility Framework
(SMF) and has routinely applied the SMF to several high
profile corridor studies he has managed. These include:

« SLOCOG US 101 Corridor Mobility Master Plan (2014)

« SLOCOG SR 227 Operations Study (2016)

« TAMC SR 68 Scenic Highway Plan (2017)

« SCCRTC SR 1 Unified Corridor Investment Study
(2018)

Caltrans references the US 101 Corridor Mobility
Master Plan as an outstanding example of the Smart
Mobility Framework as applied to a corridor study. It

is listed as a SMF resource document on Caltrans
Smart Mobility Branch website at: http://
www.dot.ca.qov/hg/top/offices/ocp/smbr.html

Efficiency
2CUEI B « Multimodal Travel Mobility
il * Multimodal Travel Reliability
M°blhty * Multimodal Service Quality

* Support for Sustainable Growth =R\ ERIEN « Climate & Energy Conservation
* Transit Mode Share - St [tel1)s * Emissions Reduction
« Accessibility and Connectivity ewardship

* Equitable Distribution of
Impacts

* Equitable Distribution of
Access and Mobility

Social
Equity

*C ion Effects of F

« Efficient Use of System Resources
* Network Performance Optimization
* Return on Investment

* Multimodal Safety
Health and [ Design and Speed Suitability
* Pedestrian and Bicycle Mode
Share

Robust

Safety Economy

These plans were successfully delivered on time and within
budget using large multi-disciplinary teams similar to the
one proposed (up to five firms). The plans were informed
through extensive public outreach; strong interagency col-
laboration; and, a performance-based technical analysis
approach consistent with Caltrans 2010 Smart Mobility
Framework (SMF), A Call to Action for the New Decade.
This same approach will be tailored and applied for the
CMCP.

Quality Assurance Control/Narrative Development
(Lead: GHD; Support: ETG)

GHD will assign two senior level staff to provide additional
QA/QC for the CMCP. Rich Krumholz, former Caltrans Di-
rector, with extensive experience shepherding state funding
programs and Ross Ainsworth, senior engineer at GHD, will
perform this important role. Given that the project schedule
cannot accommodate do-overs, additional QA/QC will be
critical to the success of the study.

For schedule adherence, it is also proposed that text devel-
opment occur immediately, before the final technical work is
completed. In coordination with the SWG, GHD senior staff
will immediately begin working with Jim Damkowitch to de-
velop the text narratives for the CMCP document. The nar-
ratives will be specifically crafted to follow the SCCP docu-
ment guidelines and application template. In this way, whole
text sections of the completed CMCP can be seamlessly
imported into an application with minimum need for addi-
tional editing.

18-21 GHD COMPANY/E11/040419_ryk

Page 8

Page 36 of 108

Proposal for SR 29 Comprehensive Multim@®8lal Corridor Plan & PID for SR 29 through American Canyon


http://www.dot.ca.gov/hq/tpp/offices/ocp/smbr.html
http://www.dot.ca.gov/hq/tpp/offices/ocp/smbr.html

The CMCP should also be developed to facilitate a seam-
less transition to the Caltrans project approval process (i.e.,
Objective 2), the CMCP should contain, to greatest extent
possible, the requisite analyses and information listed in
Appendix S - Preparation Guidelines for Project Study Re-
port-Project Development Support Project Initiation Docu-
ment. These secondary objectives and their associated nar-
ratives will be addressed early in the process.

Public Outreach (Lead: RGS; Support: GHD)

The Public Outreach Task Manager, Kendall Flint of Re-
gional Government Services (RGS), brings over 25 years of
community workshop facilitation experience. The GHD
team will leverage all existing outreach materials germane
to the study corridor already performed as part of MTC’s
MTP/SCS (and ongoing update), NVTA's Regional Trans-
portation Plan (RTP) (and ongoing update), regional
bikeway plans, and other local agency planning efforts.
Public input summaries of these efforts will be used to in-
form/support the interagency consultation process for iden-
tifying the CMCP improvement package for analysis. RGS
will be supported by GHD’s geo-spatial service line to de-
velop a web-based tool to allow the public to make site spe-
cific comments about barriers, connectivity gaps, safety
issues, potential solutions, or other subject-specific needs
in the comfort of their own homes. This process is facilitated
by the latest on-line interactive map technology, Social Pin-
point.

Interagency Coordination (Lead: RGS; Support: GHD)
The GHD team will immediately begin working directly with
all the participating agencies to identify candidate improve-
ments that will define “the project”. This process is similar to
developing components of a sales tax expenditure plan
(i.e., package of regional projects developed by an aspiring
self-help county). Kendal Flint of RGS has successfully fa-
cilitated this process for three counties. A key consideration
is that the source of candidate improvements must flow
from the financially constrained (Tier I) or unconstrained
(Tier II) lists of MTC’s MTP/SCS and/or NVTA's RTP. Candi-
date projects should also be distinguished by programming
status (i.e., improvements currently listed in the FTIP/STIP
should be prioritized). Other important planning/
programming documents to be considered include, but are
not limited to: the SR 29 Gateway Study; NVTA's CMP;
MTC’s ongoing Regional ITS Strategic Deployment Plan
update; and other state/regional/local plans.

The GHD team will work with the SWG to facilitate a pro-

cess for qualitatively screening/prioritizing improvements.
The improvement package simply cannot be viewed as a
“‘wish list” by the participating agencies. Inclusion of too
many “marginal” improvements will add cost without com-
mensurate gains in monetized benefits resulting in diminish-
ing returns on investment (i.e., lowering the ultimate benefit-
cost ratio of the package as whole). The GHD team will
manage expectations regarding the relative merit of pro-
jects. This winnowing process emphasizes the need for
strong interagency consultation experience - especially giv-
en that this process must reach consensus to finalize the
CMCP corridor package of improvements within a two-
month window.

To be competitive, the CMCP improvement package must
be multimodal and demonstrate buy-in from local agency
participants. At a minimum, improvements are expected to
include currently programmed/planned improvements in-
cluding: SR 29 and local arterial operational improvements,
high frequency bus service enhancements on lines that
serve the corridor; pedestrian and bike improvements iden-
tified by NVTA and the Cities of Napa and American Can-
yon and the County; and Intelligent Transportation Systems
(ITS) improvements including Integrated Corridor Manage-
ment (ICM) strategies.

To allow the CMCP to serve as a resource for other grant
funding programs, all project information and analysis re-
sults (i.e., benefit-cost information) will be scalable to allow
components of the package to be easily extracted.

Data Retrieval (Lead: GHD)

The primary objective for acquiring data is to establish the
requisite baseline speed profiles and volume sets for vali-
dating and informing the operational analysis tools. The
GHD team proposes no “new” traditional data collection
activities be performed for the CMCP. Instead, the CMCP
will rely on existing data (passenger counts, traffic counts,
etc.) and apply various state and federal web-based re-
sources of data. These include: the federal National Perfor-
mance Monitoring Research Data Set (NPMRDS) speed
data; PeMS detector volume and speed data; and, Streetlite
origin-destination data. GHD understands that NVTA's ac-
count with Streetlite will expire soon. It is recommended
that this account be renewed or requisite information be
retrieved prior to expiration to be used for this study.

To address safety, the primary data sources for collisions
will be Transportation Injury Mapping System (TIMS) and

18-21 GHD COMPANY/E11/040419_ryk

Page 37 of 108

Proposal for SR 29 Comprehensive Mult/modal Corridor Ple%& PID for SR 29 through American Canyon

Page 9



Statewide Integrated Traffic Records System (SWITRS)
data. Collision data for study corridor including all parallel
local arterials will be processed. A minimum of five years of
collision data will be processed for analysis.

Tool Development (Lead: ETG, GHD)

Key analysis tools proposed by the GHD team for the
CMCP are presented in Table 1 below. The purpose for
application, output or Measure/s of Effectiveness (MOE)
and whether the MOE is amenable for monetization as a
societal cost (i.e., benefit) is identified.

The following discussion of analysis tools will be limited to
those elements that are unique to the GHD team and/or our
approach.

The Napa County Travel Demand Model (TDM) is nested
within the Solano Napa Activity Based Model. Task Leader
Lawrence Liao of Elite Transportation Group (ETG) brings
extensive modeling application experience. Given the im-
portance of accurate corridor-specific link volume forecasts
on all SR 29 on-ramps and off-ramps and local arterial par-
allel facilities, the GHD team will consider application of
CUBE Avenue Dynamic Traffic Assignment (DTA) to allow
queue spillback and peak spreading to be modeled explicit-
ly. The key output of the Napa County TDM and the DTA
process will be the requisite hourly volume sets for traffic
operations analysis models, covering the study corridor un-
der Opening Day and Design Year fore-
cast conditions.

For roadway operations, GHD team rec-
ommends using the VISSIM micro-
simulation model developed as part of
the 2014 SR 29 Gateway Study. The
existing VISSIM micro-simulation model
will be updated and enhanced as appro-
priate without requiring extensive new
data collection.

The proposed source of speed data for
VISSIM calibration will be NPMRDS and
PeMs speed data. The VISSIM SR 29
model will be validated consistent with
the specifications outlined in the Guide-
lines for Applying Traffic Microsimulation
Software (FHWA, 2004) and the Free-
way Analysis Manual (Caltrans, June

Analysis Purpose

VISSIM micro-simulation model will be used to analyze
freeway and local arterial operations under baseline and
2040 future baseline conditions. All travel demand modeling
and associated roadway operational analyses associated
with the baseline, and future baseline conditions will have
already been completed prior to the initiation of the perfor-
mance assessment.

Roadway Operations (Lead: GHD)
See discussion above.

Transit Improvements (Lead: GHD)

GHD will harvest all available Vine Transit System ridership
data as well as ridership projections associated with pro-
posed service expansions. This includes connections to
regional transit services including Capital Corridor Joint
Powers Authority (CCJPA) Capital Corridor (Fairfield/Suisun
station) and Bay Area Rapid Transit (El Cerrito/del Norte
Station). The GHD team will use available published rid-
ership data and transit line ridership forecasts as generated
through the Napa County TDM. These ridership projections
and the associated vehicle and VMT reductions will be re-
flected in the future volume sets used for the roadway oper-
ations using the VISSIM micro-simulation model.

Active Transportation Improvements (Lead: GHD)
The GHD team will use the GIS-based Level of Traffic
Stress (LTS) developed by Mineta Institute of Transporta-

Table 3. Key Analysis Tools

Model/Analysis Tool

wn

© =
- ARE g
ol |3 5 = g
5523525 |=/5(5/8
s|lg|F| P vlz|lo2|8 | =|w

v o » | X |T | =
RS »(B|S ||
HEIEIRI SR 5|8 |03
S22 |=z|o|5|5|8|an|e|Z
= R (ols|2|(q|ld|T|=
AHHEEBHBHEE
=|S|8|8| &S |w|a|s|d|2
Trips, Ridership, VMT Yes
Trips, Ridership, VMT Yes
Delay and Buffer Time Yes
Ridership, VMT Yes
Access Indices No
Trips, VMT Yes
Collision Reduction & Rates Yes
Emissions (Criteria & GHG) Yes
Access, Benefit/Burden No
GRP, Jobs, Income No
Vehicle Miles Traveled Yes
Network Vulnerability No

2009). Once developed/calibrated, the

Legend

Direct or Indirect Application

18-21 GHD COMPANY/E11/040419_ryk

Page 10

Page 38 of 108

Proposal for SR 29 Comprehensive Multin®@@al Corridor Plan & PID for SR 29 through American Canyon



tion. LTS utilizes a geodatabase (census block or block
group scale) of demographic and employment) to perform
pedestrian/bicycle accessibility assessments. GHD will gen-
erate pedestrian/bicycle accessibility LTS scores by desti-
nation type to examine the accessibility changes to specific
land uses such as schools, parks, hospitals, transit hubs
etc. resulting from the CMCP.

Mode shift benefits resulting from the CMCP active trans-
portation improvements will be quantified using analysis
methods described in NCHRP 552 Guidelines for Analysis
of Bicycle Infrastructure Investments. These benefits in-
clude the potential for mode share shifts, vehicle miles of
travel (VMT) and vehicle trip reductions.

ITS Improvements (Lead: ETG; Support GHD)

Freeway management ITS improvements (managed lanes,
ramp metering etc.) will be addressed. Adaptive signal con-
trol improvements on local parallel arterials will be ad-
dressed by optimizing signal timings within VISSIM. Inte-
grated Corridor Management strategies that inter-link oper-
ations on freeway with the parallel arterials will be ad-
dressed though post-processing or qualitatively. GHD has
recently completed two ITS improvement projects on other
portions of SR 29. Similar ITS improvement applications
developed as part of an integrated corridor management
strategy within the study corridor, including parallel facilities,
will serve to compound the operational benefits of these
past ITS investments.

Safety Analysis (Lead: GHD)

Based on the contributing factors from the SWITRS/TIMS
baseline collision assessment performed in Phase 1, Part C
of the Highway Safety Manual (HSM) will be applied to esti-
mate the potential safety performance of the CMCP im-
provement package. Crash Modification Factors (CMF) will
be applied to estimate reduction in collisions. The reduced
collisions will be distributed by severity (PDO, Serious Inju-
ry, Fatality) based on historical data of pedestrian/bicycle
collisions experienced in the study corridor.

Air Quality Analysis (Lead: GHD)

Air quality benefits (i.e., criteria pollutants and greenhouse
gases) will be estimated using the Emissions Calculator or
Cal-B/C. All requisite on-road activity inputs for this analysis
will be generated by the VISSIM micro-simulation model
and the NCHRP 552 analysis.

Environmental Justice/Social Equity Assessment
(Lead: GHD)

NVTA or MTC'’s definition for disadvantaged communities
will be used to differentiate the degree of improved accessi-
bility between advantaged vs. disadvantaged communities
resulting from the CMCP improvement package. This analy-
sis will use a combination of Napa County TDM select link
analysis for roadway improvements, LTS assessments for
active transportation and GIS analysis for transit. This anal-
ysis will also determine the degree to which disadvantaged
communities benefit from the proposed investments in the
CMCP.

Economic Development Assessment (Lead: GHD)

GHD will perform an economic impact analysis showing the
regional impacts of the CMCP improvement package in
terms of Gross Regional Product (GRP), jobs, and personal
income will be developed. National multipliers will be ap-
plied to provide a macro-assessment of economic develop-
ment potential of CMCP improvement package. The GHD
team will also tie in the National Performance Management
Rule (NPMR) performance metric results as they relate to
truck movement operations and reliability on the SR 29.

Adaptation Assessment (Lead: GHD)

A qualitative assessment of climate preparedness and infra-
structure asset protection/resilience will be developed. The
GHD team will take full advantage of existing on-line map-
ping tools such as Caltrans Vulnerability Interactive Map-
ping Tool (District 3) and CalEnviroScreen 3.0 developed by
the Office of Environmental Health Hazard Assessment,
and other on-line tools to inform this discussion. Key as-
sessments will include flood and wildfire events.

Emerging Technologies Assessment (Lead: GHD)

A qualitative assessment of the implications of the greater
market penetration of Connected/Autonomous vehicles on
corridor operations will be developed. The assessment will
focus on travel demand/ridership, economic, congestion, air
quality, and performance-based models and tools that can
be used in a later phase.

The performance assessment for the CMCP as mapped in
Table 1 (presented earlier) will include the following anal-
yses:

« Monetized benefits for Benefit-Cost (B/C) based to Cal-
B/C based on the 2016 Caltrans Parameters of Societal
Costs. All MOEs amendable to benefit monetization will

18-21 GHD COMPANY/E11/040419_ryk

Page 39 of 1

Proposal for SR 29 Comprehensive Mult/modal Corridor Plem?& PID for SR 29 through American Canyon

Page 11



be incorporated into the Benefit-Cost assessment.

« Non-Monetized benefits for measures that are ex-
pressed as indices or rates that are not amendable to
monetization. These include the National Performance
Management Rule (PM1) metrics and accessibility indi-
ces/scores generated by the LTS analysis.

« Non-Monetized benefits of other regional assessments
that speak to state/federal transportation planning ob-
jectives. These include: environmental justice; econom-
ic development; climate change vulnerability; and
emerging technologies.

Equal attention will be given to documenting the beneficial
outcomes of measures not directly reflected in the Benefit-
Cost assessment of the CMCP. These include: CMCP Con-
sistency (with other existing plans and policies); CMCP Poli-
cy Consistency (MTC, NVTA, Caltrans, and local agencies);
Environmental/lnstitutional Sensitivity (beyond air quality
which will be reflected in the B/C); and, Community Ac-
ceptance (based on the community engagement process).

Benefit-Cost (Lead: GHD)

Benefits will be monetized based the societal cost infor-
mation from Caltrans 2016 Economic Parameters. The lat-
ter information informs the Caltrans Cal-B/C analysis tool.
These will be combined with currently available planning
level improvement cost opinions. Benefit-cost estimates will
be computed for each improvement category. All quantita-
tive benefits will be annualized and projected to 2040 reflect
a 20-year design year condition. Some key differentiators
for the GHD team are described below.

Leading the safety assessment is Jerry Champa of GHD.
Prior to joining GHD in 2017, Mr. Champa worked for Cal-
trans providing transportation safety management and engi-
neering services from the Headquarters Design and Traffic
Operations offices. For the national rule PM(3) measures,
GHD staff has developed first-cut analyses for Congestion
and Level of Travel Time Reliability using the NPMRDS for
seven MPO/RTPAs. As such, GHD brings invaluable experi-
ence with these technical requirements.

Documentation (Lead: GHD)

To increase its competitiveness for selection of the SCCP
and other competitive grant programs, the GHD team will
demonstrate consistency of the CMCP with Federal and
State Congestion Management Programs. Explicitly incor-
porating the CMCP into the State/Federal CMP provides an
opportunity to strengthen the federal importance of the
CMCP improvements that can elevate their grant competi-

Monetized benefits

Estimated $ Spent
tiveness. Similarly, the GHD team will also demonstrate the
CMCP’s consistency with other performance based legisla-
tive programs (SB 375, AB 1358, SB 743, SB 99, AB 101,
SB 1,000, PDA, Presidential Executive Order 12898, and

the US Department of Transportation (DOT) Order 5610.2
(A).

Ostensibly, all text other than results and summary descrip-
tions of the results will be completed prior to the develop-
ment of the draft CMCP. The final outreach summary will be
developed at the conclusion of the pubic draft review and
inserted to the final draft for NVTA board approval.

18-21 GHD COMPANY/E11/040419_ryk

Page 12

Page 40 of 108

Proposal for SR 29 Comprehensive Multin®@8lal Corridor Plan & PID for SR 29 through American Canyon



SEE REVISION/BAFO DATED APRIL 1, 2019
(Pages 5-20)

Scope of Work for Objective 1

The GHD team’s detailed scope of work is provided below.

Task 1 - Project Startup

1.1 - Project Management and Coordination
GHD will perform project setup tasks for accounting and
coordinate budget and scheduling factors.

GHD will prepare monthly invoices and progress reports to
Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA). GHD will
provide an invoice format that is to acceptable to NVTA two
weeks prior to the first invoice submittal.

Deliverables:
« Project Setup
«  Submittal of up to 10 invoices and progress reports

1.2 - Project Kick-off Meeting

Key members of the GHD team will attend the kickoff
meeting (Location TBD by NVTA). GHD will coordinate with
NVTA to develop an agenda for the meeting and provide a
summary of Action Items of the meeting.

Deliverables:

« Kickoff meeting agenda

« Attendance at kickoff meeting by up to five GHD team
staff. No overnight stays or out of state travel are
assumed

«  Kickoff meeting short-term actions

1.3 - Bi-weekly Conference Calls

GHD and various GHD team members will participate in up
to 18 bi-weekly coordination calls with the SR 29 Staff
Working Group (SWG) throughout the duration of the
project (assumed March 2019 to December 31, 2019).
Meetings are anticipated to last less than or equal to 1 hour
GHD will set up and lead/facilitate the meetings. GHD shall
develop and maintain a Short-Term Action list to track:
Action Items; Anticipated Delivery Date; Actual Delivery
Date; Responsible Agency; and, Comments throughout the
duration of the study. The Short-Term Action list will serve
as both the agenda (in advance of the calls), and minutes
(prior week'’s check-in outcome). Only members of GHD-
team with relevant discussion items will participate.

Deliverables: Up to 18 bi-weekly conference calls and up
to 18 Short-Term Action lists.

1.4 - Data Retrieval/Processing/Review

GHD will retrieve the most recent available transportation
data items of relevance to the SR 29 Comprehensive
Multimodal Corridor Plan (CMCP). This includes available
highway and roadway segment counts, intersection turn
movement counts; pedestrian/bicycle counts, transit
ridership data from appropriate local/regional/state agency
sources and the five most recent years of SWITRS/TIMS
collision data. GHD will provide an inventory listing of data
retrieved for application in Task 3 for review by the SWG.

The following “Big” data sources will also be utilized.

Streetlite Data

The following data items will be retrieved using Streetlite
cell and GPS data:

« 2018-19 observed OD patterns by mode (vehicle and
ped/bike), period of the day, and day of the week,
including weekends

« Speed data on non-NHS designated local parallel
capacity roadways

Estimated traffic volumes on relevant study corridor
roadway segments by hour of the day, day of the week and
season

Base year Streetlite network assignment (big-data OD pairs
by trip purpose) will be performed for the study corridor.
These OD based volume estimates will be compared to
model volumes and traffic counts to gauge baseline travel
demand model performance.

PeMS Data

GHD will retrieve available PeMS data for SR 29 from the
PeMS website. Given the desire to reflect annual average
conditions, spring months are preferred followed by fall
months. Hourly PeMS traffic volume and speed data will be
retrieved for both general purpose and managed lanes as
applicable.

National Performance Monitoring Research Data Set

The primary objective for using NPMRDS data is to
establish the requisite baseline speed profiles and baseline
and future volume sets for validating and informing the
freeway and arterial operational analysis tools.

GHD will retrieve the most recent 12 months of NPMRDS
speed data for both passenger vehicles and heavy trucks
on all study corridor roadways on the National Highway

18-21 GHD COMPANY/E11/040419_ryk

Page 41 of 108

Proposal for SR 29 Comprehensive Mult/modal Corridor Pleﬁe& PID for SR 29 through American Canyon

Page 13



System (NHS) through the FHWA NPMRDS data website.
GHD will coordinate with NVTA to confirm appropriate
NPMRDS speed data timelines, data protocols and, data
processing conventions to standardize the process of
computing the performance metrics. Based on this input,
GHD will immediately structure and process the passenger
car and truck speed data performance data for the following
purposes:

. Passenger Vehicle and Truck Travel Time Reliability
metrics

« Passenger Vehicle and Truck Congestion metrics

« Operational tool baseline and validation

Given the desire to reflect annual average conditions,
spring months are preferred followed by fall months.
NPMRDS speed data will be retrieved.

The GHD team will determine the accuracy,
representativeness, and utility of the retrieved data sets and
establish “Truth in Data” checks in all its data processing
functions under this task.

Solano Napa Activity Based Model (SNABM) Review

GHD will conduct a detailed review of the 2015/2040
SNABM within the SR 29 corridor study area. The model
highway network and land use data assumptions in Napa
County will be checked using existing references, such as,
community circulation plans, Vision 2040 (NVTA's
Countywide Transportation Plan), plus any other references
by the SWG. Both the highway traffic and transit ridership
along the SR 29 corridor will be validated to the existing
conditions.

GHD will compare model volumes to counts identified in the
City of American Canyon, City of Napa and County of Napa
circulation studies and other recent studies in the project
area and propose adjustments where appropriate for review
and acceptance by the SWG. Conflicts will be identified and
documented. Existing conditions and projected future year
conditions (2040) for weekday peak hour traffic and
weekend visitor peak hour multimodal demand will be
summarized. Where weekend peak volumes are not
available, The GHD team will develop a methodology to
factor from weekday data based on published peak hour
data by Caltrans, Streetlite and NPMRDS data. The model
will be reviewed and accepted by the SWG. The validated
2015 and 2040 SNABM will be used to develop the travel
demand growth projections for the SR 29 corridor.

Deliverables:

« Inventory listing of traffic count, ridership count and
collision data inventory

. Streetlite Origin-Destination patterns by mode (vehicle
and ped/bike), period of the day, and day of the week,
including weekends

« Most recent 12 months of continuous NPMRDS speed
data for corridor study roadways designated as part of
the NHS

. Base year Streetlite network assignment for non-NHS
roadways on interest

« Travel Demand Forecast Model Validation and Forecast
Technical Memorandum

Task 2 - Ongoing Stakeholder and
Community Outreach and Project
Oversight

2.1 - Prepare a Draft and Final Public Outreach

Plan

GHD will develop a comprehensive Public Outreach Plan
that allows for effective outreach with all planning partners
and community stakeholders in developing the CMCP. This
will include abroad range of stakeholders including those in
the private, public, and non-profit sectors, the business
community, environmental interest groups, public health
advocates, technology and broadband stakeholders, as well
as environmental justice and social-equity organizations.

The Outreach Plan will ensure the agency is meeting all
Title VI and Environmental Justice requirements and
engage communities impacted by the corridor, including
strategies to engage disadvantaged communities.

GHD will submit a draft CMCP Public Outreach Plan and,
based on one set of consolidated comments from the SWG,
submit the final Public Outreach Plan.

2.2 - Stakeholder/Jurisdictional Meetings

GHD will coordinate with NVTA, County of Napa, Cities of
Napa and American Canyon, and Caltrans District 4 to
develop and finalize a complete listing of stakeholders.
GHD to participate in up to four (4) stakeholder meetings.
GHD will coordinate with the SWG to develop an agenda
for these meetings and provide a summary of key
discussion and action items of the meeting.

18-21 GHD COMPANY/E11/040419_ryk

Page 14

Page 42 of 108

Proposal for SR 29 Comprehensive Multimé&gal Corridor Plan & PID for SR 29 through American Canyon



2.3 - Committee Meetings

GHD will provide updates and/or materials for staff updates
to NVTA's Citizen Advisory Committee (CAC) and Technical
Advisory Committee (TAC) approximately four (4) times
during the course of the project. These committees will
review project progress and submit comments to the Staff
Working Group (SWG) and the NVTA Board.

2.4 - Public Meetings

2.4.1 - GHD shall promote, advertise, and conduct up to
two (2) public charrettes at different locations/times through
a multi-media campaign (including, but not limited to, use of
newspaper and radio broadcast) through the Citizen
Advisory Committee and other stakeholders to gain public
involvement and refine plan concepts. One (1) of the public
charrettes will be held in the beginning of the process to
gain initial input and feedback and one (1) charrette should
be held later in the process to review the draft Corridor Plan
and recommended improvement concepts.

GHD will use a combination of group exercises, live polling,
small breakout sessions, individual stations for discussion
on specific topics, and/or visual preference activities.
Meetings will be participant-driven and engaging.

During live polling, GHD will utilize small easy-to-use
handheld keypads enabling audience members to
immediately and anonymously respond to multiple-choice
questions posed on-screen during staff presentations.
Since social pressure is removed when audience
responses are anonymous, we will have a more accurate
idea of what issues are truly important.

2.4.2 - Prepare presentation materiel for City Council and
County Board of Supervisor meetings. Most presentations
will be conducted by NVTA staff and/or City/County staff.

2.4.3 - Prepare presentation materials and present no more
than three times to the Napa Valley Transportation Authority
Board (NVTA Board) which will act as the steering
committee for the CMCP.

2.4.4 - GHD shall meet with SWG approximately six (6)
times over the course of the study (made up of NVTA staff,
Caltrans staff, and members from the City of American
Canyon, City of Napa, and County of Napa). Prior to
publication of milestone documents, draft documents and
supporting data will be reviewed by the SWG. This group is

expected to meet approximately six (6) times at key points
in the process: to review and accept the Vision, to review
the existing corridor study’s results; potential improvement
programs, review the draft Corridor Implementation Plan.
Day-to-day work on project documents and meetings will be
carried out by GHD, with direct staff support from NVTA.

2.5 - Collateral Outreach Materials

2.5.1 - Project Logo/Branding

GHD will coordinate with the SWG to develop a brand for
the study that will be used for all project related materials
and deliverables. Project branding will give the CMCP
process a unique identity and visual queue to the public.
The SWG will be given several options to choose from and
will be have final approval of the overall theme.

2.5.2 - Development of Interactive Web-Based Tool
GHD will develop an interactive web-based tool using on-
line interactive map technology, Social Pinpoint. All content
of the interactive web-based tool will be in English and
Spanish.

The Social Pinpoint platform encourages engagement by
allowing the community to provide feedback that can be
directly linked to a geographical location, complete online
surveys, and integrate the platform with their own social
media platforms to create digital content that encourages
them to share and post on the topic. Importantly, Social
Pinpoint provides tools to categorize, collate, and analyze
feedback and data in a meaningful way to allow for reliable
and efficient data management. It also allows for the
combining of geographic and other spatial information such
as contour lines, natural hazard risk areas, and project
areas.

The interactive web-based tool will allow the public to
provide geo-referenced input on where issues or
improvement needs are. This supplemental input will help
inform study recommendations. After being live for 10
weeks, the logged input will be downloaded and
summarized. This summary report will be shared with the
SWG.

Once the CMCP improvement package is established,
public outreach will be repurposed to informing the public of
the proposed corridor improvement package and gauging
the level of public support for it. All input received will be
documented for inclusion in the CMCP final report.

18-21 GHD COMPANY/E11/040419_ryk

Page 43 of 1

Proposal for SR 29 Comprehensive Mult/modal Corridor Plaﬁ)& PID for SR 29 through American Canyon

Page 15



2.5.3 - Media

GHD will develop and disseminate news releases on a
regular basis promoting upcoming opportunities for
engagement, workshops, and key milestones in the
process. A key component of this effort will be coordination
with public information officials at all member agencies as
well as Caltrans and others.

GHD will promote meetings, issues, and opportunities for
engagement via a variety of social media channels
including Facebook, Twitter, and NextDoor.

n= a7
MCOG
o .
« ‘
o .
[ )
R 0
kS
@ 1t

GHD will encourage people to share photos and video
locations relevant to the CMCP. These can be posted on
the project website and shared via social media.

2.6 - Public Outreach Summary Report

GHD will develop a comprehensive Public Outreach
Summary Report that documents all outreach activities
performed as part of the CMCP and summarizes the results
of each outreach strategy/activity. The report will distinguish
and document outreach activities that specifically targeted
disadvantaged communities. The degree of disadvantaged
community participation will also be documented.

The Public Outreach Summary Report will be included as
part of the draft and final CMCP document review process
described in Task 4.

Deliverables:

. Participate in four (4) Stakeholder Meetings

. Participate in four (4) CAC/TAC Committee Meetings

« Perform two (2) Public Charrettes.

« Assist NVTA and City/County of Napa staff with
presentation materials on the CMCP

« Conduct up to six (6) meeting with the SWG

« Develop Project Logo

- Interactive bilingual web-based tool

« Public input Summaries

. Maintenance of Stakeholder Database

« Maintenance and presence on social media

« Collateral Materials (PPT, Fact Sheet, etc.)

« Draft and Final CMCP Public Outreach Summary
Report

Task 3 - Develop Plan Components

3.1 - Evaluate Opportunities, Develop Corridor

Plan Framework, and Literature Review
Consistent with the 2018 Comprehensive Multimodal
Corridor Plan Guidelines (CTC, December 2018), the
planning and analysis framework proposed for the CMCP
will be based on the Smart Mobility Framework (SMF). The
performance metrics selected for the CMCP will inform
each of the six SMF objectives to ensure that the resulting
improvement recommendations provide a balanced,
sustainable, and multimodal assessment of current and
forecast corridor conditions.

One of the six SMF objectives is Reliable Mobility. This
SMF objective addresses congestion management as it
relates to multimodal service quality, multimodal travel
reliability, and multimodal travel mobility. A matrix
framework will be established consistent with the Federal
Congestion Management Process to serve as an evaluation
tool for proposed CMCP roadway capacity and operational
improvements including ITS improvements. Each project
will be evaluated relative to NVTA's CMP goals as well as
RTP goals.

Based on these frameworks, the GHD team will coordinate
with the Project Management Team to “refresh” the Purpose
and Need Statement for the SR 29 corridor - expanding its
breadth to include alternative modes and parallel facilities
that serve both regional and local area traffic within the
corridor.

GHD will prepare a literature review of like corridors that
have similar characteristics and serve similar demand
profiles as SR 29. This will include but not be limited to
corridors that have been extensively studies by GHD
including SR 68 (Monterey County), SR 227 (San Luis
Obispo County, and SR 49 (Nevada and El Dorado
Counties).

18-21 GHD COMPANY/E11/040419_ryk

Page 16

Page 44 of 108

Proposal for SR 29 Comprehensive Multimé&@al Corridor Plan & PID for SR 29 through American Canyon



3.2 - Summarize Corridor Existing Studies and

Plans

GHD will prepare a listing and brief summary of all planning
documents of relevance to the SR 29 corridor. The Plan
documents will include but will not limited to the SR 29
Gateway Corridor Improvement Plan, the City of American
Canyon Broadway Specific Plan, the Watson Ranch EIR,
County of Napa and American Canyon Circulation
Elements, the County of Napa Airport Industrial Specific
Plan, City of Napa General and Specific Plans, NVTA
Countywide Transportation Plan Vision 2040, NVTA
Pedestrian and Bicycle Plans, NVTA Express Bus Study
and travel demand model development documents. GHD
will prepare a matrix that reflects all policies germane to the
SR 29 corridor from these prior planning efforts. This matrix
will facilitate a qualitative determination of the degree of
policy consistency of each of candidate improvements
considered as part of the CMCP.

3.3 - Model Future Traffic Projections

3.3.1 - Solano Napa Activity Based Model Review

The GHD team will conduct a detailed review of the 2015
baseline and 2040 out-year forecast volume sets from
Solano Napa Activity Based Model (SNABM) within the SR
29 corridor study area. The model highway network and
land use data assumptions in Napa County will be checked
using existing references, such as, community circulation
plans, Vision 2040 (NVTA's Countywide Transportation
Plan), plus any other references by the SWG.

Both the highway traffic and transit ridership along the SR
29 corridor will be validated to the existing conditions. The
GHD team will compare model volumes to counts identified
in the City of American Canyon, City of Napa and County of
Napa circulation studies and other recent studies in the
project area. GHD will propose adjustments where
appropriate for review and acceptance by the SWG. The
validation check process will follow the latest industry
standards, such as Model Validation and Reasonableness
Check Manual, 2nd Edition (FHWA, September 2010). If
there are conflicts with established State/Federal criteria,
The GHD team will identify and document them for review
by the SWG.

Once “cleared” for application, all traffic demand forecasts
will be prepared in accordance with the methodologies
described in the NCHRP Report 765 - Analytical Travel
Forecasting Approaches for Project-Level Planning and

Design, NCHRP 716 - Travel Demand Forecasting
Parameters and Techniques and California Transportation
Commission (CTC) - California Regional Transportation
Plan Guidelines.

The GHD team will develop a report, which summarizes
existing conditions and projected future year conditions
(2040) for weekday peak hour traffic and weekend visitor
peak hour multimodal demand within the SR 29 corridor.
Where weekend peak volumes are not available, the
project team will develop a methodology to factor from
weekday data.

3.3.2 - Baseline and Future Baseline Volume Sets
Based on the review of model performance, GHD will
consider the need to apply Dynamic Traffic Assignment
(DTA - optional task) covering the study corridor, to produce
realistic hourly volume sets that models queue spillbacks
and peak spreading explicitly. If DTA is considered essential
for developing accurate baseline and future volumes sets -
GHD will coordinate this option with the SWG. The
coverage of the DTA model will be larger than the study
corridor to capture the impacts of inbound queue spillbacks
beyond the study corridor gateways.

Based on this process, a 2015 baseline and 2040 future
volume sets will be finalized. These volumes sets will serve
as inputs to the corridor-wide VISSIM micro-simulation
model.

3.3.3 - VISSIM Micro-simulation Model

The VISSIM model developed as part of the 2014 SR 29
Gateway Corridor Improvement Program will be the primary
analysis tool for the CMCP. GHD will review this model and
make all requisite network modifications to accurately
reflect SR 29 and applicable parallel facilities. GHD will be
code the VISSIM network for the corridor segments using
Google Earth aerial maps and street views for all the
required geometric attributes.

The VISSIM micro-simulation model capacity assumptions
by facility type (including reasonable ranges) will be
established prior to the validation process. These will be
shared with the SWG for review and comment.

The source of speed data needed for calibration will be
PeMS and NPMRDS as processed in Task 1. Based on the
PeMS and NPMRDS speed data, GHD will adjust the
default free-flow speed to reflect the local conditions along
this corridor. If needed and justified, adjustments to the

18-21 GHD COMPANY/E11/040419_ryk

Page 45 of 1

Proposal for SR 29 Comprehensive Mult/modal Corridor Plé@& PID for SR 29 through American Canyon

Page 17



default capacity will also be performed but only within the
specified ranges established with the SWG. Validating the
VISSIM model will follow the procedures outlined in
Guidelines for Applying Traffic Microsimulation Software
(FHWA, 2004). GHD will prepare a VISSIM validation
memorandum describing the steps taken to calibrate/
validate the VISSIM model.

Once the VISSIM model is validated, the future year 2040
volume set will be input and the model executed to
generate 2040 future baseline conditions.

3.4 - Program and Project Identification

In coordination with the SWG, GHD will identify potential
programs and projects to improve the corridor while
considering California Streets and Highways Code -
Sections 2390-2397 and focusing on the Solutions for
Congested Corridors Program (SCCP) strategies to:

« Reduce traffic congestion and address local access
focusing primarily on operational improvements rather
than capacity or facility expansion

« Improve corridor safety, accessibility and crossings for
all travel modes

« Improve corridor circulation by evaluating pending
connections/extension improvements of parallel

roadways, improvements to existing mainline corridors,

intersection improvements, or other congestion
management strategies

« Improve transit access and transit flow

« Build upon aesthetic improvements identified in the SR
29 Gateway Corridor Plan to improve the appearance
and cohesiveness of the corridor while ensuring that
each jurisdiction remains visually distinct

« Upgrade technologies that will improve corridor
operations and provide travel information

. Evaluate economic development, job creation and
retention of the proposed projects/programs

« Reduce greenhouse gas emissions and air pollution
impacts with proposed projects/programs, and
stimulate efficient land use

3.4.1 - Program and Project Identification

The key analysis tools proposed by the GHD team for the
CMCP are presented in Table 1. The purpose for
application, output or measure/s of effectiveness (MOE)
and whether the MOE is amenable for monetization as a
societal cost (i.e., benefit) is identified for each analysis
tool. Application of these tools is described below.

SNABM Travel Demand Modeling

Unique volume sets that reflect the traffic diversion and AM/
PM peak hour circulation characteristics will be developed
to quantify the diversion of traffic onto parallel routes
created by candidate roadway capacity improvements (i.e.,
roadway extensions, and improvements to existing parallel
routes) and other operational improvements. These future
year volume sets will serve as inputs to the VISSIM micro-
simulation model.

VISSIM Roadway Operations Performance Summary

The following performance measures will be generated
from VISSIM micro-simulation for existing, future baseline,
and future with project.

« Person throughput

« Person Hours Of Delay (PHD)

« Travel Time Reliability - Travel Time Index/Buffer Time
Index

« Vehicle Hours Of Delay (VHD)

« Vehicle Miles Travelled (VMT)

VISSIM, similar to other planning-level analysis tools, does
not model trucks separately. However, NPMRDS data
provides truck speeds. GHD will use the NPMRDS
(processed in Task 1) to calculate existing truck delay and
build correlation between existing truck delay and regular
vehicle delay. Using the same correlation, GHD will
estimate truck delay under baseline and future year
conditions (with and without project).

Travel Time Reliability Analysis Results Performance
Summary (passenger vehicles and trucks)

GHD will use NPMRDS speed data for all roadways
designated as part of the National Highway System (NHS)
for baseline travel time reliability and congestion analysis.
The retrieval and processing of this data is described under
Task 1. GHD will compute the following performance
metrics for passenger vehicles in the study corridor:

. Buffer time

« Buffer Time Index

« Congestion and Operational Efficiency (Congestion
Metric and LOTTR - passenger vehicles)

« Percent of Corridor Congested

Percent of Corridor Reliable

Federal definitions from the National Performance
Management Measures Rule will be used to define
congestion and reliability. GHD will apply both the national

18-21 GHD COMPANY/E11/040419_ryk

Page 18

Page 46 of 108

Proposal for SR 29 Comprehensive Multimédal Corridor Plan & PID for SR 29 through American Canyon



rule’s definition of reliability (based on the 80th percentile
speed) and the Highway Capacity Manual’s definition of
reliability (based on the 95th percentile speed).

Given that free flow speed is a key variable for calculating
both Congestion Level and Level of Travel Time Reliability
(LOTTR) free flow speed will be empirically estimated for
each roadway segment using NPMRDS data between the
hours of midnight and 3 AM. In instances where average
free flow speed is lower than average peak hour speed -
free flow speed will be set at peak hour speed. These and
other conventions will be discussed with the SWG to
determine the appropriate data protocols for analysis. Maps
displaying AM/PM peak hour Congestion and LOTTR
results for Passenger Vehicles will be developed.

To estimate the change in reliability (buffer time only) as a
result of the CMCP improvement concepts, GHD will
holistically project the change of travel time reliability (i.e.,
buffer time) for each CMCP alternative under future year
conditions. This will be done by applying the relative
change in the Travel Time Index (TTI) between baseline
and future to adjust the empirically based NPMRDS
baseline estimate of buffer time. This assumes that the
effect of construction, weather, and incidents that is
reflected in the most recent 12-months of NPMRDS data is
reasonably reflective of like events in the future.

Buffer time will be the key Measure of Effectiveness from
this analysis (versus Buffer Time Index) given that it can be
monetized based on the Caltrans 2016 Economic
Parameters using the same societal cost as delay. These
estimates will be annualized and expanded to reflect the
2040 design life horizon.

Interconnected Streets and Integrated Corridor
Management

GHD and ETG will provide an ITS benefit assessment. This
could include validating the operational impacts of
implementing Integrated Corridor Management (ICM)
throughout the study corridor through active freeway
management, active Transportation Demand Management
strategies, active transit management, active arterial
management, and traveler information systems in the
corridor.

Vehicle Collision Reduction Analysis Performance
Summary

Based on the data processed in Task 1 and contributing
factors from the SWITRS/TIMS baseline collision

assessment, the GHD team will apply Part C of the
Highway Safety Manual (HSM) to estimate the safety
performance for the CMCP improvements. GHD will apply
Crash Modification Factors (CMF) as appropriate. The
estimated reduction in collisions will be distributed by
severity (PDO, Serious Injury, Fatality) based on historical
data. This analysis will inform following performance
metrics:

«  Number of vehicle collisions

. Rate of vehicle collisions per number of vehicle trips
Consideration of policies that support public safety and
security such as lighting and other crime prevention
and safety measures

Pedestrian/Bicycle Collision Analysis Performance
Summary

Based on the data processed in Task 1, GHD will isolate all
pedestrian/bicycle related collisions and associated
reductions. Estimated reduction in collisions will be
distributed by severity (PDO, Serious Injury, Fatality) based
on historical data. This analysis will inform following
performance metrics:

«  Number of bicycle and pedestrian collisions

. Rate of bicycle and pedestrian collisions per number of
bicycle and pedestrian trips

. Consideration of policies that support public safety and
security such as lighting and other crime prevention
and safety measures

GHD will summarize both the vehicular and specific
pedestrian/bicycle related collisions for input into either Cal-
B/C, the HSIP Analyzer or like off-model excel Highway
Safety Manual (HSM) compatible worksheets to compute
monetized benefits. The basis for any of these options shall
be the Caltrans 2016 Economic Parameters. Once
monetized, this estimate will be expanded to reflect the
design life horizon year.

For the Federal Performance Monitoring Rule PM(1)
metrics that reflect rates, GHD will compute segment
specific VMT (AADT x segment length in miles). For
freeway and local roadways, segment lengths will be
computed within GIS or by post mile. The source of
baseline and future daily traffic volumes with and without
the CMCP improvements will be from SNABM output The
PM (1) metrics will be computed at the corridor scale of
analysis and Targets checked to determine consistency with
State/MPO safety targets.

18-21 GHD COMPANY/E11/040419_ryk

Page 47 of 1

Proposal for SR 29 Comprehensive Mult/modal Corridor Plaﬁ)a PID for SR 29 through American Canyon

Page 19



Active Transportation LTS Connectivity Analysis

GHD will examine the LTS connectivity assessment under
future year conditions relative to each corridor alternative’s
active transportation improvement package. GHD will use
Census block scale of analysis to establish a geodatabase
of demographic, income/poverty, language, and
employment within the study corridor from the 2010
Census, American Community Survey (ACS), and
Longitudinal Employment and Housing Data (LEHD)
datasets. This data will be proportionately “grown” to reflect
future year conditions based on the projected future growth
resident in the SNABM land use database.

Based on roadway, bicycle, and pedestrian networks;
transit network data; and Points of Interest (POI) data, GHD
will perform an LTS pedestrian and bicycle connectivity
assessment of the CMCP active transportation
improvements. The assessments will differentiate between
advantaged and disadvantaged populations to assess the
degree of connectivity of the low-stress network under
future (2040) conditions for these demand markets.

GHD will also examine the LTS accessibility characteristics
to specific destination types (POI) across each CMCP
improvements. POls could include, but not limited to,
schools, transit stops/hubs (including rail stations),
hospitals, and commercial centers.

Active Transportation Mode Share Shift Analysis

GHD will apply the NCHRP 552 Guidelines for Analysis of
Bicycle Infrastructure Investments method to estimate
mode share shifts, vehicle trip and VMT reductions of the
active transportation improvements identified in each of the
CMCP active transportation improvements. The analysis
will be applied to three distance buffers (1/4, 1/2, and 1
mile) as proscribed in NCHRP 552.

This analysis will yield the following outputs for each of the

CMCP pedestrian/bicycle improvement:

« Number of new bicycle riders (mode shift) for
commuting and non-commuter trips

« Low, moderate, and high estimates of vehicle trip and
associated VMT reductions

. Excel workbooks and GIS distance buffer maps.

« Monetized health benefit results

Transit Accessibility Analysis Performance
As described in the accessibility assessment, GHD will
apply the LTS analysis to determine the walking and biking

connectivity to existing/future transit facilities; accessibility
to transit facilities by all modes; and, other multimodal hub
points of interest.

Bus transit mode shifts from autos will be based on mode
split output from SNABM and GIS-based tools to assess the
following:

. Transit station accessibility
Bus transit mode shifts from autos on SR 29 and
adjacent arterial system roadways

Air Quality and Climate Change Greenhouse Gas
Emissions

GHD will quantify the change in health-based criteria
pollutants as well as climate change greenhouse gases
(CO2 and CO2 equivalents). Based on the on-road vehicle
activity changes quantified, GHD will use the SB-1
Emissions Calculator tool developed by the California
Transportation Commission to calculate the change in
these emissions as a result of the CMCP improvements.
The emissions analysis will be inform based on the VMT
and VMT by speed class distribution characteristics of each
the CMCP improvements.

Climate Adaptation Summary

GHD will perform a qualitative assessment of climate
preparedness and infrastructure asset protection/resilience
and connectivity benefits of the CMCP improvements.

GHD will evaluate the enhanced risk associated with not
implementing the CMCP improvements for the study
corridor as well as the corridor’s its overall use and
functionality on:

« Multimodal transportation infrastructure Assessment
« Network Connectivity Assessment

« Goods Movement Assessment

. Emergency Response Assessment

GHD will use existing on-line mapping tools such as
Caltrans Vulnerability Interactive Mapping Tool (District 1)
and CalEnviroScreen 3.0 developed by the Office of
Environmental Health Hazard Assessment, and other on-
line tools to inform this assessment. GHD will consider all
applicable climate change events but will focus primarily on
flood and wildfire events.

Benefit Burden Analysis Summary
GHD will quantify the distribution of costs and benefits
resulting from the implementation of the CMCP

18-21 GHD COMPANY/E11/040419_ryk

Page 20

Page 48 of 108

Proposal for SR 29 Comprehensive Multimégal Corridor Plan & PID for SR 29 through American Canyon



improvements on disadvantaged communities (low-income
and minority individuals) within the study corridor. This
analysis will be based on NVTA's definitions of minority and
low income populations for Napa County.

GHD will perform a select link and zone analysis for
roadway improvements to identify the percent of motorists
using the improved facilities who are from traffic analysis
zones defined as disadvantaged.

As described under the Active Transportation Accessibility
and Mode Shift Analysis, GHD will perform LTS connectivity
assessments to identify the degree of access to active
transportation and transit improvements by disadvantaged
communities versus non-disadvantaged communities.

Disproportionately high and adverse effects resulting from
the implementation of the CMCP improvements on minority
and low-income populations (i.e., EJ communities) will be
examined. Additionally, the CMCP planning process itself
will document the outreach opportunities provided to all
segments of the population to give input into the CMCP.

Economic Development Assessment
The economic analysis of the mobility improvements along
the study corridor will consist of two parts:

« Benefit-cost analysis comparing the user benefits of the
improvement plan with the costs of implementation

«  Economic impact analysis showing the regional impacts
of the improvement plan in terms of gross regional
product (GRP), jobs, and personal income

The benefit-cost analysis will be informed by deliverables
previously described.

GHD will conduct an economic impact analysis of the
CMCP improvements. To inform this analysis of regional
economic development, job retention strategies, and
supporting activities, GHD will review relevant economic
development plans prepared by economic development and
local planning agencies.

GHD will conduct an economic impact analysis using
IMPLAN economic multipliers (or other sources if desired).
The analysis will consider the short-term construction
benefits as well as the long-term transportation efficiencies
generated by the project. Economic impacts will be reported
in terms of Gross Regional Product, jobs, and personal
income.

GHD will combine this information with the truck
performance information and the B/C analysis results of the
CMCP improvements and prepare a technical
memorandum describing the assumptions and analyses
used to develop the economic development and return on
investment potential of the CMCP improvements.

Efficient Land Use

GHD will analyze change in modal choice access relative to
commercial and/or mixed-use POI based on the LTS
pedestrian/bicycle connectivity analysis (See Active
Transportation Connectivity LTS Analysis).

3.4.2 - Benefit-Cost Analysis

Per the Smart Mobility Framework (SMF), GHD will
evaluate each CMCP corridor improvement across each
performance metrics and establish a relationship with the
following six SMF objectives:

. Location Efficiency

« Reliable Mobility

« Health and Safety

«  Environmental Stewardship
« Social Equity

« Robust Economy

GHD will develop planning level cost estimates for each
project or program, including costs to build facilities or
acquire program materials, annual operation and
maintenance costs.

The holistic metric will be Benefit-Cost (i.e., return on
investment). The Benefit-Cost Assessment for the CMCP
will include the following analyses:

« Monetized benefits for Benefit-Cost based on the 2016
Caltrans Parameters of Societal Costs. All MOEs
amendable to benefit monetization will be incorporated
into the Benefit-Cost assessment.

« Non-Monetized benefits for measures that are
expressed as indices or rates that are not amendable to
monetization. These include the National Performance
Management Rule (PM1) metrics and accessibility
indices/scores generated by the LTS analyses.

« Non-Monetized benefits of other regional assessments
that speak to state/federal transportation planning
objectives. These include environmental justice;
economic development; climate change vulnerability;
and emerging technologies.

18-21 GHD COMPANY/E11/040419_ryk

Page 49 of 1

Proposal for SR 29 Comprehensive Mult/modal Corridor Plaﬁ)'& PID for SR 29 through American Canyon

Page 21



Benefits will be monetized based the societal cost
information from Caltrans 2016 Economic Parameters. The
latter information informs the Caltrans Cal-B/C analysis tool
as well as other benefit-cost analysis tools including the
HSIP Analyzer and the SB-1 Emissions Calculator.
Monetized benefits will be combined with currently available
planning level improvement cost opinions. Benefit-cost
estimates will be computed for the CMCP improvements. Al
quantitative benefits will be annualized and projected to
2040 (reflects a 20-year design life).

Equal attention will be given to documenting the beneficial
outcomes of measures not directly reflected in the Benefit-
Cost assessment of the CMCP. These include: CMCP
Consistency (with other existing plans and policies per
products developed in Task 3); CMCP Policy Consistency
(NVTA, Cities of Napa, American Canyon, County of Napa,
and Caltrans); Environmental/Institutional Sensitivity
(beyond air quality which will be reflected in the B-C); and,
Community Acceptance (based on the community
engagement process).

Based on the B-C results and plan/policy consistency
assessments, projects will be selected for implementation
and prioritized based on their ability to achieve a balanced
set of transportation, environmental, and community access
improvements and community input. This will form the basis
of the preferred corridor concept.

GHD and SWG will develop, and the Stakeholders, TAC,
and NVTA Board will review, a menu of proposed physical
improvements and programs that can advance
improvements in the corridor. The menu will include existing
projects or programs that have not been fully implemented
as well as near-term, mid-term and long-term projects.

GHD will develop a matrix to determine the ability of each
existing or new project to advance the framework and to
improve the corridor by advancing one or more of the SMF
(6) objectives. The matrix will list short, mid and long-term
projects, develop an optimized order of delivery, and rate
projects based on how well the project accomplishes the
above stated goals.

3.5 - Corridor Improvement Implementation Plan

GHD will develop a Corridor Improvement Implementation
Plan, covering the following topics for recommended
programs and projects:

« Project Deliverability
« Congestion Relief

« Air Quality

. Safety Improvements
« Accessibility

. Efficient Land Use

All these topics will be informed by the analysis and
documentation developed as part of Task 3.4.

GHD will also develop an assessment of funding options
and strategies for implementation. This will entail identifying
a list of potential funding sources that will match the
recommended projects/programs to applicable funding
sources. This will include an assessment of NVTA's
financially constrained Regional Transportation Plan and
what, if any, revenue capacity exists or can be reasonably
assumed that could provide funding capacity for any of the
proposed improvements of the preferred corridor concept.

GHD will identify opportunities for multi-jurisdictional
programs or projects. This will include listing the affected
jurisdictions and key agency stakeholders that should be
consulted. GHD will also identify implementation
mechanisms, public/private partnerships, and additional
project/program phasing strategies that should be
considered together with the phased groupings of short-
term (1-2 years) mid-term (3-5 years) and long-term
(beyond 5 years) improvements.

Based on the information developed as part of Task 3.4,
GHD shall develop an Economic Impact Analysis of the
proposed improvements. The economic impact analysis
should include the following:

« Use of construction cost estimates and projected gains
in worker productivity and reduced delays/congestion
and possible net tourism gains (such as transient
occupancy tax revenue)

« Impacts to goods movement and freight

« Direct Impacts and estimated employment changes
from budget dollars to be spent

« Induced and indirect impacts on business revenues and
employment

. State and local tax gains

GHD and SWG will prepare, and the Stakeholders, TAC,
and NVTA Board will review, a draft implementation plan for
corridor improvement projects and programs to address the

18-21 GHD COMPANY/E11/040419_ryk

Page 22

Page 50 of 108

Proposal for SR 29 Comprehensive Multimé&@al Corridor Plan & PID for SR 29 through American Canyon



study’s varied objectives. The implementation plan will
recommend steps for immediate, short-term (1 -2 years),
mid-term (3-5 years) and long-term (beyond 5 years)
implementation. The implementation plan will provide an
estimated project delivery schedule for key improvements,
evaluate project readiness, identify a funding strategy of
existing and potential new funds available to initiate and
operate the recommended programs and projects, and will
recommend a governance option for the multijurisdictional
projects or programs.

Deliverables:

« Model Forecast Technical Memorandum

« Baseline, Opening Day and Design Year Volume Sets

« VISSIM Model Baseline Validation Memorandum

. Electronic files of SNABM and VISSIM Modeling Runs

« VISSIM Micro-simulation Operations Model Calibration/
Validation Memorandum

« Micro-simulation Results Roadway Performance
Summary

« Travel Time Reliability Analysis Results Performance
Summary

« Vehicle Collision Reduction Analysis Performance
Summary

. Pedestrian/Bicycle Collision Analysis Performance
Summary

« Active Transportation LTS Connectivity Analysis
Summary

« Active Transportation Mode Share Shift Analysis
Summary

« Transit Accessibility Analysis Performance Summary

« Emissions Analysis Performance Summary

+ Benefit Burden Analysis Summary

« Freight Reliability Throughput Analysis Performance
Summary

+ Climate Adaptation Summary

« Planning Level Cost Estimates

» Benefit-Cost Assessment Summary

« List of Phased Improvements for Implementation

« Implementation

« Economic Analysis Memorandum

« Implementation Plan

Task 4 - Final Plan and Public
Meeting

4.1 - Draft and Final Plan

Administrative Draft CMCP

Based on the data collected, public input received and
technical analyses performed, GHD will prepare an
Administrative Draft of the CMCP for early internal review.
GHD will prepare the Draft CMCP based on one
consolidated list of comments received on the
Administrative Draft CMCP.

Draft CMCP
GHD will develop the Draft CMCP for distribution to
agencies, stakeholders and the public.

Final CMCP
GHD will prepare the Final CMCP based on one
consolidated list of comments received on the Draft CMCP.

4.2 - Public Meeting

Public Meetin
GHD will prepare a PPT presentation and present the Final

CMCP to the NVTA Board as a Noticed Public Meeting.

Deliverables:

« Administrative Draft, Draft and Final CMCP

. Preparation and Presentation of the Final Plan to the
NVTA Board

18-21 GHD COMPANY/E11/040419_ryk

Page 51 of 1

Proposal for SR 29 Comprehensive Mult/modal Corridor Plé@@ PID for SR 29 through American Canyon

Page 23



SEE REVISION/BAFO DATED APRIL 1, 2019
(Pages 21 - 30)

Scope of Work - Objective 2

The following Scope of work is for Object 2 of Napa Valley
Transportation Authority’s (NVTA) State Route (SR) 29
Comprehensive Multimodal Corridor Plan and Project
Initiation Document (PID) for SR 29 through American
Canyon. GHD will begin this phase of work upon written
notice to proceed from NVTA and after the approval of the
Object 1: the update to the SR 29 Gateway Corridor Plan.
It is recommended this scope and fee be revisited to
ensure it meets the needs of the findings of Object prior to
that start of work.

Task 1: Project Management,

Coordination and Quality Control

GHD Inc. (GHD) will provide project management,
coordination with and between the County and key project
stakeholders.

1.1 - Project Management & Quality Control
GHD will perform the following duties:

« Provide Project Quality Control/Quality Assurance

« Supervise, coordinate and monitor procedures for
preparation of the PID, and other supporting studies
consistent with and in conformance to the guidelines
published in Caltrans “Project Development
Procedures Manual” (PDPM)

« Coordinate and monitor deliverables, project submittals
to and reviews by the Project Development Team
(PDT)

«  Ongoing correspondence and communication with
NVTA's and Caltrans project managers.

«  General correspondence, monthly progress reports,
invoicing, and project schedule updates.

1.2 - Project Meetings & Agency Coordination

Initial Project Meeting (Pre-PID Meeting)

GHD will coordinate the Pre-PID meeting with NVTA, City,
County, and Caltrans staff in accordance with the PDPM.
Among the purposes of the meeting will be to ensure
mutual understanding of the intended process, its
objectives, milestones, and products, and to refine the work
program and project schedule where necessary. This
meeting will also identify necessary members of the PDT,
including all necessary stakeholders.

PDT Meetings
Up to four (4) PDT meetings are assumed through

completion of the PID. GHD will lead each of these
meetings and will provide all PDT meeting coordination and
oversight, including the preparation of meeting minutes
summarizing actions taken, actions to be taken,
responsible party, and resolution date.

Agency Coordination

In addition to the four formal PDT meetings, the scope
assumes ten (10) Webex or conference calls with the
NVTA, Caltrans, and stakeholders as appropriate to ensure
timely delivering of the PID.

1.3 - Public Information Open House (1)

GHD will conduct one (1) public information open house.
This open house will be held as the project approaches
completion, prior to the preparation of the Draft PID.

The purpose of this meeting is to present the project’s
Purpose and Need and the alternatives being considered.
It is assumed NVTA and City/County staff will conduct the
presentations; however, GHD will assist in the preparation
of meeting presentation material. GHD will prepare and
produce handouts, a meeting notice project fact sheets,
agendas, comment sheets, and other print materials. Up to
two (2) GHD staff will also attend the meeting.

GHD will take the input received at the public meeting and
summarize it in the Draft PID as public comments. It is
assumed NVTA and/or the City will schedule the public
open house and make arrangements for a facility.

GHD will assist in the preparation of public notifications, but
it is assumed NVTA and/or the City/County will arrange to
release the notices to the appropriate media channels and
direct mail to the project database.

1.4 - Project Presentations (3)

GHD will available to assist NVTA, Country and/or City
make up to three (3) presentation to the City Council,
County Board of Supervisors, and NVTA Board as
appropriate. It is assumed NVTA and City/County staff will
conduct presentations; however, GHD will assist in the
preparation of meeting presentation material.

Task 2: Preliminary Research/Data
Collection and Base Mapping
2.1 - Preliminary Research/Data Collection

Under this task, existing data and information for the
project and project area will be assembled. The types of

18-21 GHD COMPANY/E11/040419_ryk

Page 24

Page 52 of 108

Proposal for SR 29 Comprehensive Mult/mddlal Corridor Plan & PID for SR 29 through American Canyon



information collected will include (but not be limited to)
existing mapping, as built plans, utility maps, record
improvement drawings and reports, and existing data
including County and Caltrans collision data, right of way
information, records maps, title information, utility
information, etc. The budget assumes all data will be
provided by NVTA, Caltrans, City of American Canyon, and
other stakeholders.

Under this task, GHD will mapping/as-built request letters
for all utilities in the area for NVTA to place on letterhead
and send to the utility purveyors.

2.2 - Preliminary Base Mapping

For this preliminary phase of the project, topographic
survey is not included in this scope of services. The base
mapping will be comprised of a scaled (non ortho-rectified)
aerial color photo mosaic obtained from readily available
sources. The base mapping will be prepared at a scale of
1"=500", with vertical information developed from available
sources including, but not limited available GIS databases
and InterMap.

Existing right of way and property information will also be
developed from available sources including, but not limited
available GIS databases, right-of-way record maps and as-
built plans. Utility information obtained from task 2.1 will be
delineated on the base maps.

GHD will also prepare a Survey Mapping Needs for PSR-
PDS Questionnaire and submit the questionnaire to
Caltrans for review and comment. This scope assumes that
no field surveys or fieldwork will be required.

2.3 - Existing Study Area Environmental

Constraints

GHD will review all existing documentation, perform
database reviews of the project corridor, and gather
scoping level information on the following topics:

« Land use (including existing and future land uses;
consistency with state, regional, trial, and local plans;
parks and recreation; growth; farmlands; community
character and cohesion; relocations; environmental
justice issues; and utilities/emergency services/public
facilities)

« Visual/aesthetics

« Historic/cultural resources

« Hydrology and floodplains

« Water quality and stormwater runoff

. Geology and soils

. Paleontology

« Hazardous waste/materials (a Phase | Initial Site
Assessment (ISA) will be prepared by as part of
determining the existing study area environmental
constraints; the ISA study will be prepared to identify
potential hazardous waste sites and that may have an
impact along the study corridor quality within the project
limits)

« Air quality, energy and climate change

« Noise and vibration

. Biological resources, section 4(f) properties

«  Cumulative impacts

«  Opportunities for context sensitive solutions

The draft ISA will be submitted to NVTA and Caltrans for
review and comment. Comments will be incorporated into a
final ISA that will be submitted to the County and Caltrans.
The environmental constraints and conditions data will be
used in a subsequent task to develop the PEAR.

Task 3: Purpose and Need Project

Information Form

GHD will prepare the Project Initiation Form (PIF) and
ensure that all steps outlined in the Caltrans Pre-Project
Initiation Document (PID) Check List are met. Specifically,
GHD will provide the following services.

3.1 - Develop Purpose and Need Statement
GHD will prepare a Draft “Purpose and Need” statement for
the project. The “Purpose and Need” statement will be
developed based on the study area deficiencies and
constraints. A memorandum will be prepared that states the
project’s “Purpose and Need” and provided to the PDT for
review, comment, and input.

3.2 - Prepare Draft of the PIF
GHD will prepare the Draft PIF, which is to include details
on:

« Project description

« Funding sources

« Project schedule

« Basic transportation deficiency

« Project background

« Project purpose and need

« Proposed solutions or range of alternatives
Environmental issues/known concerns
Right of way concerns

«  System planning

18-21 GHD COMPANY/E11/040419_ryk

Page 53 of 1

Proposal for SR 29 Comprehensive Mult/modal Corridor P/an & PID for SR 29 through American Canyon

Page 25



. Traffic data, accident data, alternative sketches
« Preliminary contact list for Project Development Team
members

Upon completion of the first draft of the PIF, GHD will
submit it to NVTA's project manager and attend one (1)
virtual meeting with the NVTA staff to review the draft PIF,
to discuss the information provided, and other information
that may be required from any of the stakeholders. Upon
resolution of all comments and questions, we will then
make changes to draft PIF and prepare a second draft to
be circulated to Caltrans, County, and City prior to the
official Pre-PID meeting.

3.3 - Prepare Final PIF

Following the Pre-PID meeting and upon receiving
additional comments from the reviewing agencies, GHD
will prepare the final PIF for final approval.

Task 4: Traffic Study: Intersection
Control Evaluation (ICE) Step 1

Information from the corridor study will be summarized
under this task.

4.1 - Step 1 ICE Summary
GHD will summarize the following information from the
Objective 1 scope:

. Existing Safety Deficiencies. Traffic Accident

Surveillance and Analysis System (TASAS) Tables, etc.

will be reviewed within the study area by roadway
segment and at primary study area intersection to
identify and discuss current safety deficiencies.

. Existing Traffic Capacity and Level of Service.
Traffic counts will be collected and the existing
roadway and intersection LOS will be derived. The
existing traffic conditions will be documented in a
technical memorandum. the existing LOS conditions
analysis will be prepared for approval by Caltrans.
GHD will collect new intersection turn-movement
counts, for the AM and PM peak hour periods, at all
intersections within the project boundary.

. Transit/Pedestrian/Bicycle Facilities. Existing transit
providers and pedestrian and bicycle facilities along
the study corridor will be identified.

4.2 - Traffic Modeling Forecasts
The regional travel demand model, with adjustments
recommended by GHD and the PDT, will be used to derive

construction year and design year forecasts. A forecast
memorandum will be prepared in draft for review/comment
by the PDT. Based on agency comments, the final
forecasts will be prepared for approval by Caltrans.

4.3 - Evaluate Construction Year and Design

Year Traffic Operations

The “no build” traffic operations conditions will be derived.
The alternatives selected for consideration in the PSR-PDS
(in other phases in this scope) will be analyzed to
determine the delays, LOS, and queues.

4.4 - Intersection Control Evaluation (ICE) Step

1 and Traffic Operations Report

GHD will use the traffic safety and operations analysis
developed under this phase, along with preliminary
geometric designs and costs estimates developed in other
phases in this scope, to complete an ICE Step 1 in
accordance with the Caltrans TOPD. The ICE will address:

. Traffic capacity and operational modeling (Traffic
Operations Report)

. Safety performance analysis

« Life-cycle economic analysis

« Service-life analysis

«  Geometric design

« Costs

Task 5: Alternatives Development &

Analysis

GHD will develop and evaluate up to thee (3) “build”
alternatives and a no build alternative. The “build”
alternatives will be developed by GHD and in accordance
with the findings of Object 1, the updated corridor plan, and
will ultimately meet or reduce transportation deficiencies
and address the project purpose and need. GHD will
ensure the PDT is involved in the alternative development
processes and will be consistent with the Caltrans ICE
policy, TOPD 13-02.

5.1 - Develop Project Build Alternatives

GHD will prepare one PID level geometric designs for each
of the three “build” alternatives. The geometric designs will
be developed in sufficient detail to evaluate costs, design
standards, right of way impacts, utility impacts, and
environmental impacts. For budgeting purposes is
assumed one (1) draft submittal of the each alternative will
be provided to NVTA, comments will be reviewed and
addressed. GHD will then prepare revised draft exhibits

18-21 GHD COMPANY/E11/040419_ryk

Page 26

Page 54 of 108

Proposal for SR 29 Comprehensive Mult/mdd’al Corridor Plan & PID for SR 29 through American Canyon



and submit those to the PDT for review a comment.
Comments will be addressed and one set of final draft
exhibits will be prepared for inclusion in the PID document.

It is assumed that electronic submittals of the geometric
designs will be sufficient.

5.2 - Preliminary Environmental Analysis
Report (PEAR)
The PEAR that will be prepared for this project will include:

1. The Project Description, based on the conceptual
alternatives being considered and developed within
Task 5.1

2. Ananalysis of potential environmental issues
associated with each of the identified alternatives. The
analysis will include scope, schedule, and costs
associated with the subsequent environmental
compliance process, and document the assumptions
and risks used to develop them. This information will
be presented in a tabular format for easy comparison
between the alternatives

3. Adiscussion of the anticipated environmental
documentation and anticipated environmental
commitments needed for each alternative to comply
with CEQA and NEPA requirements

4. Ananalysis of regulatory and agency permits likely to
be needed for each project alternative

The PEAR will also consider the following topics,
consistent with guidance set out in Caltrans’'s PEAR
Handbook (2009) and the City’s preferred CEQA Checklist
(based on Appendix G of the CEQA Guidelines):

. Land Use
o Existing and Future Land Use
o Consistency with State, Regional, and Local Plans
o Parks and Recreation
« Growth
« Farmlands/Timberlands
« Community Impacts
o Community Character and Cohesion
o Relocations
o Environmental Justice
o Utilities/Emergency Services/Public Facilities
« Visual and Aesthetic Resources
« Historic and Cultural Resources
« Hydrology and Floodplain
«  Water Quality and Stormwater Runoff
«  Geology, Soils, Seismic, and Topography

. Paleontology

« Hazardous Waste/Materials

« Air Quality

« Noise and Vibration

 Energy and Climate Change

. Biological Resources

« Section 4(f) and Section 6(f) Properties

«  Cumulative Impacts

«  Opportunities for Context Sensitive Solutions

The evaluation of these topics will be concise, yet will be
discussed in sufficient detail to preliminarily assess the
need for further studies, analyses, or permits that may be
required. Environmental issues anticipated to require more
in-depth review include biological resources and
community impacts. Other issues (e.g., parks and
recreation, Section 4(f) and 6(f) resources) are not
expected to be implicated by the project; the PEAR will
very briefly document why further environmental analysis of
these resources is not necessary. The analysis will be
based primarily on a review of existing documentation and
databases. One (1) general field review of the project area
will be conducted, documenting existing conditions of the
project study area. This scope of work includes conducting
a California Natural Diversity Database (CNDDB) search of
the project area, requesting a special-status species list
from the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service (USFWS), and
conducting a cultural resources records search at the
California Historical Resources Information System’s
(CHRIS) Central Coast Information Center (CCIC).

The PEAR will include all required attachments, including
the PEAR Environmental Studies Checklist, Estimated
Resources by WBS Code, Schedule (Gantt Chart), and
PEAR Environmental Commitments Cost Estimate.

5.3 - Design Standards

GHD will reference the Caltrans Design Information Bulletin
(DIB) 78 Design Checklist based on the level of detail
developed for each build alternative to assist in identifying
anticipated non-standard design features that may deviate
for the Highway Design Manual (HDM) design standards.
The resulting list of anticipated non-standard design
features will be documented and discussed with the PDT.
Caltrans will identify the likelihood of approval of non-
standard features.

5.4 - Storm Water Data Report (SWDR)
Based on the project build alternatives, GHD will prepare
the PID level SWDR's. The scope assumes that SWDR’s

18-21 GHD COMPANY/E11/040419_ryk

Page 55 of 1

Proposal for SR 29 Comprehensive Mult/modal Corridor P/an .4 PID for SR 29 through American Canyon

Page 27



will be required for one “build” alternative. Draft SWDR’s
will be submitted to Caltrans for review/comment.
Comments will be incorporated and final SWDR’s will be
prepared and submitted.

5.5 - Right of Way Estimates

GHD will complete the “Conceptual Cost Estimate - Right
of Way Component” for the three “build” alternatives. The
estimates will be completed using form 4-EX-8 of the
Caltrans’ Right of Way manual. It is assumed NVTA and/or
other stakeholders will provide market values.

5.6 - Develop Cost Estimates

GHD will develop PID level cost estimate for each “build”
alternative per PDPM. GHD will also develop the estimated
support cost that will be needed to complete PA/ED.

5.7 - Develop Schedules
GHD will develop a schedule for delivery of major
milestones of the PA/ED phase.

5.8 - Project Risks

GHD will prepare a project risk register in accordance with
Caltrans requirements. The risk registered will be reviewed
at each PDT meeting and updated as the project
progresses. GHD will update and the Risk Register will be
included in the PID.

5.9 - Life Cycle Cost Analysis (LCCA)
GHD will prepare a LCCA in accordance with the Caltrans

policy.

Task 6: Project Study Report/Project
Development Support (PSR-PDS)

For budgeting purposes, it is assumed the appropriate PID
document is a PSR-PDS. This task consists of preparing
the draft and final PSR-PDS. The report preparation
sequence will consist of preparing a draft PSR-PDS for
review by PDT members; then a draft PSR-PDS for district
wide distribution within Caltrans; then a draft final PSR-
PDS for final review by the PDT; and then a final PSR-PDS
submitted for Caltrans approval. The scope assumes that
FHWA oversight is not required.

6.1 - First Draft PSR-PDS

GHD will prepare a First Draft PSR-PDS for initial review by
the PDT. The First Draft PSR-PDS will, at a minimum,
include all work completed in the previous project tasks. Up

to fifteen (15) bound copies of the Draft Report will be
prepared and provided to the PDT for their review and
comment.

6.2 - Review Comments on First Draft PSR-PDS
Comments received from the PDT will be reviewed and any
identified issues or concerns will be addressed. It is
assumed that a comment review meeting, if needed, will be
conducted through a web-based meeting. GHD will prepare
a written response to all comments received.

6.3 - Second Draft PSR-PDS

The second Draft PSR-PDS will incorporate any comments
received from the PDT. Up to fifteen (15) bound copies of
the Second Draft PSR-PDS will be prepared and provided
for review and comment to the PDT and to Caltrans for
district-wide and headquarters circulation.

During the Second Draft PSR-PDS review by Caltrans, the
scope assumes Caltrans will conduct a joint Safety Review
and Constructability Review meeting. Comments from the
meeting will be summarized and a response will be
prepared by GHD. The meeting response to comments will
be distributed to the PDT and Caltrans.

6.4 - Review Comments on the Second Draft

PSR-PDS

Comments received on the Second Draft PSR-PDS will be
reviewed and any identified issues or concerns will be
addressed. It is assumed that a comment review meeting,
if needed, will be conducted through a web-based meeting.
GHD will prepare a written response to all comments
received.

6.5 - Third Draft PSR-PDS

Upon addressing all comments on the Second Draft PSR-
PDS, GHD will then prepare the Third Draft PSR-PDS.
Fifteen (15) bound copies of the Third Draft PSR-PDS will
be prepared and provided to the PDT and Caltrans for their
review and comment.

6.6 - Final PSR-PDS

The Final PSR-PDS will be prepared upon resolution of all
final comments and issues. One (1) copy of the Final PSR-
PDS will be submitted to Caltrans for final approval and
signatures. It is estimated at this time that GHD will be
responsible for the reproduction of up to fifteen (15) bound
copies of the approved PSR-PDS.

18-21 GHD COMPANY/E11/040419_ryk

Page 28

Page 56 of 108

Proposal for SR 29 Comprehensive Mult/mddal Corridor Plan & PID for SR 29 through American Canyon



Project Understanding

Schedule - Objective 1

PROJECT SCHEDULE

#  Task Description Objective 1
Task 1 Project Startup

1] Meeting (CACITACISWG) [g charrette
E Deliverable

1.1 Project Management and Coordination

1.2 Project Kick-Off Meeting

Check-In

1.3 Bi-Weekly Conference Calls

1.4 Data Retrieval / Processing / Review

Task 2 Ongoing Stakeholder and Community Outreach and Project Oversight

2.1 Prepare a Draft and Final Public Outreach Plan

2.2 Stakeholder/Jurisdictional Meetings

2.3 Committee Meetings

2.4 Public Meetings

2.5 Collateral Outreach Materials

2.6 Public Outreach Plan and Summary Report

Task 3 Develop Plan Components

3.1 Evaluate Opportunities, Develop Corridor Plan Framework and Literature Review

3.2 Summarize Corridor Existing Studies and Plans

3.3 Model Future Traffic Projections

3.4 Program and Project identification

3.5 Corridor improvement Implementation Plan

Task 4 Final Plan and Public Meeting

4.1 Prepare Administrative Draft, Draft, and Final Plan

4.2 Present Final Plan to NVTA Board

Note: Schedule is preliminary, and will be finalized at the Project Kick-Off Meeting

18-21 GHD COMPANY/E11/040419_rykK Page 57 of

Proposal for SR 29 Comprehensive Mult/modal Corridor P/an & PID for SR 29 through American Canyon

Page 29



Project Understanding

Schedule - Objective 2

[] Meeting (PDT)

PROJECT SCHEDULE .
E Deliverable Check-In

De ption Obje
Task 1 Project Management, Coordination and Quality Control
1.1 Project Management & Quality Control
1.2 Project Meetings & Agency Coordination
1.3 Public Information Open House (1)
1.4 Project Presentations D »
Task 2 Preliminary Research/Data Collection and Base Mapping
2.1 Preliminary Research/Data Collection
2.2 Preliminary Base Mapping
2.3 Existing Study Area Environmental Constraints
Task 3 Develop Plan Components
3.1 Develop Purpose and Need Statement
3.2 Prepare Draft of the PIF
3.3 Prepare Final PIF E
Task 4 Final Plan and Public Meeting
4.1 Existing Transportation Conditions
4.2 Traffic Modeling Forecasts
4.3 Evaluate Construction Year and Design Year Traffic Operations
4.4 Intersection Control Evaluation (ICE) Step 1 and Traffic Operations Report
Task 5 Alternatives Development & Analysis
5.1 Develop Project Build Alternatives D
5.2 Preliminary Environmental Analysis Report (PEAR) D
5.3 Design Standards D
5.4 Storm Water Data Report (SWDR) D
5.5 Right of Way Estimates D
5.6 Develop Cost Estimates D
5.7 Develop Schedules »
5.8 Project Risks »
5.9 Life Cycle Cost Analysis (LCCA) | 1 D
Task 6 Project Study Report/Project Development Support (PSR-PDS)
6.1 First Draft PSR-PDS »
Agency Review
6.2 Review Comments on the First Draft PSR-PDS
6.3 Second Draft PDS-PDS D
Agency Review
6.4 Review Comments on the Second Draft PSR-PDS
6.5 Third Draft PSR-PDS D
Agency Review
6.6 Final PSR-PDS | | D

Note: Schedule is preliminary, and will be finalized at the Project Kick-Off Meeting |

18-21 GHD COMPANY/E11/040419_ryk Page 58 of 108

Page 30 Proposal for SR 29 Comprehensive Mult/mdéfal Corridor Plan & PID for SR 29 through American Canyon



Budgets

The Budgets for Objective 1 and Objective 2 are in separate sealed envelopes

18-21 GHD COMPANY/E11/040419_ryk Page 59 of 1

Proposal for SR 29 Comprehensive Mult/modal Corridor P/an & PID for SR 29 through American Canyon Page 31



-

i
943 Reserve Drive, Suite 100
Roseville, CA 95678

P: 916 782 8688/F: 916 782 8689

Todd Tregenza, 916 782 8688
Todd.Tregenza@ghd.com

« Complete Streets

« Roundabout Planning and Design
« Traffic Engineering

« Transportation Planning/Design

« Landscape Architecture/Wayfinding
« Civil Engineering

« Land/Construction Surveying

« Geographic Information Systems

Corporation

DIR Number: #1000018754

SR 29/SR 221 Roundabout Interchange Initial
Feasibility Evaluation

First Street/California Boulevard
Roundabout Feasibility Study

Imola Avenue Gateway Enhancement

About GHD

Established in 1928, GHD is a wholly-owned subsidiary - a privately held interna-
tional engineering firm owned by our people and operates across five continents.
Our people can offer decades of knowledge, as well as a deep understanding of
the challenges facing businesses and communities today. Globally, we employ
more than 9,000 people in 200 offices and have delivered projects in more than
90 countries. In North America, our resources include 4,000 people with more
than 130 locations across the region. Our business model is to work international-
ly and deliver locally - put simply, we work where our clients work. GHD merged
with Omni-Means in 2017. This merger has bolstered our ability to provide ser-
vices to clients from 14 locations throughout California. We are confident that our
skill-set will match your needs.

Experience in the Napa Area

Knowing the full range of transportation services GHD can offer NVTA, the City,
and the County, they have been able to take advantage of our transportation
planning, traffic operations, simulation, and roundabout expertise and capabilities
for years. We started working with the City of Napa in 2010 performing the
Streets West of Downtown Area Traffic Operations Study, identifying potential
improvements at 1st, 2nd, 3rd, and Clay Streets - extending from SR 29 easterly,
to Jefferson Avenue and how they would function with the adjacent freeway ramp
intersections. Also in 2010, we prepared the 1st Street/California Boulevard
Roundabout Feasibility Study that concluded a roundabout at 1st Street/
California Boulevard, in conjunction with a signal at the SR 29/1st Street ramps,
would create acceptable operations and eliminate the congestion issues.

The First and Second Street Roundabouts along California Boulevard
(PS&E) project (2013) is at intersections in the downtown area. We are now pre-
paring the roundabouts PS&E for the closely-spaced streets at California Boule-
vard, 1st Street, and 2nd Street, as well as the SR 29 ramp intersection with 1st
Street. The 5-Way Intersection Improvements project (2014) is a high-profile
intersection located on SR 121/Silverado Trail east needing to improve opera-
tions. The preferred alternative we are developing is two closely-spaced rounda-
bouts. In 2015, we developed the Citywide Travel Demand Model using Cube
software to accurately forecast local traffic conditions and help City Staff and the
City Council to properly size and prioritize capital improvements.

For the City of Napa and the Napa Valley Transportation Agency in 2015, we pre-
pared the SR 29/SR 221 Roundabout Interchange Initial Feasibility Evalua-
tion for the potential use of roundabouts to improve the location without aesthetic
impacts and to maintain pedestrian and bicycle continuity. The following year
(2016) we were awarded two On-Call projects: the Measure T Infrastructure Eval-
uation and the Civil Engineering Services and we performed an Automated Red
Light Enforcement Study that included the intersection of SR 221/Imola Ave-
nue. In 2017, our team designed the Imola Avenue Gateway Enhancement
Project to set the tone for future landscape enhancement projects in the area
and as a gateway corridor to the City. The design needed to reflect the environ-
mental values of the community and visually enhance the Imola Avenue corridor
between South Coombs Street and SR 29. Specifically, the enhancement en-

18-21 GHD COMPANY/E11/040419_ryk

Proposal for SR 29 Comprehensive Mult/mdc&I Corridor Plan & PID for SR 29 through American Canyon

Page 32

Page 60 of 108



Familiarity with State and Federal Procedures
It is critical for the NVTA to leverage its local funding with
both State and Federal sources and it is critical to know
the requirements of the granting entity, which in many
cases, is Caltrans.

We are well-versed in projects with funding and their
requirements, and understand the requirements
regarding proprietary items. GHD’ staff are experts at
compliance with the Caltrans Local Assistance funding,
paperwork and FHWA requirements. We have
successfully provided management for Local Assistance
projects for many California cities. We have been very
effective in assisting agencies secure funding through
various grant programs including, but not limited to:

« Active Transportation Plan

«  Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality Improvement
Program (CMAQ)

« Highway Safety Improvement Program (HSIP/HR3)

« Federal and State Safe Routes to School (SRTS/
SR2S).

GHD has gathered a team with the experience and
knowledge of:

« Caltrans’ Project Development and Procedures
Manual

« the Local Assistance Procedures Manual and
Funding Criteria

« Caltrans Highway Design Manual

« AASHTO Policy Manual

« Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices (CA
MUTCD),

« California Disabled accessibility Guidebook (CalDAG)

. Title 24 Reports

We can successfully manage projects with minimal
support from County staff and will fulfill all Caltrans,
County, and Federal Highway Administration (FHWA)
requirements for funding and documentation.

We are on a first-name basis with the Caltrans Local
Assistance staff and will do everything possible to help
you receive timely and full reimbursements. We even
provide invoicing services for several small agencies and
intimately know the changing Caltrans expectations for
consultant management and invoicing. We thoroughly
understand the Local Assistance Procedures Manual,
Caltrans standard plans, and standard specifications and
manuals and have the ability to complete the necessary
exhibits from the Caltrans LAPM.

Our familiarity with the Caltrans process saves time and
we look forward to the advantage this brings to your
projects. All of the proposed staff for this task are
thoroughly familiar with the Caltrans Project Development
and Procedures Manual and the Local Assistance
Procedures Manual and Funding Criteria.

18-21 GHD COMPANY/E11/040419_ryk

Page 61 of 1

Proposal for SR 29 Comprehensive Mult/modal Corridor P/an 4 PID for SR 29 through American Canyon

Page 33



REGIONAL
GOVERNMENT
SERVICES

RGS|
=S—
Role: Community Outreach
PO Box 1350

Carmel Valley, CA 93924

1650 587 7300

Role: Tool Development/Data
Collection

25672 Crestfield Circle
Castro Valley, CA 94552
1510 320 0680
Registration: DBE #45726/
SBE #2011002

tailed a landscape treatment in the medians that is attractive and welcoming to visi-
tors of the City of Napa. In 2018 we were awarded the contract for the Imola Ave-
nue Corridor Complete Streets Improvement Plan.

Subconsultants

Regional Government Services (RGS) is a Joint Powers Authority established in
2001 to serve the needs of cities, counties, special districts, and other governmen-
tal entities throughout California. RGS offers comprehensive communications and
strategic planning services to municipal agencies. The RGS team has developed
and implemented a broad range of communications efforts for cities, counties, spe-
cial districts and regional planning agencies throughout California. Public agencies
have a unique responsibility to serve. RGS works exclusively with public agencies,
providing consulting services to meet the needs of its partner agencies. Services
include communications, human resources, planning, payroll, strategic planning,
municipal finance, training, and project management. Their staff are experienced,
knowledgeable and dedicated to public service.

Elite Transportation Group, Inc. (ETG) is a transportation consulting firm based
in the San Francisco Bay Area. Their core values are “Integrity”, “Quality”, and
“Reliability”. ETG specializes in travel demand modeling, big data analytics, traffic
operations, traffic analysis and modeling, and Intelligent Transportation Systems
(ITS). ETG’s co-founders have over 30 years of combined experience in the areas
of travel demand modeling, traffic forecasting, transportation planning, traffic opera-
tions, corridor studies, toll operations, managed lanes, congestion pricing, traffic
simulation and modeling, traffic signal systems, traffic impact studies, traffic safety,
ITS, statistical data analysis, performance measurement, and benefit/cost analysis.
The firm serves a full-range of clients, including Caltrans, metropolitan planning
organizations (MPQOs), congestion management agencies (CMAs), Transportation
Authorities (TAs), municipalities, private developers, and other consulting firms.
ETG’s mission is to assist clients to meet their transportation needs by providing
customized optimal solutions leveraging latest technologies.

18-21 GHD COMPANY/E11/040419_ryk

Page 62 of 108

Page 34 Proposal for SR 29 Comprehensive Multim@@al Corridor Plan & PID for SR 29 through American Canyon


tel:9167061374

Project Experience

State Route (SR) 68 Scenic Highway Plan, Transportation Agency for Monterey County (TAMC)

Funded by a Caltrans Sustainable Communities Planning grant, Mr. Damkowitch managed a comprehensive analysis of the
SR 68 corridor for the TAMC. Both existing and future conditions were analyzed along 15 miles of corridor (Monterey to Salin-
as). Using performance metrics from the Smart Mobility Framework combined with an aggressive public outreach effort, three
corridor concepts were developed for further analysis. The development of the concepts was informed by various multimodal
analyses including ICE of 11 corridor intersections. A VISSIM micro-simulation model was developed and validated to analyze
each for the concepts under future year conditions. The micro-simulation results were combined with the static ICE and safe-
ty analysis (HSM Predictive Method) results and applied to the 2016 Caltrans Cal/BC model parameters to yield monetized
benefits for each corridor concept. These monetized benefits were then combined with the planning level cost opinions of
each Corridor Concept to yield a holistic benefit-cost ratio for each concept. The preferred corridor concept also included cap-
ital improvements to facilitate safe passage of wildlife that must routinely cross SR 68. The study was adopted by the
SLOCOG Board in August of 2017. The study received a Northern California APA Excellence award in 2018.

Start/End Date: 2017 Cost/Schedule Performance:  On time/within budget
Team: Jim Damkowitch Subconsultants: Flint Strategies
Total Project Cost: ~ $250,000 Total Cost of Services: $250,000

Reference: Grant Leonard, Associate Transportation Planner, TAMC, 55 B Plaza Circle, Salinas, CA 93901,
' 18317754402

Federal Congestion Management Plan (CMP) Technical Support, County and City Sacramento

Mr. Damkowitch managed the traffic support services for the development of a federal compliant CMP for the Sacramento
Area Council of Governments (SACOG) region. This entailed developing improvement strategies and projects for 18 CMP
deficient corridors and a process (tasks and schedules) for integrating the CMP into SACOG'’s other regional planning and
programming responsibilities. He participated in SACOG’s CMP Committee meetings and facilitated meetings with Federal
Highway Administration (FHWA) during development of the CMP. He supported SACOG to document the CMP for submittal
to FHWA and approval.

Start/End Date: 2017 Cost/Schedule Performance:  On time/within budget
Team: Jim Damkowitch Subconsultants: NA
Total Project Cost: ~ $25,000 Total Cost of Services: $20,000

Reference: Binu Abraham, Senior Analyst, SACOG, 1415 L Street, Suite 300, Sacramento, CA 95814, 1 916 340 6242

2018 Regional Transportation Plan/Sustainable Communities Strategy (RTP/SCS) & EIR, MCAG

Managed the comprehensive update to Merced County Association of Governments (MCAG) RTP and SCS per SB 375.
This entailed the following tasks; developed revenue projections from local, state and federal sources anticipated over the
25 year planning horizon, assisted MCAG in developing financially constrained Tier | CIP list relative to project revenues,
developed/refined MCAG’s RTP/SCS performance measures, developed four alternative land use scenarios using Envi-
sionTomorrow™ software, assisted translating the EnvisionTomorrow™ land use scenarios into the tri-county CUBE region-
al transportation model, processed travel forecasts for each land use scenario, performed a comparative analysis of each
land use scenario relative to the RTP/SCS performance measures, including an environmental justice analysis, assisted
with the air quality conformity analysis, applied NPMRDS data to quantify several federal performance measures, and pro-
vide technical support for EIR traffic section. Both the RTP/SCS and EIR were approved by MCAG in August 2018.

Start/End Date: June 2017 to August 2018 Cost/Schedule Performance:  On time/within budget
Team: Jim Damkowitch Subconsultants: Mintier-Harnish; Encina Advisors;
Regional Government Services

Total Project Cost: 299,960 Total Cost of Services: 299,960
Reference: Matt Fell, Senior Transportation Planner, MCAG, 369 West 18th Street, Merced, CA 95340, 1 209 723 3153
-
I—

18-21 GHD COMPANY/E11/040419 ryk Page 63 of 1

Proposal for SR 29 Comprehensive Mult/modal Corridor PI&Q& PID for SR 29 through American Canyon Page 35



SR 49 Corridor System Management Plan (CSMP), Nevada County Transportation Commission (NCTC)

GHD was selected by Nevada County Transportation Commission (NCTC) to update the State Route 49 (SR 49) Corridor
System Management Plan (CSMP). The plan is a multimodal evaluation of existing corridor performance, planned and pro-
grammed improvements, and identification of measures that would improve SR 49 corridor performance today and into the
future. GHD worked with NCTC and Caltrans to select performance measures for the analysis, including and beyond those
in the prior CSMP prepared by Caltrans. Corridor conditions, including non-standard designs, geometric factors, environ-
mental factors, access management, and intersection control and lighting were reviewed in the field and digitally in an at-
tempt to correlate poor performance or increased collision rates. GHD utilized buffer time and travel time reliability indices,
established through NPMRDS data, congested travel speed and levels of service, collision history, established through
SWITRS and PeMS data, and bicycle and pedestrian connectivity and levels of traffic stress as the primary performance
metrics for seven zones along SR 49.

Start/End Date: ~ 2017- Ongoing Cost/Schedule Performance: On time/within budget
Team: Jim Damkowitch, Kamesh Vedula, Todd Subconsultants: National Data and
Tregenza, Charuni Kurumbalapitiya, Heather Surveying Services

Anderson, Rosanna Southern, Kenneth
Isenhower, Zachary Stinger

Total Project Cost: $67,321 Total Cost of Services: $74,970

Reference:  Daniel Landon, Executive Director, NCTC, 101 Providence Mine Road, #102, Nevada City, CA 95959,
1530 265 3202

Southbound US 101 PA/ED Traffic Analysis, Pismo Beach/San Luis Obispo Council of Governments
(SLOCOG)

GHD was selected by San Luis Obispo Council of Governments (SLOCOG) to prepare the traffic analysis in support of the
Southbound US 101 PA/ED in Pismo Beach. The analysis includes preparation of a macroscopic model in FREQ to simu-
late freeway operations under existing and future conditions, and under various improvement scenarios. The model devel-
opment involved collection of a variety of data sources in order to validate and calibrate the FREQ model, including traffic
volume data, NPMRDS historical average congested and uncongested travel speeds, and floating car mainline travel time
runs. The model will be utilized to test operational benefits of a variety of geometric improvements proposed in the PSR/
PDS, including part time use of left shoulder during peak hours, extension of truck climbing lane, and a variety of other
mainline and ramp terminal improvement options. The macroscopic model outputs will include comparative travel time be-
tween alternatives, average speed, travel time index, travel delay, vehicle miles and vehicle hours travelled, levels of ser-
vice and density, and vehicle and person trips served.

Start/End Date: 2017- Ongoing Cost/Schedule Performance:  On time/within budget

Team: Todd Tregenza, Jim Damkowitch, Richard Subconsultants: N/A
Krumholz, Kamesh Vedula, Heather
Anderson, Kenneth Isenhower

Total Project Cost: ~ $32,932 to date Total Cost of Services: $175,00 Est.
Reference:  Richard Murphy, Program Director, SLOCOG, 1114 Marsh St., San Luis Obispo, CA 93401, 1 805 781 5754

18-21 GHD COMPANY/E11/040419_ryk Page 64 of 108

Page 36 Proposal for SR 29 Comprehensive Multim@a®al Corridor Plan & PID for SR 29 through American Canyon



Experience and Qualifications

Reference

Rich Deal, PE, TE, PTOE

Principal Engineer (Former City of
Monterey Traffic Engineer)
Transportation Agency for Monterey
County

18317754413
rich@tamcmonterey.org

Date
2014-2017

Awards

« 2017 American Council of
Engineering Companies California
Engineering Excellence Honor
Award

« 2017 Transportation Agency for
Monterey County Transportation
Excellence Award

« 2018 League of California Cities
Outstanding Local Streets and
Roads Project Awards Program
category

« 2018 APWA Monterey Bay Chapter
Public Works Project of the Year
Award of Merit, Transportation, $5
million but less than $25 million

17 Mile Drive/Holman Highway 68/Highway 1 Roundabout
Intersection ICE - Monterey

Along the coast in the Monterey Peninsula, GHD prepared plans for a rounda-
bout solution for the Holman Highway 68 and Highway 1 intersection. The loca-
tion serves as a gateway for the communities of Pacific Grove, Pebble Beach,
and the famous 17 Mile Drive. GHD worked with a community partnership includ-
ing the City of Monterey, Caltrans, the Pebble Beach Company, and Monterey
County, to improve the intersection at Holman Highway 68 and Highway 1, in-
cluding access to 17 Mile Drive.

The selected improvements feature two closely-spaced roundabouts, one of
which is a “midi” roundabout as an improvement to the current “T” intersection at
the access point to 17 Mile Drive. The end result is a solution that addresses all
of the unique characteristics of the area. Reduced idling times for travelers due
to eliminating traffic signals and stop signs will improve traffic flow and reduce
Greenhouse Gas Emissions, providing an environmentally-friendly improvement
in an area prized for its natural environment. The clearly marked approaches into
and out of the roundabout will allow the many visitors to the area to easily navi-
gate to any of the several tourist destinations served by this access point. The
project was advertised for bidding late 2015, with Granite Construction as the
low bidder at approximately $6.3 million. Construction was completed in 2017.

TR BT VI

f

18-21 GHD COMPANY/E11/040419_rykK

Proposal for SR 29 Comprehensive Mult/modal Corridor Plaﬂ’& PID for SR 29 through American Canyon

Page 65 of

Page 37



Experience and Qualifications

Reference SR 99/Central Galt Interchange Modification - Galt
Jason Behrmann The Central Galt Interchange is the primary access into the City of Galt's
City Manager downtown area. The urban growth and future growth projected by the General
City of Galt Plan necessitated a solution be found for the congested area. The approved
1209 366 7100 design utilized a split-diamond design to provide access via two main cross-
jbehrmann@ci.ga.ca.us town roadways. However, the enlarged interchange required the careful miti-
gation for a number of key issues including:
Date
2004-2013 « Impacts to an existing residential area
« Channelization of drainage through the area
Awards « Future linkage to growth areas east of SR 99
« 2015 ASCE Sacramento Region, « Impacts to existing vegetation of significant visual quality
Community Improvement PY « Relocation of major utilities
« 2015 CMAA Northern California . Buffering existing residential areas and commercial areas
Chapter, Transportation $5 to $15
Million In response to the many key issues, GHD provided 15 alternative design solu-

tions for the selection committee to consider. The resulting design includes the
reconstruction of all four interchange ramps, auxiliary lanes on SR 99 to the
adjacent interchanges, and two new overcrossing structures.

GHD prepared the PS&E and provided construction support, as well as a
phased landscape master plan allowing the City to implement the landscape
design as funding becomes available.

PANY/E11/040419_ryk Page 66 of 108

~ 18-21GHDCOM
Page 38 Proposal for SR 29 Comprehensive Multim@dal Corridor Plan & PID for SR 29 through American Canyon



Experience and Qualifications

Reference SR 99/Fulkerth Road Interchange Reconstruction PSR, PA/ED, and

Mike Pitcock, PE PS&E - Turlock

City Engineer The SR 99/Fulkerth Road interchange in central Turlock is surrounded by rapidly

City of Turlock, Engineering Division developing industrial, commercial, and residential areas. In 2007, driven by talk

1209 668 5520 of large-scale development proposals, the City retained GHD to develop inter-

engineering@turlock.ca.us change improvement alternatives, and prepare a Project Study Report, secure
environmental approvals, prepare a Project Report and prepare the PS&E.

Date

2007-Ongoing GHD prepared detailed traffic modeling, traffic operations analysis, and prelimi-

nary design alternatives. The design alternatives analysis, performed by GHD,
resulted in the City and Caltrans approvals through the PSR, environmental, and
Project Report phases. GHD is currently in the PS&E phase of the project deliv-

ery.

GHD has the lead role for all Caltrans coordination and approvals, including
schedule management, project development team meetings, submittals and ap-
provals. In addition, GHD is providing all utility coordination and right of way en-
gineering. The City has secured a combination of local and state funds for con-
struction that is complete.

PANY/E11/040419 Page 67 of

- 18-21GHD COM
Proposal for SR 29 Comprehensive Mult/modal Corridor Plaﬂﬂ PID for SR 29 through American Canyon Page 39



Experience and Qualifications

Reference

Steve Hughes

Design Manager

Caltrans North Region
1707 4456418
steve.hughes@dot.ca.gov

Date
2013-Ongoing

US 101/Trinidad Interchange PSR-PDS - Trinidad

GHD was retained by the Trinidad Rancheria in 2013 to study access alterna-
tives for the greater Rancheria and City of Trinidad area. The first step was to
prepare a freeway master plan traffic analysis that demonstrated to the Ranche-
ria, the City, the County and Caltrans, the impacts of future growth. The traffic
study was approved by Caltrans in 2014, leading to the formation of a Project
Development Team and commencement of the Project Study Report - Project
Development Support (PSR-PDS) phase.

GHD prepared studies for 12 alternatives that ranged from improving existing
roads, interchange reconstruction, and new interchanges. In support of the alter-
natives analysis, base mapping was prepared, right of way impacts were identi-
fied, cost estimates were prepared and an Intersection Control Evaluation (ICE),
in accordance with Caltrans policies, was prepared.

In addition, extensive supporting documentation was prepared, along with a De-
sign Exception Fact Sheet, for new interchange spacing less than two miles.

The freeway interchange design exception was approved in 2016 and the PSR-
PDS was approved in 2017. The approval of the PSR-PDS made it possible for
the Rancheria to receive STIP funding to begin PA/ED in the 2018/19 FY.

PANY/E11/040419

Page 638 of 108

1821 GHDCOM
Page 40 Proposal for SR 29 Comprehens:ve Multim@gal Corridor Plan & PID for SR 29 through American Canyon



Nancy McWilliams

Senior Civil Engineer

City of American Canyon

1707 647 4579
nmcwilliams@cityofamericancanyon.
org

2016-2018

SR 29 Signal Interconnect & Adaptive Corridor Control - American
Canyon

The City's General Plan documents improving SR 29 to serve intra- and inter-
regional traffic and goods movement as a priority for the City. While the City, Na-
pa County Transportation & Planning Agency (NCTPA), and Caltrans have part-
nered to create a vision for the SR 29 Corridor, there is a need to review, docu-
ment, and understand the traffic patterns and their impact at the over time. Con-
sidering that a portion of the City of American Canyon is designated as a Priority
Development Area (PDA), the SR 29 corridor, and that the City is bisected by
this corridor, reviewing the intersections for growth and traffic pattern changes is
critical to planning for the future.

GHD provided traffic engineering and consulting services to assist the City in
preparing for future observation and traffic data count stations, potential intercon-
nected signal corridor routed to a centralized traffic management data center and
potential change to an adaptive traffic control system. GHD initially completed an
existing inventory of State-owned and operated traffic signals along SR 29 within
the City, which included six signalized intersections, documented existing com-
munication data rates between signals where existing interconnect was present
and not present, and documented bandwidth along existing signal interconnect.

In locations with broken or missing twisted pair signal interconnect, GHD pre-
pared PS&E for construction. This work included obtaining Caltrans encroach-
ment permit for the work.

Additionally, the City was considering implementation of Rhythm Engineering
In|Sync adaptive control system. GHD coordinated with the manufacture and
Caltrans to facilitate discussions about implementation of this system for the cor-
ridor with Caltrans District 4 Traffic Operations. Adaptive control is currently be-
ing considered.

The City completed installation or repair of traffic signal interconnect (twisted
pair) throughout the corridor and is currently working with Caltrans for future im-
plementation of adaptive control for the corridor.

CITY OF AMERICAN CANYON

PROJECT NO. TR15-0300

I
,,é" - anlf“ S

STATE ROUTE (SR) 29 SIGNAL INTERCONNECT | “=# -

‘Jlﬂ’) ; $‘

l ASBHIAAT

-.-.-.__
e | i

st

e (1'.-;‘-“'-‘5:

o1 TTH e
gL {&

18-21 GHD COMPANY/E11/040419_ryk

Page 69 of 1

Proposal for SR 29 Comprehensive Mult/modal Corridor P/am PID for SR 29 through American Canyon Page 41



Jason Holly

City Manager

City of American Canyon

1707 647 5323
jholly@cityofamericancanyon.org

2013-2015

Traffic Signal Synchronization - American Canyon

GHD provided traffic engineering services for the synchronization and coordina-
tion of existing traffic signals along three arterial corridors within the City. These
corridors included SR 29, American Canyon Road, and Flosden Road, which
included a total of nine signalized intersections.

GHD developed the project approach, which included collection of peak hour
intersection turning movement counts, seven day 24-hour machine counts to
determine periods of coordination and field review of all study intersections, in-
cluding travel time runs and field calculated saturation flow rates. The project
included work within the State right of way, requiring Caltrans coordination and
project approvals. Existing conditions were modeled using Synchro with SimTraf-
fic software and calibrated utilizing data gathered. Traffic signal timing and coor-
dination recommendations were developed for optimal initial and actuated set-
tings, including provisions for pedestrian and bicycle needs, time-of-day coordi-
nation plans, and hours of coordinated operation. Signal timing sheets were pre-
pared and provided to Caltrans to input timing. GHD assisted with the implemen-
tation of recommendations. This work was completed under the sponsorship of
the Transportation for Clean Air (TFCA) grant awarded to the City.

A separate geometric and operational needs study was completed for Donaldson
Way East to reduce vehicle queuing and improve operations. This study and rec-
ommendations were subsequently developed into PS&E for construction. The
City installed improvements, including removal of on-street parking and addition
of right-turn pocket on Donaldson Way East. This work included coordination
with Caltrans District 4.

Signal coordination and timing recommendations were provided in 2013 and im-
plemented and refined with the assistance of Caltrans Staff.

Donaldson Way East reconfiguration recommendations were studied and imple-
mented in 2014. Operations and queuing improved as a result of the project.

[es ) @ - FEdee

+ P
tal BB @ W G M W W W W M N W W W
:'“ "l uuuuu 8
-
oo | ki e A s
g Mma et A1) W8 LidBand T4 g vt B 354
" /
ot # / \ \
™ g : : 7
= \ \/ \/
| E‘ 2Lt ot 4 a0
i ;‘M“ 2 B sk Bard 142 S Aveial Band 394,
oy 1L ok o 333,
b g .
e ey E

=R, E b e T i
| '\ \ i |
|t E Y \. 7 r f 5ty 1 % I_.-' f J.'
e i - \\ s \'\ T r # I';I T - II
/ .\'\ \ A .-'r \ !
B2, el s 5 2 o ik
18-21 GHD COMPANY/E11/040419_ryk Page 70 of 108

Page 42 Proposal for SR 29 Comprehensive Multim@@al Corridor Plan & PID for SR 29 through American Canyon



Debbie Hale, Executive Director,
TAMC, 55-B Plaza Circle, Salinas,
CA 93901, 1 831 775 0903

2017

Rosa de Leon

Executive Director

Stanislaus Council of Governments
1209 525 4642

2016

Rosa de Leon

Executive Director

Stanislaus Council of Governments
1209 525 4642

SR 68 Scenic Corridor Study - Transportation Agency of Monterey
County

Mrs. Flint managed a comprehensive outreach program for the Transportation
Agency for Monterey County (TAMC) as part of its SR 68 Scenic Corridor Study.
The study reviewed how SR 68 operates today, and what can be done to ensure
that it operates as safely and acceptably as possible for all users in the future.
Work included numerous community presentations, a dedicate website and a
series of workshops.

Stanislaus Council of Governments, Measure L Education

Campaign - Stanislaus County

RGS successfully developed an expenditure plan and ballot measure, Measure
L, for a transportation sales tax in 2016 after the failure of two previous efforts in
2006 and 2008. RGS managed a methodical process that included focus
groups, polling and more than 100 meetings with local agencies, stakeholder
groups and advisory bodies. This all-inclusive approach resulted in a markedly
different plan that previous set before voters. The focus was on “Local Roads
First” - a mantra that resonated with voters and stakeholders regardless of party
affiliation

As part of our education process, the RGS team developed a project website,
www.Stanislaus-LocalRoadsFirst.com. RGS worked closely with each member
agency to develop a specific project list for every jurisdiction - right down the
names of local streets which would be resurfaced. In addition, the team devel-
oped a list of more than 16 regional projects with benefits in all areas of the
County to ensure that no one geographic area would be left out. They also es-
tablished that there would be a Citizens Oversight Committee to make sure that
the projects promised would be delivered.

This information was shared via more than 200 presentations to local communi-
ty groups, Municipal Advisory Councils across the County, local chambers of
commerce, seniors, students and local news media throughout 2016. Measure L
passed with 71.95% of the vote in favor of the proposed sales tax measure. This
was the highest win percentage by a first-time transportation measure in 2016
election and the highest in California since 1989. This success of a measure in
the conservative Central Valley is particularly notable in the crazy election year
of 2016, where similar transportation sales taxes in more liberal metropolitan
areas like San Diego, Sacramento, and Contra Costa County failed.

Regional Transportation Plan & Sustainable
Communities Strategy, Community Outreach - Stanislaus County
RGS served as task manager for the public outreach component of StanCOG's
2035 and its current Regional Transportation Plan, Valley Vision Stanislaus.
RGS efforts included coordination with all
nine cities and the County to plan individual

workshops, outreach to stakeholder *}
P : i /JT\\ Stanislaus

2013-2014 groups, media relations and bilingual out-
REGIONAL reach. Valley Vision Stanislaus also incor- Va lleyV] S] on
m GOVERNMENT porates the MPO’s Sustainable Communi- People. Choices. Community.
== | SERVICES
18-21 GHD COMPANY/E11/040419 ryk Page 71

Proposal for SR 29 Comprehensive Mult/modal Corridor PI&Q@ PID for SR 29 through American Canyon Page 43



%SLOCOG Comneawithus f =

SLOCOG:

Connecting Communities

Ellen Griffin

Legislation and Public Affairs
Metropolitan Transportation
Commission

1415778 5254

Bay Area on the move

REGIONAL
GOVERNMENT
SERVICES

RGS

ties Strategy and Regional Housing Needs Assessment. The effort resulted in:

« A website with an average of 1,000 visits monthly,

« 22 email blasts to a total of 20,000+ addresses,

« Vision Survey completed by 323 respondents, 9% of which were Hispanic,

«  Workshop-Based Survey completed by 160+ respondents,

« Media Relations resulting in 12 separate articles and 1.8 million impressions,
. 20+ presentations and workshops countywide, and

« Coordination with local jurisdictions.

Stanislaus County residents supported a trend toward moderately more compact
development however, a number of residents actively engaged in the process
expressed concerns about their perceived connection between this effort and the
United Nations Agenda 21. RGS facilitated all 20 meetings and ensured that all
viewpoints are heard but that no one group or individual dominates the meetings.

US 101 Mobility Study/2035 Regional Transportation Plan &
Sustainable Communities Strategy, Community Outreach - San Luis
Obispo County

One of the most critical elements contributing quality of life is San Luis Obispo
County is how they move people and goods through the County. The first phase
of this effort took a closer look at US 101, identifying specific areas that should be
improved or enhanced. The outreach effort was largely focused on anecdotal,
qualitative views and opinions expressed by the public.

The project website, www.SLOCOGConnectingCommunities.com was launched
in May and has been averaging 800 unique visits per month. It has generated 178
unique comments via our interactive mapping tool. RGS completed over 200 in-
tercept interviews Countywide and engaged more than 400 people at various
presentations and workshops held throughout the County.

2035 Regional Transportation Plan, Community Outreach -
Metropolitan Transportation Commission

RGS developed a comprehensive multiphase Public Involvement Program for the
Metropolitan Transportation Commission’s Transportation 2035 Regional Trans-
portation Plan. The plan was guided by the three E’s of economy, environment
and equity, along with a set of ambitious goals and performance objectives that
will transform investment priorities in the transportation system and how Bay Area
residents travel.

The program was designed to engage environmental justice communities and
others with a history of nonparticipation in transportation planning. In addition,
RGS assisted MTC in planning for its regional Bay Area on the Move Summit,
attracting over 900 policymakers and residents to present the proposed plan.
RGS coordinated stakeholder outreach activities that included 27 public work-
shops, multi-cultural intercept interviews, electronic newsletters and two statisti-
cally valid telephone surveys of 3,600+ Bay Area residents.

18-21 GHD COMPANY/E11/040419_ryk Page 72 of 108

Page 44 Proposal for SR 29 Comprehensive Multimé@al Corridor Plan & PID for SR 29 through American Canyon



Three County Model 2015 Base Year Update and Support - SICOG-StanCOG-MCAG

Lawrence Liao assisted the San Joaquin Council of Governments (SJCOG), Stanislaus Council of Governments
(StanCOG), and Merced County Association of Governments (MCAG) to update the Three County Travel Demand Model
(TCM) to the year 2015. The main tasks of this project were to: 1) Update, calibrate, and validate the TCM to the year 2015,
2) Provide assistance in 2018 RTP/SCS development, and 3) Provide continued on-call support of the model. Lawrence was
the PM and Lead Modeler for this project.

Start/End Date: 2017-2018 Cost/Schedule Performance: On time/within budget
Team: Lawrence Liao, Jing Li, Lin Zhang Subconsultants: N/A
Total Project Cost:  $110,000 Total Cost of Services: $110,000

Reference:  Ryan Niblock, Sr. Regional Planner, SUCOG, 555 East Weber Avenue, Stockton, CA 95202, 1 209 235 0588

Menlo Park City Model Development - Menlo Park

Lawrence Liao developed a focused Menlo Park city model for the purpose of General Plan Circulation Element Update
based on the latest City/County Association of Governments of San Mateo County (C/CAG) Model. A Cube Avenue Dynamic
Traffic Assignment (DTA) Model was added for AM/PM peak hour conditions to enhance the modeling of peak spreading,
vehicle speed and vehicle miles traveled of multimodal projects under congested conditions on local streets.

Start/End Date: 2015-2016 Cost/Schedule Performance: On time/within budget
Team: Lawrence Liao, Lin Zhang Subconsultants: N/A
Total Project Cost: ~ $115,000 Total Cost of Services: $115,000

Reference:  Nicole Nagaya, Transportation Manager, City of Menlo Park, 701 Laurel Street, Menlo Park, CA 94025,
1650 330 6781

Travel Demand Modeling On-Call Services - Solano Transportation Authority

Lawrence Liao provided travel demand modeling on-call services to STA from 2010 to 2014, and 2017-2018. He designed
and developed a focused Solano Napa Activity Based Model based on MTC Travel Model One in 2014. The on-call services
also included providing ongoing support for the development, maintenance, and improvement of the Napa Solano Travel
Demand Model; distributing the model data as requested by users; and providing technical support and troubleshooting.

Start/End Date: 2010-2014, 2017-2018 Cost/Schedule Performance: ~ On time/within budget
Team: Lawrence Liao, Lin Zhang Subconsultants: N/A
Total Project Cost: ~ $300,000 Total Cost of Services: $300,000

Reference:  Robert Guerrero, Director of Planning, STA, One Harbor Center, Suite 130, Suisun City, CA 94585,
1707 424 6075

Travel Demand Modeling On-Call Services - COMPASS

Lawrence Liao has been providing ongoing Cube Voyager modeling support to COMPASS since 2005. He developed the
original 2002 COMPASS model and updated/validated the 2008 peak-hour model, increased the number of modeled zones,
integrated Cube Land into COMPASS’ travel demand model, and enhanced the region’s Mode Choice model to address the
Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Technical Guidance. Lawrence is currently assisting COMPASS with the latest 2018
model update.

Start/End Date: 2014-Present Cost/Schedule Performance: On time/within budget
Team: Lawrence Liao, Jing Li Subconsultants: N/A
Total Project Cost:  $150,000 Total Cost of Services: $150,000

Reference: MaryAnn Waldinger, Principal Planner, COMPASS, 700 NE 2nd St. # 200, Meridian, ID 83642,
1208 475 2242

18-21 GHD COMPANY/E11/040419_ryk Page 73 of

Proposal for SR 29 Comprehensive Mult/modal Corridor Plaﬁt& PID for SR 29 through American Canyon Page 45



Staff Matrix

Included is our matrix that shows the
proposed team members (specific Principal-in-Charge
individuals by name) and the specific Kamesh Vedula, PE, TE
role/work they will participate in.
Quality Assurance/Control
Rich Krumholz - GHD
H. Ross Ainsworth, PE, TE - GHD

Project Manager
Jim Damkowitch

Public Outreach
Kendall Flint - RGS
Jim Damkowitch - GHD

Tool Development, and Data Collection

Interagency Consultation: Kendall Flint - RGS, VISSIM Micro-Simulation:
Jim Damkowitch - GHD Kamesh Vedula, PE, TE - GHD
SNABM: Lawrence Liao - ETG Data Retrieval: PeMS, NPMRDS, SWITRS, TIMS

Traffic Data: Todd Tregenza, AICP - GHD

Corridor Analysis

Roadway Operation: Active Transportation: Jim Damkowitch - GHD
Kamesh Vedula, PE, TE - GHD Level of Traffic Stress Connectivity:
ITS/Integrated Corridor Management: Lin Zhang, Todd Tregenza, AICP - GHD
PhD, PE,TE - ETG Transit: Todd Tregenza, AICP - GHD
Frank Penry, PE, TE - GHD Mode Share/NCHRP 552:

Todd Tregenza, AICP - GHD

Performance Assessment

Delay/Buffer Time Reduction: Health Benefit (VMT): Jim Damkowitch - GHD
Jim Damkowitch - GHD Jim Damkowitch - GHD
Collision Reduction: Jerry Champa, PE - GHD Adaption: Todd Tregenza - GHD
Pedestrian/Bike Connectivity/Access and VMT Monetization: Jim Damkowitch - GHD
Reduction: Todd Tregenza, AICP - GHD Planning Level Costs (Benefit/Cost):
Air Quality (GHG and Criteria Pollutant Reduction): Heather Anderson, PE - GHD
Jim Damkowitch - GHD Economic Analysis: Jim Damkowitch - GHD
Documentation/Presentations
Project Documents: Jim Damkowitch - GHD Presentations: Jim Damkowitch - GHD
Public Hearings/Board Kendall Flint - RGS
Project Initiation Document (GHD STAFF)
Design Lead: Lindsey Van Parys, PE, QSD/QSP Survey: Brian Howard, PLS
Design: Heather Anderson, PE, Environmental: Brian Bacciarini
Trenton Hoffman, PE, Geologist: Ryan Crawford, PG

Caltrans Coordination: Jay Walter, PE, TE

18-21 GHD COMPANY/E11/040419_ryk Page 74 of 10

Page 46 Proposal for SR 29 Comprehensive Multim&a@al Corr/dor Plan & PID for SR 29 through American Canyon



Jim Damkowitch Qualifications
Jim Damkowitch has over 25 years of experience in regional multimodal trans-

portation planning, congestion management, multidisciplinary corridor studies,
active transportation plans, transit studies, operational analyses, transportation
Project Manager and air quality modeling, and performance measure applications. Jim specializes
in the development of multimodal performance measures for purposes of alter-
natives selection and prioritization including performance metrics for state and
« MS, Geography, University of federal congestion management programs and sustainable community strategies
California, Santa Barbara, CA, 1985  under SB 375. He has managed traffic studies for state highway infrastructure
« BA, Geography (Honors), University  improvement projects (PSR and PA/ED phases), multimodal corridor studies,
of California, Santa Barbara, CA, travel demand modeling, air quality modeling and transportation operational
1980 studies for a variety of clients including Caltrans, MPQ’s, and various cities and
counties in California. He has served on state and regional planning committees
and conference panels for transportation-air quality conformity, performance

. SJCOG 2019 CMP Monitoring measurement, and SB 743 respectively.
Report Update Project Experience

' 32?2%?5 RTPF?/rShngCMP Jpeate - US 101 Corridor Mobility Master Plan - SLOCOG. Project Manager. Ap-

. SACOG 2017 Fedoral CMP plied the Smart Mobility Framework for a comprehensive performance-based

- 31006 2017 Monitoring Repor corridor analysis of US 101 in San Luis Obispo County. Analyzed corridor
Updato multimodal performance according to established performance metrics in-

. SICOG 2016 CMP Updsts cluding B-C to identify and prioritize proposed capital improvements.

« SJCOG 2010 CMP Regional et P e S e o s

County. Project Manager. Applied the Smart Mobility Framework for a com-
prehensive performance-based corridor analysis of SR 68 in Monterey
County. Analyzed three corridor concepts relative to established perfor-

Deficiency Plan

. StanCOG 2018 RTP/SCS & EIR mance metrics including B-C. Identified preferred corridor concept and asso-
. MCAG 2018 RTP/SCS ciated capital improvements for prioritization (APA Excellence Award).
. SJCOG 2018 RTP/SCS . |180/SR 65 Travel Time Reliability Analysis and Safety Analysis -

. i PCTPA. Project Manager. Applied NPMRDS “big data” from FHWA to deter-
hcﬂzljgﬁr:gsagg Sezrg:rr?naRrT(l:::e Support mine travel time reliability benefits of the | 80/SR 65 Interchange Improve-

. Del Norte County LTC 2016 RTP - ment Project (Phase 1). Also applied the Highway Safety Manual predictive
Modeling and Performance Support method (Part B and C) to estimate the collision reduction potential of the im-

. StanCOG 2014 RTP/SCS & EIR provement.

. SJCOG 2014 RTP/SCS - Technical  Other Relevant Projects o
Support Has served as Project Manager for several related projects including:

A . Corridor Studies (Project Manager)
- California Rural Counties Task =5 o o egional Multi-Modal Corridor Study (2011, MTC/SJCOG)
Force: 2015 Performance Monitoring ) .
Indicators for Rural and Small Urban US 101 HOV Lane PA/ED Traffic Analysis (2012, Caltrans D-5)
Transportation Planning « SR99 &I-5 Interregional STAA Truck Study (2012, SACOG/SJCOG)
SR 16 Corridor Analysis: Watt to Grant Line Road (2014, ACTC)

- Callomia 08 310 oo . US 101 Pismo PSR (2016, SLOCOG)
. Managed Caltrans D-5 Modeling SR 227 Corridor Operations Study (2017, SLOCOG)
On-Call « SR 1 Unified Corridor Study - Co-Project Manager (2018, SCCRTC)
« SR 49 CSMP - Technical Advisor (2018, NCTC)
SB 1 Solutions for Congested Corridor Program Grant Applications (Cycle 1)
. US 101 HOV PA/ED (2017, SBCAG) - Technical Support
[——] . Southeast Connector (2017, SEC JPA) - Technical Support
. US 101 Pismo (2017, SLOCQOG) - Project Manager
[—] « SR 46 East (2017, City of Paso Robles) - Project Manager
18-21 GHD COMPANY/E11/040419 ryk Page 75 of

Proposal for SR 29 Comprehensive Mult/modal Corridor P/am& PID for SR 29 through American Canyon Page 47



Kamesh Vedula, PE, TE

Principal-in-Charge

« Traffic Engineer, CA #2546
« Civil Engineer, CA #79926

« BS, Civil Engineering, Nagarjuna

University, Bapatla, India

« MS, Transportation, Kansas State

University, Manhattan, KS

« Hindi
« Telugu

« Transportation Engineering

« Transportation Planning

. Traffic Engineering

« Travel Demand Modeling

« Master Planning

« Roundabout Planning/Design
. Traffic Operations Analysis

« Traffic Circulation Studies

« Traffic Impact Studies

« Traffic Impact Fees

« ArcMap

« Cube/Voyager
« HCS-2000

« Synchro

« RODEL

+ SIDRA

« SimTraffic

« Traffix

« TransCAD

. VISSIM

Qualifications

Kamesh Vedula has over 15 years in the disciplines of transportation engineer-
ing, planning, and modelling. His present roles include principal-in-charge, busi-
ness development, project manager, and transportation operations leader - de-
pending on project needs. He oversees the workload balance of the transporta-
tion planning/engineering group and coordinates with other groups and regions
to level staff resources. He is a specialist of Intersection Control Evaluation (ICE)
and has completed several ICE projects within a majority of Caltrans districts
and conducted ICE analysis training classes in Caltrans District 11 and Head-
quarters. His project management experience includes PSR-PDS, PA/ED, ICE
studies, roundabout planning/design, advanced roundabout operations analysis/
design, complete streets studies, corridor studies, traffic impact studies, and traf-
fic safety studies. Kamesh oversees daily operations including team meetings,
scheduling, invoicing, and client coordination through active communication. He
contributes to business development through conference attendance, positioning
with clients and strategic teaming partners, preparation of qualifications and pro-
posals, and interviews for projects.

Project Experience

« SR 49 Corridor System Management Plan - Nevada County Transporta-
tion Commission. Principal-in-Charge. Overseeing the field and digital data
along corridor and corridor performance according to metrics.

« Southbound US 101 PA/ED Traffic Analysis - SLOCOG. Principal-in-
Charge. Overseeing the macro-simulation FREQ model and corridor perfor-
mance according to established performance metrics, including but not lim-
ited to congested travel speed, buffer time index, average travel speed, level
of service.

« SR 29 South Corridor Engineering Feasibility Study and Middletown
Community Action Plan - Lake County/City Area Planning Council. Traf-
fic Engineer. Assisted with the design year forecasts and assisted with the
traffic operations analysis.

. San Andreas State Route 49 Commercial Gateway and Corridor Study -
Calaveras County. Quality Assurance/Control. Performed QA/QC of the
future growth scenarios and transportation alternatives analysis.

. City of Jackson Capital Improvement Project, Traffic Model and Trans-
portation Impact Fee Update - Jackson. Traffic Engineer. Prepared the
base year and initial year 2035 model projections, assisted with the design
year forecasts, and assisted with the traffic operations analysis.

. North State Street Complete Streets Feasibility Study - Mendocino
County. Project Manager. Preparation of traffic forecasts (using Citywide
Travel Demand Model), identification of project alternatives that provide ac-
ceptable operations for design year traffic, project phasing, community out-
reach, traffic operations analysis, and micro-simulation analysis.

. County Road 98 Bike and Safety Improvements Intersection Design
Phase Il - Yolo County. Project Engineer. Conducted a thorough analysis of
the corridor, documenting traffic impact issues, high accident locations, sight
visibility issues, and prepared a traffic and speed study to understand the
underlying issues associated with the existing roadway. The findings from
this study resulted in the identification of feasible roadway improvements
aimed to improving the safety and mobility of the corridor.

18-21 GHD COMPANY/E11/040419_ryk

Page 76 of 108

Page 48 Proposal for SR 29 Comprehensive Multimédal Corridor Plan & PID for SR 29 through American Canyon



Lindsey Van Parys, PE, QSD/
QSP

Project Manager for Project Initiation
Document

« Civil Engineer, CA #79989

« Civil Engineer, FL #83571

« California Water Board QSD/QSP
#23879

« Transportation Research Board:
Standing Committee on
Roundabouts

« American Society of Civil Engineers

« Institute of Transportation Engineers

« Women'’s Transportation
Seminar

« Young Professionals in
Transportation

« BS, Civil Engineering, California
State University, Sacramento, CA,
2009

« BS, Health Science and Spanish,
California State University, San
Jose, CA, 2004

Certificate, Traffic Collision
Investigation, Northwestern University
Center for Public Safety, Evanston, IL

2015 APWA Sacramento Chapter,
Parks & Trails for EI Dorado Trail:
Segments 1 & 2 in Placerville

Spanish

Qualifications

Lindsey Van Parys is a registered civil engineer in multiple states and holds a
certificate in Traffic Collision Investigation. She has been delivering transporta-
tion projects since 2008, and is currently a project manager. Lindsey manages
transportation projects from the conceptual phases through to construction, in-
cluding preliminary engineering, environmental assessments, and detail design
for various types of roadway, highway, roundabout, complete street and active
transportation projects, with a key focus on delivering to clients’ time, budget and
quality expectations. Her projects have ranged from major highway interchanges
to innovative intersection and safety solutions, to shared use paths. Lindsey spe-
cializes in delivering projects on the State Highway System and has worked on
dozens of concepts and designs, as well as project delivery for projects spanning
North America.

Project Experience

Citrus Heights Electric Greenway Design and Environmental Services -
Citrus Heights. Project Manager. Responsible for the successful delivery of
this three-mile long multi-use trail connects various destinations throughout
the City, including five parks, schools, businesses, residential areas, and
more. The project includes an in-depth alternative development and analysis,
preparation of the environmental document, technical studies, safety analy-
sis, alternative selection, floodplain analysis, public outreach, trail and amen-
ity design, lighting, utility coordination, low water crossing design, wayfinding,
signage, permitting, and right of way support. The project also involves the
preparation of five park master plans.

La Quinta Village Complete Street, a Road Diet Project - La Quinta. Pro-
ject Manager. Responsible for the overall delivery of the environmental docu-
mentation, Plans, Specifications, and Estimates (PS&E), right of way and
utility clearance for the three street corridor complete street project consist-
ing of five roundabouts, water quality infrastructure, pedestrian and bicycle
facilities and landscape/beautification elements. Also coordinating stakehold-
er outreach, one-on-one meetings with impacted property owners and busi-
ness owners and performing community outreach. Is also coordinating utility
relocations with six different utility purveyors and performing stakeholder out-
reach with property and business owners, as well as the community.
Complete Street/Road Diet ATP Application - La Quinta. Project Manager.
Assisted the City of La Quinta in preparing the successful Active Transporta-
tion Program (ATP) grant application by providing a conceptual design, pre-
liminary costs estimates, cost/benefit analysis, and assisted with preparation
of the various narrative responses for three complete street corridors that
included five roundabouts, a road diet, bicycle lanes, and various pedestrian
crossing improvements.

State Route (SR) 49/Main Street Roundabout PS&E - Plymouth. Project
Manager. Performed client and agency coordination on this federally funded,
fast-tracked project while leading the roundabout optimization, design, PS&E
production, and public outreach efforts. Designed the intersection modifica-
tions, pedestrians and bicycle enhancements, drainage design, and more.
Also coordinated relocation of various utilities throughout the project corridor
including power, water, and gas. Led the environmental permitting and right
of way acquisition process.

18-21 GHD COMPANY/E11/040419_ryk

Proposal for SR 29 Comprehensive Mult/modal Corridor Plaﬁia PID for SR 29 through American Canyon

Page 77 of

Page 49



Ross Ainsworth, PE, TE Qualifications
Ross Ainsworth is a senior project manager and a business development lead.

Often principal-in-charge and quality control officer for projects, he is responsible
for managing client coordination, project scheduling, budget control, technical
Quality Assurance/Control analysis, corporate management, and companywide business development. His
experience in both the public and private sectors gives him the capabilities and
skill needed to serve as a liaison with government agencies, and a representa-

. Civil Engineer, CA #19642, NV tive at public workshops, open houses, and presentations for GHD’s clients. He
#4281, OR #10966 has also attended numerous workshops and conferences as a presentation

« Traffic Engineer, CA#0708 speaker.

Project Experience

. ME, Transportation Engineering, « Rocklin Road Complete Street Corridor Improvement Master Plan and
Pennsylvania State University, State PS&E - Rocklin. Principal-in-Charge. GHD prepared a Corridor Master Plan/
College, Centre County, PA, 1971 Alternatives Study to identify potential solutions to improve traffic operations,

. BS, Civil Engineering, California safety, and calm traffic from the I-80/Rocklin Road interchange to the Grove
State University, Southern Street intersection (1.5 miles). The project involved three phases: Develop
California, 1967 Alternatives & Preliminary Engineering, Public Involvement & Community

Outreach, and PS&E. GHD performed VISSIM models, surveying, prepared
PS&E and construction documents, and designed a local-based landscape
theme. The Meyers and Grove Streets roundabouts are constructed and
were federally funded with Local Assistance oversight. GHD is currently un-
der contract for the I-80/Rocklin Road interchange project. The future pro-
jects include Granite Drive.

« La Quinta Complete Street, a Road Diet Project - La Quinta. Principal.
Oversaw ATP grant application for three complete street coordinators, which
included five roundabouts, a road diet, and various pedestrian crossing im-
provements.

. Streets West of Downtown Traffic Analysis - Napa. Principal-in-Charge.
Analyzing the City’s traffic operational conditions by using BluFax to assess
potential changes to travel patterns including a reversal of the one-way cou-
plet and allowing two-way traffic on streets, which are currently one-way
streets.

« Farmersville Boulevard Master Plan - Farmersville. Principal-in-Charge.
Oversaw the complete street concept for the downtown area to help spur
economic development core.

« Main Street Complete Street and Beautification - Ripon. Principal-in-
Charge. This 1.5-mile project consists of many sustainable “Complete the
Street” practices in an effort to put the pedestrian and bicyclist on a level
playing field with the automobile traffic using the road. The roadway con-
nects the downtown to the main arterial leading to SR 99. The corridor
traverses a business, commercial, public, and residential land uses.

. Barstow Avenue Complete Street at CSU Fresno - Fresno. Principal-in-
Charge. Evaluation of roadway for pedestrian, bicycle, and vehicle access
for campus parking facilities. A total of five roundabouts are planned.

» Citywide Roundabout Circulation Study - Rohnert Park. Principal-in-
Charge. Project to improve the traffic circulation and safety at eight corridors
and individual intersections to identify the best possible intersection alterna-
tive.

18-21 GHD COMPANY/E11/040419_ryk Page 78 of 108

Page 50 Proposal for SR 29 Comprehensive Multimégal Corridor Plan & PID for SR 29 through American Canyon



Richard Krumholz

Quality Assurance/Control

« BS (Honors), Industrial Technology,
Illinois State University, Normal, IL,
1973

« Post Graduate Work, Industrial
Education, California State
University, San Diego, CA, 1976-
1977

« Continuing Education, Natural
Resources Management, California
State University, Humboldt, CA,
1990

Qualifications

Richard Krumholz is a transportation manager and lead Caltrans liaison on pro-
jects. He has extensive experience managing, planning, programming, and de-
veloping transportation projects. He joined GHD in 2013 after 33 years of work-
ing with the Caltrans, where he retired as District 5 Director. His relationships
and familiarity with Caltrans and its staff will help facilitate projects requiring re-
view or approval. He has extensive experience managing, planning, program-
ming, and developing transportation projects, and is an effective leader and
problem solver. At time of his retiring, District 5 had a record $450 million in capi-
tal projects under construction. He served as the district’s focal point for the Cali-
fornia Transportation Commission and as Principal Liaison for five counties and
33 cities.

Project Experience

« SR 49/Main Street Roundabout - Plymouth. Caltrans District 10 Liaison.
This project enhanced the entrance to the community of Plymouth and the
Shenandoah Valley. Rich served as the primary liaison with Caltrans Dis-
trict 10 with a special focus on the project’s schedule and funding. He was
able to secure over a million dollars in federal safety grant funding (HSIP),
which enabled the project to move ahead to construction.

« SR 1/SR 41/Main Street Roundabout - Morro Bay. Caltrans District 5 Liai-
son. Coordinated the Intersection Control Evaluation (ICE) effort with Cal-
trans District 5's Planning, Design and Traffic Operations staff. Rich was in-
strumental in working with Caltrans, SLOCOG, and City staff to reach con-
sensus on project design and a viable funding plan. The project is coopera-
tively funded with local, regional, state, and federal funding.

« 17 Mile Drive/Holman Highway 68/Highway 1 Roundabout - Monterey.
Caltrans District 5 Liaison. Primary contact person for the Caltrans District 5
project team members, attended Project Development Team (PDT) meetings
to assure consistent and strong communication between City staff, regional
planning staff (TAMC), and District 5 stafffmanagers. Assured adherence to
Caltrans policies and guided the project through the formal EIR Addendum
and Supplemental Project Report phases.

. First and Second Street Roundabouts along California Boulevard PS&E
- Napa. Caltrans Liaison. Worked with Caltrans District 4 Managers to forge
a funding partnership utilizing local (City of Napa), regional (MTC), state
(SHOPP), and federal (CMAQ) funds. Worked closely with District 4 staff to
draft acceptable terms for a cooperative agreement that delineated funding
responsibilities and project development roles.

. Halcyon Road Complete Streets Plan - Arroyo Grande. Caltrans Liaison.
Assisted the City in the preparation of the Caltrans Sustainable Communities
grant application and facilitated a pre-application meeting between City and
Caltrans staff. Assisted with determining project scope and also helped plan
and participated in the public engagement process (Community Charrettes
and Stakeholder Advisory Group).

« SR 60/Sunnymead Interchange - Moreno Valley. Caltrans District 8 Liai-
son. Helped guide the project team through the ICE process with district traf-
fic operations and design staff. Assured adherence to all Caltrans policies
regarding right of way, as the City’s project required a transfer of State High-
way operating right of way.

18-21 GHD COMPANY/E11/040419_ryk

Page 79 of

Proposal for SR 29 Comprehensive Mult/modal Corridor Plaﬁ&'& PID for SR 29 through American Canyon Page 51



Todd Tregenza, AICP

Senior Transportation Planner

« AICP Certified Planner, CA #29678

« Young Professionals in
Transportation, Sacramento
Chapter, Co-Founder and Past Chair

BS, Community and Regional
Development, University of California,
Davis, CA, 2007

« ArcMAP
« AutoCAD
. CUBE

« Synchro
« SimTraffic
« Traffix

. VISSIM

French

Qualifications

Todd Tregenza has 11 years of professional experience in various areas of trans-
portation consulting with an emphasis on transportation planning projects. He
has assisted dozens of agencies on short and long-range planning efforts, in-
cluding the development of travel demand models, general plan circulation ele-
ments, specific plans and master plans, corridor studies, capital improvement
programs, nexus and fee studies, transportation operational analysis, and impact
analyses. His experience spans public and private sector work for a broad range
of projects that require circulation, safety, and operational analysis from a trans-
portation perspective. Todd also has extensive experience as an transportation
planner for local agencies, assisting in preparation of transportation studies and
grant applications, performing peer reviews of impact studies, and developing
CEQA impact analyses for development projects of all sizes.

Project Experience

« SR 49 Corridor System Management Plan - Nevada County. Transporta-
tion Planner. Developing active transportation performance metrics, analyz-
ing safety and accessibility, evaluating safety countermeasures, and devel-
oping system wide improvements for bicycle/pedestrian mobility.

« G12 Corridor Study - Monterey County. Transportation Planner. Analyzing
historical crash data and overseeing crash analysis using systemic safety
approach, evaluating feasibility of safety countermeasures, and developing
improvement concepts to improve safety for modes along corridor.

. Dry Creek Valley Safety and Capacity Study - Sonoma County. Project
Manager. Evaluated safety of the roadway system, assessed safety risk
based on geometric, topographical, and seasonal conditions for all modes,
with a focus on special events, such as cycling events and winery events.

. Traffic Safety Studies - Grover Beach. Transportation Planner. Prepared
analysis and report for three traffic safety studies including consideration of
angled parking on West Grand Avenue, traffic calming on Margarita Avenue,
and enhanced pedestrian crossings on Oak Park Boulevard.

. Transportation Safety/Circulation Studies - Arroyo Grande. Transporta-
tion Planner. Prepared several multimodal safety/circulation studies including
Ocean View Safe Routes to School Plan, South Halcyon Road Complete
Street and Road Diet, and Short Street Closure to Vehicular Traffic.

« South Halcyon Road ATP Grant Application - Arroyo Grande. Transpor-
tation Planner. Prepared NCHRP 552 analysis to forecast induced bicycle
demand, oversaw safety data analysis, and benefic/cost calculation.

. Active Transportation Plan - Turlock. Transportation Planner. As part of
the team, identified gap closure projects and prioritized planned multimodal
infrastructure in the context of improving connectivity between critical desti-
nations, such as schools, residential neighborhoods, and parks.

« SR 49 Southern Gateway Commercial Corridor Study - San Andreas.
Project Manager. Prepared near/long-term prioritized complete streets pro-
jects for use along SR 49/Mountain Ranch Road. Developed TDM based on
land use and absorption rates. Improvements included bicycle/pedestrian
gap closures, enhanced crossings, roundabouts, signals, and Class | trails.

« SR 29 South Corridor Engineered Feasibility Study and Middletown
Community Action Plan - Lake County. Transportation Planner. Assisted
with development of GIS base mapping and GIS Atlas layout/preparation.

18-21 GHD COMPANY/E11/040419_ryk

Proposal for SR 29 Comprehensive Multim&@al Corridor Plan & PID for SR 29 through American Canyon

Page 52

Page 80 of 108



Frank Penry, PE, TE

Corridor Analysis

« Civil Engineer, CA#62785, OR
#84632

. Traffic Engineer, CA#TR2304

« Traffic Operations Engineer, #1603

« American Society of Civil Engineers

« ASCE Redwood Empire Section,
Former President

« Institute of Transportation Engineers
(ITE)

« ITE San Francisco Bay Area
Section, Secretary

« Registered Traffic Engineers of
America

« American Public Works Association

BS, Civil Engineering, California State
University, Chico, CA

« Green Island Road Recycled Water
Pipeline Project - American Canyon

. Vintage Ranch Subdivision Public
Improvement - American Canyon

« City Traffic Engineer - City of
Petaluma

« Petaluma Blvd TLC/Streetscape and
Pedestrian Improvement - City of
Petaluma

« Eureka Waterfront Trail - City of
Eureka

« Traffic Engineering Staff Services -
City of Cotati

« Traffic Engineering & Staff Services
- City of Sonoma

« Railroad At-Grade Crossing Design
and Implementation Services, North
Coast Rail Authority (NCRA)

Qualifications

A registered traffic engineer and civil engineer with certification as a professional
traffic operations engineer, Frank Penry has 22 years of experience in transpor-
tation planning and traffic engineering design. He has managed numerous trans-
portation studies and design projects over the years, from small development
impact studies to major roadway improvements. Frank has served as the City
Traffic Engineer for the cities of Petaluma, Cotati, Sonoma, and Fortuna, provid-
ing the administration and development of municipal traffic engineering pro-
grams. He is well-versed in a wide range of traffic engineering design standards
and encroachment requirements, traffic signals, roundabouts, traffic calming and
streetscapes, construction traffic handling, detour, and control plans for a variety
of civil engineering projects.

Project Experience

SR-121 Five-Way Intersection Improvements - Napa. Project Manager.
Mr. Penry was Project Manager for the preparation and delivery of compre-
hensive Project Initiation Documents (PID’s) for the 5-way intersection of
Silverado Trail (SR 121)/Third Street/East Avenue/Coombsville Road. Im-
provements at the intersection were pursued because of issues related to
traffic congestion and inadequate signal timing for pedestrian crossings. De-
signs from key options formulated with previous planning documents were
advanced and evaluated, and new improvement options were developed.
Coordination between the City and Caltrans was performed in order to get
input on the wide range of considered alternatives. Several of the options
involved altering the current neighborhood access to create a four-leg inter-
section. A dual-roundabout configuration that maintained current access was
also considered, but ultimately dismissed because of issues related to driver
understanding.

Town of Windsor Conde Lane/Johnson Street Pedestrian Enhance-
ments - Windsor. Project Manager. Leading design of signing, striping, light-
ing, and an enhanced pedestrian crosswalk using RRFB at the realigned
intersection of Johnson Street and Conde Lane in the Town of Windsor. The
project will realign Conde Lane and remove all-way stop control to reduce
delay and increase traffic flow between two adjacent traffic signals. The all-
way stop control is currently a "T" intersection with traffic signals on two ad-
jacent legs; morning and afternoon peak traffic from a nearby elementary
school backs up from the stop controls to either signal. The project requires
coordinating among the town, the design team, and neighborhood stake-
holders to build consensus for the final design.

Traffic Data Management System - American Canyon. Traffic Engineer.
Responsible for preparation of traffic signal inventory, planning, design, and
encroachment permit design package for Caltrans approval of the system.
Following on the success of the Traffic Signal Synchronization, the City
sought additional funding to install permanent traffic count stations along SR
29 to monitor traffic data trends, and provide centralized collection and moni-
toring of data, video, and operational details. The project is envisioned to
track and predict conditions, which would lead to local and regional improve-
ments to the State Highway, including additional travel lanes. Additionally,
the project is viewed as the first step towards more proactive traffic manage-
ment to increase the service life of the existing highway.

18-21 GHD COMPANY/E11/040419_ryk

Proposal for SR 29 Comprehensive Mult/modal Corridor Pléﬁi@ PID for SR 29 through American Canyon

Page 81 of 1

Page 53



Heather Anderson, PE

« Performance Assessment
« Project Initiation Document

« Civil Engineer, CA #85522

« Women'’s Transportation Seminar

« Young Professionals in
Transportation

BS, Civil Engineering, California State
University, Chico, CA, 2010

Qualifications

Heather Anderson is a registered California professional engineer with over 10
years of technical and coordination experience gained on a broad range of civil
engineering projects in all aspects of transportation improvements, including bi-
cycle/pedestrian facilities, roundabouts, interchange replacements, corridor wid-
ening, and express lanes. She is both a project manager and a project leader,
well-versed in Caltrans process and procedures and preparing documents, ex-
hibits, Plans, Specifications, and Estimates (PS&E) in compliance with local,
state, and federal standards. She works collaboratively with staff to deliver a
quality product from the early planning stages though construction completion.

Project Experience

SR 49 Corridor System Management Plan - Nevada County. Project En-
gineer. Currently analysing collisions and developing list of optional safety
improvements to supplement the traffic study along 13 miles of SR 49 in Ne-
vada County.

US 101/State Street - Mendocino County. Project Manager. Currently coor-
dinating with Caltrans District 1 while overseeing and reviewing the prepara-
tion of preliminary engineering and public outreach for up to six roundabouts
or signals along North State Street, which is the major arterial for the County
into and out of Ukiah.

La Quinta Village Complete Street, a Road Diet - La Quinta. Project Engi-
neer. Assisting with preliminary engineering for the geometrics and striping/
signing of five roundabouts for the three-street corridor complete street pro-
ject consisting of five roundabouts, water quality infrastructure, pedestrian
and bicycle facilities, and landscape/beautification elements near and along
Old Town La Quinta.

Main Street/Shenandoah Road Safe Route to School Active Transporta-
tion Program Grant Application Assistance and PS&E - Plymouth. Pro-
ject Engineer, Assistant Project Manager. Preparing plans and exhibits for
the layout of the sidewalk and complete street alternatives for Main Street
and connection to the new roundabout at Shenandoah Road.

North Main Street/SR 49 Complete Streets Corridor Plan and Copello
Road Pedestrian Connector - Design Workshop - Angels Camp. Project
Engineer. Currently overseeing and reviewing the preparation of the PS&E of
the sidewalk and complete street alternatives for Main Street and Shenando-
ah road for connection to the roundabout.

Valley Springs Complete Streets/Town Center Connectivity - Valley
Springs. Project Engineer. Assisting with the data collection, base mapping,
alternatives analysis, and presentations for the feasibility study of the plan
that is to provide for safe mobility and accessibility throughout, connecting
people, schools, shopping, and recreational areas by enhancing all modes of
travel.

SR 29/SR 221 Interchange - SOSCOL Junction - Napa County. Project
Manager. Currently overseeing and reviewing the preparation of the PA/ED
with Caltrans District 4 for a revision to the original Caltrans flyover concept
to update the highway at the State Route (SR) 99 and 221 interchange to
complex roundabouts on both sides. This project is a high profile project for
the Napa Valley Transportation Authority, as they have been trying to update
this integral intersection for the past 10+ years.

18-21 GHD COMPANY/E11/040419_ryk

Page 54 Proposal for SR 29 Comprehensive Multimddal Corridor Plan & PID for SR 29 through American Canyon

Page 82 of 108



Jerry Champa, PE

Collison Reduction (Safety)

« Civil Engineer, CA#40573

« Institute of Transportation Engineers

« Transportation Research Board,
Committee on Roundabouts

BS, Civil Engineering and BA,
American Studies, University of Notre
Dame, Notre Dame, IN

« Co-Lead/Author of Strategic
Highway Safety Implementation
Plan for Challenge Area

« ICE Policy Directive, CAMUTCD
revision, and Safety Analysis
guidance

« Co-author of Managed Lanes Policy
Directive & Design Bulletin on
Roundabouts

« Training Instructor on Traffic Safety
& Project Delivery Topics

Caltrans, Division of Traffic

Operations, HQ Office:

« ICE Technical Assistance Manager.

. Statewide Traffic Safety &
Operations Liaison Engineer. In-
house consultant providing technical
assistance on complex and critical
engineering decisions, Advisor/
approval authority on: traffic control
and safety system policy decisions;
and safety management program
(HSIP) and proposals.

Qualifications

Jerry Champa works as a senior engineer hand-in-hand with GHD’s Transporta-
tion Team across California and the nation. He has been assisting state and local
agencies to secure funding for safety-centric, operational and active transporta-
tion infrastructure improvements since 1998. He continues to be a national lead-
er, training instructor, and advocate for the adoption of ICE as a traffic engineer-
ing policy and type-selection tool for making the optimal investment decision on
solution proposals involving new, expanded, or improved access points. His ex-
pertise was developed over a 25-year-period through statewide roles as a Cal-
trans Geometric Design and Traffic Engineering Policy, Funding Program, and
Technical Assistance Specialist and “Change Agent.”

Project Experience

Caltrans California Strategic Highway Safety Plan (2) - California. Co-
Lead & Author. Produced the Action & Implementation Plans for two critical
Challenge Areas: “Driver Decisions About Turning & Rights of Way,” and
“Intersections, Interchanges and Other Roadway Access.” Established ICE
program (policy, type-selection framework, safety analysis tool, and Tech-
nical Assistance Network) to objectively evaluate and compare roundabouts
and other innovative solutions alongside traditional intersection control strat-
egies. The ICE program increases the use of a proven but under-utilized
safety countermeasure via comparison for alternatives.

Pedestrian Safety Audit of North Lake Boulevard (SR 28) - Tahoe City.
Member, Advisor to Multi-Disciplinary Team. Invited to participate by Tahoe
RPA and FHWA. Audit produced consensus and funding to implement spe-
cific infrastructure improvement recommendations to address pedestrian/
cyclist safety needs at all intersections and crossings within study limits.
Mobility & Safety Study of Lincoln Highway (SR 50) - Meyers. Member &
Advisor to Multi-Disciplinary Team. Invited to participate by Tahoe RPA and
FHWA, and a study produced community and party agency consensus on
recommendations to improve pedestrian and cyclist safety through imple-
mentation of access and speed management strategies toward transfor-
mation of highway corridor to a complete/main street.

Pedestrian Crossing Studies, Caltrans District 12 - Laguna Beach. Tech-
nical Advisor. Advised on numerous pedestrian crossing studies along Pacif-
ic Coast Highway and Laguna Canyon Highway; studies led to funding for
installation of In-Roadway Lighting/Pedestrian Hybrid Beacon systems.
Neighborhood Safety Optimization Plan - Sacramento. Technical Advisor
(Volunteer Basis). Advising and assisting the LPCA Public Safety Committee
Chairman on effort to establish a meaningful partnership with City Traffic
Engineering Division in order to address ongoing traffic and traveler safety
issues that do not meet collision, volume, and other engineering warrants to
justify resource expenditures or even incremental improvements.

Strategic Highway Safety Implementation & Action Plans. Co-Lead &
Author. Employed network screening to identify a previously unrecognized
pattern of fatal and serious injury collisions along highway corridors through-
out the state. Developed and successfully implemented a systemic response
that includes 11 HSIP-funded projects to add safety lighting along highway
segments that vary in length (between 1-10 miles).

Caltrans Highway Safety Monitoring & Improvement Program

18-21 GHD COMPANY/E11/040419_ryk

Proposal for SR 29 Comprehensive Mult/modal Corridor PlaA& PID for SR 29 through American Canyon

Page 83 of 1

Page 55



Trenton Hoffman, PE

Project Initiation Document

« Civil Engineer, CA #89888

« Young Professionals in
Transportation

« GHD Young Professionals

BS, Civil Engineering, California
Polytechnic State University, San Luis
Obispo, CA, 2015

Qualifications

Trenton Hoffman joined GHD as a design engineer. His responsibilities include
civil design, roundabout design checks per national standards, utilizing AutoCAD
and Microstation for plans and drawings, preparing technical memorandums and
reports, Project Approval/Environmental Documents (PA/ED), Plans, Specifica-
tions And Estimates (PS&E), and providing utility services. As the former civil
engineer in a hydropower group, he worked on projects including a concrete ma-
sonry unit structure housing a dam’s lower level outlet, asset valuation of various
hydropower facilities, and a partially underground water storage tank design.
Through these projects, he became familiar with codes and standards used in
civil and structural design and gained a unique perspective regarding hydropow-
er and tying that work into civil engineering.

Project Experience

« Citrus Heights Electric Greenway Design and Environmental Services -
Citrus Heights. Engineer. Assisted in identifying right of way conflicts and
easements. Provided preliminary right of way exhibits for a safe routes to
school project connecting multiple city parks and schools.

. Jepson Parkway Phase 2 Plan Line - Vacaville. Engineer. The project in-
cluded conceptual widening of a two-lane road into a four-lane road with a
raised median for 2040 conditions, and again widening to a six-lane road
with a raised median for ultimate buildout conditions. Developed typical sec-
tions and plan-line sheets for use in right of way acquisition required for ulti-
mate buildout.

« La Quinta Village Complete Street, a Road Diet - La Quinta. Engineer.
Assisted with roadway sections, signing, and drawing development of five
roundabouts near and along Old Town La Quinta.

« Plymouth ATP Sidewalk Project - Plymouth. Engineer. Assisted with pre-
paring the utility mapping, “A” letters, final PS&E, and conceptual approval
drawings for the layout of the sidewalk and complete street alternatives for
Main Street and connection to the new roundabout at Shenandoah Road.

« SR 116/SR 121 Roundabout Intersection Improvements - Sonoma
County. Engineer. Designed pavement delineation and signing and assisted
with drawing development for a roundabout at a major state route junction in
Caltrans right of way.

. First Street and Second Street Roundabouts along California Boule-
vard ICE and PS&E - Napa. Engineer. Assisted with the 100% and final
PS&E plan set, prepared staging quantities, and performed the office engi-
neer review for several roundabouts that connect downtown Napa to SR 29.

« 17 Mile Drive/Holman Highway 68/Highway 1 Roundabout - Monterey.
Engineer. Assisted in preparing as-builts including drawing updates and
electronic filing for a roundabout at the Southbound Highway 1 ramps and
Holman Highway in Monterey.

. SR 99/Eaton Road Roundabout ICE Step 1 and HSIP Grant Application -
Chico. Engineer. Performed roundabout design checks per National Cooper-
ative Highway Research Program (NCHRP) 672 and Caltrans HDM stand-
ards, including fast-paths, truck turns, bus turns, and sight distance for the
PA/ED and PS&E for a roundabout at the intersection of the northbound
State Route (SR) 99 on and off-ramps and Eaton Road/Hicks Lane. This
project is anticipated to go to construction Spring 2020.

18-21 GHD COMPANY/E11/040419_ryk

Page 84 of 108

Page 56 Proposal for SR 29 Comprehensive Multimd@al Corridor Plan & PID for SR 29 through American Canyon



Jay Walter, PE, TE

Caltrans Coordination

« Civil Engineer, CA #41227

. Traffic Engineer, CA#1749

« American Public Works Association

« League of California Cities

« San Mateo City/County Engineers
Association County

« San Mateo City/County Engineers
Association of Governments

« California Traffic Control Devices
Committee

BS, Civil Engineering, California
Polytechnic State University, San Luis
Obispo, CA, 1983

« Director of Public Works, City
Engineer, City of San Carlos, CA,
2012 - 2017

« Public Works Director, City of San
Luis Obispo, CA, 2001 - 2012

« Caltrans District 5 Director, 1998 -
2001

« City of Arroyo Grande On-Call
Transportation Services

« City of Paso Robles On-Call Traffic
Engineering

« City of San Luis Obispo On-Call
Transportation Services

« City of Grover Beach Traffic
Engineering Studies

Qualifications

Jay Walter joined GHD’s San Luis Obispo office as the Office Manager in Janu-
ary 2018. He is a highly experienced public works professional with over 34
years in increasingly responsible positions including top leadership roles with
California Department of Transportation (Caltrans) and the cities of San Carlos
and San Luis Obispo. He is well-versed in both administrative and technical as-
pects of managing large complex public works agencies and departments includ-
ing budget, planning, operational, and administrative duties. Jay’s knowledge of
the communities from Ventura to San Mateo is unparalleled and supported by
our Central Coast office; he will be a valuable asset to GHD’s current and future
clients as we expand our transportation reach on the west coast.

Project Experience

« Buchon Street Traffic Calming - San Luis Obispo. Project Manager. Man-
aged the project, which included the development of PS&E for speed humps
and a mini roundabout for intersection control.

. Santa Maria Downtown Streetscape Plan - Santa Maria. Project Manager.
As part of the SERA design team, provided consulting services and traffic
analysis for the City of Santa Maria Downtown Streetscapes Plan.

. City of Paso Robles Speed Zone Survey Update - Paso Robles. Project
Manager, Project Engineer. Analyzing the data collected from the citywide
radar surveys and speed limit analyses. Preparing the project reports
(engineering and traffic surveys) for 59 various locations within the City.

« US 101/5th Street Interchange ICE Step 1 and Step 2 Process - Gonza-
les. Project Manager. Prepared engineering report for analysis of traffic sig-
nal warrants at the ramp intersections, analyzing traffic volume data, collision
data, and made recommendations to the City Engineer.

- On-Call Transportation/Traffic Engineering - Paso Robles. Project Man-
ager. Performing planning, design, construction assistance, and technical
review of roadway design, traffic signals, roadside safety features, signage/
striping programs, pavement maintenance, travel demand modeling, multi-
modal operations analysis, review of development proposals, and pro-
cessing projects with Caltrans and agencies.

. On-Call Transportation Services - San Luis Obispo. Engineer. Performed
peer review of the traffic signal warrants for the Los Verdes Park Develop-
ment. Provided engineering services for Buchon Street Traffic Calming Im-
provements, including PS&E for speed humps and a mini roundabout for
intersection control.

. Traffic Engineering Studies - Grover Beach. Project Manager. Prepared
engineering studies for various intersections within the city, analyzing traffic
volume data, collision data, speed data and roadway conditions, and made
recommendations to the City Engineer.

« US 101/Main Street Interchange Study - Santa Maria. Project Manager.
Managed revision of a major freeway interchange, coordinated Caltrans in-
teraction and concurrence, directed the design of interim improvements that
provide traffic relief while the longer term project is being designed.

« Shell Beach Elementary School Access Study - Pismo Beach. Project
Manager. Provided traffic data analysis and access improvement ideas for
congested drop off and pick up zones.

18-21 GHD COMPANY/E11/040419_ryk

Proposal for SR 29 Comprehensive Mult/modal Corridor P/am& PID for SR 29 through American Canyon

Page 85 of 1

Page 57



Brian Bacciarini Qualifications
Brian Bacciarini has 16 years of experience with GHD as an environmental plan-

ner and CEQA/NEPA project manager. He assists cities, counties, state agen-

cies, special districts, and federal agencies to review and clear infrastructure pro-
Environmental jects in accordance with environmental regulations and guidelines. He specializ-

es in evaluating projects involving multiple jurisdictions and federal funding pro-

grams, including the Caltrans Local Assistance Procedures. Brian's project expe-
BS, Environmental Studies, Sonoma rience includes roundabouts, roadways, bridges, transit stations, railroads, fer-
State University, Rohnert Park, CA, ries, trails, and utility replacement projects. This far-reaching range of experience
2001 provides him with the breadth of understanding required for this project.

Project Experience
. Construction Document Technician, + Napa Highway SR 121 Roundabout - Napa County. NEPA Lead in Cal-

OSHA 40-Hour HAZWOPER trans District 4. Assisted with the initial environmental review of this locally
Certification sponsored interchange project on the District 4 State Highway System. The
« OSHA 8-Hour Annual HAZWOPER project includes dual roundabouts to replace a congested five-way intersec-
Certificate of Completion tion at Silverado Trail, Third Street, East Avenue, and Coombsville Road.
Construction Site Planning and Coordinated the completion of a PEAR, which provides the initial environ-
Management mental evaluation of the project and alternatives before it is programmed.

This included identifying environmental constraints that may affect project
design, alternatives, cost, schedule, and delivery.

. Grant Avenue Bridge Rehabilitation - Novato. NEPA Lead in Caltrans Dis-
trict 4. Project includes rehabilitating and widening an existing vehicle and
pedestrian bridge, as well as stabilizing the banks and channel on the up-
stream portion of Novato Creek. Project also includes grant authorization
from the Caltrans Highway Bridge Replacement and Rehabilitation program
for partial federal funding. Oversaw the completion of a PES form and nu-
merous technical studies in support of a categorical exclusion finding. Cal-
trans environmental clearance was provided October 2016.

« Lucas Valley Road Realignment - Marin County. NEPA Lead in Caltrans
District 4. Assisting with the NEPA review of this federally funded roadway
realignment. The project includes a roadway curve realignment and retaining
wall on Lucas Road in an area that has been problematic for larger vehicles
to traverse. The project is federally funded by the HSIP, with federal-aid
funds administered by District 4 Local Assistance. Overseeing the comple-
tion of technical studies, including a Natural Environment Study Minimal Im-
pact memo, APE Maps, and Archaeological Survey Report in support of a
categorical exclusion finding.

 Fulton Road Widening Improvement - Santa Rosa. Environmental Lead/
CEQA Project Manage for Preliminary Engineering Design. The project in-
cludes roadway widening, new vehicle travel lanes, bicycle lanes, sidewalks,
bioretention areas, bus stops, landscaping, utility relocations, storm water
facilities, and property acquisitions and easements. Managed the completion
of a CEQA MND that included technical studies for traffic, wetlands, cultural
resources, and roadway traffic noise. The MND was adopted by the City
Council in October of 2017. He is also managing permitting services.

« Grant Avenue Bridge Rehab Project - Novato. Environmental Project

P Manager. Managed the CEQA and NEPA review of this bridge rehabilitation

project. The project includes grant authorization from the Caltrans Highway

= Bridge Replacement and Rehabilitation program for partial federal funding.
18-21 GHD COMPANY/E11/040419_ryk Page 86 of 108

Page 58 Proposal for SR 29 Comprehensive Multimddal Corridor Plan & PID for SR 29 through American Canyon



Brian Howard, PLS

Surveys

« Professional Land Surveyor, CA
#7250

« California Land Surveyor
Association

« BS, Survey and Photogrammetry,
California State University, Fresno,
CA

« AS, Engineering, College of the
Siskiyous, Weed, CA

« Advanced BLM Cadastal
Workshop

« FEMA Elevation Certificate - 2016

« FEMA Obtaining and Developing
Base Flood Elevations in Zone A
Areas

« FEMA Flood Plan Determination in
Approximate Zone A - 2016

« Hypack Hydrographic Training
Seminar

« Water Boundaries for California
Land Surveyors

« AutoDesk Civil3D

. Differential Levels

. Digital Level

« Needed Accessories

. Trimble Geomatics Office

« Trimble R-8 GPS Receivers

. Trimble S-6 Robotic Total Stations
« Trimble 5700 GPS Receivers

« TSC2 Survey Controllers

Qualifications

Brian Howard manages the firm’s Northern California surveying projects and su-
pervises surveyors scheduling field and office personnel. Throughout his over 30
-year career, he has performed surveying and right of way engineering on a full
range of surveying work, including Chainman, Instrumentman, and Party Chief.
He has extensive experience with topographic, boundary, and construction sur-
veying, as well as expertise with geodetic and photogrammetric control, hydro-
graphic surveying, aids to navigation, optical tooling, machine alignment, move-
ment, and settlement surveys. Brian has surveyed in all types of environments
from the highly industrial settings of chemical plants, steel mills, and oil refiner-
ies, to remote areas staking slide repairs and establishing boundary lines in the
vast majority of California’s counties from Orange and Riverside, to Modoc and
Siskiyou. He also has surveying experience in Nevada, Oregon, and Hawaii.

Project Experience

. Farmersville Boulevard at Noble Avenue and SR 198 Eastbound Ramps
Roundabout PS&E - Farmersville. Role. Performed the right of way sup-
port and base mapping to include in the traffic analysis, construction with
over 60 plats and legal descriptions, provided topographic, right of way, and
monumentation survey. Project involved improvement of freeway inter-
change with two adjoining projects for two roundabouts located along Noble
Avenue - one at the intersection of SR 198 eastbound ramps, and the other
at Farmersville Boulevard.

« Rocklin Road Roundabout Corridor - Rocklin Road at Meyers Street
and Grove Street (Construction Staking and Support) - Rocklin. Survey-
or. Provided right of way engineering, construction staking, monumentation
centerline, and record of survey. Provided right of way engineering, construc-
tion staking, monumentation centerline, and record of survey. Boundary res-
olution, right of way engineering and construction staking of two roundabouts
on Rocklin Road. Prepared legal descriptions and plats and a record of sur-
vey. Performed field surveys, office tasks, and overall surveying for a com-
plete street corridor. The Meyers Street and Grove Street Roundabout were
constructed in 2014,

« |-5/Deschutes Road Interchange Reconstruction and Roundabout - An-
derson. Topographic Surveying, Right of Way Engineering, Construction
Staking QA & Monumentation. Provided the topographic surveying, right of
way engineering, construction staking quality assurance, and monumenta-
tion for this freeway off-ramp and five-leg two-lane roundabout.

« SR 99/SR 104 (Twin Cities Road) Interchange PSR/PR and PS&E - Galt.
Surveyor. Performed the field survey, aerial survey, right of way, property/
topographic surveys, office support for control aerial and topographic map-
ping for the planning, engineering, and through to the final plans for the
roundabouts with five legs and new northbound off-ramp at the two existing
interchange locations. Construction was completed in 2013 for $4 million.

« Shasta View Drive/lnspiration Place Roundabout - Redding. Surveyor.
Provided construction staking services.

« Shasta View Drive/Old Alturas Road Roundabout Design - Redding.
Surveyor. Provided the topographic survey and right of way engineering ser-
vices for a roundabout to minimize right of way impacts while replacing an all
-way stop intersection with a modern roundabout.

18-21 GHD COMPANY/E11/040419_ryk

Proposal for SR 29 Comprehensive Mult/modal Corridor Plafm PID for SR 29 through American Canyon

Page 87 of 1

Page 59



Ryan Crawford, PG

Geologist
Geologist, CA #8764

« MS, Geology, Humboldt State
University, Arcata, CA, 2007

« BS, Geology, Humboldt State
University, Arcata, CA, 2003

« 40-Hour OSHA/RCRA Hazardous
Site Waste Operations Courses

« Soil and Groundwater Management

« Construction Site Planning and
Management for Water Quality

« Applied Contaminant Chemistry
Transport in Soil and Groundwater

« Incremental Sampling
Methodologies for soil and
groundwater

« Soil, Soil Vapor, and Groundwater
Impacts Modelling

« Applied Soil, Soil Vapor, and
Groundwater Remedial
Technologies

Qualifications

Ryan Crawford is a professional geologist who has performed on a variety of
geological, environmental, and hydrological projects throughout California, Alas-
ka, Panama, Ecuador, and Guam. His contamination assessment and remedia-
tion experience includes: Initial site assessments, environmental site assess-
ments, phase I/I/Ill investigations (including large and small scale phase | corri-
dor studies) surface and groundwater hydrologic studies; environmental subsur-
face investigations with associated remediation system design and implementa-
tion for the full suite of contaminants; boring and well drilling supervision; per-
forming risk-based corrective action evaluations; regulator and contractor coordi-
nation; technical writing, review, and editing and recommendations for reports;
preparation and implementation of work plans, remedial action plans, ADL and
NOA reports, corrective action plans, report of findings, sensitive receptor sur-
veys, and the characterization and disposal of investigative derived waste mate-
rials since 2007,

Project Experience

. Talmage Road Highway 101 Overpass Aerially Deposited Lead Report -
Ukiah. Ongoing testing by Caltrans throughout California has indicated that
ADL exists along major freeways and roadways due to emissions from mo-
torized vehicle exhaust powered by leaded gasoline. Oversaw the initial site
assessment and sample collection of aerially deposited lead along the Tal-
mage Road Overpass project and prepared the associated ADL report.

. Hill Road Bridge Replacement Aerially Deposited Lead and Naturally
Occurring Asbestos Reports - Mendocino. Asbestos is naturally occurring
(NOA) in much of Northern California and can potentially be encountered in
particular rocks and soils, which can pose an inhalation hazard when dis-
turbed. As part of the ISA, oversaw the collected of NOA and ADL samples
along the drip line and bridge abutments of Hill Road bridge for Mendocino
County and Caltrans and provided recommendations for waste stream and
wrote the associated reports for construction/destruction during the project.

. Clover Creek Bridge Replacement Hazardous Materials Survey: Aerially
Deposited Lead and Naturally Occurring Asbestos Reports - Lake. Con-
ducted a hazardous materials survey prior to bridge demolition and redesign.
Included review of site and regional geology and oversaw the collection of
samples for ADL and NOA including analytical results interpretation and rec-
ommendations related to bridge destruction and soil disturbance issues.

« Rancho Vicente Staging Area Grading: Santa Clara Parks NOA Sam-
pling & Reporting - Santa Clara County. Mapping data published by City
of San Jose Environmental Services show that the project is near locations
that are classified as “Definite” to contain both ultramafic and serpentine rock
formations, of which both rock types can yield various concentrations and
forms of NOA. Directed a Caltrans type NOA reporting survey.

. Phase | Corridor Studies - Arcata, Eureka, Sonoma, Napa and Santa
Rosa. Responsible for hazardous materials Phase | corridor studies up to
four miles in length conducted through sections of the Arcata and Eureka
cities as part of a “Rails-to Trails” project. Industrial activities investigated in
the area dated back to the early 1900's. Studies were for sewer and water
pipeline upgrades through city right of ways.

18-21 GHD COMPANY/E11/040419_ryk

Proposal for SR 29 Comprehensive Multiméddal Corridor Plan & PID for SR 29 through American Canyon

Page 60

Page 88 of 108



Lin Zhang, PhD, PE, TE, PTOE  Qualifications
Dr. Lin Zhang has more than 15 years of professional experience in the areas of

transportation engineering and planning, with increasing responsibility in both the
public and private sectors. Dr. Zhang has considerable experience in traffic oper-
. PeMS ations, corridor studies, traffic simulation and modeling, toll operations, managed
. Freeway Operations lanes, congestion pricing, traffic signal systems, traffic safety, Intelligent Trans-
portation Systems (ITS), and performance measurement. Dr. Zhang is a regis-
tered Professional Engineer (PE), Traffic Engineer (TE), and Professional Traffic
. PhD, Civil Engineering, University of ~ Operations Engineer (PTOE). He is a Member of the National Academies' Trans-

Hawaii, HI portation Research Board (TRB) Committee on Freeway Operations, one of the
« MS, Civil Engineering, Southeast most active and prestigious committees within the TRB. He is the Past President
University, Nanjing, China for the San Francisco Bay Area Institute of Transportation Engineers. He is also
. BS, Civil Engineering, Southeast a committee member of the Arterial Advisory Group (AAG) in the Bay Area. He
University, Nanjing, China has contributed to numerous regional, national, and international conferences as
. Civil Engineer, CA #75052 a speaker/moderator.
« Traffic Engineer, CA #2428
. Professional Traffic Operations Project Experience
Engineer, CA #2062 « |-580 Design Alternative Assessment (DAA) - Alameda County. Task

Leader. Leading both tasks on Data Collection and Analysis & Corridor Oper-
ations Analysis. Corridor operations analysis is being conducted using High-

. National Academies' Transportation way Capacity Manual (HCM)-based FREEVAL analysis tool.
Research Board Committee on . |-880 Adaptive Ramp Metering Implementation Plan - Alameda/Santa
Freeway Operations Clara County. Task Leader. Dr. Assisting MTC with existing conditions as-
. Arterial Advisory Group, Bay Area sessment for the [-880 ARM implementation plan.

« 2018 CMP Monitoring and Conformance Reports - Santa Clara Valley
Transportation Authority (VTA). Project Manager. Assisting VTA with its

. Traffic Operations 2018 Congestion Management Program (CMP) Monitoring Reports.

« Corridor Studies « Using Archived Data as a Tool for Operations Planning - San Francisco
« Traffic Simulation & Modeling Bay Area. Case Study Lead. Conducted a case study in the San Francisco

« Toll Operations Bay Area to demonstrate how MTC used archived data to support corridor

« Managed Lanes study planning efforts.

« Congestion Pricing « |-80/Gilman Street Interchange Improvement PA/ED Project - Berkeley.

. Traffic Signal Systems Task Leader. Responsible for traffic analyses for this project, including free-
. Traffic Safety way and arterial operations analysis using VISSIM, a micro-simulation tool.

« Intelligent Transportation Systems « Most Congested Freeway Segments in San Francisco Bay Area - Metro-
« Performance Measurement politan Transportation Commission. Assisted in refining the methodology

using INRIX data for the Most Congested Freeways in Bay Area, also known
as the State of the System report.

. Bay Area Traffic Trend Analysis - San Francisco Bay Area. Analysis.
Conducted analysis of Bay Area traffic trend using INRIX and PeMS data.

. Integrated Corridor Management Tools, Strategies, and Deployment
Support - FHWA. Participated in the analysis, modeling, and simulation ac-
tivities of the Integrated Corridor Management initiative for the FHWA.

« |-210 Corridor Study - LA County, CA, Southern California Association
of Governments (SCAG). Model Development. Developed a VISSIM micro-
simulation model for 23-mile corridor and conducted alternatives analysis.
Next Generation Simulation Core Algorithms & Data Sets - FHWA. Mod-

el Development. Successfully generated more than 13 million vehicle trajec-
tory data points for traffic flow, operations, and simulation research.

18-21 GHD COMPANY/E11/040419_ryk Page 89 of 1

Proposal for SR 29 Comprehensive Mult/modal Corridor PIaA'& PID for SR 29 through American Canyon Page 61



Lawrence Liao

SNABM

« ME, Transportation with a Certificate
of Logistics, University of California,
Berkeley, CA

« MS, Industrial Engineering,
University of New Haven, CT

« BS, Industrial Engineering, Tunghai
University, Taiwan

« ETG, 2018 - Present

. TJKM, 2014 - 2018

« Cambridge Systematics, 2008 -
2014

« Arup, 2007 - 2008

. Fehr & Peers, 2003 - 2007

. Citilabs, 1999 - 2002

« Travel Demand Modeling
« Transportation Planning
. Big Data Analytics

« Certified Cube Trainer

Mr. Liao presented the procedure he
developed at the TRB Integrated
Corridor Management Workshop in
Irvine, CA in September 2009.

G

Qualifications

Lawrence Liao has more than 18 years of experience in the areas of travel de-
mand forecasting, transportation planning, and big data analytics. He has devel-
oped and updated travel demand models at various levels - from cities and coun-
ties to Metropolitan Planning Organizations (MPQ’s) and states, and for both trip-
based and activity-based models. He has also applied travel demand models to
support various projects, such as corridor system management plans, traffic im-
pact studies, general plan updates, environmental impact reports, corridor stud-
ies, transit-oriented development, managed lane modeling, as well as federal
research projects.

Lawrence is experienced in all major travel demand modeling software packag-
es, including CUBE, TransCAD, EMME, VISUM, Tranplan, and MINUTP, as well
as, common programming languages, such as, Python, Java, MS Office VBA,
C++, Pascal, and Fortran. He is also one of only five certified CUBE trainers in
the world and is an expert in CUBE-VOYAGER/TP+ scripting.

Project Experience

. |-5/SR 99, I-80/SR 51, SR 65, US 50 Corridor Management Systems
Plans - Sacramento. Lead Modeler. In charge of converting static travel
demand information from the regional demand model (SACMETO7) into time
-dependent trip tables for four corridors (I 5/SR 99, | 80/SR 51, SR 65, US
50) in the Sacramento area. Developed a standard procedure to ensure that
the final time-dependent trip tables are feasible for traffic microsimulation
models.

« North Development Environmental Impact Report (EIR) - Rancho
Murieta. Modeling. Provided travel demand modeling services using SAC-
SIM11 to support the traffic impact analysis in the EIR. Mr. Liao prepared
input data for DaySim, using PopGen and buffering tools to develop a cumu-
lative model with four large scale approved projects and developed traffic
forecasts for the 2014 base scenario and 2035 cumulative no-project sce-
nario.

. Strategic Highway Research Program (SHRP) 2 C10 Project - Sacra-
mento. This project integrated the activity-based model (SACSIM) main-
tained by the Sacramento Area Council of Governments (SACOG) with a
traffic microsimulation model, DynusT. The project also included enhance-
ments to SACSIM and DynusT to analyze the effects of reliability on the
transportation system and integration of the new integrated model with the
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency's (EPA) MOVES program for air quali-
ty analysis. Mr. Liao was a key staff in charge of model integration compiling
input data for DynusT using data from SACSIM.

. Solano-Napa Activity Based Model Development - Solano & Napa
Counties. Developed a focused activity-base model for the Solano and Na-
pa counties (SNABM) based on the MTC ABM. The MTC ABM model code
stream was revised to accommodate the enhanced zonal and network struc-
ture in SNABM. Procedures were developed to map employment data from
the SIC-based categories to the NAICS-based categories for the new
SNABM, and to map link attributes from the current SNTDM to the MTC
ABM link attributes.

18-21 GHD COMPANY/E11/040419_ryk

Proposal for SR 29 Comprehensive Multiméddal Corridor Plan & PID for SR 29 through American Canyon

Page 62

Page 90 of 108



Kendall Flint

« Interagency Consultation

« Public Outreach

« Public Hearings/Board
Presentations

« American Planning Association

. California Association of Public
Information Officials

« Public Relations Society of America

« International Association of Business
Communicators

BA, English, University of California,
Los Angeles, CA

Kendall's award-winning work has
been honored by the California
Association of Public Information
Officers, Public Relations Society of
America, International Television
Association, International Association
of Business Communicators and
California Local Economic
Development Corp., which honored
the economic development program
for the City of Elk Grove with its
Crystal Eagle Grand Prize.

REGIONAL
GOVERNMENT
SERVICES

RGS

Qualifications

Kendall Flint is an industry professional with more than 25 years of marketing,
advertising, and public engagement experience. She has created and imple-
mented a broad range of communication, economic development, and outreach
campaigns for both public and private agencies. Her award-winning work has
been honored by the California Association of Public Information Officers, Public
Relations Society of America, International Television Association, International
Association of Business Communicators and California Local Economic Devel-
opment Corporation, which honored the economic development program for the
City of Elk Grove with its Crystal Eagle Grand Prize. She has specific experience
in transportation and land use outreach programs throughout California.

Project Experience

« Measure L - Stanislaus Council of Governments. RGS developed an ex-
penditure plan and ballot measure, Measure L, for a transportation sales tax
in 2016 for the Stanislaus Council of Governments after the failure of two
previous efforts in 2006 and 2008. RGS managed a methodical process that
included focus groups, polling and more than 100 meetings with local agen-
cies, stakeholder groups and advisory bodies. This all-inclusive approach
resulted in a markedly different plan that previous set before voters. The fo-
cus was on “Local Roads First” - a mantra that resonated with voters and
stakeholders regardless of party affiliation. Measure L passed with 71.95%
of the vote in favor of the proposed sales tax measure.

« SR 68 Scenic Corridor Study - Transportation Agency of Monterey
County. Managed a comprehensive outreach program for the Transportation
Agency for Monterey County (TAMC) as part of its SR-68 Scenic Corridor
Study. The study reviewed how SR-68 operates today, and what can be
done to ensure that it operates as safely and acceptably as possible for all
users in the future. Work included numerous community presentations, a
dedicate website and a series of workshops.

« US 101 Mobility Study and SR 227 Study - San Luis Obispo County
Council of Governments. Led a highly successful countywide outreach
effort to prioritize future investments along US 101 through the County. The
outreach effort focused on anecdotal, qualitative views and opinions ex-
pressed by the public. The project website averaged over 800 unique visits
per month. It has generated over 400 unique comments via our interactive
mapping tool. RGS completed over 200 intercept interviews countywide and
engaged more than 600 people at various presentations and workshops held
throughout the County. Also developed and implemented an outreach pro-
gram in support of the SR 227 Corridor Study. This included a series of inter-
active workshops and community presentations.

. Highway 92-Highway 1 Transportation Study. Managed the Highway 92-
Highway 1 Transportation Study, ConnectTheCoastside.com. Connect the
Coastside was a comprehensive transportation management plan to identify
programs and improvements along Highway 1 and Highway 92 to accommo-
date the Midcoast's future transportation needs. The plan evaluated the ex-
isting and future residential and non-residential development potential of the
Midcoast and City of Half Moon Bay by conducting a land use build-out anal-
ysis and an assessment of the current and future transportation system.

18-21 GHD COMPANY/E11/040419_ryk

Proposal for SR 29 Comprehensive Mult/modal Corridor P/am PID for SR 29 through American Canyon

Page 91 of 1

Page 63



TA

NAPA VALLEY TRANSFORTATION AUTHORITY

REQUEST FOR TASK PROPOSAL

Pursuant to

On-Call Planning Services (RFQ 2015-03) and
On-Call A/E Design & Project Delivery Services (RFQ 2017-07)
for

STATE ROUTE 29 COMPREHENSIVE MULTIMODAL CORRIDOR PLAN
AND
PROJECT INIITIATION DOCUMENT FOR STATE ROUTE 29 THROUGH
AMERICAN CANYON

As an on-call planning and on-call A/E design & project delivery firm selected under the provisions of RFQ 2015-03
and RFQ 2017-07, you are being asked to prepare a budget, schedule, and proposal for the STATE ROUTE 29
COMPREHENSIVE MULTIMODAL CORRIDOR PLAN AND PROJECT INIITIATION DOCUMENT FOR STATE
ROUTE 29 THROUGH AMERICAN CANYON — Task Order No. 9. The scope of work for this task order is attached
hereto as EXHIBIT A. Selection will be based on cost, schedule of performance, and expertise. You are invited to
prepare a proposal to perform this work. Your proposal must include:

(1) A detailed schedule of performance.
(2) A not-to-exceed cost proposal (incl. hourly/labor rates).
(3) A listing of assigned project personnel.

This work may or may not be funded with federal funds. All contract documents will contain applicable mandated
federal contract provisions and be issued pursuant to the terms and conditions of RFQ 2015-03, RFQ 2017-07 and
the professional services agreement executed pursuant thereto. NVTA'’s overall DBE goal is 2.2%.

The NVTA project manager assigned to this task is Rebecca Schenck, Transportation Program Planner, at (707)
259-8636 or by e-mail rschenck@nvta.ca.gov .

A pre-proposal conference is scheduled for February 12, 2019, 2:30 PM (local), NVTA, Board Room, 625 Burnell
Street, Napa, CA 94559, or the option to call-in to address any questions and/or needed clarification will be available
by dialing 1-888-398-2342 and using access code 9209029 when prompted.

All inquiries regarding this task proposal are to be directed to Renée Y. Kulick, Sr. Administrative Technician, by e-
mail rkulick@nvta.ca.qgov by February 15, 2019, 2:00 PM (local). NVTA, in its sole discretion, reserves the right to:

Reject any or all proposal submittals.

Issue one (1) or more subsequent Requests for Task Proposal.
Open proposals at its convenience.

Remedy technical errors in the solicitation/selection process.
Approve or disapprove the use of particular sub-proposers.
Negotiate with any, all, or none of the proposers responding.
Award a contract to one (1) or more proposers.

Waive informalities and irregularities in any proposal.

NGO WN =

Proposals are due to NVTA no later than March 7, 2019, 2:00 PM (local).

ﬂ/é—' % Aﬁr/
Kate Miller
Executive Director

Page 1 of 10
18-21 GHD COMPANY/E11/040419_ryk Page 92 of 108
150



EXHIBIT A

SCOPE OF WORK

State Route 29 Comprehensive Multimodal Corridor Plan
and
Project Initiation Document for State Route 29 through American Canyon

This scope of work covers two (2) main objectives that are to be separately priced:

Objective 1 - Update the State Route 29 Gateway Corridor Plan to meet
the conditions of the Senate Bill 1, Comprehensive Multimodal Corridor
Plan Guidelines, as outlined in
http://www.catc.ca.gov/programs/sbl/sccp/corridor-

plan/docs/120518 Approved CMCP_Guidelines.pdf

Objective 2 - Complete a Project Initiation Document (PID) for State Route
29 in American Canyon between Napa Junction Road and American
Canyon Road.

SECTION | STATE ROUTE 29 COMPREHENSIVE MULTIMODAL CORRIDOR
PLAN

The State Route (SR) 29 Comprehensive Multimodal Corridor Plan will update the
SR 29 Gateway Corridor Improvement Plan that was adopted in October 2014,
and define projects that can be implemented near-term, mid-term and long-term.
The SR 29 Comprehensive Multimodal Corridor Plan (Plan) will build upon the
October 2014 Plan by analyzing intersection improvements in greater detail,
evaluating the impacts of parallel local road improvements for all modes,
evaluating technologies and traveler information, and modeling improvements
through a micro-simulation model in accordance with Caltrans Corridor Planning
Guidance and the principles of the federal Congestion Management Process. The
project limits for this study are Devlin Road to the west, Newell Drive and
North/South Kelly Roads to the east, the intersection of SR 29/121 (Imola
intersection) to the north, and SR 37/29 interchange to the south.

Specifically, the Plan will:

1) Include near-term multi-modal solutions to specific intersections;

2) Evaluate adjacent/parallel corridor connections and extensions;

3) Expand on and analyze bus, bicycle, and pedestrian
improvements along the corridor(s);

4) Evaluate integrated technology and smart corridor solutions
that can be applied to the corridor to improve operations;

5) Provide economic impact analysis that evaluates the economic
effects of proposed improvements;

6) Include congestion management strategies; and

18-21 GHD COMPANY/E11/040419_ryk Page 93 of 108
151


http://www.catc.ca.gov/programs/sb1/sccp/corridor-plan/docs/120518_Approved_CMCP_Guidelines.pdf
http://www.catc.ca.gov/programs/sb1/sccp/corridor-plan/docs/120518_Approved_CMCP_Guidelines.pdf

7) Determine the order projects should be delivered to optimize
traffic operations, reduce traffic/congestion and minimize
additional traffic/congestion in other parts of the corridor.

The Plan will include multi-modal improvements and congestion management
strategies on the corridor and expand on near and midterm solutions that can be
implemented in the next 2-5 years, in addition to longer term improvements. The
Plan will also take a more comprehensive (parallel corridor) circulation approach
and evaluate parallel arterials such as potential extensions and connections on
Devlin Road, Newell Drive, South and North Kelly Roads, Fairgrounds Drive -
Flosden Road, and Soscol Ferry Road and analyze how potential improvements
will impact congestion on the highway. The Plan will include micro-simulation
models of proposed alternatives. The Plan will further investigate smart/adaptive
corridor management technologies and strategies for application on SR 29.

The Plan will be continuously tracked and monitored by NVTA staff, the Staff
Working Group (SWG) comprised of NVTA SR 29 Working Group and Caltrans
planning, engineering and environmental staff.

Expected products are listed as deliverables.
TASK 1 Project Startup
1.1 Kick-Off Meeting. Conduct a kick-off meeting with select project
management team members to review the approved scope of work

and discuss expectations, including needed data and proposing a
public engagement strategy.

Deliverable Documentation
Signed contract between Copy of signed contract
Consultant and NVTA
Conduct kick-off meeting Meeting notes/summary of public
outreach plan

Data Collection Updated Average Daily Traffic (ADT)
and Turning Movement Counts

TASK 2 Ongoing Stakeholder and Community Outreach and Project
Oversight

2.1 Stakeholder/Jurisdictional Meetings. Budget up to four (4)

stakeholder meetings which could include municipal, business and/or
community members.

18-21 GHD COMPANY/E11/040419_ryk Page 94 of 108
152



2.2 Committee Meetings. Meet with NVTA Citizen Advisory
Committee (CAC) and the Technical Advisory Committee (TAC). The
CAC is comprised of numerous interest groups and individuals
representing all modes who have an interest in the SR 29
Comprehensive Multimodal Corridor Plan. Members of the CAC
represent environmental advocacy groups, merchant and business
associations, hospitality, agriculture, wine production, education, and
health. The TAC is made up of technical staff (public works and
planning) from each jurisdiction. The Consultant will provide updates
and/or materials for staff updates to the CAC and TAC approximately
four (4) times during the course of the project. The Committee will
review project progress and submit comments to the Staff Working
Group and the NVTA Board.

2.3 Public Meetings.

2.3.1 Promote, advertise, and conduct no more than three (3)
public charrettes at different locations/times through a multi-media
campaign (including, but not limited to, use of newspaper and radio
broadcast) through the Citizen Advisory Committee and other
stakeholders to gain public involvement and refine plan concepts. One
(1) of the public charrettes should be held in the beginning of the
process to gain initial input and feedback and one (1) charrette should
be held later in the process to review the draft Corridor Plan/Concepts.

2.3.2 Prepare presentation materiel for City Council and County
Board of Supervisor meetings. Most presentations will be conducted
by NVTA staff and/or City/County staff.

2.3.3 Prepare presentation materials and present no more than
three times to the Napa Valley Transportation Authority Board (NVTA
Board) which will act as the steering committee for the Comprehensive
Multimodal Corridor Plan.

2.3.4 Meet with SWG approximately six (6) times over the course
of the study (made up of NVTA staff, Caltrans staff, and the SR 29
Working Group members from the City of American Canyon, City of
Napa, and County of Napa.

Prior to publication of milestone documents, draft documents and
supporting data will be reviewed by the SWG. This group is
expected to meet approximately six (6) times at key points in the
process: to review and accept the Vision, to review the existing corridor
study’s results; potential improvement programs, review the draft
Corridor Implementation Plan. Day-to-day work on project documents
and meetings will be carried out by the Consultant, with direct staff

18-21 GHD COMPANY/E11/040419_ryk Page 95 of 108
153



support from NVTA. It is expected that the Consultant team will consist
of a transportation engineering and planning firm engaged in multi-
modal planning and engineering, congestion management,
transportation technology, and traffic modeling. The Consultant team
should also be able to demonstrate a significant understanding of state
and federal transportation funding programs and have existing working
relationships with Caltrans District 4 and California Transportation
Commission (CTC) staff.

Deliverable Documentation

Public Outreach Contact lists and logs

Citizen Advisory Committee | Presentation/meeting materials,
and Technical Advisory agendas and minutes

Committee meetings
Public Meetings/charrettes Presentation/meeting materials,
attendance lists, agendas, meeting
notes

NVTA Board Presentation/meeting materials,
agendas, meeting notes

Staff Working Group Presentation/meeting materials,
attendance lists, agendas, meeting
notes

TASK 3 Develop Plan Components

The SR 29 Comprehensive Multimodal Corridor Plan (Plan), to be
managed by NVTA, will consist of the following subtasks

3.1 Evaluate Opportunities, Develop Corridor Plan Framework,
and Literature Review. Refine the purpose and need statement for
the SR 29 corridor including current problems and deficiencies facing
the corridor. The Consultant will work with Stakeholders (CAC, TAC,
jurisdictional staff and others) and the SWG, to develop a refined multi-
modal and congestion management strategy framework for the corridor.
The framework will serve as a broad outline to the Corridor Plan and
define purpose and need for improvements to the corridor, plan/project
elements and will evaluate parallel corridor connectivity/extension
options that will work in tandem to improve circulation and congestion
on the SR 29 corridor. The framework will consider all modes of
transportation,  congestion management  strategies and
smart/adaptive technologies that will improve corridor operations, to
improve access to and on the corridor. The framework will include
graphics, and emphasize context sensitive designs for each proposed
improvement. The Consultant team will prepare a literature review of

18-21 GHD COMPANY/E11/040419_ryk Page 96 of 108
154



elements included in similar highway corridors that serve as both a
regional highway and a main street in suburban/urban locations.

3.2 Summarize Corridor Existing Studies and Plans. The Consultant
with assistance from the SWG will identify all existing circulation, transit,
bicycle and pedestrian studies, and plans that apply to the Corridor as
well as jurisdictional General Plan policies. The Consultant will then
create a summary documenting what is known about the corridor and
relevant, adopted plans. The Consultant will also develop a matrix
showing all of the adopted policies that apply to the Corridor. Special
emphasis will be given to identification of policies that are consistent
across jurisdictions. The matrix will also identify policies that conflict with
one another. The Plan documents will include but are not limited to the
SR 29 Gateway Corridor Improvement Plan, the City of American
Canyon Broadway Specific Plan, the Watson Ranch EIR, County of
Napa and American Canyon Circulation Elements, the County of Napa
Airport Industrial Specific Plan, City of Napa General and Specific Plans,
NVTA Countywide Transportation Plan Vision 2040, NVTA Pedestrian
and Bicycle Plans, and NVTA Express Bus Study. It should also be
noted that the City of Napa has a citywide traffic model and that NVTA’s
Napa Travel Demand Model has been recently separated and validated,
resulting in Napa County having its own model.

3.3 Model Future Traffic Projections. The Consultant will have
access to the Napa Model. Because the Napa Model is a regional model,
post processing may be necessary to determine future traffic
projections. NVTA may wish to use more detailed micro-simulation
modeling to provide future traffic projections on individual proposed
improvements. The Consultant will provide detailed traffic projections
for the Corridor and important connecting streets. Model assumptions
shall be reviewed and accepted by the SWG. The Consultant will
compare volumes within the model to volumes identified in the City of
American Canyon, City of Napa and County of Napa circulation studies
and other recent studies, and propose adjustments where appropriate
for review and acceptance by the Group. If there are conflicts, the report
will describe them. The resulting report will summarize existing
conditions and projected future year (2040) conditions for weekday peak
hour commute traffic and weekend visitor peak traffic. Where weekend
peak volumes are not available, a methodology will be developed to
factor from weekday data.

18-21 GHD COMPANY/E11/040419_ryk Page 97 of 108
155



3.4 a. Program and Project Identification. Identify potential
programs and projects to improve the corridor while considering
California Streets and Highways Code — Sections 2390-2397 and
focusing on the Solutions for Congested Corridors Program (SCCP)
strategies to:

1) Reduce traffic congestion and address local access focusing
primarily on operational improvements rather than capacity or
facility expansion;

2) Improve corridor safety, accessibility and crossings for all
travel modes;

3) Improve corridor circulation by evaluating pending
connections/extension improvements of parallel roadways,
improvements to existing mainline corridors, intersection
improvements, or other congestion management strategies;

4) Improve transit access and transit flow;

5) Build upon aesthetic improvements identified in the SR 29
Gateway Corridor Plan to improve the appearance and
cohesiveness of the corridor while ensuring that each
jurisdiction remains visually distinct;

6) Upgrade technologies that will improve corridor operations
and provide travel information;

7) Evaluate economic development, job creation and retention of
proposed projects/programs; and

8) Reduce greenhouse gas emissions and air pollution impacts
with proposed projects/programs, and stimulate efficient land
use.

b. Cost/Benefit Analysis. The Consultant and SWG will
develop, and the Stakeholders, TAC, and NVTA Board will review, a
menu of physical improvements and programs that can advance
improvements in the corridor. The menu will include existing projects or
programs that have not been fully implemented as well as near-term,
mid-term and long-term projects. The Consultant will develop a matrix
to determine the ability of each existing or new project to advance the
framework and to improve the corridor by advancing one or more of the
eight (8) objectives listed above. The matrix will list short, mid and long
term projects, develop an optimized order of delivery, and rate projects
based on how well the project accomplishes the above stated goals.

The Consultant will create a cost estimate for each project or program,
including costs to build facilities or acquire program materials, annual
operation and maintenance costs, and funding options.

18-21 GHD COMPANY/E11/040419_ryk Page 98 of 108
156



3.5 Corridor Improvement Implementation Plan. Develop a Corridor
Improvement Implementation Plan, covering the following topics:

a. Recommended programs and projects
1) Project Deliverability
2) Congestion Relief
3) Air Quality
4) Safety Improvements
5) Accessibility
6) Efficient Land Use

b. Funding options and strategy
1) Matching of Funds

c. Governance options for multi-jurisdictional programs or
projects.

d. Economic Impact Analysis of the proposed improvements. The
economic impact analysis should include the following:

1) Use of construction cost estimates and projected gains
in worker productivity and reduced delays/congestion
and possible net tourism gains(such as transient
occupancy tax revenue)

2) Impacts to goods movement and freight

3) Direct Impacts and estimated employment changes
from budget dollars to be spent

4) Induced and indirect impacts on business revenues and
employment

5) State and local tax gains

The Consultant and SWG will prepare, and the Stakeholders, TAC and
NVTA Board will review, a draft implementation plan for corridor
improvement projects and programs to address the study's varied
objectives. The implementation plan will recommend steps for
immediate, short-term (1 -2 years), mid-term (3-5 years) and long-term
(beyond 5 years) implementation. The implementation plan will provide
an estimated project delivery schedule for key improvements, evaluate
project readiness, identify a funding strategy of existing and potential
new funds available to initiate and operate the recommended programs
and projects, and will recommend a governance option for the multi-
jurisdictional projects or programs.

18-21 GHD COMPANY/E11/040419_ryk Page 99 of 108
157



Deliverable Documentation
Develop Ranked project list Copy of draft Plan. Consider a range

for corridor improvements of performance metrics

Develop Summary of Existing | Copy of draft Summary and Conflict

Studies and Plans policy Matrix

Project Future Traffic Copy of Traffic Projections

Project costs Copy of Cost Estimate for each
project phase or program

Economic Impact Analysis Copy of Economic Analysis in the
draft Plan

Develop a Corridor Copy of Draft Corridor Improvement

Improvement Implementation Plan optimize

Implementation Plan (Include | project order in terms of their

cost/benefit analysis) effectiveness of reducing traffic

congestion and minimizing adverse
traffic impacts as well as project

readiness.
Modified Draft Plan (if Modified Draft Plan before final
necessary) approval based on stakeholder
feedback

TASK 4 Final Plan Preparation & Public Meeting

4.1 Prepare final plans based on NVTA Board, CAC, SWG, TAC, and
community input.

4.2 Present final plans at a public meeting before the NVTA Board for

acceptance.
Deliverable Documentation
Preparation of final plan(s) | Copy of final plan(s) and meeting
for public meeting presentation materials

SECTION II'  PREPARATION OF PROJECT INITIATION DOCUMENT FOR
STATE ROUTE 29 THROUGH THE CITY OF AMERICAN
CANYON

TASK 1 Project Initiation Document (PID)
1.1 Based upon the final plans of the SR 29 Comprehensive Multimodal

Corridor Plan (Plan), the Consultant will prepare a Project Initiation
Document (PID) in accordance with Caltrans’ latest Project

18-21 GHD COMPANY/E11/040419_ryk Page 100 of 108
158



Development Procedures Manual (PDPM) outlining the scope, cost and
schedule for segment of the project from Napa Junction Road to
American Canyon Road. The PID will:

1) Document the project’s purpose and need,;

2) Present existing information, initial assumptions, identified
risks, and constraints;

3) Include up to three alternatives and a no build condition that
will be taken to meet or reduce transportation deficiencies and
address the purpose and need; and

4) Narrow the number of project alternatives to be studied, to
facilitate cost efficiencies during the PA&ED phase.

1.2 Produce final PID to be executed by NVTA and Caltrans.

SECTION Il EVALUATION CRITERIA

Proposal submitted will be evaluated in the following criteria —

CRITERIA P('\)AIAN>'I('S
Project Understanding 25
Experience and Qualifications 25
Project Team Organization 20
Demonstrate Ability to Develop Innovative or Advanced 20
Applications and/or Technology Solutions

Familiarity with State and Federal Procedures 10
Total 100

18-21 GHD COMPANY/E11/040419_ryk Page 101 of 108
159



TA

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

ADDENDUM No. 1

Date: February 14, 2019

To: Prospective Bidders

From: Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA)

Re: Addendum No. 1 to Request for Task Proposal (RTP) No. 09 — STATE

ROUTE 29 COMPREHENSIVE MULTIMODAL CORRIDOR PLAN AND
PROJECT INITIATION DOCUMENT FOR STATE ROUTE 29 THROUGH
AMERICAN CANYON

This addendum is being issued by the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) to
provide the following change under the proposal submittal deadline as follows:

The proposal submittal deadline of March 7, 2019, 2:00 PM (local) has been
changed to a new proposal submittal due date and time of March 4, 2019,
2:00 PM (local). This new proposal deadline is Monday, March 4, 2019,
2:00 PM (local) which is prior to the previous deadline.

This document is being provided to you as additional information. All of the documents
which have been issued after the release of the RTP will serve as the basis of the work
product that will be the ultimate result of this procurement.

We thank you for your continued interest in this procurement and look forward to receiving
your response to our solicitation.

Kate Miller
Executive Director

1

18-21 GHD COMPANY/E11/040419_ryk Page 102 of 108
160



EXHIBIT B

COST SHEET

DESCRTIPTION AMOUNT

SECTION I - SR 29 Comprehensive Multimodal Corridor Plan

TASK 1 Project Start Up and Kick-Off Meeting S 26,387
TASK 2 Ongoing Stakeholde and Community Outreach S 60,997
TASK 3 Development Plan Concepts S 151,564
TASK 4 Final Plan Preparation and Public Meeting S 32,119
Other Costs/Expenses S 8,955
SUBTOTAL S 280,022

SECTION Il - Project Initiation Document
TASK 1 Project Management , Coordination and Quality Control S 76,300
TASK 2 Preliminary Research/Data Collection and Base Mapping S 37,862
TASK 3 Purpose and Need Project Information Form S 7,423
TASK 4 Traffic Study - Intersection Control Evaluation (ICE) Step 1 S 63,652
TASK 5 Alternatives Development and Analysis S 97,066
TASK 6 Project Study Report/Project Development Support (PSR-PDS) S 48,996
Other Costs/Expenses S 8,500
SUBTOTAL S 339,799
TOTAL S 619,821

The total amount to be paid to the CONTRACTOR for the scope of work defined
under EXHIBIT A shall not exceed 5619,821. Subject to Agreement,
CONTRACTOR shall periodically invoice NVTA based on progress towards
completion of task/deliverables listed above, amounts not to exceed
tasks/deliverable totals.

18-21 GHD COMPANY/E11/040419_ryk Page 103 of 108
161



SECTION 1

Project Team Budget and Hours Summary

=
(%]
S 5 5
[ [ = = 3 T 2 e
< < o) o)
- - — — - -
(o] (o] o o = s
F F L 2 F oo [ o a
@) o 0) 0) 0 5 ()] I ©
.. I e O o Q ° °
Task Description O O E E x T 04 e e

Task 1 Project Startup

1.1 Project Management and Coordination 20 $ 4,557 - % - - $ -
1.2 Project Kick-Off Meeting 18 $ 4,065 - % - 8 $ 1,200
1.3 Bi-Weekly Conference Calls 12 $ 2,734 - % - 8 $ 1,200
1.4 Data Retrieval / Processing / Review 96 $ 11,531 4 % 620 4 $ 480
Task 2 Ongoing Stakeholder and Community Outreach and Project Oversight
2.1 Prepare a Draft and Final Public Outreach Plan 4 % 911 = | S - 28 $ 3,560
2.2 Stakeholder/Jurisdictional Meetings 24 $ 5,115 = |8 - 36 $ 4,800 m
2.3 Committee Meetings 24 $ 5,468 - $ - 8 $ 1,200
2.4 Public Meetings 28 $ 5492 - % - 86 $ 11,600
2.5 Collateral Outreach Materials 52 $ 6,325 - $ - 68 $ 8,600
2.6 Public Outreach Summary Report 8 $ 1,646 - % - 52 $ 6,280 m
Task 3 Develop Plan Components
3.1 Evaluate Opportunities, Develop Corridor Plan Framework and Literature Review 36 $ 5,410 2 $ 420 - -
3.2 Summarize Corridor Existing Studies and Plans 44 $ 5,769 4 % 840 - 3 = m
3.3 Model Future Traffic Projections 104 $ 14,574 112 $ 21,760 - 3 =
3.4 Program and Project identification 528 $ 62,627 104 $ 17,440 - -
3.5 Corridor improvement Implementation Plan 142 $ 22,724 - $ - - -
Task 4 Final Plan and Public Meeting
4.1 Prepare Administrative Draft, Draft, and Final Plan 129 $ 25,147 16 $ 2,480 - 3 =
4.2 Present Final Plan to NVTA Board 16 $ 3,292 s - 8 $ 1,200
Total Hours 1,285 242 306 [ 1833|s - |
Social Pinpoint Direct Cost $ 2,500 $ - N - [s 2,500
Outreach Materials Direct Cost (Project Cards, Project Logo, Materials) $ 1,500 $ = $ 2,000 -
Travel/Lodging Direct Cost $ 1,000 $ = $ - -
Economic Advisory Role by Urban Economics $ 1,955 $ - A (5 1,955
SN 2 = -
@ s 17 @

Objective 1 Budget_Revised.xlsx
18-21 GHD COMPANY/E11/040419_ryk Page 104 of 108
162



SECTION 1

Kamesh Vedula
Jim Damkowitch
Lindsey Van
Rich Krumholz
Ross Ainsworth
Jerry Champa
Anderson

Dan Kehrer
Isenhower

Erin Gibbs
Southern

Zach Stinger

Senior
Transportation

GHD Total Hours
GHD Total Cost

Principal in
Charge
Technical
Technical
Technical
Engineer

)
—
(%]
o
O
+—
(&S]
]
o=
(@]
—
Q
i
+=
O

Transportation
Engineer
Operations
Transportation
Transportation
Transportation
Analyst

Task Description
Task 1 Project Startup

1.1 Project Management and Coordination 20 20 $ 4,557
1.2 Project Kick-Off Meeting 6 6 6 18 $ 4,065
1.3 Bi-Weekly Conference Calls 12 12 $ 2,734
1.4 Data Retrieval / Processing / Review 4 16 22 30 24 9% $ 11,531
Task 2 Ongoing Stakeholder and Community Outreach and Project Oversight
2.1 Prepare a Draft and Final Public Outreach Plan 4 4 $ 911
2.2 Stakeholder/Jurisdictional Meetings 16 8 24 $ 5,115
2.3 Committee Meetings 24 24 % 5,468
2.4 Public Meetings 16 8 4 28 $ 5,492
2.5 Collateral Outreach Materials 8 4 40 52 % 6,325
2.6 Public Outreach Summary Report 4 4 8 % 1,646
Task 3 Develop Plan Components
3.1 Evaluate Opportunities, Develop Corridor Plan Framework and Literature Review 8 8 10 10 36 $ 5,410
3.2 Summarize Corridor Existing Studies and Plans 4 8 16 16 44 $ 5,769
3.3 Model Future Traffic Projections 4 16 4 80 104 $ 14,574
3.4 Program and Project identification 4 20 24 20 60 100 100 100 100 528 $ 62,627
3.5 Corridor improvement Implementation Plan 4 20 4 10 24 30 20 30 142 % 22,724
Task 4 Final Plan and Public Meeting
4.1 Prepare Administrative Draft, Draft, and Final Plan 40 8 12 24 40 5 129 $ 25,147
4.2 Present Final Plan to NVTA Board 8 8 16 $ 3,292
Total Hours 18 230 0 12 22 24 142 0 0 140 100 218 194 185
Social Pinpoint Direct Cost $ 2,500 $ 2,500
Outreach Materials Direct Cost (Project Cards, Project Logo, Materials) $ 1,500 $ 1,500
Travel/Lodging Direct Cost $ 1,000 $ 1,000
Economic Advisory Role by Urban Economics $ 1,955 $ 1,955
2 3 - 2 3 £ 3 - - 208 B £ g 2 2 g
~ < 0 < @ S o S @ N S o N ™
N & SR 31 8 | & | 9 | E © - 3
S 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 ©» ©» ©» ©» ©» ©» @

Objective 1 Budget_Revised.xIsx
18-21 GHD COMPANY/E11/040419_ryk Page 105 of 108
163



SECTION 1

R4 A4
XS]X"pas1ady 123png [ aa1122[G0)
b o
(2] N (=2}
g 3 g
- $
- $
- $
99
= $ -
08t'C $ 9l 8
- $ -
ovv'ZL  $ YOI 0)7
09l $ ¢LL 9l
0v8 $ v
0cy $ ¢
- $ -
= $ -
o $ -
= $ -
o $ -
= $ -
029 $ v (4
o $ -
= $ -
o $ -

}so) |ejol 913

m
-
@
-
o
-
=
I
o
c
@

$

ovv'el

v9

0)7
9l

Bueyz ui|iuspisaid a2iA

(913) dnoug uoneyodsues) ayg

$

0zs‘€e

cll

ve
08

AN <+

Juapisald

oel] aduaimen]

1509 10241q Buibpo/jenel |

(sjeusieyy ‘oboT 108loid ‘spied 108loid) 10D 19841 S|eusiel\ yoeannQ
}s09 j0a11Qg Juloduld [e1o0S

SINOH [e10 |

pleog V1AN 0} Ue[d |[eul] Jussald ¢’
ue|d |eul4 pue ‘yeiq ‘Uelq sAnensiulwpy aiedald |y

Bupoayy 211qnd pue ueid jeuld p ysel

ue|d uonejuswsajdw| Juswanoidwi JOpUIOD G'¢

uoneoyuapl josloid pue welboid '€

suonosloid oiel] ainn4 [9po €€

sue|d pue saipnis Bunsix3 Jopuio) azuewwns z'¢

M3IADY BINnjeId)i] pue ylomawel{ ue|d Jopuio) dojaasq ‘seiiunpoddQ sienjeas |°¢

sjuauodwio) uejqd dojaraqg ¢ ysel

uoday Alewwng yoeannQ 2lgqnd 92

s|elsle\ yoeannQ [eiale(|oDd G'Z

sbunes|\ 2lland '

sbunes|y eaniwwo) ¢

sbupnes|y [euonoIpsUNr/IdploysNelS Z2°2

ue|d yoeannQ 2l|gnd |eulq pue yeiq e atedaid g

ybisianQ 199loiq pue yseaynQ Ajunwiwio) pue iapjoyayels burobup g ysel

MBINDY / Buissaoold / [eAsliay eleq vl
s||eD 8oualsuo) Apjespn-ig €L

Bunesiy HO-Mo1y 108loid 'L

uoleuiploo) pue Juswabeuely 198loid ||

dnyiejs josfoid | ysel

uonduosaq ysel

Page 106 of 108
164

18-21 GHD COMPANY/E11/040419_ryk



SECTION 1

XS]X'pasInay ja3png [ aa11221q0)

$

oziey

08Z'9
009°8
009°LL
00Z°L
008t
09G°¢

08Yy
00Z°L
00Z°L

}soQ |ejol SO

N H N

& h LR P hh PR SR HH P RHR &N R

90¢€

000°C

A
@
(7))
-
]
~—
L
u
o
c
=
(7]

® s ®»
w ~ (3]
) © =
o ] o
=) (=) =)
(4> 99 oy
0¢ 14 14
0¢ 0¢
0€ 8
cl
8 8
1%

uwpy

uoleuIpJ00)
S80INIBS

uone|suel |

J9||IN duajor
So||eA BIAIIS

Appni9o aluuy

(SOY) S991A19S JUBWUIBAOL) euolbay

$

000°9

8y

cl
0¢

uosj|anuwes o113

$

000°gl

(114

¢l

oy

ve

JuUlld |[lepud)|sebeuep dse |

1509 10241 Buibpo/janel )
(s|euale|y) 109 10811 S|eudleN yoeanno
1800 30311 Juloduld [el1o0S
SINOH [ejo|
pJeog VLAN O} ue|d |[eul{ jussald 'y
ueld [euld pue ‘Yeiq ‘Yeiq aAiessiulwpy asedald |y

Bupaayy 21qnd pue ueld [euld ¥ ysel

ue|d uonejuswsaldw| Juswanoidwi JOpLIo) G'¢

uoneouiuapl Jo8loid pue weibold 'S

suonoafoid ouel] ainind PO €'

sue|d pue salpnis Bunsix3 Jopuio) ezllewwns z's

MBINDY BINjeId)i] pue Jylomaweld ue|d JopLuod dojaasq ‘saniunpoddQ ayenieas |'g

sjuauodwo) ue|d dojarag ¢ ysel

Hoday Alewwng yoeasnQ 21qnd 9°¢

s|elgle yoeannQ [eisle|od G’z

sbunes|y ol1and '

sBunes\ sepIWWo) €2

sbunes\ [euonoipsuNr/IaployaXelS Z'g

ue|d yoeannQ aljqnd |euld pue yelq e aledald |2

ybiIsianQ jo9loid pue yoeanpno Ajunwiwo?) pue Japjoysyels buiobup g ysel

MBINSY / Buisseo0ld / [eAslay ejeq 'L
s|[eD @ouaiajuo) Aesp-Ig €L

Buneay JO-o1y 108foid 2|

uoljeuIpJoo) pue jJuswabeuel 10sfoid ||

dnyiejs jo9foid | ysel

uonduosaq ysel

Page 107 of 108
165

18-21 GHD COMPANY/E11/040419_ryk



Task Description
Task 1 Project Management, Coordination and Quality Control
1.1 Project Management & Quality Control
1.2 Project Meetings & Agency Coordination
1.3 Public Information Open House (1)
1.4 Project Presentations (1)
Task 2 Preliminary Research/Data Collection and Base Mapping
2.1 Preliminary Research/Data Collection
2.2 Preliminary Base Mapping
2.3 Existing Study Area Environmental Constraints

Task 3 Purpose and Need Project Information Form
3.1 Develop Purpose and Need Statement
3.2 Prepare Draft of the PIF
3.3 Prepare Final PIF
Task 4 Traffic Study: Intersection Control Evaluation (ICE) Step 1
4.1 Existing Transportation Conditions
4.2 Traffic Modeling Forecasts
4.3 Evaluate Construction Year and Design Year Traffic Operations
4.4 Intersection Control Evaluation (ICE) Step 1 and Traffic Operations Report
Task 5 Alternatives Development & Analysis
5.1 Develop Project Build Alternatives
5.2 Environmental Analysis - Preliminary Environmental Analysis Report (PEAR)
5.3 Design Standards
5.4 Storm Water Data Report (SWDR)
5.5 Right of Way Estimates
5.6 Develop Cost Estimates
5.7 Develop Schedules
5.8 Project Risks
5.9 Life Cycle Cost Analysis (LCCA)
Task 6 Project Study Report/Project Development Support (PSR-PDS)
6.1 First Draft PSR-PDS
6.2 Review Comments on the First Draft PSR-PDS
6.3 Second Draft PDS-PDS
6.4 Review Comments on the Second Draft PSR-PDS
6.5 Final PSR-PDS
Total Hours
Printed/Pulished Material/lmagry Costs
Travel/Lodging Direct Cost

18-21 GHD COMPANY/E11/040419_ryk

Kamesh Vedula

Principal in
Charge

A BhoOODN

(o))

38

Jim Damkowitch

N B

15

Lindsey Van
Ross Ainsworth

Technical

80 40
80

16

8

NN

N OO

NN O

=
(o2}

= =
Ao ~NMNE

W NO DS~ O

319 40

Page 108 of 108
166

Jay Walter

Caltrans

16

16

Anderson

Transportation
Engineer

24
16
6

Trenton Hoffman

Transportation
Engineer

16
16
10

24
12
8

32

24
32

120

12
32
40
52

24

96
40
72
20
16
714

SECTION 2 -PID

Isenhower
Brian Howard

Engineer
Environmental [Brian Bacciarini

Environmental [Ryan Crawford

%)
&
0
@)
O
=
1}
()
=
(@]
P
Q
=
=
©)

8 8 4
2
4
20 $ 2,500.00
32
32 60
2
72
60
80
72
16
32 48 $ 500.00
1
2
4 2
2 1
2 2
300 52 104 112
$ 3,500
$ 5,000
o
o
L0
[°9)
&

2
S »
o o
I O
[ g
(@] (@]
= [
o o
T T
o o
128 $ 30,199
164 $ 31,657
52 $ 9,009
31 $ 5435
2550 $ 10,462
50 $ 8,750
112 $ 18,650
10 $ 2111
25 $ 4041
8 $ 1271
128 $ 16,874
78 $ 10,828
118 $ 15,056
148 $ 20,894
234 $ 36,886
586 $ 15,073
20 $ 2,99
60 $ 9,159
58 $ 8407
82 $ 12,076
13 $ 2,648
12 $ 2,290
48 $ 7,531
143 $ 20,558
55 $ 7,700
98 $ 13,759
26 $ 3,638
23 $ 3341
$ 3,500
$ 5,000
o o0}
(e} o
o ~
5 o
(%2}
™
&+

Objective 2_Budget Revised.xIsx



April 17, 2019
NVTA Agenda ltem 12.3
Continued From: New

rA Action Requested: APPROVE

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
Board Agenda Letter

TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Kate Miller, Executive Director

REPORT BY: Alberto Esqueda, Senior Program Planner/ Administrator
(707) 259-5976 / Email: aesqueda@nvta.ca.gov

SUBJECT: Plan Bay Area 2050: Request for Regionally-Significant Projects

RECOMMENDATION

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board approve releasing a call for
regionally-significant projects to be considered for inclusion in the Metropolitan
Transportation Commission’s Plan Bay Area 2050.

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION

None

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) has issued an open “Call for
Projects” for Regionally-Significant Projects to be considered for inclusion in Plan Bay
Area 2050, the Regional Transportation Plan/Sustainable Communities Strategy
(RTP/SCS). The 25-year Regional Strategic Transportation Plan is prepared for the nine-
county Bay Area by MTC every four (4) years. Plan Bay Area 2050 will integrate SB 375
requirements, which requires regional planning agencies to adopt Sustainable
Communities Strategies that demonstrate how its long range planning process will
achieve mobile greenhouse gas emission reductions.

MTC is soliciting projects from two investment categories, 1) group listings of exempt
projects (i.e., programmatic categories) and 2) non-exempt, capacity-increasing projects
(i.e., regionally-significant projects). At this time, only regionally significant projects are
being requested. Initial submissions are due to NVTA by April 26, 2019.

Regionally-significant projects are those that add capacity to the region’s network of

freeways, expressways, and highways or to the region’s network of fixed guideway transit
facilities (e.qg., rail, ferry, BRT).

167


mailto:aonorato@nvta.ca.gov

NVTA Agenda Letter Wednesday, April 17, 2019
Agenda ltem 12.3
Page 2 of 3

Final project submittals must be approved by the NVTA Board at the June 19 meeting
and submitted to MTC no later than June 30, 2019. Jurisdictional staff will evaluate RTP
guidelines in context of Plan Bay Area 2050 and consider projects previously submitted
under NVTA’s Countywide Transportation Plan Vision 2040: Moving Napa Forward and
refine and submit any new projects that meet the guideline criteria.

Initial project submittals must be received by NVTA no later than Friday, April 26th using
the RTP project application (Attachment 2). NVTA staff will complete a first review of
initial project submittals and a comprehensive list will be brought to the TAC and then the
Board for final approval at its June 19th meeting.

PROCEDURAL REQUIREMENTS

1. Staff Report
2. Public Comments
3. Motion, Second, Discussion and Vote

FISCAL IMPACT

Is there a Fiscal Impact? No

Consequences if not approved: MTC would not receive plan approval or future funding
Napa’s regionally significant projects.

CEQA REQUIREMENTS

ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION: The proposed action is not a project as defined
by 14 California Code of Regulations 16378 (California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA)
Guidelines) and therefore CEQA is not applicable.

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION

As the Bay Area’s Metropolitan Planning Organization, MTC is required by federal and
state regulations to prepare a fiscally-constrained, Regional Transportation Plan (“Plan
Bay Area 2050” or “RTP”). The RTP is prepared in accordance with the California
Transportation Commission’s RTP guidelines. The RTP identifies needs, sets priorities,
and includes a fiscally constrained list of short-, medium-, and long-range projects and
programs. As the County Transportation Agency (CTA) for Napa County, NVTA is
required to coordinate the submittal of regionally-significant transportation projects to
MTC.

The RTP 25-year vision is supported by a similar 25-year investment plan comprised of

project and programs submitted by jurisdictions based on need and contributed
improvements to the community. As required by federal and state planning regulations,

168



NVTA Agenda Letter Wednesday, April 17, 2019
Agenda ltem 12.3
Page 3 of 3

Plan Bay Area 2050 will be a fiscally constrained plan, therefore, project costs cannot
exceed the reasonably expected transportation revenues forecasted over the planning
horizon. Plan Bay Area’s forecast of reasonably expected transportation revenues will
not be finalized until fall 2019; however, county targets have been developed for the
purpose of the Request for Regionally-Significant Projects. The Napa County target for
regionally significant projects is $615 million for the 25 year planning horizon. Projects
must be included in the RTP in order to receive future funding.

While MTC has set a minimum threshold of $250 million for any one project, projects that
alter capacity must be modeled as part of the Plan Bay Area 2050 process. Therefore,
NVTA at MTC’s direction, will relax that threshold and is soliciting projects from Napa
County’s cities/Town/County that are regionally significant and meet one of the following
criteria:
e Expands or extends the principal arterial system (length must be greater than
mile)
e Expands or extends a roadway to become part of the principal arterial system
(length must be greater than V2 mile)
e Reduces the number of lanes (e.g., road diet) of the principal arterial system
(length must be greater than 2 mile)
e Adds new or expands access to the principal arterial system (e.g., new
interchanges or interchange modifications that add capacity)
e Extends or expands the fixed guideway transit infrastructure
e Adds new or expands transit stations or terminals, including parking facilities
e Expands transit fleets or service levels (e.g., increased frequency, hours of
operation)
e Alters the cost for users of the transportation system (e.g., cordon pricing, tolling,
transit fares).

Project costs in the application should be captured in year-of-expenditure (YOE). If
project cost estimates are in current dollars, a 3% annual inflation rate should be applied
to escalate project costs to YOE.

Programmatic categories or group projects will be requested in another call for RTP
projects in the fall of 2019.

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS

Attachments: (1) Request for Regionally-Significant Projects Guidance
(2) NVTA’s RTP 2050 Application Form (includes 2015 Countywide
Transportation Plan Project List)

169



ATTACHMENT 1
BAY AREA METRO CENTER NVTA Agenda Item 12.3
375 BEALE STREET, SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94105 April 17, 2019

415 778 6700 WWW.PLANBAYAREA.ORG
PLAN BAY AREA 2050

Request for Regionally-Significant Projects

The Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) requests the assistance of each of the nine Bay Area
county transportation agencies (CTAs) and multi-county project sponsors (e.g., Caltrans, BART, Caltrain) to
submit locally-identified, regionally-significant project proposals for consideration into Plan Bay Area 2050,
the Bay Area’s Regional Transportation Plan and Sustainable Communities Strategy (RTP/SCS).

GUIDANCE

Overview

CTAs and multi-county project sponsors were fundamental to the development of previous iterations of
Plan Bay Area by reflecting local visions and priorities for consideration into the RTP/SCS, and they will be
fundamental to the development of Plan Bay Area 2050. MTC expects CTAs and multi-county project spon-
sors to coordinate and lead the for their respective county or
system. This includes the review and update of project assumptions and the identification of new project
proposals.

Context

As the Bay Area’s MPO, MTC is required by federal and state regulations to prepare a fiscally-constrained,
long-range transportation plan ("Plan” or “Plan Bay Area 2050"). The Plan is prepared in accordance with
the California Transportation Commission’s RTP guidelines. Among many things, the Plan identifies needs,
sets priorities, and includes a fiscally constrained list of short-, medium-, and long-range projects and pro-
grams.

MTC characterizes Plan projects into two investment categories, 1) group listings of exempt projects (i.e.,
programmatic categories) and 2) non-exempt, capacity-increasing projects (i.e., regionally-significant pro-
jects). Generally, regionally-significant projects are those that add capacity to the region’s network of free-
ways, expressways, and highways or to the region’s network of fixed guideway transit facilities (e.g., rail,
ferry, BRT).

In order to meet federal and state air-quality planning requirements, MTC gathers locally-identified, region-
ally-significant project proposals for consideration into the adopted Plan. Regionally-significant projects
represent a small share of the Bay Area’s regional investment strategy; however, their submittal is vital for
the development of the Plan and its technical analyses.

The submitted projects are subject to several technical analyses. MTC will assess the costliest projects to
estimate their societal benefits to inform project prioritization and the development of Plan Bay Area 2050’s
investment strategy. Prior to the Plan’s adoption, MTC will collectively assess the prioritized projects to esti-
mate their potential environmental impacts.

Plan Bay Area 2050 Development Process

This is the third step of a multi-step effort to identify region-
ally-significant project proposals for consideration into Plan Bay Area 2050, see

Final | 2.28.2019 1
170



GUIDANCE

Step1(Summer2018)
* Reviewandupdate PlanBay

Step2(Summer2018)

+ Request for Transformative
Project proposals

Step3(Spring2019)

+ RequestforRegionally-
Significant Project
proposals

Area2040's regionally-
significant projectassumptions

PLAN BAY AREA 2050

Step4 (Fall 2019)

* Develop fiscally constrained
project list

Figure 1. Plan Bay Area 2050 Development Process

Steps 1 and 2 occurred in Summer 2018. During Step 1, CTAs and multi-
county project sponsors were asked to update project assumptions (e.g.,
scope, cost, schedule) of the costliest regionally-significant projects in-
cluded in Plan Bay Area 2040 (2017). In Step 2, the region was challenged
to submit project proposals that could ‘transform’ the region through an
open Request for Transformative Projects. The open request focused on re-
gionally-significant projects that were estimated to cost more than $1 bil-
lion and were not submitted for consideration in Plan Bay Area 2040.

This Request for Regionally-Significant Projects is Step 3 in the process.

Step 4 is anticipated to begin in Fall of 2019 to inform the development of
Plan Bay Area 2050's fiscally constrained investment strategy. Steps 1-3 will
inform Step 4, as will the results from Plan Bay Area 2050’s project perfor-
mance assessment, needs assessments, and forecast of reasonably ex-
pected transportation revenues. This final step will ask each CTA and multi-
county project sponsor to identify a fiscally constrained list of both region-
ally-significant projects and programmatic category investments.

Relation to Countywide Transportation Plans

Simultaneously, MTC will
prepare Needs Assess-
ments for Plan Bay Area
2050 to estimate the reve-
nues and needs to operate
and maintain the region’s
existing network of streets,
bridges, and highways, and
the region’s transit sys-
tems.

The needs estimates will be
complete in Fall 2019. For
assessments related to
transportation, staff will co-
ordinate with county trans-
portation agencies (CTAs),
transit agencies, and local
jurisdictions as needed.

The region’s countywide transportation plans represent robust local transportation planning efforts in the
Bay Area. The plans, while voluntary, establish a county’s long-range transportation vision, goals and priori-
ties. Countywide transportation plans have an inter-dependent relationship with the RTP/SCS and provide a
primary basis for projects considered into the adopted Plan. To facilitate this inter-dependent relationship,
MTC prepares guidelines for counties who choose to prepare a countywide transportation plan, see Figure
2, below. Among many things, MTC's guidelines encourage proactive coordination and outreach while de-

veloping the countywide transportation plans.

Regional Plannin : County “Local” Planning
’ \ . PDAInvestment& Growth Strategies
. Expenditure Plans

S OV B~ LN —

@);@ ]
-’

Figure 2. Regional and County Planning Inter-dependency

. Community Based Plans

*

Final | 2.28.2019
171

. Congestion Management Programs
. Active Transportation Plans
. Modal Studies (Freight, Transit, Freeway/ Corridor)

ot an exhaustive list of local planning efforts



GUIDANCE

PLAN BAY AREA 2050

Guidance

Definitions

e Exempt project means a transportation project exempt from regional transportation-air quality con-
formity requirements (CFR 40 §93.126-128) and/or projects with categorical exclusions or documented
categorical exclusions from NEPA approvals by the FHWA or FTA (CFR 23 §771.117-8).

¢ Principal Arterial System includes Interstates, Other Freeway or Expressways, and Other Principal Arte-
rials. See Caltrans’ for a map of the regional network.

¢ Fixed Guideway includes any public transportation facility which utilizes and occupies a designated
right-of-way or rails including rapid rail, light rail, commuter rail, bus rapid transit, busways, automated
guideway transit, people movers, and ferries.

Regionally-significant project means a transportation project (other than an exempt project) that is
adding capacity to a facility which serves regional transportation needs including at a minimum the
principal arterial system and all fixed guideway transit facilities.

In the context of Plan Bay Area 2050, a project proposal will be deemed regionally-significant if it meets
any of the following:

o Expands or extends the principal arterial system (length must be greater than ¥ mile)

o Expands or extends a roadway to become part of the principal arterial system (length must
be greater than Y2 mile)

o Reduces the number of lanes (e.g., road diet) of the principal arterial system (length must be
greater than ¥4 mile)

o Adds new or expands access to the principal arterial system (e.g., new interchanges or inter-

change modifications that add capacity)

Extends or expands the fixed guideway transit infrastructure

Adds new or expands transit stations or terminals, including parking facilities

Expands transit fleets or service levels (e.g., increased frequency, hours of operation)

Alters the cost for users of the transportation system (e.g., cordon pricing, tolling, transit

fares).

o Total estimated cost (capital + operating and maintenance) is greater than $250 million

O O O O

e Programmatic investment means a collection of like transportation projects (other than regionally-
significant projects) identified by a single listing in the Plan, often grouped by purpose and geography
(e.g. pavement preservation, bicycle/pedestrian facilities, intersection improvements). Projects that in-
crease capacity of the transportation system but fail to meet the regionally-significant criteria listed
above will be considered programmatic investments (e.g., minor highway improvements, widening of
local streets). See for an inventory of programmatic category project types.

! https://caltrans.maps.arcgis.com/apps/webappviewer/index.html?id=026e830c914c495797c969a3e5668538

Final | 2.28.2019 3
172



GUIDANCE

PLAN BAY AREA 2050

1. Project Lists

This builds upon the Bay Area’s adopted Plan and Transpor-
tation Improvement Program, and Horizon’s Request for Transformative Projects (Steps 1 and 2, of the

). As such, MTC staff will provide each CTA and multi-county project
sponsor a list of known regionally-significant projects in their respective county or on their respective sys-
tem.

e CTAs and multi-county project sponsors should review and update the assumptions of known re-
gionally-significant projects and identify new regionally-significant project proposals.

e CTAs and multi-county project sponsors are encouraged to submit regionally-significant projects
derived from an adopted plan, corridor study, or project study report (e.g., RTP/SCS, countywide
transportation plan, community-based transportation plans, regional bicycle plan, climate action
plans) and which meet one or more of the general criteria listed below:

Will open for operation after 2021 and by year 2050;

Will seek federal, state, or regional funding;

Will require federal or state action (e.g., project-level conformity, NEPA, CEQA);
Supports Horizon's Guiding Principles (see ); or,

Supports the region'’s sustainable communities strategy (SCS).

O O O O O

e CTAs and multi-county project sponsors should develop and submit project cost estimates using a
reasonable basis. Cost estimates should include both capital and operating and maintenance
(O&M) costs through 2050. Cost estimates should be submitted in year-of-expenditure (YOE) dol-
lars. If project cost estimates are in current dollars, a 3% annual inflation rate should be used to es-
calate project costs to YOE.

2. County Targets

As required by federal and state planning regulations, Plan Bay Area 2050 will be a fiscally constrained plan.
This means the proposed transportation project costs cannot exceed the reasonably expected transporta-
tion revenues forecasted over the planning horizon. Plan Bay Area’s forecast of reasonably expected trans-
portation revenues will not be finalized until Fall 2019; however, county targets have been developed for the
purpose of this This means that CTAs and multi-county
sponsors will need to work with MTC following the release of the revenue forecast to fiscally constrain and
remove projects from their list of regionally-significant project proposals.

e CTAs should submit regionally-significant projects with a collective total cost (capital + O&M) equal
to or less than the county target of transportation revenues in Table 1.

o CTAs should take the lead on submitting all localized regionally-significant projects (e.g.,
freeway interchanges, corridor improvements, transit stations, bus rapid transit corridors)
regardless of whether the project has a multi-county sponsor (e.g., Caltrans, BART, Caltrain).

o CTAs should account for the costs of the costliest regionally-significant projects included in
PBA 2040 that are subject to Horizon/PBA 2050's project performance assessment. The list
of projects is included in

Final | 2.28.2019 4
173



GUIDANCE

PLAN BAY AREA 2050

o CTAs do not need to account for the costs of regionally-significant projects identified during
Horizon’s Request for Transformative Projects within their county target. The list of projects
in included in

e Multi-county project sponsors (e.g., Caltrans, ACE (SJRRC), AC Transit, BART, Caltrain (PCJPB), Capi-
tol Corridor (CCJPA), GGBHTD, SMART, WETA), should take the lead on coordinating the submittal
of localized projects (e.g., freeway interchanges, corridor improvements, transit stations, bus rapid
transit corridors) with the respective CTA and should coordinate the submittal of multi-county or
systems projects with MTC.

Column A Column B Column C Column D Column E Column F
County PBA 2040 PBA 2040 D.O.F. 2018 PBA 2050 PBA 2050
Regionally-Signifi- Regionally-Signifi- | Population | Regionally-Signifi- Regionally-Signifi-
cant Project Costs cant Cost Share Share cant Cost Share cant Project Cost
Targets
Alameda $5,928 16% 21% 18% $10,524
Contra Costa $2,179 6% 15% 10% $5,844
Marin $277 1% 3% 2% $1,174
Napa $128 <1% 2% 1% $615
San Francisco $10,382 27% 11% 19% $11,015
San Mateo $2,323 6% 10% 8% $4,578
Santa Clara $14,712 39% 25% 32% $18,191
Solano $1,076 3% 6% 4% $2,419
Sonoma $1,053 3% 7% 5% $2,641
Total $38,058 100% 100% 100% $57,000
notes:

1. The PBA 2050 county target for regionally-significant projects (non-exempt/capacity-increasing) of $57 billion represents a 50%
increase over the PBA 2040 county project costs of $38 billion. The 50% increase represents an estimated “top of range” and al-
lows for a longer-plan period (30 vs 24 years), a higher inflation rate (3% vs. 2.2%), and additional fund sources that were not in-
cluded in PBA 2040. It is not expected that PBA 2050 will have 50% more revenue than PBA 2040.

2. To develop the county targets, staff calculated a hybrid from the cost shares of county-sponsored regionally-significant projects in
PBA 2040 (Column C), and county population shares (column D) relative to the rest of the region. The hybrid shares weighted the
cost share and population share equally. The resulting target shares are shown in Column E.

3. Coordination, Outreach, & Public Comment

Federal and state planning regulations require that the Plan be developed through an inclusive process.
Project development and the progression from an idea to implementation or construction includes numer-
ous robust coordination, outreach, and public comment opportunities. One such opportunity is the devel-
opment of countywide transportation plans. MTC's countywide transportation plan guidelines encourage
proactive coordination and public engagement efforts to provide opportunities for stakeholders and the
public to weigh in on local projects and priorities.

e CTAs and multi-county project sponsors should work closely with local jurisdictions and transit
agencies within their respective county, as well as with MTC, Caltrans, other stakeholders, and other

Final | 2.28.2019 5
174



GUIDANCE

PLAN BAY AREA 2050

CTAs where appropriate, to review and update regionally-significant project assumptions and iden-
tify new project proposals. CTAs and multi-county project sponsors should communicate the signif-
icance of a project’s inclusion into the Plan.

e CTAs and multi-county project sponsors should hold at least one public meeting to provide an op-
portunity for public comment on the list of regionally-significant projects that will be submitted for
consideration into Plan Bay Area 2050. CTAs and multi-county project sponsors should be pro-ac-
tive in notifying stakeholders and the public — including traditionally underrepresented and/or dis-
advantaged communities — on the opportunity(s) for comment. The meeting(s) should:

o Inform stakeholders and the public about the opportunity(s) for public comment on pro-
jects and when decisions are to be made;

o Be held at times that are conducive to public participation to solicit public comment on the
projects;

o Be promoted to the public and noticed on the CTA's agency's website. CTA staff are encour-
aged to provide MTC with a link so the information can also be available on the website
PlanBayArea.org;

o Include information on how to request language translation for individuals with limited
English proficiency. If CTA agency protocol has not been established, please refer to MTC's
Plan for Assisting Limited English Proficient Populations;

o Provide accommodations for people with disabilities; and,

o Be held in central locations that are accessible for people with disabilities and by public
transit.

e CTAs and multi-county project sponsors may leverage current or past coordination and public en-
gagement efforts that involved the identification and/or prioritization of regionally-significant pro-
jects. However, CTAs and multi-county project sponsors should still hold at least one public meet-
ing to provide an opportunity for public comment on the list of regionally-significant projects that
will be submitted to MTC for consideration into Plan Bay Area 2050.

e CTAs and multi-county project sponsors should conduct an outreach effort(s) in a manner con-
sistent with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 as described in
(MTC Resolution No. 4174, revised).

e CTAs and multi-county project sponsors should document their outreach effort(s). Documentation
should describe how stakeholders and the public — including traditionally underrepresented and/or
disadvantaged communities — were involved in the process for identifying regionally-significant
projects for consideration into Plan Bay Area 2050. Documentation should include how the public
meeting(s) was held in a manner consistent with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964.

4. Submittal Process
e CTAs and multi-county project sponsors should submit to MTC:

2 https://www.planbayarea.org/sites/default/files/pdfs_referenced/2018_ppp_appendix_a_final_june2018.pdf

Final | 2.28.2019 6
175


http://www.planbayarea.org/sites/default/files/pdfs_referenced/2018_ppp_appendix_a_final_june2018.pdf

GUIDANCE -

PLAN BAY AREA 2050

o Completed list of regionally-significant project and their assumptions for consideration into
Plan Bay Area 2050 prior to MTC's June 30, 2019, deadline.

o Board resolution authorizing the submittal of the list of regionally-significant projects for
consideration into Plan Bay Area 2050 by July 31, 2019.

o Documentation that a public meeting was held allowing the public to comment on the list of
regionally-significant projects and how the public meeting was conducted in compliance
with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 by July 31, 2019.

o Documentation of how stakeholders and the public — including traditionally underrepre-
sented and/or disadvantaged communities — were involved in the process by July 31, 2019.

Attachments

e Attachment A- Follow a Transportation Project From Idea to Implementation
e Attachment B- Draft Programmatic Categories

e Attachment C- Horizon’'s Guiding Principles

e Attachment D- Draft Project Performance Projects

Final | 2.28.2019 7
176



Attachment A - Follow a Transportation Project From Idea to Implementation?

Idea Local Review
Anideaforaprojectstarts The projectidea must be adopted
when a transportation need is by a formal sponsor — usually a
identified, and anewideais public agency — that may refine
put forward. The idea can sur- the initial idea and develop details
faceinanynumberofways  forthe project. Tomove forward,
—fromyou, a private busi- the project must be approved by
ness,acommunitygroupora local authorities suchas acity
government agency. council, county board of supervi-
sorsortransitagency.

Tobe eligible for certain regional,
state andfederal funds, projects
must be cleared through the
county congestion management
agency (CMA) andbecome part of
the Regional Transportation Plan.

How You Can Make a Difference
Getinvolved in your community!

+ Follow the work of your city council, county board of supervisors
orlocal transitagency.

+ Takenotice of plans orimprovement programs developed by
your city, county or transit agency.

+ Comment on projects proposed by your county CMA or on trans-
portation improvements submitted to MTC for regional, state or
federal funding.

MTC’s Long-Term Regional
TransportationPlan

The Regional Transportation Plan (RTP)/

Sustainable Communities Strategy (SCS)

Every four years MTC updates the Regional Transportation Plan
(RTP), looking forward two to three decades. The planidentifies pol-
icies, programs and transportation investments to support the long-
term vision for the Bay Area.

TheRTPalsomustidentifyanticipatedfundingsources. TheRTPcan
include only those projects and programs that can be funded with
revenues reasonably expectedtobe available duringthe plan's
timeframe. Projects identifiedinthe RTP are generally drawn from
theplanningefforts of MTC, Association ofBay Area Governments
(ABAG),countycongestionmanagementagencies, transitagencies
andlocal governments.

State legislation now requires that regional transportation plans in-
corporate a Sustainable Communities Strategy (SCS) — provisions
forreducing greenhouse gas emissions from cars andlight trucks by
integrating transportation, housing and land use planning.

MTC’s Project Selection Process

Once long-term goals, policies and funding initiatives have beensetinthe RTP, MTC
develops program criteriaand funds specific projects.

Project Selection Process The Transportation Improve-
Funding Levels EstablishedforRTPPro-  mentProgram (TIP)
grams/Initiatives: Guidedbythe RTPand The production of the Transportation
short-termrevenueestimates, MTCdecides  Improvement Programor TIPis the
how much funding to apply to programs culmination of MTC'stransportation
over a two-to-four-year period at a time. planningand projectselectionprocess.
TheTIPidentifiesspecificnear-term
projects over a four-year period to
move the region toward its transporta-
tion vision.

Project Selection Criteria Developed: For
competitive programs underits control,
MTCis guidedbythe RTP and developsand
adopts minimum project requirements and
criteria to evaluate and prioritize projects. TheTIPlistsallsurfacetransportation
projects for which federal funds or ac-
tions by federal agencies are antici-
pated, along with some of the larger
locally and state-funded projects. A
projectcannotreceive federal funds or
receive other critical federal project ap-
provalsunlessitisinthe TIP. MTC must
updatethe TIP atleast once every four
years. Itisrevisedseveral imesayear
to add, delete or modify projects.

Project Selection: Depending on the pro-
gram, projectsmay beselectedusingMTC's
criteria or by the county congestion man-
agementagency, the California Transporta-
tion Commission or a transit agency board.
Some funding programs are non-competi-
tive, meaning projects are funded accord-
ing to a pre-determined formula or voter-
enactedinitiative.

Construction/
Implementation

Environmental Review and

Project Development
Activities
Theprojectsponsorconductsan
environmental review, as required
by eitherthe California Environ-
mental Quality Act(CEQA)orthe
National Environmental Policy Act
(NEPA). Final approval of the pro-
ject design and right-of-way is re-
quired by the sponsoring agency
andappropriatefederal agency
(Federal Highway Administration
orFederal Transit Administration)
iffederal funds and/or actions are
involved.

Funding is fully committed by
grantapproval once the project
meets all requirements and moves
forward to phases such as prelimi-
nary engineering, final design,
right-of-way acquisition, or con-
struction.

The Regional Transportation Planis the earliest
and best opportunity within the MTC process to
comment on and influence projects. A project cannot
move forward or receive any federal funds unlessit s in-
cludedinthe RTP.MTC support oflarge projects occurs
inthelong-range planandnotaspartofthe TIP.

v Attend public meetings or open houses tolearn about plans

and offer your comments
v Participateinonlinesurveys orforums

Getinvolved in planning for the whole Bay Area at MTC!

§ Check MTC's website for commit-

tee agendasandtokeepcurrent

on activities (www.mtc.ca.gov).

§ GetyournameaddedtoMTC's
database toreceive e-mail up-
dates  (info@bayareametro.gov).

1 CommentatMTC committee level and
Commission-levelmeetings, special
publichearings and workshops.

1 Followthe work of MTC's Policy Advi-
sory Council which advises the Com-
mission (www.mc.ca.gov/whats-
happening).

Commentona
project'simpacts
+ Comment on the environ-

mental impacts of the project
before the environmental
documentand projectreceive
final approval by the board of
the sponsoring agency, orin
advanceoffederal approval, if
required.

3 Source: A Guide to the San Francisco Bay Area’s Transportation Improvement Program, or TIP — 2019 TIP Update — September 2018
Final | 2.28.2019 8

177


http://www.mtc.ca.gov/whats-

Attachment B - Draft Programmatic Categories

The proposed programmatic categories and example project types are listed below:

Category Systems Project Types
Minor Highway o StateHighway e minor highway extension or new lane (less than % mile);
Improvements o interchange modification (no additional capacity)
MinorRoadway o Local Road e minor local road extension or new lane (less than % mile)
Improvements
Minor Transit o Public Transit e minor/routine expansions tofleetand service;
Improvements o purchaseofferryvessels (that canbe accommodated by existing facilities or new CE facilities);
o constructionofsmall passenger shelters andinformationkiosks;
o small-scale/CEbusterminalsandtransferpoints;
e publictransit-human services projects and programs (including many Lifeline Transportation Program projects);
o ADA compliance;
e noise mitigation;
e landscaping;
e associatedtransitimprovements (includingbike/pedestrianaccessimprovements);
o alternative fuelvehiclesandfacilities
Minor Freight o Freight e construction of new, orimprovements to existing, rest areas and truck weigh stations;
Improvements o improvements to existing freight terminals (not expansion)
NewBicycle & o Local Road o newandextended bike and pedestrianfacilities
Pedestrian o StateHighway
Facilities
Preservation/ o Local Road e pavementresurfacing and/or rehabilitation;
Rehabilitation o StateHighway e bike/pedestrian faciliies rehabilitation;
o Public Transit e non-pavement rehabilitation;
o Tollway e preventive maintenance;
o Freight e gmergency repair;
o bridge rehabilitation, replacement or retrofit with no new capacity;
o transitvehicle rehabilitation or replacement;
o reconstruction or renovation of ransit buildings and structures;
o rehabilitation or reconstruction of track structures, track, and trackbed in existing rights-of-way;
o construction of new bus or rail storage/maintenance facilities (in industrial locations with adequate transportation capacity);
 modernization or minor expansions of transit structures and facilities outside existing right-of-way, such as bridges, stations, or rail
yards;
e purchase of office and shop and operating equipment for existing facilities;
e purchaseof operating equipmentforvehicles, suchasfarebox, lifts, radios;
e purchase of support vehicles;
o toll bridge rehabilitation, replacement, or retrofit with no new capacity;
o freight track and terminal rehabilitation
Routine o Local Road o routine patching and pothole repair;
Operations & o StateHighway e litter control, sweeping and cleaning;
Maintenance o Public Transit e signal operations;
o Tollway e communications;
e lighting;
o transitoperationsandfare collection;
e fransitpreventivemaintenance;
o toll operations &fare collection
Management o Local Road e incidentmanagement;
Systems o StateHighway e signalcoordination;
o Public Transit o [TS;
o Tollway e TOS/CMS;
Final | 2.28.2019

178




e ramp metering;

o transit management systems;

o automatic passenger counters;

o CAD-AVL;

o faremedia;

o Transit Sustainability Project;

e constructionor renovation of power, signal, and communications systems;
o tollmanagementsystems;

o toll media

Safety & Security

o Local Road

o StateHighway
o Pyblic Transit
o Freight

e railroad/highway crossings andwarning devices;

e hazardouslocationorfeature;

e shoulderimprovements; sightdistance;

o Highway Safety Improvement Program implementation;

o Safe Routes to Schools projects and programs;

o trafficcontrol devices other than signalization;

o guardrails,medianbarriers, crashcushions; pavementmarking;
e fencing;

o skidireatments;

e lighting improvements;

o widening narrow pavements with no added capacity;

o changesin vertical and horizontal alignment;

e fransitsafetyand communicationsandsurveillance systems;
e railsight distance andrealignments for safety;

o safety roadside rest areas;

e truckclimbing lanes outside urban area;

o emergencytruckpullovers

Travel Demand
Management

o | ocal Road
o StateHighway
o Other

o carandbikeshare;

e alternativefuel vehicles andfacilities;
o parkingprograms;

e carpool/ivanpool, ridesharing activities;
e information, marketing and outreach;
o travelerinformation

Intersection
Improvements

o | ocal Road

e intersection - channelization;
o intersection signalization atindividual intersections

Multimodal
Streetscape
Improvements

o | ocal Road

o minorbicycle and/or pedestrian facility gap closure;
o ADA compliance;

e landscaping;

¢ lighting;

e streetscape improvements;

e minorroaddiet(lessthan%mile)

Land Use

o Other

o land conservation projects;
e TOD housing projects

Planning

o Other

o planning and research that does not lead directly to construction

Emission
Reduction
Technologies

o Other

Final | 2.28.2019

179

10



Attachment C - Horizon’s Guiding Principles

MTC received over 10,000 unique comments from residents across the Bay Area in 2018 when we asked,
“What are the most pressing issues we should consider as we plan for life in 2050?" This feedback helped
MTC refine the five Guiding Principles, below, that underlie the Horizon initiative:

o Affordable: All Bay Area residents and workers have sufficient housing options they can afford—
households are economically secure.

e Connected: An expanded, well-functioning transportation system connects the Bay Area—fast, fre-
quent and efficient intercity trips are complemented by a suite of local transportation options, connect-
ing communities and creating a cohesive region.

o Diverse: Bay Area residents support an inclusive region where people from all backgrounds, abilities
and ages can remain in place—with access to the region’s assets and resources.

e Healthy: The region’s natural resources, open space, clean water and clean air are conserved—the re-
gion actively reduces its environmental footprint and protects residents from environmental impacts.

e Vibrant: The Bay Area is an innovation leader, creating quality job opportunities for all and ample fiscal
resources for communities.

Final | 2.28.2019 1
180



Attachment D - Project Performance Projects

Type # Project Name
Local & Express Bus 1 AC Transit Local Service Frequency Increase
2 Sonoma Countywide Service Frequency Increase
3 MuniForward+Service FrequencyIncrease
Bus Rapid Transit (BRT) 4 SanPabloBRT
5 GearyBRT (Phase 2)
6 ElCamino Real BRT
BART 7 BART Core Capacity
8 BART DMU to Brentwood
9 BART to Silicon Valley (Phase 2)
Commuter Rail 10 Caltrain Downtown Extension
11 CaltrainFull ElectrificationandBlended System'
12 SMART to Cloverdale
Light Rail (LRT) 13 Downtown San Jose LRT Subway
14 San Jose Airport People Mover
15 Vasona LRT (Phase 2)
16 Eastridge LRT
Ferry 17 WETA Service Frequency Increase
18 WETA Ferry Network Expansion
(Berkeley, AlamedaPaint, Redwood City, Mission Bay)
Pricing 19 Regional Express Lanes (MTC+VTA+ACTC+US-101)
20 SR-152RealignmentandTolling
21 Downtown San Francisco Congestion Pricing
22 Treasure Island Congestion Pricing
Freeways & Interchanges 23 -680/SR-4 Interchange + Widening (Phases 3-5)

24 SR-4 QOperational Improvements

25 SR-4Widening (Brentwoodto Discovery Bay)

26 SR-239 Widening

27 -80/1-680/SR-12 Interchange + Widening (Phases 2B-7)

Other 28 Bay Bridge West Span Bike Path

29 Bay Area Forward (Phase 1)

30 BetterMarket Strest

"High-Speed Rail service will be evaluated as part of the blended system onlyin one of the three Futures, and substituted with increased Caltrain service in the other two Futures

Final | 2.28.2019
181

12



Type #  Project Name
Local, Express Bus &BRT 31 ACTransit Transbay Service Frequency Increase
32 AC Transit Rapid Network
33 AlamedaCountyBRTNetwork +Connected Vehicle Corridors
BART 34 BARTon|-680
35  BART to Cupertino
36  BARTtoGilroy
37 BART Gap Closure (Millorae to Silicon Valley)
Commuter Rail 38 Caltrain Full Electrification and Enhanced Blended System'
39 Caltrain Grade Separation Program
40 SMARTto Solano
41 Dumbarton Rail (Redwood Cityto Union City)
42 ACERailNetworkandService Expansion(including DumbartonRail)
43 ValleyLink (Dublinto SanJoaquin Valley)
44 Megaregional Rail Network + Resilience Project?
Light Rail (LRT) 45 MuniMetro Southwest Subway
46 MuniMetrotoSouth San Francisco
47 Fremont-Newark LRT
48 SRG5LRT
49 VTANorth San Jose LRT Subway
50  VTALRT Systemwide Grade Separation
51 VTALRT Systemwide Grade Separation and Full Automation
52 VTALRT Systemwide Grade Separation and Network Expansion ?
Freeway Capacity Expansion / 53 SR-37Widening +Resilience + Express Bus Project?
Optimization 54 SR12 Widening
55 1-80Busway+BARTtoHercules?
56 1-680 Corridor Improvements (BRT, Express Bus Shared AVs, Gondolas) 2
57 1-580/1-680 Corridor Enhancements + Express Bus on -680
58 SanFrancisco Freeway GP-to-HOT Lane Conversions
Bridges& Tunnels 59 Richmond-San Rafael Bridge Replacement
60  Webster/Posey Tube Replacements
61 SR-87 Tunnel
Other 62  Oakland/Alameda Gondola Network
63 Contra Costa Autonomous Shuttle Program
64 Mountain View Autonomous Vehicle Network
65  Cupertino-MountainView-SanJose ElevatedMaglevRailLoop

* Submitted by member of public/NGO as well (either partially or fully)
2Individual components of network proposals may be required to undergo further project-level analysis for inclusion in the Plan

Final | 2.28.2019

182

13



Type #  Project Name
Jury Selected 66  OptimizedExpressLaneNetwork+Regional ExpressBusNetwork

67  Bus Rapid Transit (BRT) on All Bridges
Individual components of network proposals may - - - -
be required toundergofurther project-levelana- 68 SMART to Richmond via New Richmond-San Rafael Bridge

ysis for consideration in Plan Bay Area 2050. 69  1-80 Corridor Overhaul

*%

70 Regional Bicycle Superhighway Network

*%

71 Bay Trail Completion

** While recognized by the jury as transformative transportation investments, this project may not go through benefit-cost analysis/project performance as itis considered non-capacity-increasing under
federal guidelines.

Type #  Project Name
Jury Selected 72 Integrated Transit Fare System

73 Free Transit

74 Higher-Occupancy HOV Lanes

75  Demand-BasedTollson AllHighways

76 Reversible Lanes on Congested Bridges and Freeways

77 FreightDelivery TimingRegulation

Type #  Project Name
Crossings 78 Bay Crossing Concept #1

79  Bay Crossing Concept#2

80  Bay Crossing Concept#3

81 Bay Crossing Concept #4

82 Bay Crossing Concept #5

83  Bay Crossing Concept #6

Type #  Project Name
Earthquakes 84 BART Caldecott Tunnel Resilience Project
SealevelRise 85  |-580/US-101MarinResilienceProject

86  US-101 Peninsula Resilience Project

87  SR-237 Resilience Project

88  Dumbarton Bridge Resilience Project

89 1880 Resilience Project

90  VTALRT Resilience Project

Final | 2.28.2019
183



PBA 2050 Project List

ATTACHMENT 2
NVTA Agenda Iltem 12.3
April 17, 2019

No.

Jurisdiction

Project
Title

Project Description

Pr

oject Location

Location

Start
Point

End Point

Mode

Project
Phase

Total
Cost

Total Committed

Types of funds
Committed

Total
Need

Start
Year

End Year

Included in Plan Bay Area or
Countywide Tranportation
Plan

Regional Significance Criteria
(Does the project meet any of the drop down criteria)

General Criteria
(Does the project meet any of the drop down
criteria)

184




Indicates Project in Constrained List

Project Location

Types of funds

No. Jurisdiction Project Title Project Description - : : Mode Project Phase Total Cost Total Committed . Total Need Start Year | End Year | Included in Plan Bay Area
Location Start Point End Point Committed
South Napa Junction |New Major Collector from SR 29 to extension of . . .
1 AC Road Newell Drive Newell Drive SR 29 Newell Drive Vehicle $8,909,227 $0 $8,909,227 2016
Highway 29 Signal .
2 AC ATS Install Advance Traffic Signal SR 29 Vehicle $500,000 $220,000 TFCA $280,000 2015
Eucalyptus Drive/
Theresa Avenue |Extend Eucalyptus 450' to the east, connecting at . Theresa .
3 AC I SR 29, Install roundabout. Eucalyptus Drive Avenue SR 29 Vehicle $3,700,000 $1,154,000 STIP $2,546,000 2017
Complete Streets
. New Minor Collector from Eucalyptus to South . Eucalyptus So Napa .
4 AC Main Street Napa Junction Main Street Drive Junction Vehicle $2,021,629 $0 $2,021,629 2025
Devlin Road New Industrial Collector from railroad ) Railroad .
5 AC Separily overcrossing to Green Island Rd. Devlin Road overcrossing Green Island Rd Vehicle $7,795,573 $1,962,000 STIP $5,833,573 2017
. Widen to 2-lane collector from Theresa to . Theresa Wetlands Edge .
6 AC Eucalyptus Drive Wetlands Edge Rd., Eucalyptus Drive Avenue Rd Vehicle $6,393,240 $0 $6,393,240 2020
American Canyon Bike/Bus/passenger
7 AC Multimodal Transit TBD hicle/ g e % i $12,000,000 $0 - $12,000,000 2025 No
Center Construct transit center vehicle/pedestrian/ral
Highway 29
8 AC Pedestrian Safety |Construct three pedestrian crossings over TBD Bike/Ped $9,000,000 $0 - $9,000,000 2020 Yes
Overcrossings Highway 29
Commerce New Industrial Collector from southern terminus Eucalyptus Commerce ]
9 AC Boulevard Extension |to Eucalyptus Drive Commerce Boulevard Drive Boulevard Vehicle $8,073,987 $0 $8,073,987 2025
Eucalyptus Add excl. NBL & SBL, Add exclusive EBL and Eucalyptus
10 AC Dr/Commerce Blvd. |WBL, Add new sign Dr/Commerce Blvd. Vehicle $840,240 $0 $840,240 2025
Intersection Intersection
Newell Drive/So. |Add excl. NBL & SBR, Add exclusive EBL and Newell Drive/So. Napa
11 AC Napa Junction EBR, New traffic signal ) s P Vehicle $1,202,288 $0 $1,202,288 2016
: Junction Intersection
Intersection
New 4-lane arterial from Donaldson Way to
South Napa Junction Rd, Newell Drive Overcross .
12 AC Newell Drive  |Structure, New 2-lane arterial from South Napa Newell Drive Donaldson | Napa Junction Vehicle $37,398,160 $0 $37,398,160 2016 2020
) Way Road
Junction Rd to SR 29
Paoli Loop Road |Widen road from Green Island to Newell ) Green Island ) .
13 AC Widening Extension Industrial Collector standards Paoli Loop Road Road Newell Extension Vehicle $8,770,020 $0 $8,770,020 2025
Widen road from SR 29 to Commerce Blvd. to
14 AC Sl es | ndustrial Collector standards Green Island Road SR 29 Commerce Vehicle $3,516,599 $2,550,000 EDA/Local funds $966,599 2016
Widening Widen railroad crossing to three lanes Boulevard
29 South Kelly Road [Improve intersection safety and operations South Kelly .
15 AC intersection* at South Kelly Road SR 29 Road South Kelly Road Vehicle CON $4,900,000 $0 - $4,900,000 2020 2035 Yes
16 AC SRF?g f"‘a“e 6-lane Parkway from Napa Junction Road to SR 29 Napi"“’(‘ft"’” South Kelly Road Vehicle $29,000,000 $0 PE-CON $29,000,000 2021 2025
arkway South Kelly Road, including overpass structure oa
Highway 29 improvements, 6-lane modified American Napa Junction
17 AC SR 29 Gateway* |boulevard, including pedestrian, transit and Vine SR 29 P Vehicle CON $26,000,000 $0 - $26,000,000 2021 2030 Yes
L Canyon Road Road
Trail infrastructure.
Phase 1 Improvements, Add 2nd excl. WBL and
18 AC R B R uA | °*c!- WBR, Add 2nd excl. EBL and excl. BBR, Napa Junction Road SR 29 SR 29 Vehicle $2,938,400 $0 - $2,938,400 2018
Intersection Traffic signal relocation
. Lake Street Reconstruction and Complete Street Washington .
19 Calistoga LSR Rehab Enhancements Lake Street Ave Grant St. Vehicle PSE/CON $1,950,000 $0 - $1,950,000 2015 2016 No
Intersection .
20 Calistoga Improvements at SR | . — . SR 29/128 & Lincoln SR 29 SR 128 Vehicle PID/PSE/CON $1,900,000 $0 - $1,900,000 2017 2019 No
. Signalization of Intersection at SR 29/128 & Ave.
29/128 & Lincoln Ave|,.
Lincoln Ave
Pedestrian Safety
21 Calistoga Improvements SR 29 SR 29 and Cedar Street SR 29 Cedar St Pedestrian PSR/PSE $100,000 $0 - $100,000 2017 2018 No

& Cedar Street

In Pavement Lighting

185




Indicates Project in Constrained List

Project Location

Types of funds

No. Jurisdiction Project Title Project Description - : : Mode Project Phase Total Cost Total Committed . Total Need Start Year | End Year | Included in Plan Bay Area
Location Start Point End Point Committed
Pedestrian Safety SR 29 and Brannan
22 Calistoga Improvements SR 29 Street SR 29 Brannan St Pedestrian PSR/PSE $100,000 $0 - $100,000 2017 2018 No
& Brannan Street -
In Pavement Lighting
Safe Routes to Pioneer Park and Napa Calistoga
23 Calistoga School Construct foot bridge over the Napa River at Ri P Community Pioneer Park Pedestrian PSR/PSE $850,000 $0 - $850,000 2017 2018 No
choo Pioneer Park ver Center
. Washington Street |Complete Streets Enhancements along ) ) )
24 Calistoga Reconstruction Washington Street Washington Street Lincoln Oak Vehicle PSE/CON $1,200,000 $0 - $1,200,000 2017 2018 No
Intersection . . On SR 128 ,
25 Calistoga Improvements at SR | /den SR 128 and install left turn lane onto Berry| - SR 128 & Pet Forest | 55 o iy o | On SR 128 300 Vehicle PID/PSE/CON $650,000 $0 . $650,000 2018 2019 No
Street Road north of Berry St.
128 & Berry Street Berry St.
Intersection
. Improvements at SR SR 29 & Washington . .
26 Calistoga 29 & Washington |Convert Signal to protected left turn phasing at Ave. SR 29 Washington Vehicle CON $500,000 $0 - $500,000 2020 2022 No
Ave Intersection of SR 29 & Washington Ave
Intersection
27 Calistoga Improvements at SR SR 29 and Fair Way SR 29 Fair Way Vehicle CON $950,000 $0 - $950,000 2021 2022 No
29 & Fair Way Signalization of intersection at SR 29 & Fair Way
Intersection SR 29 and Silverado
28 Calistoga Improvements at SR |Signalization of intersection at SR 29 & Silverado Trail SR 29 Silverado Trail Vehicle CON $853,000 $0 - $853,000 2027 2028 No
29 & Silverado Trail |Trail
Intersection
. Improvements at SR SR 128 & Pet Forest .
2 Calistoga 128 & Petrified Signalization of Intersection at SR 128 & Petrified Road SR 128 SR 128 Veicle $650,000 $550,000 $100,000 2015 2017 ves
Forest Forest CON STIP/LM
30 Calistoga SR-29 Bypass Calistoga SR-29 Bypass Dunaweal Ln/Tubbs Ln Dunaweal SR 29 Silverado Trail Vehicle $7,000,000 $0 - $7,000,000 2030 No
Lincoln Corridor
31 Calistoga Safety Signal modification, bicycle and pedestrian Lincoln Avenue SR 128 Silverado Trail Vehicle $3,500,000 $0 - $3,500,000 2020 No
Enhancements enhancements
Trower Avenue Extend Trower Avenue east to connect with Bi Eastern
32 City of Napa ) 9 Trower Avenue terminus of | Big Ranch Road Bike/Ped/Vehicle Planning $10,500,000 $0 - $10,500,000 2020 2020-2040 No
Extension Ranch Road
Trower Ave
el Vit Bkl New bridge at Redwood Creek and extension of Southern
33 City of Napa . 9 Linda Vista Avenue to Robinson Lane over new Linda Vista Avenue terminus of Robinson lane Bike/Ped/Vehicle Planning $3,500,000 $0 - $3,500,000 2020 2020-2040 No
and Extension . . . : )
Linda Vista Bridge Linda Vista
South Terrace Bridge "I\'l:::azzdg:vag f?:rﬁettsgc;gtieet: ?Srz)i(;irslscl)?n o Southern Northern
34 City of Napa . 9 . . Terrace Drive terminus of terminus of S Bike/Ped/Vehicle Planning $3,500,000 $0 - $3,500,000 2020 2020-2040 No
and Extension Terrace Drive to the northerly terminus of South
. Terrace Dr Terrace Dr
Terrace Drive
Solano Bridge and |New bridge at Napa Creek and extension of Southern
35 City of Napa _g 9 P ) . Solano Avenue terminus of First Street Bike/Ped/Vehicle Planning $7,000,000 $0 - $7,000,000 2020 2020-2040 No
Extension Solano Avenue south to connect with First Street Solano Ave
Lincoln Avenue at |Reconfigure northbound SR 29 off-ramp at SR29 Off- California
36 City of Napa California Blvd & [Lincoln Avenue and modify Lincoln/California Lincoln Avenue Bike/Ped/Vehicle Planning $5,500,000 $0 - $5,500,000 2020 2020-2040 Yes
. . Ramp Avenue
SR29 Off-Ramp |intersection
37 City of Napa Salvador Avenue |Widen Salvador Avenue from SR29 to Jefferson Salvador Avenue SR29 Jefferson Street | Bike/Ped/Vehicle Planning $2,500,000 $0 - $2,500,000 2020  |2020-2040 No
Complete Streets |[Street
Irréci)lag‘;)g::idor Construct sidewalks and bicycle facilities along
38 City of Napa Pe?jlestrian Imola Avenue where none exist or gaps are Imola Avenue Foster Road Skyline Park Bike/Ped/Vehicle Planning $6,500,000 $20,000 NCTPA $6,480,000 2014 2020-2040 No
" present from Foster Road to Skyline Park
Improvements
39 City of Napa SR29 under Pueblo |Pueblo Avenue Overpass connecting Pueblo Pueblo Avenue Pueblo West Pueblo Bike/Ped/Vehicle Planning $30,000,000 $0 . $30,000,000 2020  |2020-2040 No
Avenue Avenue to West Pueblo Avenue Avenue Avenue
40 City of Napa SR29 over Trower |Trower Avenue Underpass TFOWT;t’:‘r’::cL:i‘Z/nSR29 - - Bike/Ped/Vehicle Planning $30,000,000 $0 . $30,000,000 2020  |2020-2040 No
41 City of Napa Jeﬁergon/Laurel New S|gqa| at Jefferson Street/Laurel Street Jefferson/ Llaurel ) ) Bike/Ped/Vehicle Planning $500,000 $0 ) $500,000 2020 2020-2040 No
Signal Intersection Intersection
42 City of Napa Jefferson/Old New signal at Jefferson Street/Old Sonoma Road | Jefferson/ Old Sonoma ) ) Bike/Ped/Vehicle Planning $500,000 $0 ) $500,000 2020 2020-2040 No

Sonoma Signal

Intersection

Intersection

186




Indicates Project in Constrained List

Project Location

Types of funds

No. Jurisdiction Project Title Project Description - : : Mode Project Phase Total Cost Total Committed . Total Need Start Year | End Year | Included in Plan Bay Area
Location Start Point End Point Committed
JeliCEelnel) Jefferson/ Imola
43 City of Napa Intersection Jefferson/Imola intersection modification Intersection - - Bike/Ped/Vehicle Planning $3,000,000 $0 - $3,000,000 2020 2020-2040 No
Widening
Solano/Redwood S . I
44 City of Napa Intersection |/ dening and resriping modifications to the Solano/ Redwood . . Bike/Ped/Vehicle Planning $750,000 $0 . $750,000 2020 |2020-2040 No
Widening Solano Avenue/ Redwood Road Intersection Intersection
SR29 Bike & Construct a bicycle and pedestrian undercrossing
45 City of Napa Pedestrian along the north bank of Napa Creek under SR29 | North bank Napa Creek - - Bike/Ped Design $850,000 $97,000 BTA; TDA-3 $753,000 2013 2017 Yes
Undercrossing at approximately post mile 11.67
el AT Widen Soscol Avenue-SR221-SR121 to six lanes
46 City of Napa Widening * from Magnolia Drive to Silverado Trail including Soscol Avenue Magnolia Drive| Silverado Trail Vehicle Planning $22,750,000 $0 - $22,750,000 2020 2020-2040 No
9 median widening and intersection improvements
47 City of Napa L.|ncoln/Jefferson Modify Lincoln/Jefferson intersection with right Jefferson/ L‘|ncoln } } Bike/Ped/Vehicle Planning $750,000 $0 } $750,000 2020 2020-2040 No
Right Turn Lane(s) |[turn lanes Intersection
48 City of Napa Lincoln/Soscol Right [Modify Lincoln/Soscol intersection with right turn Lllncoln/Solscol ) ) Bike/Ped/Vehicle Planning $750,000 $0 ) $750,000 2020 2020-2040 No
turn Lane(s) lanes intersection
AL Construct roundabouts on First Street at Freewa
49 City of Napa Roundabouts (west . Y 1st/Freeway SR29 Ramp - - Bike/Ped/Vehicle Design $8,500,000 $0 - $8,500,000 2020 2020-2040 Yes
side) Drive and SR29 Southbound ramps
50 City of Napa Jeffers_on/Slerra New S|gqa| at Jefferson Street/ Sierra Avenue Jefferson/ S_lerra ) ) Bike/Ped/Vehicle Planning $500,000 $0 ) $500,000 2020 2020-2040 No
Signal Intersection Intersection
51 City of Napa | Browns Valley Road |Widen Browns Valley Road from Westview Drive | - g 1o \/ajiey Road Westview | \; cormick Lane|  Bike/Ped/Vehicle Planning $3,500,000 $0 - $3,500,000 2020  |2020-2040 No
Complete Streets |to McCormick Lane Drive
52 City of Napa | Salvador Creek Bike |Construct a Class | multiuse path along Salvador | adjacent to Salvador |\ 1o sreet | Big Ranch Road Bike/Ped Planning $800,000 $0 . $800,000 2020  |2020-2040 Yes
Trail Creek Creek
5-way Intersection [Construct intersection improvements at Silverado Silverado/ Coombsville/
53 City of Napa Modification Trail/Third Street/Coombsville Road/East Avenue SIrStLIrESa;CttQ\r/]e - - Bike/Ped/Vehicle Design $8,500,000 $3,500,000 Caltrans $5,000,000 2014 2019 Yes
. Oxbow Preserve |Construct a pedestrian bridge from the Oxbow . Oxbow . . . .
54 City of Napa Pedestrian Bridge |Preserve over the Napa River to the River Trail Napa River Preserve River Trail Bike/Ped Planning $1,250,000 $0 - $1,250,000 2020 2020-2040 Yes
. Oxbow District Construct a pedestrian bridge from the River Trail . . . . . .
55 City of Napa Pedestrian Bridge |over the Napa River to Third Street Napa River River Trail Third Street Bike/Ped Planning $1,250,000 $0 - $1,250,000 2020 2020-2040 Yes
. Laurel Street Construct sidewalks along Laurel Street from ’ .
56 City of Napa Sidewalk Laurel Park to Laurel Manor Laurel Street Laurel park Laurel Manor Pedestrian Planning $2,500,000 $0 - $2,500,000 2020 2020-2040 No
57 City of Napa Traff'%gsgf‘m“s Citywide signal coordination . . . Bike/Ped/Vehicle Planning $2,000,000 $0 . $2,000,000 2020  |2020-2040 Yes
. Sierra Avenue Construct sidewalks along Sierra Avenue from . Jefferson ’ .
58 City of Napa Sidewalks Jefferson Street to SR29 Sierra Avenue Street SR29 Pedestrian Planning $800,000 $0 - $800,000 2020 2020-2040 No
. Foster Road Construct sidewalks along Foster Road adjacent | Foster Road adjacent to ’ .
59 City of Napa Sidewalk o Irene M. Snow Elementary School Snow School - - Pedestrian Planning $750,000 $0 - $750,000 2020 2020-2040 No
. . . . Southern
60 City of Napa Terrace Drive | Construct Sidewalks along Terrace Drive where Terrace Drive Coombsville | o inus of Pedestrian Planning $1,500,000 $0 . $1,500,000 2020  |2020-2040 No
Sidewalks gaps are present Road .
Terrace Drive
61 Cityof Napa  |REEEEEREEREE V idening the sidewalk on Main Strest from First Main Street First Street | Third Street Pedestrian Planning $2,000,000 $30,000 Local $1,970,000 2016 2020 No
Widening Street to Third Street
62 City of Napa el | | pgrade all railroad crossings Gitywide to . . . Bike/Ped/Vehicle/Rail | Planning $2,500,000 $0 . $2,500,000 2020  |2020-2040 No
Upgrades concreate panels with flangeway fillers
SR29 Corridor hiﬁzc:rzzgghli?ggn;;?;i tt?) L'I{:gigaHslgngvgg at Carneros
63 City of Napa Improvements . ) SR29 . Trancas Street Vehicle Planning $250,000 $0 - $250,000 2020 2020-2040 Yes
. . |Imola Avenue, 1st Street, Lincoln Avenue, Intersection
(Urban Highway)
Trancas Street
. . . |Complete construction of collector road as . . Soscol Ferry .
64 Napa County Devlin Rd Extension parallel facility for SR 29 corridor Airport Industrial Area Rd Green Island Rd Vehicle CON $5,500,000 $1,300,000 TMF $4,200,000 2015 2020 Yes
Improve intersection safety and operations
Silverado Trail Oak Knoll Avenue, Yountville Crossroad, Oakville| . . . .
65 Napa County Silverado Trail, various Napa Calistoga Vehicle CON $2,500,000 $0 - $2,500,000 2020 2040 No

intersections

Crossroad, Deer Park Rd, Dunaweal Ln

187




Indicates Project in Constrained List

Project Location

Types of funds

No. Jurisdiction Project Title Project Description - : : Mode Project Phase Total Cost Total Committed . Total Need Start Year | End Year | Included in Plan Bay Area
Location Start Point End Point Committed
Solano Ave Corridor [Construct improvements to reduce flooding and ) )
66 Napa County Improvements reduce noise impacts in corridor Solano Ave Yountville Dry Creek Vehicle CON $300,000 $0 - $300,000 2020 2025 Yes
Improve intersection safety and operations
29 North Count Oakville Grade Rd, Oakville Crossroad,
67 Napa County intersection *y Rutherford Rd (SR 128), Deer Park Rd, SR 29 Napa Calistoga Vehicle CON $2,500,000 $0 - $2,500,000 2025 2040 No
ersections Dunaweal Ln
Improve corridor operations
68 Napa County Route 221* SR .221 . SR 29 SR 121 Vehicle CON $5,200,000 $0 - $5,200,000 2030 2040 No
Napa Vallejo Highway
Carneros SR 29/SR12/SR 121 (Carneros intersection) )
69 Napa County Intersection* Improvements SR29/SR12/SR121 Vehicle $500,000 $0 - $500,000 2020 2030 Yes
SR 29-Unicorporated
70 Napa County Napa . . SR 29 Jameson Napa City Limits Vehicle $8,000,000 $0 PE-CON $8,000,000 2021 2023 Yes
» |4-Lane Rural Highway, from unincorporated Napa
County/Carneros - ;
County to Carneros intersections.
SR-29 6-Lane Rural Highway in unincorporated Napa South Kelly | Jameson Canvon
71 Napa County Unincorporated County from South Kelly Road to Jameson SR 29 Road Y Road Y Vehicle $13,068,000 $0 PE-CON $13,068,000 2021 2024 Yes
Napa/ AC* Canyon
Vine Trail (Redwood Construct a grade separated crossing across
72 NCTPA Rd Crossing)* Redwood Road connecting the adjacent sections Redwood Road - - Bike/Ped/Vehicle Planning $4,500,000 $0 - $4,500,000 2020 2020-2040 Yes
9 of the Vine Trail
Construct Class | mixed use path, including
N VallowVi Fairway Extension.
73 NCTPA Tfap”a_ Caal?sytog;z‘*a SR 29 Calistoga St. Helena Bike/Ped CON $9,200,000 $2,350,000 Local Donation $6,850,000 2016 2018 Yes
74 NCTPA RLEEE L Sl Construct Class | multiuse path between 3rd adjacent to Soscol Vallejo Third Street Bike/Ped Planning $3,500,000 100,000 TDA-3; NVVT Coalition $3,400,000 2016 2020 Yes
Vallejo) Street and Vallejo Street
Class | bike trails, including portions of American South end of
75 NCTPA Vine Trail* Canyon, St. Helena, and unincorporated Napa Napa County Bothe Park American Bike PE-CON $19,799,360 $0 - $19,799,360 2015 2023 Yes
County. Canyon
76 NCTPA Soscol Junction* Construct SB 221 to SB 29/12 flyover structure SR 29/12/221 - - Vehicle PE-CON $50,000,000 $0 - $50,000,000 2015 2035 Yes
77 NCTPA Airport Junction*  |Construct grade separated interchange SR 29/12/Airport - Vehicle CON $73,000,000 $0 - $73,000,000 2020 2040 Yes
Park and Ride Lots,
78 NCTPA (Construction and Park and Ride lots throughout Napa County Napa County - - Bus PE-CON $2,025,000 $0 - $ 2,025,000 2015 2040 No
O&M)
79 NCTPA SR-37 Project Initiation Documentation SR 37 - - Vehicle PE $250,000 $0 $ 250,000 2030 2032 No
80 NCTPA Bus/Agency Signage | New NCTPA Image, Including Bus Stop Signage Napa County - - Bus None $550,000 $0 - $550,000 2015 2018 No
VINE Maintenance
81 NCTPA Facility (Construction |Acquisition and construction of new maintenance TBD - - Bus $38,300,000 $0 - $38,300,000 2017 2018
O&M) facility CON No
Fueling Station
82 NCTPA (Construction and Construction of new fueling station TBD - - Bus $3,792,000 $0 - $3,792,000 2017 2018
O&M) CON No
X . . . . Vallejo Ferry Napa Valley )
83 NCTPA Rapid Bus Project |[13.5 miles of bus rapid corridor enhancements SR 29 Terminal College Bus PE-CON $25,000,000 $0 $25,000,000 2020 2025 No
) Acquisition of 14 articulated buses for Rapid Bus } }
84 NCTPA Rapid Bus Buses from Vallejo Ferry Terminal to NVC N/A Bus None $14,000,000 $0 $14,000,000 2025 2027
85 NCTPA Rapid Bus Project |4.7 miles of bus Rapid Corridor Enhancement SR 29 Nacp;;/g"‘gey Redwood P&R Bus PE.CON $25,000,000 $0 - $25,000,000 2022 2025 No
. Acquisition of 6 articulated buses for Rapid Bus
86 NCTPA Rapid Bus Buses from NVC to Redwood Avenue Park and Ride N/A - - Bus None $6,000,000 $0 - $6,000,000 2022 2024
State of Good (Replacement of Rapid Bus buses) 6 low-floor ) } )
87 NCTPA Repair/ PM articulated buses, 14 articulated buses N/A Bus None $20,750,000 $0 $ 20,750,000 2037 2040
88 NCTPA ZE Bus Project | Acauisition of 2 zero emission buses for a zero N/A Bus CON $3,720,000 $0 $ 3,720,000| 2018 2040 No

emission pilot bus project

188




Indicates Project in Constrained List

Project Location

Types of funds

No. Jurisdiction Project Title Project Description - : : Mode Project Phase Total Cost Total Committed . Total Need Start Year | End Year | Included in Plan Bay Area
Location Start Point End Point Committed
Local routes (1-8) - )
89 NCTPA expanded service | XPand service hours from dam-12am, add N/A . - Bus None $10,281,880 $0 . 10,281,880 | 2018 2040 No
Sunday service
hours
Regional routes .
90 NCTPA (10/11)- expanded | EXPand service hours from dam-12am, add N/A . - Bus None $10,346,000 $0 . 10,346,000 | 2018 2040 No
f Sunday service
service hours
Regional routes Increase frequency from 30 peak, 60 midday and
91 NCTPA (10/11)- Enhanced weekends to 15 peak and 30 midday and N/A - - Bus None $33,122,216 $0 - 33,122,216 2018 2040 No
frequency weekends.
New Transit Vehicles Acquisition of new paratransit vehicles,
92 NCTPA (EXPANSION) community shuttle buses and VINE buses for N/A - - Bus None $27,510,000 $0 - 27,510,000 2017 2040 No
service expansion
Uil S Operation costs for the expansion of the transit
93 NCTPA Growth (Operating P s stenr: N/A - - Bus None $2,800,000 $0 - 2,800,000 2018 2040 No
Costs) 4
New Shelters and
94 NCTPA Stop Amenities Improved bus stops throughout Napa County N/A - - Bus None $4,850,000 $0 - 4,850,000 2020 2040 No
(EXPANSION)
IJ E?::jper:egt Wi-Fi for all buses, Camera System & Real Time
95 NCTPA Repgllacement signage, Asset Management Database, sales N/A - - Bus None $480,000 $0 - 480,000 2015 2019 No
p office equipment, taxi scrip automated readers
Program
Install traffic calming devices (e.g.. bulb outs),
96 St Helena Main Street Corridor |upgrade sidewalk, pedestrian lighting, pedestrian | i it (SR29) | Spring Street | Adams Street | Bike/Ped/Vehicle PE-CON $700,000 $21,278 Local $678,722 2011 2018 No
Improvements furniture, landscaping, bike infrastructure and
traffic signal synchronization
Sulphur
97 St Helena S”'phl“éireek s Sulphur Creek Springs Napa River Bike $5,800,000 $0 . $5,800,000 2020 2030 No
Ay, Construct Class | Bikeway Avenue
Spring Mountain Lower Spring Mountain
98 St Helena Road Class | Spring Mountain Road R . P gC t Bike $1,700,000 $0 - $1,700,000 2020 2030 No
Bikeway Construct Class | Bikeway eservoir ou
Oak Avenue Charter Oak .
99 St Helena Extension Extend Oak Avenue Oak Avenue Avenue Grayson Avenue Vehicle $1,800,000 $0 - $1,800,000 2020 2025 No
100 St Hel Starr Avenue Starr A Hunt A Adams Street Vehicl $617,000 $0 $617,000 2025 2030 N
elena Extension Extend Starr Avenue arr Avenue unt Avenue ams Stree ehicle , - , o
Adams Street .
101 St Helena Extension Extend Adams Street Adams Street end Starr Avenue Vehicle $851,000 $0 - $851,000 2025 2030 No
102 St Helena Ne""&‘ﬁ:&‘fﬁ”th Extend College Avenue, or Starr Avenue, or New Mills Lane | Pope Street Vehicle $1,900,000 $0 - $1,900,000 2025 2030 No
Allison Avenue
103 St Helena Mills Lane Safety Mills Lane Main Street End Vehicle $3,500,000 $0 - $3,500,000 2025 2030 No
Improvements  ||mprove Mills Lane to two lanes with bike and (SR29)
pedestrian access
104 St Helena Napa River Class | Napa River South City |\t Gity Limit Bike $9,800,000 $0 ; $9,800,000 2030 2040 No
Bikeway Limit
Construct Class | Bikeway (River Trail)
New East-West . . .
105 St Helena Collector Extend Adams Street or Mills Lane New End Silverado Trail Vehicle $2,900,000 $0 - $2,900,000 2035 2040 No
106 St Helena F“I'm” Lane Satfety Improve Fulton Lane to two lanes with bike and Fulton Lane Railroad Ave End Vehicle $2,200,000 $0 . $2,200,000 2035 2040 No
mprovements pedestrian access
Future Oak Circle Park, Pl .
107 Yountville : : near Oak Circle and N/A N/A Vehicle anning, $75,000 $0 - $75,000 2015 2018 No
Oak Circle Parking Vintner Ct Design,

Improvement

Parking improvements to existing infrastructure

Construction

189




Indicates Project in Constrained List

Project Locati
No. Jurisdiction Project Title Project Description - el e |c?n : Mode Project Phase Total Cost Total Committed Types of.funds Total Need Start Year | End Year | Included in Plan Bay Area
Location Start Point End Point Committed
South Vet 's Park At Veteran's Park, Pl .
108 Yountville CENNARLERIIS [l Washington St. South of N/A N/A Vehicle anning, $175,000 $0 - $175,000 2020 2021 No
by California Dr Design,
Improvements Parking improvements to existing infrastructure Construction
East of Ea?t of
Washington Washington,
109 Yountville Washington Park Northgof ’ South of Pedestrian Planning, $850,000 $0 - $850,000 2022 2023 No
Washington Park [Adding sidewalk to the Washington Park Forrester Ln Yountville Cross Design,
Sidewalk Project [Subdivision Rd Construction
Yountvill Lenath of Yountville Yountville Yountville Cross Planni
110 Yountville Rl _ _ 9 Cross Roads |Roads and Stags Bike anning, $1,500,000 $0 - $1,500,000 2030 2031 No
Crossroads Bicycle |A full lane bicycle path along Yountville Crossroads ’ Design,
) and Yount St View Ln .
Path & Sidewalk |Crossroads Construction
11 Yountville : To be determined N/A N/A Vehicle Planning, $5,500,000 $0 - $5,500,000 2030 2031 No
Future Parking Design,
Garage Facility New parking facility Construction
Northeast of Washington Planning,
112 Yountville Transportation Extend Yount Mill Road and Yountville Cross Rd, . 9 Entire Site Entire Site Bike/Ped/Vehicle Design, $2,500,000 $0 - $2,500,000 2030 2035 No
. and Yountville Cross Rd .
Infrastructure connecting the new development to the Town. Construction
Planning,
113 Yountville SR-29 Interchange Madison & SR-29 N/A N/A Vehicle Design, $20,000,000 $0 - $20,000,000 2030 2031 No
Project Construct Interchange at Madison and SR-29 Construction
Transit $240,527,096
Transportation $592,943,445

190




REGIONAL SIGNIFICANCE CRITERIA

Expands or extends the principal arterial system (length must be greater than %4 mile)

Expands or extends a roadway to become part of the principal arterial system (length must be greater than ¥4 mile)

Reduces the number of lanes (e.g., road diet) of the principal arterial system (length must be greater than 4 mile)

Adds new or expands access to the principal arterial system (e.g., new interchanges or interchange modifications that add capacity)
Extends or expands the fixed guideway transit infrastructure

Adds new or expands transit stations or terminals, including parking facilities

Expands transit fleets or service levels (e.g., increased frequency, hours of operation)

Alters the cost for users of the transportation system (e.g., cordon pricing, tolling, transit fares).

Total estimated cost (capital + operating and maintenance) is greater than $250 million

GENERAL CRITERIA

Will open after 2021 and by year 2050

Will seek federal, state or regional funding

Will require federal or state action (e.g. project-level conformity, NEPA, CEQA)

Supports Horizon’s Guiding Principles (See Attachment C in Plan Bay Area Regionally-Significan Project Guidance)
Supports the region’s sustainable communities strategy (SCS)

191



April 17, 2019
NVTA Agenda ltem 12.4

_ Continued From: New
I A Action Requested: APPROVE

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
Board Agenda Letter

TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Kate Miller, Executive Director

REPORT BY: Kate Miller, Executive Director
(707) 259-8634 / Email: kmiller@nvta.ca.gov

SUBJECT: State and Federal Legislative Update and State Bill Matrix

RECOMMENDATION

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board receive the State Legislative
update prepared by Platinum Advisors (Attachment 1) and approve board position
recommendations for bills on the State Bill Matrix (Attachment 2).

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION

None

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

State Update
Attached is the State legislative update (Attachment 1) and the State Bill Matrix
(Attachment 2), which includes several new bills introduced since the last report.

Federal Update

Ray Tellis was recently appointed as the Region IX Federal Transit Administrator (FTA)
replacing Leslie Rogers who retired last year. In this role, Mr. Tellis will oversee FTA
grant activities in California, Arizona, Hawaii, and Nevada and the territories of American
Soma, Guam and the Commonwealth of Northern Mariana Islands representing nearly
160 grantees. Mr. Tellis has more than 25 years of experience in public transportation
including most recently where he served as the Director of FTA's Los Angeles
Metropolitan Office.

PROCEDURAL REQUIREMENTS

1. Staff Report
2. Public Comments
3. Motion, Second, Discussion and Vote

192


mailto:kmiller@nvta.ca.gov

NVTA Agenda Letter Wednesday, March 20, 2019
Agenda ltem 12.4
Page 2 of 2

FISCAL IMPACT

Is there a Fiscal Impact? No

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS

Attachments: (1) April 1, 2019 State Legislative Update (Platinum Advisors)
(2) April 1, 2019 State Bill Matrix (Platinum Advisors)

193



ATTACHMENT 1
NVTA Agenda Item 12.4
April 17, 2019

.auu

= Ty

April 1, 2019

TO: Kate Miller, Executive Director
Napa Valley Transportation Authority

FR: Steve Wallauch
Platinum Advisors

RE: Legislative Update

February General Fund Revenues: The Department of Finance (DOF) and State
Controller Betty Yee released reports on February’s General Fund revenues, showing
them in comparison to the 2019-20 governor’s proposed budget.

February . .
Controller Controller Fiscal DOF Fiscal
-Igae)\(/enues Feb Year-to-Date DOF Feb Year-to-Date
Corporation | million above $‘b142'69 m'"'O.n abqve . abqve .
projections above projections | projections projections
o $137 million $2.795 billion
Personal ﬁ;l'gfv billion 1 ¢4 9 billion below | below below
Income projections projections projections projections
i $152 million $31 million
Sales and gsgg million | 6559 563 million | apove below
Use projections above projections | projections projections
$1.34 billion . $128 million $2.218 billion
;otal below §4|.20 b|II|(_)n . above below
evenues | ojections elow projeclions | nrgiections projections

These lower revenue numbers may force the Administration to reconsider its spending
priorities as part of the May Revise. Given that the January Budget was based on a fiscal
outlook that produced a $21 billion surplus, adjustments made to accommodate a $2
billion shortfall would not be significant. While the March number should be out next
week, all eyes are on the April revenue numbers to determine how bright the fiscal
pictures will be.

194


https://sco.ca.gov/Files-EO/2019_03summary.pdf
https://sco.ca.gov/Files-EO/2019_03summary.pdf
https://www.sco.ca.gov/Files-ARD/CASH/February%202019%20Statement%20of%20General%20Fund%20Cash%20Receipts%20and%20Disbursements.pdf
https://www.sco.ca.gov/Files-ARD/CASH/February%202019%20Statement%20of%20General%20Fund%20Cash%20Receipts%20and%20Disbursements.pdf
http://www.dof.ca.gov/Forecasting/Economics/Economic_and_Revenue_Updates/documents/2019/Mar-19.pdf

State of the Judiciary: Chief Justice Tani Cantil-Sakauye delivered her State of the
Judiciary Address to the Legislature on March 19. She pointed out that justices and judges
are becoming more diverse both in terms of gender and race, making them more
representative of California as a whole. She discussed the importance of access to justice
being three-dimensional — the ability to have a physical day in court, remote or online
access to information and tools, and equal access to the justice system for those
representing themselves. According to Cantil-Sakauye, challenges facing the judiciary in
2019 include income inequality, fines and fees on the poor, money owed for minor traffic
offenses turning poor drivers into criminals, and ensuring that workplaces are safe and
free from discrimination and harassment. She thanked Governor Newsom for his proposal
to invest $75 million in the courts to develop, implement, and evaluate pretrial detention
decision-making pilot programs in 8 to 10 courts.

BUDGET

Homelessness Funding for Big Cities: March 20, the 13 big city mayors met with the
Governor and legislative leadership to request additional homelessness funding in the
2019-20 state budget. They noted that the $150 million in Homeless Emergency Aid
Program (HEAP) funding allocated in the 2018-19 budget will result in the creation of
more than 4,000 shelter beds. Their request is for additional funding beyond the $500
million already in the governor's budget proposal for shelter beds and wrap-around
services. After the meeting, the governor stated that he had been swayed, and the budget
would be adjusted, however specifics were not mentioned. It is likely that the budget
adjustments will be announced as part of the May Revision on May 14, however that
change will be incorporated with what will likely be lower-than-projected revenues for the
budget year.

Housing Trailer Bill: The Department of Finance posted draft language implementing
the Governor’s proposal to accelerate the short and long-term development of housing in
California. The proposal also includes the stick that could take away SB 1 local streets
and roads funds from local government if they do not zone for their local fair share of
housing. The language is a rough draft that needs a fair amount of polishing, but it
provides an outline for the Governor’s plan.

Short-Term Goals: The language directs the Department of Housing & Community
Development (HCD) identify short-term statewide housing production goals. The
goals would be based on the sum of three years of a county’s current annualized
regional housing needs allocation that would be achieved in calendar years 2020 and
2021. The new targets would build on the regional housing need goals for the region,
and no region, city or county would have a target lower than its existing annualized
target. The targets for each city and county would be determined as follows:

e Share of households within the county.

e Share of low-income households paying more than 50% of income toward

housing within the county.
e Share of the current number of jobs available within the county

195



Long Term Reform: The language includes legislative declaration to develop a
process that creates a transparent, fair, and objective process for identifying housing
needs, and includes compliance outcomes through incentives and enforcement. HCD
is directed to collaborate with the Office of Planning and Research and form a
stakeholder group to develop an improved regional housing needs allocation process
that streamlines and promotes housing development. The findings of this process
must be completed by December 31, 2022.

Incentive Funds: The language would create the Local Government Planning Support
Grant program. This program would implement the one-time grant funding included
in the Governor’s budget to update existing planning and zoning, as well as rewards
for local entities that demonstrate progress toward increased housing production.

Planning Grants: The budget includes $250 million for planning grants to cities,
counties, and regions to implement necessary changes to comply with the new
short-term housing goals.

Half of these funds would be for regional entities as defined in the language for
developing regional action plans to achieve the short-term goals. While the
definition includes the usual regional entities, such as the Association of Bay Area
Governments (ABAG), Southern California Association of Governments (SCAG),
and Sacramento Area Council of Governments (SACOG), it also groups the
remaining counties into regions, which makes this process a little confusing.
Between August 15" and December 31, 2019, the regions can apply to receive the
planning funds. HCD would have 30 days to review the application and allocate
up to 50% of the grant amount. The grant amount allocated to each region would
be based on the number and size of each city and county within the region.

By December 31, 2019, the regions must prepare and submit an action plan that
specifies a strategy to meet the short-term housing goals. The action plan must
include among other elements an engagement process with the local jurisdictions,
analysis of local policies and practices, yearly action plan goals for each city and
county, and a mechanism to evaluate progress in meeting the goals. These funds
can be spent on technical assistance, feasibility studies, developing policies that
link transportation funds to housing outcomes, and infrastructure planning
including sewers, water systems, transit and roads.

The remaining $125 million would be awarded to cities and counties that
demonstrate a commitment to participate in the development of the action plan.
The grant amounts to cities and counties would be based on population with the
largest grants totaling $750,000 for jurisdictions with a population over 200,000.
These funds would be allocated by December 31, 2019. If the city or county is
located in a region that did not submit a regional request for funds, that city or
county may still apply for funds.

196



Reward Funds: The budget includes $500 million earmarked for rewarding regions
and local jurisdictions for demonstrated progress toward increased housing
production. These funds can be used for any purpose. These funds would be
allocated to regions based on that region’s proportionate share of the annual
housing target. The region would then develop an award methodology to allocate
these funds to each city and county that meets specified criteria. For a city or
county to receive the reward funds it must have a compliant housing element, have
sufficient land zoned for housing to meet its goals, and submitted annual progress
reports.

The Stick: The language requires HCD in collaboration with CalSTA and the Office of
Planning and Research to engage a stakeholder group to propose “opportunities” to
link receipt of SB 1 local streets and roads funds and other non-housing funding to
meeting the required housing goals, such as having a compliant housing element and
compliance with housing progress reports. These recommendations can be
implemented administratively or through the legislative process.

However, the language goes on to allow beginning on July 1, 2023, to withhold any
SB 1 local streets and roads funds from any city or county that does not have a
compliant housing element and has not zoned for its annual housing goals. This is a
lower bar than having to produce housing, but it gets worse. Starting by May 1, 2023,
HCD shall report to the Controller the list of cities and counties that do not meet the
housing requirements and the amount of funds to be withheld from the following fiscal
year's SB 1 streets and roads allocation. The Controller would then reapportion the
withheld funds to those cities and counties that comply with the housing requirements.
Under this language there is no second chance.

LEGISLATION

Gut & Amends: Last week was the deadline to amend spot bills in order to provide the
policy committees time to review and hear these bills before first deadline. The first
hearing deadline in on April 26", which is when policy committees must act on all bills
keyed fiscal. Given the high number of spot bills introduced, the last couple of weeks
mirrored the introduction deadline with respect to the number of new bill proposals being
unveiled. The attached bill matrix included several new measures for the NVTA to review
and take action.

197



. A
a

[\

[~

A DVISORS

ATTACHMENT 2
NVTA Agenda Item 12.4
April 17, 2019

\%

April 1, 2019

New Positions

Bills

Subject

Status Client - Position

AB 285
(Friedman D)
California
Transportation
Plan.

AB 285 updates requirements of the
California Transportation Plan (CTP) to
reflect the state’s recent environmental
legislation. In particular, the bill
requires Caltrans to include in the CTP
the following:

e An overview of all sustainable
communities and an assessment
of how implementation of these
strategies will influence the
configuration of the statewide
integrated multimodal
transportation system.

e A review of the potential impacts
and opportunities for
coordination of specified
transportation grant programs,
such as the Low Carbon Transit
Operators Program and the
Transit and Intercity Rail
Program.

e A forecast of the impacts of
advanced and emerging
technologies, including shared,
autonomous, connected, and
electric transportation options,
over a 20-year horizon on
infrastructure, access, and
transportation systems.

ASSEMBLY NAT.
RES.

RECOMMENDED
POSITION:
WATCH

AB 752
(Gabriel D)
Public transit:
transit
centers:
lactation
rooms.

AB 752 is no longer a spot bill. As
amended, this bill would require a
“‘multimodal transit station” that includes
a public restroom and commences
operations, or a renovation after
January 1, 2021 to include a lactation
room.

ASSEMBLY TRANS |RECOMMENDED
POSITION:

WATCH

198



javascript:OpenBillInfo('AB%20285');
https://a43.asmdc.org/
javascript:OpenBillInfo('AB%20752');
https://a45.asmdc.org/

AB 752

(Cont.) The bill does not define a “multimodal
transit station,” but it does define
through a code reference a transit
station to include rail/light rail or ferry
terminal, a bus hub, or a bus transfer
station. The Government Code
referenced in the bill defines bus hub or
bus transfer station as follows:
“‘Bus hub” means an intersection of
three or more bus routes, with a
minimum route headway of 10 minutes
during peak hours
“Bus transfer station” means an arrival,
departure, or transfer point for the
area’s intercity, intraregional, or
interregional bus service having
permanent investment in multiple bus
docking facilities, ticketing services, and
passenger shelters.
AB 784 AB 784 was gutted and amended to ASSEMBLY REV. & |RECOMMENDED
(Mullin D) include a proposal to exempt medium TAX POSITION:
Sales and use | and heavy duty zero emission transit SUPPORT
taxes: vehicles from the state’s sales tax.
exemption: Locally imposed sales taxes would still
California apply, as well as specified statewide
Hybrid and taxes.
Zero-Emission
Truck and Bus | Specifically, AB 784 would exempt from
Voucher the state sales tax any zero-emission
Incentive technology medium or heavy-duty
Project: transit | transit bus vehicle that is eligible for a
bus vehicles. |rebate from the Hybrid and Zero
Emission Truck and Bus Voucher
Incentive Program (HVIP). This sales
tax exemption would sunset on January
1, 2024.
AB 847 As introduced, AB 847 would create a |ASSEMBLY RLS. RECOMMENDED
(Grayson D) |funding incentive for cities and counties POSITION:
Transportation | to produce housing by reallocating non- WATCH

finance:
priorities:
housing.

Article 19 transportation funds and
provide bonuses for certain funding
programs.

199



javascript:OpenBillInfo('AB%20752');
javascript:OpenBillInfo('AB%20784');
https://a22.asmdc.org/
javascript:OpenBillInfo('AB%20847');
https://a14.asmdc.org/

AB 847
(Cont.)

However, the bill was recently gutted
and amended to now create a new
competitive grant program. This bill
does not provide a funding source, but
it directs the Department of Housing
and Community Development to create
a grant program that would offset up to
100% of any local transportation impact
fees imposed on housing project that
includes at least 20% affordable units.

AB 1350
(Gonzalez D)
Youth Transit
Pass Pilot
Program.

AB 1350 would create the Youth Transit
Pass Pilot Program. This bill is similar
to prior efforts to create a funding
program to provide free transit passes
to persons under 25 years old. AB
1350 does not include an appropriation,
but points to a future appropriation of
greenhouse gas reduction funds.

The bill directs Caltrans to create the
program that would allocate grants to
eligible entities. The grants would be
capped at $5 million and be no smaller
than $20,000.

This bill might be a little premature.
UCLA is currently undertaking a study
to examine and summarize the various
types of student transit pass programs
in California. As you may recall, former
Governor Brown vetoed a similar bill
because of the need for additional
information on existing programs. The
UCLA study is not expected to be
completed until the end of this year.

ASSEMBLY TRANS.

RECOMMENDED
POSITION:
WATCH

AB 1351
(Lackey R)
Transit
operators:
paratransit
and dial-a-ride
services.

AB 1351 amends Transportation
Development Act (TDA) to add
requirements on determining eligibility
for paratransit service. The bill would
require that a determination be made
within 7 days of submitting a complete
application, allow an applicant to submit
proof electronically that another transit
operator determined that the person is
eligible for paratransit, and require that
service will be provided at any
requested time.

ASSEMBLY TRANS

RECOMMENDED
POSITION:
OPPOSE
UNLESS
AMENDED

200



javascript:OpenBillInfo('AB%201350');
https://a80.asmdc.org/
javascript:OpenBillInfo('AB%201351');
https://ad36.asmrc.org/

AB 1351
(Cont.)

This bill will be significantly amended
due to concerns expressed by transit
operators and policy consultants.
Assembly Transportation Committee is
proposing amendments to direct
California State Transportation Agency
(CalSTA) to develop guidelines for
transit operators to follow that would
ease the ability of paratransit users to
access services in cities while traveling.

AB 1402
(Petrie-
Norris D)
Active
Transportation
Program.

AB 1402 would revise the allocation
process for Active Transportation
Funds. AB 1402 is substantively similar
to the changes made to the ATP in SB
152 (Beall), but the bills are structured
differently. Overall the changes in AB
1402 include the following:

e Modified the distribution formula
to increase from 40% to 75%
that is allocated to metropolitan
planning organizations (MPO),
increase the rural county share
from 10% to 15%, and reduce
the statewide pot that is
administered by the CTC from
50% to 10%.

e Shift greater administrative
control for the regional share to
the MPOs.

e Provide geographic balance in
the selection of projects funded
through the statewide
competitive program.

ASSEMBLY TRANS.

RECOMMENDED
POSITION:
SUPPORT

AB 1568
(McCarty D)
General
plans: housing
element:
production
report:
withholding of

AB 1568 would require each city and
county to meet its housing production
numbers in order to receive its share of
local street and road funds.

Under AB 1568, starting with the 2022-
23 fiscal year, any city or county that
fails to meet its production report

ASSEMBLY H & C. D.

RECOMMENDED
POSITION:
OPPOSE

201



javascript:OpenBillInfo('AB%201402');
https://a74.asmdc.org/
https://a74.asmdc.org/
javascript:OpenBillInfo('AB%201568');
https://a07.asmdc.org/

transportation [requirements in its housing element will
funds not receive its SB 1 local streets and

roads funds. The withheld funds would

be distributed to the city or county once

that city or county complies with the

production report AND submits a list of

road projects to be funded by the

allocation.
AB 1633 AB 1633 authorizes each city within the |ASSEMBLY TRANS | RECOMMENDED
(Grayson D) |jurisdiction of the Metropolitan POSITION:
Regional Transportation Commission (MTC) to WATCH
transportation |develop and implement a traffic signal
plans: traffic | optimization plan. The bill also directs
signal Caltrans to ensure its traffic signals
optimization within these cities are adjusted and
plans. maintained in accordance with the plan.
SB 152 SB 152 would implement some of the SENATE TRANS RECOMMENDED
(Beall D) findings made by the Legislative POSITION:
Active Analysts Office (LAO) regarding the SUPPORT
Transportation | administration of the Active
Program. Transportation Program (ATP). The

goal is to streamline the administrative
process for awarding ATP funds. The
bill includes the following changes:

e Modified the distribution formula
to increase from 40% to 75%
that is allocated to metropolitan
planning organizations (MPO),
increase the rural county share
from 10% to 15%, and reduce
the statewide pot that is
administered by the CTC from
50% to 10%.

e Shift greater administrative
control for the regional share to
the MPOs.

¢ Increase reporting requirements
from the MPOs to the CTC.

202



javascript:OpenBillInfo('AB%201633');
https://a14.asmdc.org/
javascript:OpenBillInfo('SB%20152');
http://sd15.senate.ca.gov/

SB 235 SB 235 allows the City of Napa and SENATE HOUSING |RECOMMENDED
(Dodd D) County of Napa to reach an agreement POSITION:
Planning and | under which the county would be SUPPORT
zoning: allowed to count certain housing units
housing built within the city toward the county’s
production regional housing needs assessment
report: (RHNA) requirement. The Napa Pipe
regional project is the genesis for this bill.
housing need
allocation
SB 397 SB 397 would require a public transit SENATE TRANS RECOMMENDED
(Glazer D) operator when moving people from an POSITION:
Public transit | evacuation area to allow passengers to SUPPORT
operators: board with their pets. The bill also
passengers requires transit operators to develop
with pets: best practices for allowing pets on
evacuation public transit vehicles serving
orders. evacuation areas. The bill limits pets to

cats or dogs.
Existing Positions
Bills Subject Status YA =

Position

AB 11 AB 11 would enact the Community ASSEMBLY H & C D. |WATCH
(Chiu D) Redevelopment Act of 2019 and allow local
Community governments to form a housing and
Redevelopment | infrastructure agency that would focus on
Law of 2019. affordable housing and infrastructure

investments. The bill requires a seat on the
governing board for each affected taxing
entity, and it allows an affected taxing entity
to elect to contribute to the regional
development agency (RDA) or not. In
addition, the bill also allows an RDA to
capture the growth on the schools’ share
(i.e. Educational Revenue Augmentation
Fund [ERAF]) of the property tax growth.

AB 11 does require any new RDA to be
approved by the Strategic Growth Council,
which must find that the redevelopment
plan furthers greenhouse gas (GHG)
reduction goals and the fiscal impact to the
state for backfilling the lost ERAF growth
does not exceed a yet to be specified

203



javascript:OpenBillInfo('SB%20235');
http://sd03.senate.ca.gov/
javascript:OpenBillInfo('SB%20397');
http://sd07.senate.ca.gov/
javascript:OpenBillInfo('AB%2011');
https://a17.asmdc.org/

amount. The new RDA could finance
housing, transit, transit priority projects,
interchanges, bridges, parks and port
infrastructure, to name a few. The projects
do not need to be located within the
redevelopment area, but must have a
nexus to the project area.

AB 147

(Burke D)

Use taxes:
collection:
retailer
engaged in
business in this
state.

AB 147 was unanimously approved by the
Senate Committee on Governance &
Finance, which would enact changes to
implement the South Dakota v. Wayfair
decision. Under Wayfair, the U.S. Supreme
Court found that online retailers are
required to collect and remit sales tax
regardless of whether the online retailer
has a physical presence in the state where
the order is delivered.

The California Department of Tax and Fee
Administration (CDTFA) through its
authority has issued a letter stating how it
intends to comply with this decision. The
CDTFA proposal will take effect on April 1,
2019. The CDTFA proposal retains the
$100,000 threshold used in South Dakota,
but CDTFA would apply that dollar
threshold to sales within each taxing
jurisdiction. This means the state sales tax
would be collected once the $100,000
threshold is reached, but local taxes would
only be collected if sales within that local
tax district also reach $100,000.

To simplify this process, AB 147 would
propose a $500,000 statewide threshold.
State and local sales taxes would both be
collected once a statewide total of
$500,000 in sales is reached. This bill
would also require sales tax to be collected
on all sales made through an intermediary,
such as eBay or Amazon. Under AB 147
an entity that sales items through a
“marketplace facilitator,” such as eBay, the
marketplace facilitator is required to collect
and remit the tax on all sales regardless of

ASSEMBLY
CONCURRENCE

SUPPORT

204



javascript:OpenBillInfo('AB%20147');
https://a62.asmdc.org/

the threshold. The local sales tax revenue
would be allocated to the local tax districts.

AB 252 AB 252 would repeal the sunset date on ASSEMBLY APPR. |SUPPORT
(Daly D) current law that delegates to Caltrans the
Department of | authority for National Environmental Policy
Transportation: | Act (NEPA) decision making. The existing
environmental |NEPA Assignment Program authority would
review process: | sunset on January 1, 2020. This program
federal started as part of a pilot program under
program. federal Safe, Accountable, Flexible, and
Efficient Transportation Equity Act-A
Legacy for Users (SAFETEA-LU) legislation
and has been extended twice so far. AB
252 would make it a permanent program.
The NEPA Assignment Program has
streamlined the environmental process for
both state and local transportation projects
without compromising compliance with
environmental laws and regulations.
AB 314 This bill would consolidate and uniformly ASSEMBLY P.E. & |WATCH
(Bonta D) apply existing laws to grant reasonable R.
Public time-off with compensation for public
employment: employees for activities related to
labor relations: | employee-employer relations. Existing law
release time. on release time does not cover public
transit employees, but AB 314 would
expand these release time provisions to
include public transit employees. The bill
would require a public employer to grant
reasonable time off for employee
representatives to testify at hearings before
the personnel boards, participate in
labor/management committees, investigate
grievances, or participate at new employee
orientations.
AB 659 AB 659 requires the CTC to form a working | ASSEMBLY TRANS. | WATCH
(Mullin D) group, consisting of local governments and
Transportation: |transportation entities that would develop
emerging the guidelines and selection criteria for the
transportation | Smart City Challenge Grants. The bill
technologies: envisions funding projects that use
California intelligent transportation systems and

205



javascript:OpenBillInfo('AB%20252');
https://a69.asmdc.org/
javascript:OpenBillInfo('AB%20314');
https://a18.asmdc.org/
javascript:OpenBillInfo('AB%20659');
https://a22.asmdc.org/

Smart City
Challenge
Grant Program.

applications that would reduce congestion,
enhance mobility, safety, and spurring
innovation. The bill does not currently
identify or appropriate funds for this
program.

ACA 1 This constitutional amendment would lower | ASSEMBLY APPR SUPPORT

(Aquiar- the voter threshold for property tax

Curry D) increases, parcel taxes and sales taxes to

Local 55% if the funds are used for affordable

government housing and infrastructure projects. This

financing: includes improvements to transit and

affordable streets and highways.

housing and

public

infrastructure:

voter approval.

SB 5 SB 5 would allow an Enhanced SENATE HOUSING |WATCH

(Beall D) Infrastructure Finance District (EIFD)

Local-State authority to divert a portion of the ERAF

Sustainable property tax share to the IFD — not just the

Investment incremental growth, but the base share of

Incentive ERAF. SB 5 would require any IFD that

Program. wants to capture the ERAF share to apply
to the Sustainable Investment Incentive
Committee, which SB 5 creates. The bill
would limit the amount of ERAF tax
revenue the Committee can approve to
$200 million each year, with the annual
impact not to exceed $1 billion. These
limits are increased in future years.
SB 5 generally promotes the construction of
housing and infill development that
promotes transit use.

SB 50 SB 50 is the reintroduction of SB 827 from [SENATE GOV & FIN |WATCH

(Wiener D) last year. In general SB 50 would provide

Planning and development incentives such as density

zoning: housing
development:
equitable

bonuses and eliminating height restrictions
for housing projects constructed near rail
transit stations, ferry terminals, or along
high-quality bus corridors. The bill would

206



javascript:OpenBillInfo('ACA%201');
https://a04.asmdc.org/
https://a04.asmdc.org/
javascript:OpenBillInfo('SB%205');
http://sd15.senate.ca.gov/
javascript:OpenBillInfo('SB%2050');
http://sd11.senate.ca.gov/

communities
incentive.

also provide these development incentives
to projects located in “job rich” areas, which
has not been fully defined.

While likely no less controversial than SB
827 from last year, SB 50 does make
several changes in an attempt to address
concerns expressed about SB 827. The bill
includes provisions to delay the application
of SB 50 in areas deemed to be a “sensitive
community,” which aims to address
gentrification concerns. The bill also
prohibits a project from being located at a
site that would require housing to be
removed, or if the site included rental
housing in the past 7 years. SB 50 also
allows local governments to opt out of SB
50 if they develop their own plans that
increase density and multi-family housing
near transit.

SB 127
(Wiener D)
Transportation
funding: active
transportation:
complete streets

SB 127 would require Caltrans, starting with
the 2020 State Highway Operation and
Protection Program (SHOPP) to include
investments that improve the safety of
pedestrians and bicyclists. This bill would
require Caltrans when it undertakes a capital
improvement project on a state highway or a
local street that crosses a state highway to
include investments in or improvements to
pedestrian and bicycle facilities. Caltrans is
required to form a project development team
for each project that include representatives
from the local transportation agency, bicycle
and pedestrian advisory committees, and
representatives from disadvantaged
communities. Bicycle and pedestrian
investments are not required to be made on
freeways, and Caltrans can seek to exempt a
project if the investments would create an
adverse impact or there is a demonstrated
absence of need.

SENATE TRANS.

WATCH

207

10


javascript:OpenBillInfo('SB%20127');
http://sd11.senate.ca.gov/

208

SB 137 SB 137 would allow any city or county to SENATE APPR SUPPORT
(Dodd D) swap federal transportation funds for state
Federal funds. The current exchange program is
transportation  [limited to regional transportation planning
funds: state agencies with a population below 200,000.
exchange This measure is sponsored by California
programs. State Association of Counties (CSAC), and it

is aimed at streamlining project delivery by

removing the federal review process

associated with using federal funds.
SB 336 SB 336 aims to address safety and customerlSENATE TRANS. SUPPORT
(Dodd D) service issues by requiring at least one
Transportation: |public transit employee to be present on any
fully-automated [fully-automated transit vehicle. The public
transit vehicles. [transit employee shall be trained in

passenger safety, communications,

emergency preparedness, and assisting the

disabled and elderly.

11


javascript:OpenBillInfo('SB%20137');
http://sd03.senate.ca.gov/
javascript:OpenBillInfo('SB%20336');
http://sd03.senate.ca.gov/

	0000_Agenda
	0.0_Glossary of Acronyms Updated 11-2018
	0009_1_Draft Minutes
	0010_1_Staff Report
	0011_1_Staff Report
	11.3_LCTOP FY 18-19 Grant Application jp ao_kes-KM changes
	RECOMMENDATION

	11.3_LCTOP FY 18-19 Grant Application Attch 1 Resolution 19-07 LCTOP FY 18-19 Project_kes-KM change dg
	RESOLUTION No. 19-07


	0012_1_Staff Report
	12.1_OPEB new plan ao_kes-KM changes
	Action Requested: APPROVE
	RECOMMENDATION
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY


	12.1_OPEB Attch 1 Resolution No. 19-08 CalPERS CHANGE - ALL EQUAL 1 FIXED_kes
	12.1_OPEB Attch 2 Draft Plan

	0013_1_Staff Report
	12.2_SR 29 Corridor Plan Update_Work Authorization
	Action Requested:  APPROVE
	RECOMMENDATION
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY


	12.2_SR 29 Corridor Plan Attach 1_Work Authorization No. E-11_SR29 Comprehensive Mutlimodal (D)_ryk
	E11_SR29 COMP MULTIMODAL
	E11_SR 29 CORRIDOR COMP MULITMODAL & PID(D)ryk
	EXHIBIT A_NVTA_SR 29 CMCP_Letter_Scope_Budget_GHD
	EXHIBIT A_GHD Proposal for SR29 Multimodal Corridor Plan & PID for SR29 thu American Canyon
	EXHIBIT A_09_(fe)
	pg1
	pg2-10
	09_SR29_COMP MULTIMODAL CORRIDOR PLAN
	SOW_ SR29 Comprehensive Corridor(2)



	EXHIBIT A_A1_021419
	EXHIBIT B_COST SHEET

	EXHIBIT B_COST SHEET (1)
	E11_SR29 COMP MULTIMODAL



	0014_1_Staff Report
	12.3_RTP Call for Projects
	Action Requested: APPROVE
	RECOMMENDATION
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY


	12.3_RTP Call for Projects Attch 1 Guidance_February'19
	G  U  I  D  A  N  C  E
	Overview
	Context
	Plan Bay Area 2050 Development Process
	Relation to Countywide Transportation Plans
	Definitions
	1. Project Lists
	2. County Targets
	3. Coordination, Outreach, & Public Comment
	4. Submittal Process
	Attachments



	Attachment A – Follow a Transportation Project From Idea to Implementation3
	Attachment B – Draft Programmatic Categories
	Attachment C - Horizon’s Guiding Principles
	Attachment D – Project Performance Projects

	12.3_RTP Call for Projects Attch 2 PBA Project Submittal Template
	PBA 2050 Project List
	Countywide Transp Plan List
	(DO NOT MODIFY)


	0015_1_Staff Report
	12.4_Legislative Update_kes
	Action Requested: APPROVE
	RECOMMENDATION
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY


	12.4_Legislative Update Attch 1 State Report 4-1
	12.4_Legislative Update Attch 2 State Matrix 4-1 km_kes




